Initial Environmental Examination

PUBLIC

October 2023

Mongolia: Sustaining Access to and Quality of Education During Economic Difficulties Project (Additional Financing)

Prepared by Ministry of Education and Science (MES) for the Asian Development Bank (ADB).

CURRENCY EQUIVALENTS

(as of 01 September 2023) Currency unit – mongolian togrog (MNT) MNT1.00 = \$0.00028794 \$1.00 = MNT3472.98

ABBREVIATIONS

ACM	_	Asbestos Containing Materials
ADB	_	Asian Development Bank
ASI	_	Agency for Specialized Inspection
DPR	—	Detailed Project Report
EA	—	Executing Agency
EIA	—	Environmental Impact Assessment
EMoP	_	Environmental Monitoring Plan
EMP	—	Environmental Management Plan
GAE	—	General Authority for Education
GASI	—	General Agency for Specialized Inspection
GOM	—	Government of Mongolia
GRM	—	Grievance Redress Mechanism
IA	—	Implementing Agency
IEE	—	Initial Environmental Examination
MET	_	Ministry of Environment and Tourism
MES	—	Ministry of Education and Science
MOF	—	Ministry of Finance
UMED	_	Ulaanbaatar Metropolitan Education Department
VOC	_	Volatile Organic Compound

WEIGHTS AND MEASURES

1 Cusec	_	Measure of flow rate (28.317 liters per second)
1 ha. (hectare)	_	10,000 sq. m
1 km (kilometer)	_	1,000 m
1 kV	_	kilovolt (1,000 volts)
1 kW	—	kilowatt (1,000 watts)
1 kWh	—	1 kilowatt-hour = 1000 watts

NOTE

In this report, "\$" refers to US dollars.

This initial environmental examination is a document of the borrower. The views expressed herein do not necessarily represent those of ADB's Board of Directors, Management, or Staff, and may be preliminary in nature. Your attention is directed to the "terms of use" section of ADB's website.

In preparing any country program or strategy, financing any project, or by making any designation of or reference to a particular territory or geographic area in this document, ADB does not intend to make any judgments as to the legal or other status of any territory or area.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

GLO	SSAF	RY OF TERMS USED	i
EXE(CUTIN	/E SUMMARY	1
1.0	IN	TRODUCTION	10
	1.1	Background	10
	1.2	Impacts, Outcome, and Outputs	11
	1.3	Scope of Work and Methodology Adopted	12
2.0	PC	DLICY, LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE FRAMEWORK	14
	2.1	Mongolian - National, Local, Other Applicable Environmental Laws, Regulations, ar	nd
	Stan	dards as applicable to the project.	14
	2.2	Other International Environmental Requirements	23
	2.3	Mongolia and Multilateral Environmental Agreements (MEAs)	25
	2.4	Asian Development Bank's Safeguards Policies	26
3.0	DE	ESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT	30
	3.1	The Project	30
	3.2	Justification of the Project	30
	3.3	Location	30
	3.4	Size and Magnitude of Operation	34
4.0	DE	ESCRIPTION OF ENVIRONMENT (Baseline Data)	38
	4.1	Physical Environment of Mongolia	38
	4.2	Sub-project locations	44
	4.3	Human and Economic Development	48
	4.4	Climate Change Risks in Mongolia	49
	4.5	Seismology in Mongolia	50
	4.6	Ecological Resources	52
	4.7	Protected areas in Mongolia	52
	4.8	Environmental Parameters: Air, Ground Water, Soil, Noise Quality	56
	4.8.1	Current Conditions and Major Problems	56
	4.8.2	Monitoring of Air, Noise, Soil and Water along the project location	60
	4.9	Existing and associated facilities	69
	4.10	Socio-Economic Development	70
	4.11	Historical, Cultural and Archaeology Sites/Places	78
5.0	A	NTICIPATED ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES	80
	5.1	Environment Impacts and Mitigation Measures	80
	5.2	Environment Problems due to Project Location and Design	80
	5.3	Environmental Impacts Associated with Pre-Construction Stage	82
	5.4	Environmental Impacts Associated with Operational Stage	91
6.0	A	NALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES	93
	6.1	MES Approach for Planning of a subproject	93
	6.2	Alternatives for Subproject Components	93
	6.3	Methodology for sub-project site selection: environmental view	93
	6.4	Cumulative Impact Analysis of subprojects	102
7.0	E	IVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN	106
	7.1	Critical Environmental Review Criteria	106
	7.2	Disaster Management, Health and Safety, Training	106
	7.3	Environmental Impact Matrix	108
	7.4	Monitoring	114
	7.5	Environmental Management Plan (EMP)	114
	7.6	Environmental Monitoring Plan (EMoP)	114

	7.7	Environmental Management Plan Budget Costs	116	
	7.8	Institutional Arrangements	117	
	7.9	Implementation Plan	120	
8.0	IN	FORMATION DISCLOSURE, CONSULTATION AND PARTICIPATION	123	
	8.1	Consultation Process	123	
	8.2	Consultation Details	123	
	8.3	Information Disclosure	129	
9.0	GF	RIEVANCE REDRESS MECHANISM	131	
	9.1	Grievance Channels (Framework)	131	
	9.2	Time Frame	131	
	9.3	The Grievance Redress Mechanism	131	
10.0	CC	DNCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION	134	
ANNEXURES				
Anne	xure '	1: Inventorization of Schools/Kindergarten	136	
Anne	xure 2	2: Environment Management Plan (EMP)	165	
Anne	xure (3: Environment Monitoring Plan (Environmental Parameters)	173	
Annexure 4: Standards for Environment Monitoring for Air, Water, Noise and Soil Sampling				
Annexure 5: Sample Environment Monitoring Report 17				
Anne	xure 6	6: Details of Public Consultation (Environment)	189	
Anne	xure 7 (ad	7: Due diligence status of existing and associated facilities for the project proposed dditional financing) kindergarten and school buildings	237	

GLOSSARY OF TERMS USED

Aimag: AimagSoum: Smallest administrative unit of AimagBagh: Smallest administrative unit of SoumDistrict: Smallest administrative unit of UB cityKhoroo: Smallest administrative unit of DistrictGer: Mongolian traditional dwellingsGer areaArea in the cities which families mostly reside in gersKhashaa Plot: Fencing around Ger owned by households	<u> Seneral Terms</u>	
Soum:Smallest administrative unit of AimagBagh:Smallest administrative unit of SoumDistrict:Smallest administrative unit of UB cityKhoroo:Smallest administrative unit of DistrictGer:Mongolian traditional dwellingsGer areaArea in the cities which families mostly reside in gersKhashaa Plot:Fencing around Ger owned by households	Aimag	
Bagh: Smallest administrative unit of SoumDistrict: Smallest administrative unit of UB cityKhoroo: Smallest administrative unit of DistrictGer: Mongolian traditional dwellingsGer areaArea in the cities which families mostly reside in gersKhashaa Plot: Fencing around Ger owned by households	Soum	Iministrative unit of Aimag
District:Smallest administrative unit of UB cityKhoroo:Smallest administrative unit of DistrictGer:Mongolian traditional dwellingsGer areaArea in the cities which families mostly reside in gersKhashaa Plot:Fencing around Ger owned by households	3agh	Iministrative unit of Soum
Khoroo:Smallest administrative unit of DistrictGer:Mongolian traditional dwellingsGer areaArea in the cities which families mostly reside in gersKhashaa Plot:Fencing around Ger owned by households	District	ministrative unit of UB city
Ger: Mongolian traditional dwellingsGer areaArea in the cities which families mostly reside in gersKhashaa Plot: Fencing around Ger owned by households	Khoroo	ministrative unit of District
Ger areaArea in the cities which families mostly reside in gersKhashaa Plot: Fencing around Ger owned by households	Ger	raditional dwellings
Khashaa Plot : Fencing around Ger owned by households	<i>Ger</i> area	cities which families mostly reside in gers
	<i>Khashaa</i> Plot	ound Ger owned by households
Construction : Technical and detailed drawing for construction of building Blueprint	Construction 3lueprint	nd detailed drawing for construction of building

For the Purposes of this IEE Sub-project : Indivi

: Individual Schools/kindergartens selected and included in the project for expansion and new construction

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1. The growth of Mongolia's economy has rapidly decelerated due to declining foreign direct investment and falling commodity prices. This slowed growth has caused serious economic difficulties, including large revenue shortfalls and cuts in government investment, which are expected to continue beyond 2018 and further require the government to reduce inefficiency in public spending. The tightening education budget, compounded by the growth of school age population and high costs of operating kindergartens and schools because of the low population density and harsh winters in Mongolia, will aggravate difficulties with sustaining access to and quality of education, especially for disadvantaged children and schools.

2. ADB is preparing an additional financing for ongoing project loan 3594-MON: Sustain Access to and Quality of Education Economic Difficulties to help the Government of Mongolia sustain access to and quality of pre-primary, primary, junior, and senior secondary education during the economic difficulties. The overall project (refers to the ongoing and additional financing) will have five outputs: (i) enrolment capacity of schools and kindergartens enhanced, (ii) curriculum, assessment and evaluation updated and implemented in line with education standards, (iii) availability and affordability of quality educational resources improved, (iv) school and kindergarten leaders and teachers' knowledge and skills upgraded, and (v) systems for increasing efficiency in public spending on education developed. The Ministry of Finance (MOF), the Ministry of Education and Culture (MES) and ADB¹ agreed that the executing agency of the project will be MES, and that the MES and, Ulaanbaatar Metropolitan Education Department (UMED) will remain to be implementing agencies for the ongoing project while the General Authority for Education (GAE) will the implementing agency for the additional financing. The ongoing project will be implemented from April 2018 to February 2025 while additional financing will be implemented from February 2024 to December 2026.

Components and Summary Environmental Issues

3. The IEE report comprises of baseline data on the existing condition of the physical and biological environment, the anticipated environmental impacts, proposed mitigation measures, monitoring frameworks, grievance procedure and public consultations. The consultant team undertook field surveys to sub-project sites to assess the physical and biological environment – factors such as site ecology, management of construction, sanitation, use of equipment and machineries, environmental health and safety, occupational hazard etc. The environment management and monitoring plan have been dealt with in detail in the respective sections of the report. A generic environment management plan has been attached separately. However, a summary list of key impacts on environment parameters are briefly enumerated in **Table 1** below:

#	Environmental Parameter	Type of Impact	Reason	Proposed Mitigation Measures
1	Air Quality	Low	Insignificant air emission from the construction activity except during stacking/storage of soil, construction material at site	Sprinkling of water, proper handling of excavated soil, proper construction material storage
2	Water Quality	Low	The project will require small quantity of water for	The required water will be sourced from tankers by the construction

Table 1: Summary Impacts on key environment parameters

¹ As per MOU signed between ADB and MOF, MES

#	Environmental Parameter	Type of Impact	Reason	Proposed Mitigation Measures
			construction. No hazardous effluent is envisaged to be discharged during construction	company. Domestic effluent shall be discharged in holding tanks which will be cleaned regularly, and waste will be disposed of at designated dump sites of the city.
3	Soil Quality	Low	Land is available-having open/vacant areas within the school premises for expansion projects and government land for new schools.	Construction company to ensure proper housekeeping, sanitation and cleanliness at work site.
4	Noise Quality	Low	The construction activity may lead to noise pollution during concreting etc. for the residents of the area. Small noise related installations within shell structure may continue beyond school holidays	The schools shall be closed for summer vacation during shell construction of the new building to minimize disruption. Noise monitoring will be done at regular intervals. If any night construction activity that is noise intensive is undertaken, neighbourhood must be consulted to determine suitable timings.
5	Hazardous Substance – e.g., Asbestos, Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs)	Minimal	The expansion projects will not impact the main buildings of the schools	Sections of buildings, if they contain any hazardous material, will not be selected for improvement actions.
6	Terrestrial Ecology	Low	No ecologically sensitive place (protected area/ reserved forest/Important flora and fauna species) within 5 km radius from each sub-project site	Tree replantation/transplantation to be carried out inside school by construction company if any trees are cut.

4. Additional financing covers 9 educational buildings; 8 of which are already included in the project IEE and one new kindergarten in Murun, Khuvsgul. As previous buildings are still under construction and the project implementation is on-going, the updated IEE includes all 30 subcomponents. **Table 2** below gives key features, including environmental issues (if any) for the sub-projects:

Table	2: Key features	and environmental issues fo	r each Sub-project
• • •			

No	Sub-Project	Location	Key features of sub-project	Environmental Issues
	components		component	
Α	Kindergartens	5		
A 1	Kindergartens	under expansion		
1	Kindergarten	UB, Bayangol	Existing 2 floor building is	Dund Gol river is 1.8 km, Tuul river
	No.164	District, 4th khoroo	established in 1973, connected	is 5 km and the Bogd Khan SPA is
			to central heating, electricity,	10 km away from site. No other
			water, and sewage system. The	wildlife sanctuary or ecological
			wall of existing building is	sensitive area within the 1.8 km
			constructed by limestone bricks	vicinity of the school.
			so has many cracks and loses	
			much heat. The expansion will	
			be a separate two floor new	
			building in the back side within	

No	Sub-Project	Location	Key features of sub-project	Environmental Issues
	components		component	
-			premises.	
2	Kindergarten No.22	UB, Bayanzurkh District, 1 st <i>khoroo</i>	Existing 2 floor building is established in 1970, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The kindergarten has 3400 m ² land area and expansion will be a separate two floor new building in the back cide within promises.	Selbe river is 0.7 km, Tuul river is 12 km and the Bogd Khan SPA is 18 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 1 km vicinity of the kindergarten.
3	Kindergarten	LIB Bayanzurkh	Kindergarten has 2 floor old	The land is in the middle of city and
5	No.8	District, 16 th khoroo	building constructed in 1957. The building connected to central heating, sewage and water supply system. The current building washrooms have poor sanitation condition, walls and ceiling of classrooms are breaking down, and water and wastewater plumbing systems have deteriorated. Access road is available. The expansion will be separate new building in the back yard of kindergarten.	surrounded by apartment buildings, services and far from any protected area, National Park.
4	Kindergarten	UB, Bavanzurkh	Existing 2 floor building is	Uliastai river is 8 km. Tuul river is 10
	No.82	District, 16 th khoroo	established in 1980, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The wall of existing building is constructed by limestone bricks so has many cracks and loses much heat. The kindergarten has 7420 m ² land area and expansion will be a separate two floor new building in the back side within premises.	km and the Bogd Khan SPA is 13 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 8 km vicinity of the kindergarten. There are 115 trees and bushes in the kindergarten's premises.
5	Kindergarten No.65	UB, Khan-Uul District, 2 nd <i>khoroo</i>	Existing 2 floor building is established in 1972, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The expansion will be a separate two floor new building in the back side within premises.	Dund Gol river is 0.6 km, Tuul river is 3 km and the Bogd Khan SPA is 8 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 0.6 km vicinity of the kindergarten.
6	Kindergarten No.72	UB, Khan-Uul District, 2 nd <i>khoroo</i>	Existing 2 floor building is established in 1976, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The wall of existing building is constructed by limestone bricks so has many cracks and loses much heat. The expansion will be a new two floor separate building in the back side within premises.	Dund Gol river is 1 km, Tuul river is 3 km and the Bogd Khan SPA is 8 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 1 km vicinity of the kindergarten.

No	Sub-Project	Location	Key features of sub-project	Environmental Issues
	components		component	
7	Kindergarten No.84	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 6 th <i>khoroo</i>	Existing 2 floor building is established in 1948, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The plumbing systems of the current building are too old. Kindergarten has 10172 m ² area of land. The expansion will be separate building in its premises.	Tuul river is 15 km, Dund Gol and the Bogd Khan SPA is 9 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 5 km vicinity of the kindergarten.
8	Kindergarten No.104	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 12 th khoroo	Existing 1 floor building is established in 1986, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. Kindergarten has 10172 m ² area of land. The expansion will be separate building in its premises.	Tuul river is 8 km and the Bogd Khan SPA is 9 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 5 km vicinity of the kindergarten.
9	Kindergarten No.107	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 14 th <i>khoroo</i>	Existing 1 floor building is established in 1986, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. Kindergarten has 8861 m ² area of land. The expansion will be separate building in its premises.	Tuul river is 8 km, Dund gol river is 5 km and the Bogd Khan SPA is 9 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 5 km vicinity of the kindergarten.
10	Kindergarten No.110	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 15 th <i>khoroo</i>	Existing 1 floor building is established in 1987, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. Kindergarten has 10026 m ² area of land. The expansion will be 2 floor separate new building in its premises.	Tuul river is 8 km, Dund Gol river is 5 km and the Bogd Khan SPA is 9 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 5 km vicinity of it.
11	Kindergarten No.176	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 31 st <i>khoroo</i>	Kindergarten has 1 floor building which established in 2005, has no connection to central heating, water and sewage system and has individual heat only boiler, holding tank and water well. Kindergarten has 1388 m ² area of land. The expansion will be additional floor on the top of building. The heat	Tuul river is 13 km, Dund Gol river is 2 km and the Bogd Khan SPA is 17 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 2 km vicinity of the kindergarten.
12	Kindergarten No.68	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 3 rd <i>khoroo</i>	Existing 2 floor building is established in 1973, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The expansion will be a two-floor separate new building in the back side of the premises.	Dund Gol river is 1.5 km, Tuul river is 3 km and the Bogd Khan SPA is 8 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 1.5 km vicinity of the school.
13	Kindergarten No.160	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 3 rd <i>khoroo</i>	Kindergarten has 2 floor old building constructed in 1972. The building connected to central heating, electricity, sewage and water supply system. Access road is available. The expansion will be	The land is in the middle of city and surrounded by apartment buildings and 7 km far from Bogd Khan Strictly Protected Area.

No	Sub-Project components	Location	Key features of sub-project component	Environmental Issues
			a separate new building in the back side of kindergarten premises.	
14	Kindergarten No.17	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 10 th <i>khoroo</i>	Kindergarten's existing building is 2 floor and constructed in 1963. Kindergarten has 3950m ² premises and out of it 810m ² area is under the building. The existing building connected to central heating, electricity, water supply and sewage system. The expansion will be a two-floor separate new building in the own premises in the left side of old building.	Selbe river is 2 km and the Bogd Khan SPA is 15 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 2 km vicinity of the kindergarten.
15	Kindergarten No.88	UB, Bayangol District, 18 th <i>khoroo</i>	Existing 2 floor building is established in 1982, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The expansion will be a separate two floor new building in the back side within premises.	Tuul river is 7 km and the Bogd Khan SPA is 12 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 7 km vicinity of the school.
16	Kindergarten No.5	Govisumber, Sumber <i>Soum</i> , 3rd <i>bagh</i>	Aimag Government owned 300m ² land area is available. Blueprint is developed. The area is located nearby the school dormitory and school. Access road is available.	The land is in the middle of Ger area and surrounded by small buildings and 65 km away from Ikh Nart Nature Reserve.
17	Kindergarten No.6	Khuvsgul, Murun <i>soum</i> , 8 th bagh	The building was put into operation in 1976 with the capacity to receive 120 children. It is a "P"-shaped 2-storey brick structure, which consists of 3 block parts.	The north side of the existing kindergarten land is idle. Environmentally it is not a significant area.
A 2	Kindergartens	under new construc	ction	
1	New kindergarten	UB Bayanzurkh District, 24 th <i>khoroo</i>	The land allocated for this site currently used by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. Has individual electric heating, no holding tank for wastewater and uses dug pit and transported drinking water.	The land is surrounded by Ger Khashaa plots. Environmentally it is not a significant area.
2	New kindergarten	UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th khoroo	District Government owned land 6,000m ² area situated near the "Sport Complex", close with Khashaa plots in left side. Access road is available. The area is at least 500m away from District Heating Plant, water supply and sewage system.	Tuul river is 9 km and Bogd Khan SPA is 16 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 5 km vicinity of the kindergarten.
3	New kindergarten	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 25 th <i>khoroo</i>	District Government owned 300m ² land area is available. Blueprint is developed. The area is located nearby main road and	The land is in the middle of Ger area and surrounded by small buildings and 19 km away from Bogd Khan SPA.

No	Sub-Project components	Location	Key features of sub-project component	Environmental Issues
			surrounded by Ger khashaa plots and small services. Access road is available. There is no central heating, water supply and sewage system available in the area.	
B	Schools:			
В Т 1	School No 51	expansion: Bayangol District	Existing 3 floor building	Dund Gol river is 5 km and Boad
I		UB	constructed in 1974 by brick. Connected to centralized electricity, heating, water supply, sewage system. The expansion will be a separate building behind the existing school building.	Khan SPA is 10 km away from site. No wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 10 km vicinity of the Schools/Kindergartens.
2	School No.18	UB, Khan-Uul District	Existing 3 floor building is established in 1979, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The expansion will be additional floor on the roof and have permission of Specialized Inspection Agency to add one more floor on top.	Dund Gol river is 1 km, Tuul river is 3 km and the Bogd Khan SPA is 8 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 5 km vicinity of the school.
3	"Erdmiin Orgil" Complex	UB, Nalaikh District	Existing 1 floor building is established in 1971, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The expansion will be 3 floor separate building with capacity of 640 students, in the school yard inside premises.	Tuul river is 13 km and the Bogd Khan SPA is 17 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 8 km vicinity of the school.
4	"Ireedui" Primary School	UB, Songinkhairkhan District	Existing 2 floor building was established in 1983, connected to central heating, electricity, water supply and sewage system. The school has 14281.7 m ² area. The expansion will be additional floor on the roof of building. Has permission of Specialized Inspection Agency to add one more floor on top.	Dund Gol river is 5 km, Tuul river is 8 km and the Bogd Khan SPA is 10 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 5 km vicinity of the school.
5	"Ireedui" Secondary School	UB, Songinokhairkhan District	Existing 2 floor building is established in 1983, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The school has 14602.2 m ² area. The expansion will be additional floor on the roof of building. Has permission of Specialized Inspection Agency to add one more floor on top.	Dund Gol river is 5 km, Tuul river is 8 km and the Bogd Khan SPA is 10 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 5 km vicinity of the school.
ю	School No.122 (green	∪B, Songinokhairkhan	and 4 floor building, constructed	creek) river is 0.3 km and Bood

No	Sub-Project	Location	Key features of sub-project	Environmental Issues
	components		component	
	school)	District, 22 nd khoroo	in 2013. The existing building has capacity with 640 students but currently 1500 students are enrolled at this school. The school building has individual heat only boiler for heating, water reservoir for keeping transported water and individual holding tank for wastewater, connected to central electricity line. The expansion will be 3 floor building with capacity of 640 students and has a blueprint for building.	Khan SPA is 19 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 10 km vicinity of the school.
7	School No.6	UB, Sukhbaatar District	Has permission of Specialized Inspection Agency to add one more floor on top	No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 5 km vicinity of the school
8	Khantaishir	Govi-Altai, Altai soum	The school is in the one floor old building constructed in 1961, which is proposed to be used as office of construction company temporarily. The building is connected to central heating, water supply and sewage system. School has possession of 3567 m ² land and the expansion will be a new 3 floor building, with capacity of 320 students and can be constructed in front of old building.	The school is in the middle of town and surrounded by buildings and 50 km far from Khasagt Khairkhan National Park. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 25 km vicinity of the site.
B 2	Schools under	new construction :		
1	New school	Songinokhairkhan District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i>	The new construction site is situated in the edge of Ger Khashaa Plot area. Total of 10000 m ² area for this site and it owned by District Government. The area is empty but included in town development plan, has no central heating, water supply and sewage system infrastructure.	Baruun Salaa river is 0.1 km and Bogd Khan Mountain SPA is 20 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 1 km vicinity of the kindergarten.
2	New school	Darkhan, Mangirt, 15 th bagh	Construct new school building with capacity of 960 students.1.5 ha area is available with a possibility to connect to central heating, sewage and water supply system. The site is included in new development area and no other buildings in vicinity of new kindergarten close to this site.	Kharaa river is 9 km and Tujiin Nars NP is 90 km away from site. No other wildlife sanctuary or ecological sensitive area within the 10 km vicinity of the kindergarten.

NP = National Park, SPA = Strictly Protected Area

5. Potential impacts are mostly temporary, predictable, and reversible, and can be mitigated through adherence to national² and international standards³, design criteria, and/or implementation of Environment Management Plan (EMP). Schools/Kindergarten are proposed on government land and the location of Schools/Kindergarten avoided any sanctuary/protected areas or any other environmentally sensitive areas. Utilization of the best available technology and best management practices are built-in to the project design and listed through the Generic EMP and more specifically through the SEMP.

6. IEE including EMP has been prepared to mitigate the potential adverse impacts of construction. The new Schools/Kindergartens are proposed only on land owned by the Government and therefore acquisition of land will not be required from the surrounding communities. The proposed expansion of schools/kindergartens will be located on existing government lands or those lands that are allotted to MES by Government of Mongolia. All proposed new schools/kindergartens have been identified to have possession of vacant land area; whereas the schools/kindergartens where expansion is to be done in their existing land, there is no need to acquire land.

7. For most of the proposed new Schools/Kindergarten, their blueprint design (technical reports) will be finalized after conducting detailed physical survey of the land through architect firms engaged by the EA under the project. The expansion/new building shall be designed to have no significant impact on existing apartments, housing, other buildings, trees, or any other existing settlements which are essential to people's livelihood. As assessed, the project benefits outweigh the negative impacts. The negative environmental impacts are likely to be associated with construction activities of the Schools/Kindergartens, noise during construction, transportation of construction material to site, disposal of waste soil, inconvenience to neighbouring communities due to increased traffic due to new building construction activities.

8. During the site visits, the officials and consultants made numerous observations and held discussions with school managements concerned to assist in proper design of new schools with respect to the following: (i) location of proper access roads, laydown area for materials to be used by the construction companies to use without disturbing the school working and minimizing utilization of playground areas, (ii) avoidance of underground existing pipes for water, heating, sewage etc. at these proposed work sites, (iii) right of way for construction vehicles and provide traffic safety during construction to local residents living adjoining these schools, (iv) traffic caused by construction of new buildings/expansion projects by use of concrete, dump trucks etc. transporting materials inside school premises; traffic safety for children and their parents during operations of school in normal work hours (September 2017 onwards), (vi) lack of safety equipment such as smoke alarms in most old buildings and the need for adequate firefighting extinguishers and imparting evacuation drills and emergency response procedures training, (vii) distances of these schools from non-sensitive biodiversity areas and cultural heritage sites to ensure no impact, (viii) dust and noise emissions from the construction subprojects and their impacts on school children and apartment dwellers adjoining the school area, (ix) noises from any surroundings areas during construction and operations, (x) avoid any shadow projection onto adjoining buildings due to new structures to be constructed as part of this project, (xi) any banned substances generated as part of any expansion project such as asbestos etc., (xii) emissions from coal based heating and water boilers (some cases), (xiii) if insulation works are required in schools to ensure energy efficiency, i.e. loss of heat due to old walls, (xiv) check presence of any associated facilities, and (xv) determine potential climate change impacts of project activities.

² Relevant Mongolian Standards mentioned in section 2 later.

³ World Bank/IFC Environment Health and Safety guidelines 2007

9. The team along with district officials and school/kindergarten managements conducted group consultation and discussions with the apartment dwellers/public residing in these sub-project areas to sensitize them about project activities, their impacts and get their suggestions.

10. Very small number of trees exist in the sites selected for expansion subprojects; whereas there are no trees situated in the land proposed for new buildings. No rare and endangered species of flora or fauna are reported at any of the subproject sites. Locational orientation of the schools/kindergarten will be finalized in a manner to avoid or minimize the shadow falling on adjoining structures. During the pre-construction period, the construction company shall procure all requisite regulatory approvals from all concerned authorities. Adequate provisions have been made for the environmental mitigation and monitoring of predicted impacts, along with their associated costs in the IEE. Adverse impacts if noticed during implementation will be mitigated using appropriate design and management measures as per the EMP by the construction company.

11. For some schools/kindergarten sub-projects, the blueprint development is underway. The data regarding soil, topography, contour, land cutting and filling required, distance from water body and distance from major roads, details of trees can be affected, land details will be collected by engineering firms. If sites are changed other than those indicated in the IEE, supplementary information will be supplied for each of new location for these subprojects by MES to ADB for prior approval before finalizing design drawings.

12. Environmental regulation requires development of a General Environment Impact Assessment (GEIA) for all development projects. According to Conclusion of GEIA, the projects are not listed as environmental sensitive and hence no detailed EIA is required; however, guidance from General Agency for Specialized Inspection (GASI) and urban administrations is required during the project construction period.

13. Since the project does not involve activities that have significant adverse impacts, an IEE has been developed comprising development of an environmental management plan and monitoring plan as per ADB's Safeguard Policy Statement (SPS) 2009. The IEE report conforms to national environmental regulations and is also consistent with ADB SPS 2009. Accordingly, the environmental classification for the project is "Category B" as per ADB SPS 2009.

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

1. Peaking in 2011, the growth of Mongolia's economy has rapidly decelerated due to declining foreign direct investment and falling commodity prices. This slowed growth has caused serious economic difficulties, including large revenue shortfalls and cuts in government investment, which are expected to continue beyond 2018 and further require the government to reduce inefficiency in public spending.⁴ Their negative impacts have already started being felt in the education sector, such as overcrowded classes and schools operating in multiple shifts, acute shortages of pre-primary classes, and lack of textbooks, teaching-learning materials, tools, and equipment, especially in rural areas, due to reductions in education expenditures. The tightening education budget, compounded by the growth of school age population and high costs of operating kindergartens and schools, will aggravate difficulties with sustaining access to and quality of education, especially for disadvantaged children and schools. Against this background, the government requested Asian Development Bank's (ADB) support.⁵

2. **Strategic context.** Since 1991 ADB's operations supported (i) rebuilding basic education infrastructure and strengthening the foundation for quality improvements during the transition period from a centrally planned to market-based economy; (ii) shifting a 10- to 12-year education system in line with international standards; and (iii) maintaining access to pre-primary education during the financial crisis and improving early childhood education, health, and nutrition. The project will be built on these experiences as well as ADB's ongoing operations in the education sector. It is in line with one of the two strategic pillars of ADB's interim country partnership strategy (2014–2016) for Mongolia—inclusive social development—and its sector focus on basic and secondary education.

3. The Sustaining Access to and Quality of Education during Economic Difficulties Project has been implemented since 2018. The additional financing for Sustaining Access to and Quality of Education during Economic Difficulties Project was included in the 2023 firm pipeline with a proposed loan amount of \$15 million from the ordinary capital resources (concessional) of the Asian Development Bank (ADB). The Ministry of Finance (MOF), the Ministry of Education and Culture (MES), Ulaanbaatar metropolitan education department (UMED); General Authority for Education (GAE), and Asian Development Bank have developed a list of school and kindergarten expansion and construction sites to be included in the project.

4. **List of school and kindergarten expansion and construction sites.** MOF, MES, UMED, GAE and the Mission reviewed and agreed on the list of school and kindergarten expansions and new construction sites on which safeguard, and technical due diligence was conducted (**Annexure 1**). The list was developed through the following procedures: (i) a preliminary list of school and kindergarten expansion and construction sites in Ulaanbaatar was prepared by UMED, while another list containing both school and kindergarten expansion and construction sites in Ulaanbaatar and 21 *aimags* was prepared by MES; (ii) these preliminary lists were screened and shortened by considering (a) positive impacts on the reduction of 3-shift schools, (b) positive long-term impacts on enrolments in primary and pre-primary education and the reduction of class size in Ulaanbaatar, especially in *ger* districts and new residential areas, and some *aimag* centers, (c) availability of land, (d) absence of significant potentially category A environmental impacts which

⁴ ADB. 2016. Asian Development Outlook 2016: Asia's Potential Growth. Manila.

⁵ The project preparatory technical assistance under the title of Inclusive Rural Education Support is included in ADB. 2016. Country Operations Business Plan: Mongolia, 2016. Manila.

can be caused especially by the demolition of existing buildings, and (e) absence of significant potentially category A involuntary resettlement.

1.2 Impacts, Outcome, and Outputs

5. The project's impact will be the number of children completing basic and secondary education of improved quality increased (aligned with Mongolia's Sustainable Development Vision 2030). The outcome will be access to and quality of basic and secondary education sustained during economic difficulties.

6. The outputs will be (i) enrolment capacity of schools and kindergartens enhanced, (ii) curriculum, assessment and evaluation updated and implemented in line with education standards, (iii) availability and affordability of quality educational resources improved, (iv) school and kindergarten leaders and teachers' knowledge and skills upgraded, and (v) systems for increasing efficiency in public spending on education developed.

(i) Output 1. The project will support the construction, expansion, and rehabilitation of schools and kindergartens in *ger* districts and new residential areas of Ulaanbaatar and some *aimag* centers to increase enrolments and reduce three shift schools and class size which negatively impact on the quality of education. Inclusive (age, gender, special needs), energy efficient (improved insulation, and heating systems), and disaster resilient features will be built into new and expanded schools and kindergartens, taking into account innovative designs introduced by the government and other development partners.

(ii) Output 2. The project will support the updating and implementation of curriculum statements, student learning assessment criteria and methodologies for basic and secondary education, and framework for school, teacher and teaching evaluation with a view to improving student learning outcomes. The curriculum statements will incorporate conventional and blended learning approaches and consider all learning assessment criteria and methodologies will be reviewed based on clearly defined learning outcomes to match the curriculum standards. Moreover, the frameworks for schools included in the school improvement plan will be updated to better assist self-evaluation of performance and reporting in the school report card. The existing competency-based standards for teachers will be revised to include differentiated competency levels and encourage self-appraisal ad continuing professional development.

(iii) Output 3. The project will improve the provision of quality educational resources, including textbooks, teaching-learning materials, tools, and equipment for students and teachers in pre-primary, primary, and secondary education. Standards of teaching and learning materials (TLM) for each grade of primary and secondary education and equivalency programs (textbooks, teachers' guides, books, science laboratory and ICT equipment) and for pre-primary education will be developed to reduce disparities in the provision of TLM among schools and kindergartens. A plan for re-launching the textbook rental scheme and textbook revolving fund will be prepared and implemented on a pilot-basis to improve availability and affordability of textbooks for secondary education. To enhance the availability of TLM and assist blended learning approaches, e-learning, e-textbook, and e-library policy and implementation plan will be developed and support for the implementation will be provided.

(iv) Output 4. The project will upgrade school and kindergarten leaders and teachers' knowledge and skills to implement the updated curriculum statements, assessment and evaluation. Curriculum for pre-service teacher education programs will be reviewed in line

with the updated curriculum statements, student learning assessment criteria and methodologies, and competency-based standards for teachers. The capacity of the General Authority for Education will be strengthened to provide continuing professional development (CPD) programs for pre-primary, primary and secondary teachers through online platforms. Moreover, CPD programs for school and kindergarten leaders, Ulaanbaatar and *aimag* education and science department staff will be developed to enable them to provide leadership in the course of implementing the updated curriculum standards, assessment and evaluation. CPD programs on assessment of learning outcomes, and child-centered teaching approaches will also be developed.

(v) Output 5. The project will develop systems for increasing efficiency in public spending on education in the medium-term by identifying measures to save operational costs of kindergartens and schools and strengthening the institutional capacity in the education sector. A centralized real-time information system for identifying school and kindergarten construction, expansion and rehabilitation needs will be developed, taking into account population and enrolment growth projections, and trends in internal migration. Catchment areas of schools and kindergartens will be reviewed and measures to strengthen its enforcement will be identified to improve the planning and management of school and kindergarten construction, expansion, and rehabilitation. A plan to reintroduce the school cluster system, especially at the senior secondary level, and mechanisms to share support staff between kindergartens will be developed with a view to increasing efficiency.

7. The project is estimated to cost \$50.69 million, of which \$50 million will be provided through loans from ADB's ordinary capital resources. The total cost of the project includes physical and price contingencies, interest, and other charges during implementation. The government will provide \$0.69 million (1%), in-kind (taxes and duties).

8. The Ministry of Education and Culture (MES) will be the project executing agency. The implementing agencies will be MES and UMED. It was also agreed that a project implementation unit will be established by MES to manage day-to-day activities of the project. The project will be implemented from April 2017 to December 2026.

1.3 Scope of Work and Methodology Adopted

9. The broad scope of the Environmental Assessment study is:

- i) To conduct field visits to collect data relevant to the study area and also collect secondary data so as to establish the baseline environmental status of the study area;
- ii) To assess the impacts on environmental attributes due to the location, design, construction and operation of the proposed project;
- iii) To prepare a mitigation plan outlining the measures for protecting the environment including institutional arrangement and environmental monitoring;
- iv) To identify critical environmental attributes required to be monitored subsequent to the implementation of the proposed project;
- v) To carry out consultation with local people to identify the public perception of the project; and
- vi) To establish the Environment Monitoring Plan (EMoP) for the MES to submit environmental monitoring reports to ADB at regular intervals.

10. Each proposed school/kindergarten on the list was further examined for conformance to ADB's safeguards and technical due diligence confirmed for support before the design of the project is finalized in March 2017. Accordingly, transect walks and field surveys were undertaken to assess physical and biological environment in January/March 2017. However, the exact location of

some Schools/Kindergarten may vary after the exact demarcation of locations by the Architects preparing construction blueprints (technical drawings) and General Agency for Specialised Inspection (GASI) requirements.

11. The IEE report comprises baseline data on existing condition of physical, ecological, economic, and social information, together with the anticipated environmental impacts and proposed mitigation measures. This report is prepared on the basis of preliminary survey, field study and consultations with the help of available secondary data of different sites, articles and report.

12. Detailed assessment of secondary source baseline environmental data for Ulaanbaatar and concerned *aimags/soums* was done to support the findings of the field survey by consultants. Public consultations were held with affected persons such as apartment dwellers, other stakeholders, and government officers of the project area. **Annexure 6** gives details of places and persons who attended these consultations. The field studies were supported by data collected from secondary sources such as internet, forest atlas, published data from GOM documents, population census statistics data, as well as documents from MES and documents from other government departments etc.

2.0 POLICY, LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE FRAMEWORK

2.1 Mongolian - National, Local, Other Applicable Environmental Laws, Regulations, and Standards as applicable to the project.

2.1.1 Specific Environmental Policy and Regulatory Framework

13. Mongolia has enacted a comprehensive policy and legal framework for environmental assessment and management. It has policies, legislation and strategies in place to manage the protected estate, to satisfy its international obligations, and to protect the quality of the environment for the health and well-being of its citizens. The hierarchy of policies and legislative provisions for environmental management in Mongolia comprises layers ranging from the Constitution to international treaties, environment and resources protection laws and to regulations and standards.

Mongolia has enacted a comprehensive policy and legal framework for environmental assessment and management. It has policies, legislation and strategies in place to manage the protected areas such as national parks, to satisfy its international obligations, and to protect the quality of the environment for the health and well-being of its citizens. The main policy documents are the Law on Environmental Protection (enacted in 1995, revised in 2005, 2008, 2010, 2012, 2022 and 2023⁶) and the Law on EIA (enacted in 2012 and latest revision in 2023⁷). The Government of Mongolia has adopted Green Development Policy in 2014 which amis to advance Mongolia's national development in an environmentally sustainable manner, building the conditions for future generations to benefit and gain in the long term and to ensure environmental sustainabilitythrough creation of growth based on green development concepts and through citizen's participation and inclusiveness. The main principles of the Green Development Policy are:

- (i) harmony between sectoral policies and planning are consistent with green development concepts,
- (ii) support for clean advanced technologies,
- (iii) citizens' participation and inclusiveness in green growth,
- (iv) environmentally friendly attitudes, habits and competencies,
- (v) transparency, accountability and liability and
- (vi) efficient, effective and rational use of resources.

The Vision 2050, a long-term policy document replacing the Sustainable Development Vision 2030. In response to the setbacks caused by the pandemic, Mongolia's Long-Term Development Policy Vision 2050 was introduced. It aims at transforming the country into a leading regional power by 2050 by fighting poverty, creating a greener economy, improving the education system and gender equality for enhanced job access. The Mongolian Parliament approved the policy on 13 May 2020. Vision 2050 outlines nine fundamental goals to which circular models can contribute, such as protecting and reclaiming the environment and ecosystems, increasing productivity through resource-efficient and low-waste advanced technologies and innovative products and services, and encouraging eco-friendly lifestyles. Sub development goals further include preventing water resource scarcity, and contributing to international climate change mitigation efforts. The goals outlined in the Vision 2050 form the basis of the Government Action Plan 2020-2025.

In December 2021 the government passed the New Recovery Policy. The policy aims to address key economic constraints across six pillars: border ports, energy, industrialization, urban and rural development, green development, and state efficiency. The New Recovery Policy aims to strengthen Mongolia's economic independence, reduce the negative impact of the coronavirus infection (COVID-19) pandemic on the economy, and promptly address development barriers. This

⁶ Law on Environmental Protection: <u>https://legalinfo.mn/mn/detail/8935</u>

⁷ Law on Environmental Impact Assessment: <u>https://legalinfo.mn/mn/detail/8665</u>

policy is a medium-term target program for up to 10 years intended for creating the basic conditions for effective realization of Mongolia's long-term development policy and improving the economy, infrastructure and public productivity. The basic conditions will be created to reach the goals and objectives of the first phase of the Vision-2050 long-term development policy of Mongolia.

2.1.2 Mongolian Policy, Legal and Administrative Framework

14. The Government of Mongolia undertook a major environmental law reform in 1990 including the law of land, protected areas, water, forest, wildlife, and native flora resources. The legislation base is extensive as evidenced by the following table of key environmental legislation as shown in **Table 2.1** and their applicability to the project.

No	Name of the Law	Year adopted	Associated regulations
1	Law on Environmental Protection	1995 amended in 2022	4
2	Law on Land	Jun 2002	
3	Law on Land Cadastre and Mapping	Dec 1999	
4	Law on Land Fees	Apr 1997	
5	Law on Land Possession	Jun 2002	
6	Law on implementation of regulations related to	Jun 2002	
	Land Possession Law		
7	Law on Geodesy and Cartography	Oct 1997	
8	Law on Special Protected Areas	Nov 1994 amended 2023	16
9	Law on Buffer Zones	Oct 1997	
10	Law on Water	Apr 2012	
11	Law on Water and Mineral Water Resource Fee	May 1995	21
12	Law on Forests	May 2012	38
13	Law on Reinvestment of Natural Resource Use	Jan 2000	
	Fees for Conservation		
14	Law on Natural Plants	Apr 1995	3
15	Law on Natural Plant Use Fees	May 1995	
16	Law on Protection of Plants	Mar 1996	
17	Law on Hunting	2000, 2003	6
18	Law on Fauna	2000	
19	Law on regulation of export and import of	Nov 2002	
	endangered species of flora and fauna		
20	Law on Hunting Reserve Use Payments and on	May 1995	
	Hunting and Trapping Authorization Fees		
21	Law on Minerals	1997, revised in 2006	
22	Petroleum Law	1991	
23	Law on Air	May 2012	n.a.
24	Law on Hydrometeorology	Nov 1997	n.a.
25	Law on Protection for Toxic Chemicals	Apr 1995	18
26	Law on Environmental Impact Assessment	2012, amended in 2023	
27	Law on Tourism	May 2023	n.a
28	Law on Waste Management	May 2017	
30	Law on Construction	Feb 2016	

Table 2.1: Key Mongolian Environmental Legislation

15. Other Mongolian orders, regulations and guidelines related to water and wastewater are listed in the **Table 2.2**. **Tables 2.3 and 2.4** list key Mongolian orders for Hazardous waste and Hazardous chemicals respectively.

Table 2.2: Key Mongolian Orders, Regulations and Guidelines Related to Water and Wastewater

Name of Guideline, Order or Regulation	Year Adopted
Regulation of Fees on Water Pollution in 1992.	1992
Regulation of River and Water Source Protection Zone in 1992.	1992
Regulation of Lining Septic Tanks for Wastewater in 1995.	1995
Regulation for Registering Water Resource Pollution, Water Scarcity, Rehabilitation in	1996
1996.	
Regulation on Water Resource Protection from Pollution in 1997.	1997
Regulation of Water Spring and Its Protection in 1998.	1998
Regulation of Establishing Wells and Water Points and Repair	2005
Regulation of Conducting Water Source Inventory and Registration in 2006.	2006
Regulation of Creating Water Source Database and Cadastre in 2006.	2006

Table 2.3: Key Mongolian Orders, Regulations and Guidelines Related to Hazardous Waste

Name of Guideline, Order or Regulation	Year Adopted
Guideline on Reporting and Recording of Storage and Disposal of Hazardous Wastes by Order No: 127 of MNET on 1 July 1, 2003.	2003
Classification and Specification and Hazardous Level of Wastes by Order No: 324/318/336 of Minister for Nature, Environment, and Tourism, Minster for Health, and Minister for Education, Culture and Science in 2006.	2006
"Regulation on Types of Landfills and Disposal Facilities and Centralized Waste Disposal Sites, Relevant Requirements and Specifications, and Procedures to be Conducted by Economic Entities and Individuals to Bury and Destroy Hazardous Wastes" by Order No: 404 of Minister for Nature, Environment and Tourism in 2006.	2006
Regulation on Issuing of Passport for Hazardous Wastes by Government Resolution No: 268 in 2006.	2006
Payment Calculation Methodology for Hazardous Wastes by MNET in 2006.	2006
Regulation of National Reporting and Inventory of Hazardous Wastes by MNET in 2009.	2009

Table 2.4: Key Mongolian Orders, Regulations and Guidelines Related to Hazardous and **Toxic Chemicals**

Name of Guideline, Order or Regulation	Year Adopted		
List of Products Containing Toxic and Hazardous Chemicals (Renewed In 2008) by Joint Order No: 126/171 by MNET and MOH on July 1, 2003.	2003		
Methodology of Calculating Waste Norms" by MNET, in 2006.	2006		
Regulation on Trans-Boundary Movement, Trade, Transportation, Export, and Import of Toxic and Hazardous Chemicals by Joint Order No; 92/90 of Minister for Nature, Environment, and Tourism and Minister for Foreign Affairs on December 29, 2008.	2008		
Guideline On Methodology and Technology to Dispose, Storage, Transportation, Collection of Chemical Wastes; (2009)	2009		
Regulation On Use, Transportation, and Import of Toxic and Hazardous Chemicals (renewed in 2009)	2009		
Guideline on Transportation, Storage, Use, And Disposal of Toxic and Hazardous Chemicals and b) Guideline on Developing Risk Assessment of Toxic and Hazardous Chemicals" by Joint Order No: 28/40/29 of Minister for	2009		

Health, Minister for Environment, Nature, and Tourism, and Chairman of	
National Emergency Management Agency on February 3, 2009.	
Guideline on Classification of Hazardous and Toxic Chemicals Was Approved In	2000
2009.	2009

16.
 Table 2.5 lists all Mongolian laws as they are applicable to the project.

	Table 2.5: Key Mongolian laws applicable to the project			
#	Laws	Date of approval and ammendment	Applicable articles and par project's ESS	ragraphs to
			Environmental safeguard	Social
				safeguard
1	Law on Land	Approved in 2002.06.07.	4.1.2, 4.1.4, 4.1.5, paragraph	4.1.6
		Amended in:	11-16, 18.1.3, 19.2.2, 20.1.4,	
		2015.07.08, 2015.06.26,	20.2.2, 20.2.6, 22.1.2, 22.2.1,	
		2015.06.19, 2015.02.12	22.2.3, 23.2.10, 23.2.16, 24.1,	
		2013.12.26, 2012.05.17	27.5, 31.3, 31.4, 33.4, 34.2,	
		2010.07.01, 2009.12.17,	34.4, 34.11	
		2009.07.16, 2009.07.09,		
		2006.12.22, 2005.07.01,		
		2005.01.27, 2004.04.22,		
		2003.06.12, 2003.01.02		
2	Law on land	Approved in 2002.06.27.	5.1.6.1, 5.1.6.2, 6, 9.1.4,	5.1.1
	ownership to	Amended in:	9.1.5, 10.1.4, 12.1.4, 14.1.5,	
	Mongolian	2012.05.18, 2011.02.10	27.1.1, 27.1.5, 27.1.8, 27.2.5,	
	citizens	2008.05.22, 2005.07.07	27.2.6, 27.2.7, 27.2.8, 28.1.3,	
		2005.06.23	29.6, 29.7, 30.1, 32 and 38,	
			39.1	
3	Law on land use	Approved in 1997.04.24.	paragraph 4 and 6.	
	payment	Amended in:		
		2012.05.22, 2009.12.24		
		2006.12.08, 2005.07.01		
4	Law on cropland	Approved in 2004.04.22.	16.7, 17.2.2, 17.2.5	
~		2009.05.14, 2006.06.29		
Э		Approved in 2006.07.08.	8.1.3, 11.1.23, 12.1.2-12.1.4, 12.5, 14.4, 14.6, 14.9, 14.0	
	resources		13.3, 14.4 - 14.0, 14.0 - 14.9, 17.2, 2, 17.3, 3, 17.3, 5, 10.2, 3	
		2015.00.04, 2015.02.10,	17.2.2, 17.3.3, 17.3.3, 19.2.3, 19.2.3, 19.2.3, 19.2.4, 2, 24, 5, 25, 1, 6	
		2013.02.13, 2013.01.23	25 1 7 26 2 2 27 1 13	
		2014 01 24 2014 01 09	28 1 3 35 2 2 35 3 3-35 3 4	
		2013 10 03 2012 05 17	35 3 7 35 5 35 10	
		2011 12 23 2011 02 10	paragraph 37 41 44 and 45	
		2010.07.01. 2009.10.15.	53.3. 54.2. 55.3.2. 56.1.3.	
		2009.07.16. 2009.01.08	56.1.5. 56.1.7-56.1.8.	
		2008.12.19	paragraph 63, 66.3- 66.4.	
6	Law on Protected	Approved in 1994.11.15	5.1-5.2, paragraph 7-24, 25.2.	
-	Areas	Amended in: 1997.10.23	26.3-26.6, paragraph 27,	
		2014.07.01, 2014.05.15,	28.3, 29.3, paragraph 30-32.	
		2008.12.19, 2006.12.22,	33.1, 36.2-36.3, paragraph	
		2004.04.22, 2003.01.02	37, 39, 40.1.2, 43.2-43.3	

Table 2.5: Key Mongolian laws applicable to the project

#	Laws	Date of approval and ammendment	Applicable articles and paragraphs to project's ESS	
			Environmental safeguard	Social safeguard
		2002.07.10, 2002.06.07,		
7	Law on Protected Area Bufferzone	Approved in 1997.10.23 Amended in: Ongoing	3.1, 4.1, 5.1, 7.4, 8.2, 9.1	
8	Law on Water	Approved in 2012.05.17 Amended in:2012.08.17	8.1.1-8.1.2, 10.1.24, 12.1.1, 13.1.3, 15, 17.1.6-17.1.9, 17.1.12, 17.2, 18.1.3, 19.1.3, 22- 25, 29 and 30, 32.5, 33.1.13-33.1.14	
9	Law on repayment for polluting the water	Approved in 2012.05.17	4.1, paragraph 5-8, 10.1.1	
10	Law on Water resources	Approved in 2007.07.05 Amended in: 2014.07.01		
11	Law on Construction	Approved in 2008.02.05 Amended in: 2015.07.02, 2014.05.15, 2011.01.20, 2009.04.23, 2008.02.05	4.1.3, 5.1.7, 6.1.2, paragraph 9-11, 13.5, 14.5.1, 15.4, 15.5, paragraph 16, 18, 20, 22.2	paragraph 8, 14.11
12	Law on traffic road	Approved in 1998.01.02 Amended in: 2014.05.15, 2009.08.25, 2007.08.03, 2006.12.22, 2005.01.27, 2003.01.02 2002.07.01, 2000.09.01	5.15, 6.1.5, 6.1.6, 13.7, 17.3.1, 17.3.2, 17.3.3	
13	Law on Transportation	Approved in 1999.06.04 Amended in: 2012.08.17, 2011.10.06, 2011.02.10, 2011.01.20, 2009.05.07, 2008.12.19 2008.10.09, 2008.05.29, 2006.12.22, 2005.01.27, 2003.11.28, 2003.05.15 2002.07.10, 2001.11.30, 2001.11.08	7.4, 10.1.1, 10.2.7, 10.2.8, 10.2.9, 17.1	
14	Law on Air	Approved in: 2012.05.17 Amended in:2015.01.23, 2013.12.12	All	
15	Law on repayment for air pollution	Approved in: 2010.06.24 Amended in:2012.05.17	All	
16	General law on administration	Approved in: 2015.06.19	28.1.1-28.1.2, 48.2.2, 49.3.3, 49.3.5, 56.3, 62.2, 73, 75.1, 79, 81.2, 86.2, 92.1, 96.1, 97.1.1, 98.1.2-98.1.3, 100.1, 101.2, 104	13.2-13.4, 26.1, 74.1- 74.2
17	Citizen's law	Approved in: 2002.01.10	9-13, 21, 56, 92-95, 101-103,	

#	Laws	Date of approval and ammendment	Applicable articles and paragraph project's ESS	
			Environmental safeguard	Social safeguard
		Amended in:2015.07.02, 2014.12.05, 2014.05.15, 2013.01.10, 2011.12.15, 2011.10.06,2010.04.23, 2009.07.09, 2005.07.07	106, 108, 116-118, 128.1, 134-140, 146.1, 150-151, 189, 228-230, 443-444, 497- 514,	
18	Law on Use of sett-lement water supp-ly and sewagge water system	Approved in: 2011.10.06	4.1.1, 5.1.5, 7.1.2, paragraph 11 and 16, 17.3-17.4, 17.8, paragraph 18.	6.1.4, 21.2
19	Law on transferen-cy of information and right to get information	Approved in: 2011.06.16	7.1.5, 7.1.9	
20	Law on public audition	Approved in: 2015.07.08	4.2.2, 6.4	
21	Law on Mongolian administrative units and their organization and management	Approved in: 2006.12.15 Amended in: 2015.07.08, 2015.01.23 2013.07.05, 2012.12.20, 2012.09.14, 2010.10.29 2009.04.16, 2009.03.12 2008.05.06	paragraph 4, 12.1.7, 20.1.6- 20.1.7, 20.1.9, 20.1.12, 28.1.3-28.1.9, 28.1.15, 29.1.1б, 29.1.5в, 31.1.1	17.1.8,18.1.2 з, 18.1.2k, 18.1.2л, 22.1.12, 22.1.16,28.1. 228.1.13,29.1 .330.1.6,30.1. 13
22	Law on land replanning and redevelopment in urban and settlement areas	Approved in: 2015.06.26	3.2, 6.1.1, paragraph 7, 8.1.1, 8.1.5, 8.1.6, 9.1.1, 10.1.1, 11.2, 12 зүйл, 14.1, 14.4, 14.7, paragraph 15-18, and 25,	11.1.5, 14.2, 14.5
23	Law on Urban development	Approved in: 2008.05.29 Amended in: 2015.06.26 2015.02.12	4.1.2, 5th paragraph, 7.1.3, 11.4, 12.4, 12.6, 12.8, 12.9, paragraph, 14, 16, 20 and 23- 24,	Paragraph 17-18
24	Law on Solid Waste	Approved in: Nov.2003	Paragraph 3, 8, 9, 11, 12, 22 Articles 7.2, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 11.2, 22.1, 22.2	
25	Law on Hygiene	Approved in: 04 Feb, 2016	Article 3.1, Paragraph 4, 5, 8,11, articles 13.1.3, 14.1.1, 14.1.2, 20.1.3,	

2.1.3 Environmental Assessment Requirements of Mongolia

17. The EIA requirements of Mongolia are regulated by the Law on Environmental Impact Assessment (1998, amended in 2012). The terms of the law apply to all new projects, as well as rehabilitation and expansion of existing industrial, service or construction activities and projects that use natural resources. The purpose of this law is to protect the environment, prevent

ecological imbalance, ensure minimal adverse impacts on the environment from the use of natural resources, and regulate relations that may arise in connection with the assessment of environmental impacts of and approval decisions on regional and sectoral policies, development programs and plans and projects.

18. **Table 2.5** lists all classification of projects that require General EIA according to the Mongolian laws.

NoProject typeCentral Government Authority for Nature and EnvironmentThe Governors offices of Aimags and the Capital city1.MiningExploration of all kinds of mineralsExploration of common minerals to be used within local area2.Heavy industryAll types-3.Light and Food industryBig industries owned by Government industryLocal SMEs4.Agriculture• Water reservoir • Irrigation system • Plantation of fallowOther industries and services5.Infrastructure• Energy production more than MW capacity • Electricity transmission line more than 35 kV voltage • Heat distribution pipes • Hydro station • Railway • Airport • Road international and inter cities. • Communication international and inter cities• Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other solid waste disposal in urban areas with more than 10000 inhabitants • State owned facilities for defence and civil protection • Water treatment plant • Solid waste disposal and others• Water supply system • Water treatment plant • Solid waste disposal and others• Hunting and forestry, tribe • Fisheries (big size) • Population, use and other activities8.Biodiversity• Fisheries (big size) • Population, use and other activities• Hunting and forestry, tribe • Fishery for local market			Executor		
Nature and EnvironmentAimage and the Capital city1.MiningExploration of all kinds of mineralsExploration of common minerals to be used within local area2.Heavy industryAll types-3.Light and Food industryBig industries owned by Government industryLocal SMEs4.Agriculture• Water reservoir • Irrigation system • Plantation of fallowOther industries and services5.Infrastructure• Energy production more than 1 MW capacity • Electricity transmission line more than 35 kV voltage • Heat distribution pipes • Hydro station • Railway • Airport • Road international and inter cities. • Communication international and inter cities• Energy production up to 1 MW capacity • Electricity transmission line up to 35 KV voltage • Heat distribution pipes • Hydro station • Railway • Airport • Road international and inter cities. • Communication international and inter cities• Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity up to 50 bed day • Tourism7.Other projects: • Town planning • Defensive and civil protection • Water supply, water supply, water treatment and civil protection • Water supply system • Water treatment plant • Solid waste disposal and others• Water supply, water treatment and otivil protection and civil protection8.Biodiversity• Fisheries (big size) • Population, use and other activities• Hunting and forestry, tribe • Fishery for local market	No	Project type	Central Government Authority for	The Governors offices of	
1. Mining Exploration of all kinds of minerals Exploration of common minerals to be used within local area 2. Heavy industry All types - 3. Light and Food industries owned by Government Local SMEs 4. Agriculture • Water reservoir Irrigation system • Plantation of fallow • Energy production more than 1 • Energy production more than 1 5. Infrastructure • Electricity transmission line more than 35 kV voltage • Heat distribution pipes • Heat distribution pipes • Hydro station • Railway • Airport 6. Service • Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity more than 50 bed day • Hotel, resort, sanatorium and solid waste disposal in urban areas with up to 10000 inhabitants 7. Other projects: • Water supply, water treatment and solid waste disposal in urban areas with up to 10000 inhabitants • Water supply • State owned facilities for defence and civil protection • State owned facilities for defence and civil protection • Water supplation, use and other activities • Hunting and forestry, tribe • Biodiversity • Fisheries (big size) • Hunting and forestry, tribe			Nature and Environment	Aimags and the Capital city	
2. Heavy industry All types - 3. Light and Food industry Big industries owned by Government industry Local SMEs 4. Agriculture • Water reservoir Irrigation system • Plantation of fallow Other industries and services 5. Infrastructure • Energy production more than 1 MW capacity • Energy production protection than 35 kV voltage • Energy production up to 1 MW capacity 6. Service • Hotel, resort, sanatorium and inter cities • Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity more than 50 bed day • Hotel, resort, sanatorium and solid waste disposal in urban areas with more than 10000 inhabitants • Hotel, resort, sanatorium and solid waste disposal in urban areas with more than 10000 inhabitants • Water supply, water treatment solid waste disposal in urban areas with up to 10000 inhabitants 7. Other projects: • Town planning • Defensive and civil protection • Water treatment plant • Solid waste disposal and others • Kater supply, water treatment and civil protection • Water supply, water treatment solid waste disposal in urban areas with up to 10000 inhabitants 8. Biodiversity • Fisheries (big size) • Population, use and other activities • Hunting and forestry, tribe	1.	Mining	Exploration of all kinds of minerals	Exploration of common minerals	
2. Heavy industry All types - 3. Light and Food industry Big industries owned by Government Local SMEs 4. Agriculture • Water reservoir Other industries and services 5. Infrastructure • Energy production more than 1 MW capacity • Energy production up to 1 MW capacity 5. Infrastructure • Energy production pipes • Heat distribution pipes • Hydro station • Heat distribution pipes • Heat distribution pipes local • Road international and inter cities. • Communication international and inter cities. • Road and communication local 6. Service • Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity up to 5O bed day • Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity up to 5O bed day 7. Other projects: • Water supply, water treatment and solid waste disposal in urban areas with up to 10000 inhabitants • Water supply, water treatment solid waste disposal in urban areas with up to 10000 inhabitants • Water supply • State owned facilities for defence and civil protection • Local facilities for defence and civil protection • Water supplation, use and other activities • Hunting and forestry, tribe • Fisheries (big size)	0			to be used within local area	
3. Light and Food industries owned by Government industry Local SMEs 4. Agriculture • Water reservoir Other industries and services 5. Infrastructure • Energy production more than 1 MW capacity • Energy production up to 1 MW capacity 5. Infrastructure • Energy production pipes • Electricity transmission line more than 35 kV voltage • Heat distribution pipes local 6. Service • Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity more than 50 bed day • Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity with capacity up to 50 bed day 7. Other projects: • Water supply sate disposal in urban areas with up to 10000 inhabitants of water disposal and others • Water supply system • Water supply system • Water supply system • State owned facilities for defence and civil protection and others • Local facilities for defence and civil protection • Water supply system • Water supply system • State owned facilities for defence and civil protection • Local facilities for defence and civil protection 8. Biodiversity • Fisheries (big size) • Hunting and forestry, tribe	2.	Heavy industry	All types	-	
 4. Agriculture Water reservoir Infrastructure Energy production more than 1 MW capacity Electricity transmission line more than 35 kV voltage Heat distribution pipes Hydro station Railway Airport Road international and inter cities. Communication international and inter cities Service Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity Water supply, water treatment and solid waste disposal in urban areas other service Water supply State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply Fisheries (big size) Population, use and other activities Hunting and forestry, tribe Fishery for local market 	3.	Light and Food industry	Big industries owned by Government	Local SMEs	
InfrastructureIrrigation system Plantation of fallow5.InfrastructureEnergy production more than 1 MW capacity Electricity transmission line more than 35 kV voltage Heat distribution pipes Heat distribution pipes Heat distribution pipes Heat distribution international and inter cities. Communication international and inter cities. Communication international and inter cities. Communication international and other service organizations with capacity more than 50 bed day TourismHotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity up to 50 bed day to 50 bed day to 20 bed day7.Other projects: Town planning Defensive and civil protection Water system Water treatment plant Solid waste disposal and othersHotel, resort (second) to 20 bed facilities for defence and civil protectionWater supply, water treatment and solid waste disposal in urban areas with more than 10000 inhabitants State owned facilities for defence and civil protectionWater supply, water treatment and civil protection8.BiodiversityFisheries (big size) Population, use and other activitiesHunting and forestry, tribe Fishery for local market	4.	Agriculture	Water reservoir	Other industries and services	
Infrastructure• Plantation of fallow5.Infrastructure• Energy production more than 1 MW capacity• Energy production up to 1 MW capacity6.Service• Heat distribution pipes • Heat distribution international and inter cities. • Communication international and inter cities. • Communication international and other service organizations with capacity more than 50 bed day • Tourism• Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity with capacity up to 50 bed day • Tourism7.Other projects: • Town planning • Defensive and civil protection • Water treatment plant • Solid waste disposal and others• Water supply system • Water state owned facilities for defence and civil protection • Water system 			 Irrigation system 		
 5. Infrastructure Energy production more than 1 MW capacity Electricity transmission line more than 35 kV voltage Heat distribution pipes Hydro station Railway Airport Road international and inter cities. Communication international and other service organizations with capacity more than 50 bed day Town planning Defensive and civil protection Water treatment plant Solid waste disposal and others 8. Biodiversity Fisheries (big size) Fisheries (big size) Population, use and other activities Hotel, resort, sanatorium and others Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity more than 10000 inhabitants State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Hunting and forestry, tribe Fishery for local market 			 Plantation of fallow 		
 Electricity transmission line thore than 35 kV voltage Heat distribution pipes Heat distribution pipes Heat distribution pipes Heat distribution pipes local Railway Airport Road international and inter cities. Communication international and inter cities. Communication international and other service organizations with capacity more than 50 bed day Tourism Other projects: Town planning Defensive and civil protection Water supply, water treatment and solid waste disposal and others Solid waste disposal and others 8. Biodiversity Fisheries (big size) Population, use and other activities 	5.	Infrastructure	Energy production more than 1 MW capacity Electricity	Energy production up to 1 MW capacity	
 Heat distribution pipes Heat distribution pipes Hydro station Railway Airport Road international and inter cities. Communication international and other cities Communication international and other service organizations with capacity more than 50 bed day Town planning Defensive and civil protection Water supply system Water supply system Water supply system Water supply system Water supply State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply system Water supply State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Biodiversity Fisheries (big size) Population, use and other activities Hunting and forestry, tribe Fishery for local market 			than 35 kV voltage	to 35 KV voltage	
 Hydro station Railway Airport Road international and inter cities. Communication international and inter cities Communication international and inter cities Service Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity more than 50 bed day Tourism Other projects: 			 Heat distribution pipes 	Heat distribution pipes local	
 Railway Airport Road international and inter cities. Communication international and inter cities Service Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity more than 50 bed day Tourism Other projects: Town planning Defensive and civil protection Water supply, water treatment and solid waste disposal in urban areas with more than 10000 inhabitants State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply, water treatment solid waste disposal in urban areas with more than 10000 inhabitants State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply, water treatment plant Solid waste disposal and others Biodiversity Fisheries (big size) Population, use and other activities Hunting and forestry, tribe Fishery for local market 			Hydro station	Road and communication local	
 Airport Road international and inter cities. Communication international and inter cities. Communication international and inter cities. Service Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity more than 50 bed day Tourism Other projects: Town planning Defensive and civil protection Water supply, water treatment and solid waste disposal in urban areas with more than 10000 inhabitants State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water reatment plant Solid waste disposal and others Biodiversity Fisheries (big size) Population, use and other activities Hunting and forestry, tribe 			Railway		
 Road international and inter cities. Communication international and inter cities Service Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity more than 50 bed day Tourism Other projects: Town planning Defensive and civil protection Water supply system Water supply system Water supply system Water supply system Solid waste disposal and others Biodiversity Fisheries (big size) Population, use and other activities 			Airport		
Image: serviceCommunication international and inter citiesHotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity more than 50 bed day • TourismHotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity up to 50 bed day • Water supply, water treatment and solid waste disposal in urban areas with more than 10000 inhabitants • State owned facilities for defence and civil protection • Water supply system • Water treatment plant • Solid waste disposal and others• Water supply • Fisheries (big size) • Population, use and other activities• Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity up to 50 bed day • Water supply, water treatment and solid waste disposal in urban areas with up to 10000 inhabitants • State owned facilities for defence and civil protection• Water supply • Water supply • Local facilities for defence and civil protection8.Biodiversity• Fisheries (big size) • Population, use and other activities• Hunting and forestry, tribe • Fishery for local market			Road international and inter cities.		
Image: constraint of the service of			Communication international and		
 6. Service Biodiversity 8. Biodiversity Biodiversity Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity more than 50 bed day Tourism Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity up to 50 bed day Water supply, water treatment and solid waste disposal in urban areas with up to 10000 inhabitants State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply Solid waste disposal and others Fisheries (big size) Population, use and other activities Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity up to 50 bed day Water supply, water treatment and solid waste disposal in urban areas with up to 10000 inhabitants State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Hunting and forestry, tribe Fishery for local market 			inter cities		
 7. Other projects: Town planning Defensive and civil protection Water supply subtract disposal in urban areas with more than 10000 inhabitants State owned facilities for defence and civil protection Water supply system Water treatment plant Solid waste disposal and others 8. Biodiversity Fisheries (big size) Population, use and other activities 	6.	Service	 Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity more than 50 bed day Tourism 	 Hotel, resort, sanatorium and other service organizations with capacity up to 50 bed day 	
 8. Biodiversity Population, use and other activities Fishery for local market 	7.	Other projects: • Town planning • Defensive and civil protection • Water supply system • Water treatment plant • Solid waste disposal and others	 Water supply, water treatment and solid waste disposal in urban areas with more than 10000 inhabitants State owned facilities for defence and civil protection 	 Water supply, water treatment solid waste disposal in urban areas with up to 10000 inhabitants Local facilities for defence and civil protection 	
 Population, use and other activities Fishery for local market 	8.	Biodiversity	• Fisheries (big size)	Hunting and forestry, tribe	
relative to enimal and plants			Population, use and other activities	Fishery for local market	

 Table 2.5: Classification of projects obligatory to General Environmental Impact

 Assessment (According to the Law on EIA)

		Execut	tor
No	Project type	Central Government Authority for Nature and Environment	The Governors offices of Aimags and the Capital city
9.	Chemicals, radioactive substances, and hazardous wastes	Treatment, use, storage, transport and disposal of chemicals, radioactive substances, and hazardous wastes	
10.	Activities to be conducted at special protected areas	Activities to be conducted in boundaries of special protected areas	Activities to be conducted at locally protected areas.

2.1.4 Approvals of Environmental Assessments

19. The definition on "Environmental Baseline assessment" stated in the paragraph 3.1.4 of the Mongolian Law on EIA as following:

3.1.4 "Environmental baseline assessment" shall mean an assessment that are carried out during the preparation of a feasibility study, design and drawing of any projects and formulation of national, regional and sector development programs and plans in order to establish the existing conditions and state of nature and environment of the territory, in which the proposed projects, programs and plans are to be implemented and to identify any environmental considerations that the project, programs, plans and policies need to incorporate;

20. In Article 6 of the law on EIA, about the status and cumulative impact assessment is mentioned as following:

Article 6. Status and cumulative impact assessment

6.1. The project implementer is responsible for commissioning the assessment referred to in Article 3.1.4 to identify potential impacts of the project.

6.2 The project implementer shall ensure that the environmental baseline assessment is performed with the due participation from the licensed professional entity and research institutions and if necessary, shall seek guidance from the state central administrative organization in charge of nature and environment.

21. There is definition about GEIA in the EIA law as shown in Article 7 below:

Article 7. Environmental Impact Assessments

- 7.1 An environmental impact assessment shall consist of the following two assessments:
- 7.1.1 General environmental impact assessment
- 7.1.2 Detailed environmental impact assessment

7.2 Applications for a license for the use of natural resources, extraction of petroleum and minerals, and possession and use of land for business purposes and an approval for any other projects are subject to a prior general environmental impact assessment.

7.3 The project implementer shall apply for a general environmental impact assessment to the state central administrative organization in charge of nature and environment or the *aimag* and capital city governor's office, whichever is applicable according to the classification annexed to this law, by submitting a brief description of the project, the feasibility study, the engineering design and drawings, baseline description of the proposed project environment, a written opinion of the relevant *soum* and district governor and other related documents.

7.4. General environmental impact assessments for all new projects and existing plants, factories, services and building facilities that are planned to be renovated and expanded and projects that will make use of natural resources in one way or another shall be performed by an

assessment expert who shall complete the assessment within 14 working days and issue a formal opinion.

7.4.1. The project should not be permitted or rejected on the grounds that it is likely to cause considerable harm to the environment by virtue of its proposed technology, technique and activities; that it is absent in the land management planning; that its activities are inconsistent with the state policy, the strategic assessment opinions or relevant legislation.

7.4.2. The project may be implemented without a detailed environmental impact assessment subject to specific conditions.

7.4.3 The project requires detailed environmental impact assessment.

7.5 If deemed necessary, the time period specified in Article 7.4 may be extended once by 14 days at the decision of the chief expert.

22. There are two types of EIAs defined in the Law:

(i) **General EIA (screening)** - to initiate a General EIA, the project implementer submits to MNET (or *Aimag* government) a brief description of the project including feasibility study, technical details, drawings, and other information. The General EIA may lead to one of four conclusions: (i) no detailed EIA is necessary, (ii) the project may be completed pursuant to specific conditions, (iii) a Detailed EIA is necessary, or (iv) project cancellation. The General EIA is free and usually takes up to 12 days.

(ii) **The Detailed EIA** – the scope is defined by the General EIA. The Detailed EIA report must be produced by a Mongolian company which is authorized by the MNET by means of a special procedure. The developer of the Detailed EIA should submit it to the MNET (or *Aimag* government). An expert of the organization who was involved in conducting General EIA should make a review of the Detailed EIA within 18 days and present it to MET (or *Aimag* government). Based on the conclusion of the expert, the MET (or *Aimag* government) takes a decision about approval or disapproval of the project.

(iii) The Detailed EIA must contain the following chapters: (i) Environmental baseline data; (ii) Project alternatives; (iii) Recommendations for minimizing, mitigation and elimination of impacts; (iv) Analysis of extent and distribution of adverse impacts and their consequences; (v) Risk assessment; (vi) Environmental Protection Plan; (vii) Environmental Monitoring Program; and (viii) Opinions of residents on whether the project should be implemented.

23. The type and size of the planned activities define responsibility for the Ministry of Environment and Tourism (MET) or *Aimag* (provincial) government in making EIA.

24. The EIA process in Mongolia is summarized in **Figure 2.1**.



Figure 2.1. GEIA and DEIA procedure according to Mongolian Law on EIA.

from MET on this component.

2.2 Other International Environmental Requirements

26. The World Bank Group's Environmental, Health, and Safety (EHS) Guidelines are technical reference documents with general and industry-specific examples of Good International Industry Practice (GIIP). The EHS Guidelines are provided in a General Set in four major categories (Environmental, Occupational Health and Safety, Community Health and Safety, Construction and Decommissioning.) These general guidelines are applicable to all sub-projects and supplemented

by relevant industry sector specific EHS guidelines.

27. According to ADB SPS 2009 "During the design, construction, and operation of the project the borrower/client will apply pollution prevention and control technologies and practices consistent with international good practice, as reflected in internationally recognized standards such as the World Bank Group's Environment, Health and Safety Guidelines. These standards contain performance levels and measures that are normally acceptable and applicable to projects. When host country regulations differ from these levels and measures, the borrower/client will achieve whichever is more stringent. If less stringent levels or measures are appropriate in view of specific project circumstances, the borrower/client will provide full and detailed justification for any proposed alternatives that are consistent with the requirements."

2.2.1 Mongolia School/Kindergarten building Environmental Infrastructure

28. The consultants reviewed environmental issues related to development of infrastructure at schools and kindergartens in Mongolia. The project preparation technical assistance would ensure that project design proposes measures to address constraints in carrying out safe construction and expansion activities of school/kindergarten buildings as per national and international norms.

29. The project design must include development of overall environmental infrastructure, a systematic technological evaluation of appropriate, cost-effective, and sustainable solutions to wastewater, connections to centralized sewerage systems, effective solid waste management, connected water supply and energy efficient heating system infrastructure at school and kindergarten facilities in urban and rural settings.

30. Most schools in Ulaanbaatar are served by central water supply, wastewater collection and treatment facilities, centralized drainage systems, centralized heating systems and available electrical supply. However, regional environmental infrastructure systems are somewhat lacking in many cases, especially in Ger areas of Ulaanbaatar and outside, in rural areas. Additional Financing is also being made to schools and kindergartens in *aimags* and *soums* where many of the problems outlined above are more serious in other parts of Mongolia.

31. **Green Building Concept**⁸. A preliminary draft of a green building rating system was developed by Mongolia Green Building Council (MGBC) in 2014 by order of the Ministry of Environment, Green Development and Tourism of Mongolia (MEGDT). The draft system consists of ten main and 26 sub- criteria, covering the four thematic areas of energy, water, environment, and innovation (as shown in **Table 2.7**).

Table 2.7 Offeria of the MODO'S Ofeen building rating system		
Energy	Implementation of the requirements of standard criteria of the A, B, C heating/thermal categories specified in BND 23-02-09 - Mongolian Building Standard	
	Usage of energy efficient equipment	
	Usage of interior and exterior lighting of the building	
	Usage of renewable energy sources	
Water saving	Water saving equipment installation	
_	Reuse of grey water futures	

Table 2.7 Criteria of the MGBC's Green building rating system

⁸ Source of information Design and Technology Options - Analysis for a Green Public Kindergarten in Mongolia February 2016 Prepared by Mongolian Green Building Council and Building Technologies LLC for Global Green Growth Institute and Ministry of Environment.

	Reuse of rainwater
Environmental	Location:
aspects	External planning, playground, car parking, bike parking and greenery should be
-	designed according to BND
	Connectivity to the public transport
	Building:
	Usage of resource saving building material
	Usage of Green marked building material
	Interior air quality:
	Internal air temperature, humidity, and noise level according to BND Usage of green
	labelled material in Interior design.
	Environmental management:
	Usage of environmental management program and environmental monitoring plan during
	construction.
	Construction company or client has ISO 14001 environmental management standard.
	Maximum natural lighting in design.
Innovation	Usage of innovative technology, idea and material not directly related to green building
	rating system, but incorporated into GBRS

(Source: Mongolia Green Building Council, 2014, report)

32. The criteria of the draft rating systems helped inform the choice of green design and technology options for the green public kindergarten in Mongolia. The design concept of the green public kindergarten (developed by Green Technology Center-Korea (GTCK)) examined design and technology options across five areas, as follows:

- Building materials: Insulation
- Interior: LED, others
- Energy: Energy Efficiency of Building: Insulation of building for heat loss prevention; Heating: Four types of electrical and renewable heating systems - Electric floor heating, Night heat saver, Power saving heating and usage of Hybrid systems
- Water and sanitation: Drinking Water: Solar panel to work the bore-well for drinking water; Wastewater: Biological treatment systems for wastewater.
- Exterior: Landscaping etc.
- Other: Septic Tank for Solid waste

2.3 Mongolia and Multilateral Environmental Agreements (MEAs)

33. The health of Mongolia's natural ecosystems and populations of wild species is of both national and global importance. The country forms an important part of the global ecosystem in the ecological transition zone in Central Asia, where the great Siberian taiga, the Central Asian steppe, the high Altai Mountains, and the Gobi Desert converge. In recognition of its global responsibilities, Mongolia has acceded to a number of international environmental conventions and the key ones are tabulated below under four clusters in **Table 2.8**.

34. Each of these conventions places obligations on signatory governments ranging from the provision of a legislative basis for implementation, to adherence to the requirements and conditions of each convention, to monitoring implementation performance on a regular basis, to reporting on a regular basis and to the conference of parties.

 Table 2.8
 International Environmental Conventions Signed by Mongolia

No	Convention	Year of Accession
А	Nature conservation	
1	1 Convention on the Protection of Wetlands of International Importance- Ramsar Convention on Wetlands	

No	Convention	Year of Accession	
2	CITES (Convention on International Trade in Endangered Species of Fauna	1996	
	and Flora)		
3	CBD (Convention on Biological Diversity)	1993	
В	Hazardous material		
1	Stockholm Convention on Persistent Organic Pollutants (POPs)	2004	
2	Basel Convention on the Control of Trans-boundary Movement of	1997	
	Hazardous Waste and Their Disposal		
3	Rotterdam Convention on Prior Informed Consent (PIC) for certain	2000	
	Hazardous Chemicals and Pesticides in International Trade		
4	Minimata Convention on Mercury	2013	
С	Atmospheric emissions		
1	UNFCCC (United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change)	1994	
2	Kyoto Protocol	1999	
3	UNCCD (United Nations Convention to Combat Desertification)	1996	
4	Montreal Protocol (on Ozone Depleting Substances)	1996	
5	Vienna Convention for the Protection of the Ozone Layer	1996	
D	World Heritage		
1	World Heritage Convention	1990	

2.4 Asian Development Bank's Safeguards Policies

T-1-1- 0 0.

2.4.1 Asian Development Bank's Environment Classification

35. The ADB's Safeguard Policy Statement (SPS), 2009 is applicable to all projects. These projects can be categorized as A, B, C or FI. **Table 2.9** below provides a list of categorizations of the activities related to Environment, Safeguards, as per ADB's Safeguard Policy Statement 2009 requirements:

Environment Orformula Orformula the Definition

	Table 2.9: Environment Safeguards Categorization: Definition	
Category	Environment	
A — Significan	t Investments that anticipate significant adverse environmental impacts that are irreversible, diverse, or unprecedented. These impacts may affect an area larger than the sites or facilities subject to physical works.	
B — Less Significant	Investments with potential adverse impacts that are site-specific, few if any of them are irreversible, and in most cases mitigation measures can be more readily designed than for Category A investments.	
C — Minimal of impact	r Investments that have minimal or no adverse environmental impacts.	
FI — Financial Intermediation	Investment of ADB funds through financial intermediaries (FI)	

2.4.2 ADB Prohibited Investment Activities List (PIAL)

36. At an initial stage of identifying project activities, the ADB's Prohibited Investment Activities List (described below) will apply. If the investment involves a prohibited activity, IA will not consider the investment.

37. The following type of projects do not qualify for Asian Development Bank financing:
 (i) production or activities involving harmful or exploitative forms of forced labour⁹ or child

⁹ Forced labor means all work or services not voluntarily performed, that is, extracted from individuals under threat of force or penalty

labour10;'

- (ii) production of or trade in any product or activity deemed illegal under host country laws or regulations or international conventions and agreements or subject to international phase outs or bans, such as (a) pharmaceuticals¹¹, pesticides, and herbicides¹²,(b) ozone-depleting substances¹³, (c) polychlorinated biphenyls¹⁴and other hazardous chemicals¹⁵,(d) wildlife or wildlife products regulated under the Convention on International Trade in Endangered Species of Wild Fauna and Flora¹⁶, and (e) transboundary trade in waste or waste products¹⁷;
- (iii) production of or trade in weapons and munitions, including paramilitary materials;
- (iv) production of or trade in alcoholic beverages, excluding beer and wine¹⁸;
- (v) production of or trade in tobacco;
- (vi) gambling, casinos, and equivalent enterprises;
- (vii) production of or trade in radioactive materials¹⁹,including nuclear reactors and components thereof;
- (viii)production of, trade in, or use of unbonded asbestos fibers²⁰;
- (ix) commercial logging operations or the purchase of logging equipment for use in primary tropical moist forests or old-growth forests; and
- (x) marine and coastal fishing practices, such as large-scale pelagic drift net fishing and fine mesh net fishing, harmful to vulnerable and protected species in large numbers and damaging to marine biodiversity and habitats.

2.4.3 ADB SPS Requirements (SR1): Environment Policy

38. ADB's SPS sets out the policy objectives, scope and triggers, and principles for the environmental safeguards. To achieve the policy objectives and deliver the policy principles, ADB carries out the actions described in the "Policy Delivery Process" (subsection "B" of the SPS). To help borrowers/clients and their projects achieve the desired outcomes, ADB adopts a set of specific safeguard requirements that borrowers/clients are required to meet in addressing environmental and social impacts and risks. ADB staff, through their due diligence, review, and supervision, will ensure that borrowers/clients comply with these requirements during project preparation and implementation. These safeguard requirements are as follows:

<u>Objectives</u>: The objective of ADB's due diligence for the Project loan is that EA ensures the environmental soundness and sustainability of projects and to support the integration of environmental considerations into the project decision-making process.

Scope and Triggers: Environmental safeguards are triggered if a project is likely to have potential

¹⁰ Child labor means the employment of children whose age is below the host country's statutory minimum age of employment or employment of children in contravention of International Labor Organization Convention No. 138 "Minimum Age Convention" (<u>www.ilo.org</u>).

¹¹ A list of pharmaceutical products subject to phaseouts or bans is available at <u>http://www.who.int</u>.

¹² A list of pesticides and herbicides subject to phaseouts or bans is available at <u>http://www.pic.int</u>.

¹³ A list of the chemical compounds that react with and deplete stratospheric ozone resulting in the widely publicized ozone holes is listed in the Montreal Protocol, together with target reduction and phaseout dates. Information is available at <u>http://www.unep.org/ozone/montreal.shtml.</u>

¹⁴ A group of highly toxic chemicals, polychlorinated biphenyls are likely to be found in oil-filled electrical transformers, capacitors, and switchgear dating from 1950 to 1985.

¹⁵ A list of hazardous chemicals is available at <u>http://www.pic.int</u>.

¹⁶ A list is available at <u>http://www.cites.org</u>.

¹⁷ As defined by the Basel Convention; see <u>http://www.basel.int</u>.

¹⁸ This does not apply to investee companies who are not substantially involved in these activities. Not substantially involved means that the activity concerned is ancillary to an investee company's primary operations.

¹⁹ This does not apply to the purchase of medical equipment, quality control (measurement) equipment, and any equipment for which ADB considers the radioactive source to be trivial and adequately shielded.

²⁰ This does not apply to the purchase and use of bonded asbestos cement sheeting where the asbestos content is less than 20%.

environmental risks and impacts.

Policy principles:

- Use screening process for each proposed project to determine the appropriate extent and type of environmental assessment so that appropriate studies are undertaken commensurate with the significance of potential impacts and risks.
- Conduct an environmental assessment for each proposed project to identify potential direct, indirect, cumulative, and induced impacts and risks to physical, biological, socioeconomic (including impacts on livelihood through environmental media, health and safety, vulnerable groups, and gender issues), and physical cultural resources in the context of the project's area of influence. Assess potential transboundary and global impacts, including climate change. Use strategic environmental assessment where appropriate.
- Examine alternatives to the project's location, design, technology, and components and their potential environmental and social impacts and document the rationale for selecting the particular alternative proposed. Also consider the no project alternative.
- Avoid, and where avoidance is not possible, minimize, mitigate, and/or offset adverse impacts and enhance positive impacts by means of environmental planning and management. Prepare an environmental management plan (EMP) that includes the proposed mitigation measures, environmental monitoring and reporting requirements, related institutional or organizational arrangements, capacity development and training measures, implementation schedule, cost estimates, and performance indicators. Key considerations for EMP preparation include mitigation of potential adverse impacts to the level of no significant harm to third parties, and the polluter pays principle.
- Carry out meaningful consultation with affected people and facilitate their informed participation. Ensure women's participation in consultation. Involve stakeholders, including affected people and concerned nongovernment organizations, early in the project preparation process and ensure that their views and concerns are made known to and understood by decision makers and taken into account. Continue consultations with stakeholders throughout project implementation as necessary to address issues related to environmental assessment. Establish a grievance redress mechanism to receive and facilitate resolution of the affected people's concerns and grievances regarding the project's environmental performance.
- Disclose a draft environmental assessment (including the EMP) in a timely manner, before project appraisal, in an accessible place and in a form and language(s) understandable to affected people and other stakeholders. Disclose the final environmental assessment, and its updates if any, to affected people and other stakeholders.
- Implement the EMP and monitor its effectiveness. Document monitoring results, including the development and implementation of corrective actions, and disclose monitoring reports.
- Do not implement project activities in areas of critical habitats, unless (i) there are no measurable adverse impacts on the critical habitat that could impair its ability to function, (ii) there is no reduction in the population of any recognized endangered or critically endangered species, and (iii) any lesser impacts are mitigated. If a project is located within a legally protected area, implement additional programs to promote and enhance the conservation aims of the protected area. In an area of natural habitats, there must be no significant conversion or degradation, unless (i) alternatives are not available, (ii) the overall benefits from the project substantially outweigh the environmental costs, and (iii) any conversion or degradation is appropriately mitigated. Use a precautionary approach to the use, development, and management of renewable natural resources.
- Apply pollution prevention and control technologies and practices consistent with international good practices as reflected in internationally recognized standards such as the World Bank Group's Environmental, Health and Safety Guidelines. Adopt cleaner production processes

and good energy efficiency practices. Avoid pollution, or, when avoidance is not possible, minimize or control the intensity or load of pollutant emissions and discharges, including direct and indirect greenhouse gases emissions, waste generation, and release of hazardous materials from their production, transportation, handling, and storage. Avoid the use of hazardous materials subject to international bans or phase-outs. Purchase, use, and manage pesticides based on integrated pest management approaches and reduce reliance on synthetic chemical pesticides.

- Provide workers with safe and healthy working conditions and prevent accidents, injuries, and disease. Establish preventive and emergency preparedness and response measures to avoid, and where avoidance is not possible, to minimize, adverse impacts and risks to the health and safety of local communities.
- Conserve physical cultural resources and avoid destroying or damaging them by using fieldbased surveys that employ qualified and experienced experts during environmental assessment. Provide for the use of "chance find" procedures that include a pre-approved management and conservation approach for materials that may be discovered during project implementation.

2.4.4 Other documents relevant to ADB's Safeguard Policy Statement, 2009

- (i) World Bank Group's Environment, Health and Safety (EHS) Guidelines, 2007 which are currently under revision.
- (ii) ADB's Environmental Safeguards: A Good Practice Sourcebook-Draft Working Document (November 2012).
- (iii) International Labor Organisation (ILO) Core Labor Standards.

3.0 DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT

3.1 The Project

39. The project will help to sustain access to and quality of pre-primary, primary, junior and senior secondary education during the economic difficulties. The project will have five outputs: (i) enrolment capacity of schools and kindergartens enhanced, (ii) curriculum statements, assessment and evaluation updated and implemented in line with education frameworks, (iii) availability and affordability of quality educational resources improved, (iv) school and kindergarten leaders and teachers' knowledge and skills upgraded, and (v) systems for increasing efficiency in public spending on education developed. The overall project is expected to be implemented from April 2018 to December 2026.

40. For the ongoing project, as of 30 June 2023, a total of 84% (or 5.2 years) of the project implementation period elapsed, and an overall non-financial physical implementation progress for 2018-2024 was at 80%, increased by 5% compared to the previous year. As of the 20 September 2023, total of 13 civil works (9 kindergartens and 4 schools) commissioned, and 8 civil works (5 kindergartens and 3 schools) are ongoing with a performance status of 45-95%.

41. The MES requested additional financing to complete the civil works which were dropped from the original scope of the ongoing project due to construction materials price increases. The proposed activities will be creating additional 9 schools and kindergarten of 910 beds at 6 kindergartens, and 960 seats at 3 schools in Ulaanbaatar city and Khuvsgul *aimag*.

3.2 Justification of the Project

42. The low population density and harsh winters in Mongolia, coupled with the limited capacity of the central and local governments to plan and manage education services in a coordinated manner, have caused inefficiency in public spending on education. With more than one quarter of population engaged in semi-nomadic herding, the school dormitory system is essential to ensure access to education. To keep students in kindergartens, schools, and dormitories during extremely cold winter months (November–March), constant heating is necessary. Besides, kindergartens and schools built in the 1970s and 1980s have run down, becoming increasingly energy inefficient. All these come with high costs. Moreover, the short curriculum reform cycle (less than 4 years) in the course of transitioning from a 10- to 12-year education system (2004–2015) has further drained public resources. On the other hand, the decentralization of education administration in 2014 has led to the random opening of senior secondary classes in some areas with fewer students than the standard class size. Investments in kindergarten and school buildings and facilities need to be coordinated and optimized at the central and local levels, taking into account the existing enrolment capacity and trends in population growth and internal migration.

43. By 2026, about 2 schools and 3 kindergartens will be newly constructed, and 8 schools and 17 kindergartens will be expanded; and there will be no schools operating in three shifts.

3.3 Location

Figure 3.1 provides the detailed map of Mongolia. **Figure 3.2** provides the location of ADB's funded sub-projects in Ulaanbaatar city.



Figure 3.1 Map of Mongolia and location of sub-projects implementing aimags.

44. **Figure 3.2** provides location map of the subproject's sites in the Ulaanbaatar city.


Figures 3.2. Location map of project sites in Ulaanbaatar city

45. **Figures 3.3-3.6** provide location map of project sites in other *Aimags* respectively.



Figure 3.3: Location of Khantaishir school in Govi-Altai Aimag, Altai



Figure 3.4: Location of new school in Mangirt bag of Darkhan Uul Aimag



Figure 3.5: Location of new kindergarten in Sumber Soum of Govisumber Aimag



3.4 Size and Magnitude of Operation

Project components

46. Table **3.1** shows sub-projects and their associated key features under funded by ADB.

	Table 3.1: Sub-project components and their key features			
No	Sub-Project	Location	Key features of sub-project component	
-	components			
A	Kindergartens) 		
A 1	Kindergartens	under expansion		
1	Kindergarten	UB, Bayangol	Existing 2 floor building is established in 1973, connected to	
	110.104		of existing building is constructed by limestone bricks so has	
			many cracks and loses much heat. The expansion will be a	
			separate two floor new building in the back side within	
			premises.	
2	Kindergarten	UB, Bayanzurkh	Existing 2 floor building is established in 1970, connected to	
	No.22	District, 1 st khoroo	central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The	
			kindergarten has 3400 m ² land area and expansion will be a	
			separate two floor new building in the back side within	
3	Kindergarten	LIB Bayanzurkh	Vindergerten has 2 floor old building constructed in 1957. The	
0	No.8	District, 16 th	building connected to central heating, sewage and water supply	
		khoroo	system. The current building washrooms have poor sanitation	
			condition, walls and ceiling of classrooms are breaking down,	
			and water and wastewater plumbing systems have	
			deteriorated.	
			Access road is available. The expansion will be separate new	
4	Kin da un anta u		building in the back yard of kindergarten.	
4	Kindergarten	UB, Knan-Uui	Existing 2 floor building is established in 1972, connected to	
	10.05	khoroo	expansion will be a separate two floor new building in the back	
		NIIOI OO	side within premises.	
5	Kindergarten	UB, Khan-Uul	Existing 2 floor building is established in 1976, connected to	
	No.72	District, 2 nd	central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The wall	
		khoroo	of existing building is constructed by limestone bricks so has	
			many cracks and loses much heat. The expansion will be a new	
0			two floor separate building in the back side within premises.	
6	Kindergarten	UB, Sanginakhairkhan	Existing 2 floor building is established in 1948, connected to	
	N0.04	District 6th khoroo	central nearing, electricity, water and sewage system. The plumbing system of the current building is too old. Kindergarten	
			has 10172 m^2 area of land. The expansion will be separate	
			building in its premises.	
7	Kindergarten	UB,	Existing 1 floor building is established in 1986, connected to	
	No.107	Songinokhairkhan	central heating, electricity, water and sewage system.	
		District, 14 th	Kindergarten has 8861 m ² area of land. The expansion will be	
		khoroo	separate building in its premises.	
8	Kindergarten	UB,	Existing 1 floor building is established in 1987, connected to	
	No.110	Songinokhairkhan	central heating, electricity, water and sewage system.	

Table 3.1: Sub-project components and their key features

No	Sub-Project	Location	Key features of sub-project component
	components		
		District, 15 th <i>khoroo</i>	Kindergarten has 10026 m ² area of land. The expansion will be 2 floor separate new building in its premises.
9	Kindergarten No.176	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 31 st <i>khoroo</i>	Kindergarten has 1 floor building which established in 2005, has no connection to central heating, water and sewage system and has individual heat only boiler, holding tank and water well. Kindergarten has 1388 m ² area of land. The expansion will be additional floor on the top of building. The heat
10	Kindergarten No.68	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 3 rd <i>khoroo</i>	Existing 2 floor building is established in 1973, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The expansion will be a two-floor separate new building in the back side of the premises.
11	Kindergarten No.17	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 10 th <i>khoroo</i>	Kindergarten's existing building is 2 floor and constructed in 1963. Kindergarten has 3950m ² premises and out of it 810m ² area is under the building. The existing building connected to central heating, electricity, water supply and sewage system. The expansion will be a two-floor separate new building in the own premises in the left side of old building.
12	Kindergarten No.5	Govisumber, Sumber <i>Soum</i> , 3 rd <i>bagh</i>	<i>Aimag</i> Government owned 300m ² land area is available. Blueprint is developed. The area is located nearby the school dormitory and school. Access road is available.
13	Kindergarten No.104	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 12th <i>khoroo</i>	Existing 1 floor building is established in 1986, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. Kindergarten has 10172 m ² area of land. The expansion will be separate building in its premises.
14	Kindergarten No.160	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 3 rd <i>khoroo</i>	Kindergarten has 2 floor old building constructed in 1972. The building connected to central heating, electricity, sewage and water supply system. Access road is available. The expansion will be a separate new building in the back side of kindergarten premises.
15	Kindergarten No.82	UB, Bayanzurkh District, 16 th <i>khoroo</i>	Existing 2 floor building is established in 1980, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The wall of existing building is constructed by limestone bricks so has many cracks and loses much heat. The kindergarten has 7420 m ² land area and expansion will be a separate two floor new building in the back side within premises.
16	Kindergarten No.88	UB, Bayangol District, 18 th <i>khoroo</i>	Existing 2 floor building is established in 1982, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The expansion will be a separate two floor new building in the back side within premises.
17	Kindergarten No.6	Khuvsgul, Murun <i>soum</i> , 8 th bagh	The building was put into operation in 1976 with the capacity to receive 120 children. It is a "P"-shaped 2-storey brick structure, which consists of 3 block parts with an axis of 33.5x10.3m (11.7mx10.5m) x2 and is connected to a centralized engineering network. In 2015, 2019, and 2021, the state inspector's conclusions were issued regarding the quality and condition of the building, and it was determined that it did not meet the requirements for use. Conclusion No. 23.07.028/115 dated September 24, 2021.
A 2	Kindergartens	under new construc	ction
1	New	UB Bayanzurkh	The land allocated for this site currently used by branch of
	kindergarten	District, 24 th	kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. Has individual
		knoroo	electric heating, no holding tank for wastewater and uses open
2	Now	LIR Nalaikh	pit and transported drinking water.
4		UU, INAIAINI	District Government owned land 0,000m ² area Situated field the

No	Sub-Project	Location	Key features of sub-project component	
	components			
	kindergarten	District, 7 th khoroo	"Sport Complex", close with Khashaa plots in left side. Access road is available. The area is at least 500m away from District Heating Plant, water supply and sewage system.	
3	New kindergarten	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 25 th <i>khoroo</i>	District Government owned 300m ² land area is available. Blueprint is developed. The area is located nearby main road and surrounded by Ger khashaa plots and small services. Access road is available. There is no central heating, water supply and sewage system available in the area.	
B	Schools:	· ·		
<u>В1</u>	Schools under	expansion:		
1	School No.51	UB	Existing 3 floor building constructed in 1974 by brick. Connected to centralized electricity, heating, water supply, sewage system. The expansion will be a separate building behind the existing school building.	
2	School No.18	UB, Khan-Uul District	Existing 3 floor building is established in 1979, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The expansion will be additional floor on the roof and have permission of Specialized Inspection Agency to add one more floor on top.	
3	"Erdmiin Orgil" Complex	UB, Nalaikh District	Existing 1 floor building is established in 1971, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The expansion will be 3 floor separate building with capacity of 640 students, in the school yard inside premises.	
4	"Ireedui" Primary School	UB, Songinokhairkhan District	Existing 2 floor building was established in 1983, connected to central heating, electricity, water supply and sewage system. The school has 14281.7 m ² area. The expansion will be additional floor on the roof of building. Has permission of Specialized Inspection Agency to add one more floor on top.	
5	"Ireedui" Secondary School	UB, Songinkhairkhan District	Existing 2 floor building is established in 1983, connected to central heating, electricity, water and sewage system. The school has 14602.2 m ² area. The expansion will be additional floor on the roof of building. Has permission of Specialized Inspection Agency to add one more floor on top.	
6	School No.122 (green school)	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 22 nd <i>khoroo</i>	School has 18000 m ² land area and 4 floor building, constructed in 2013. The existing building has capacity with 640 students but currently 1500 students are enrolled at this school. The school building has individual heat only boiler for heating, water reservoir for keeping transported water and individual holding tank for wastewater, connected to central electricity line. The expansion will be 3 floor building with capacity of 640 students and has a blueprint for building.	
7	School No.6	UB, Sukhbaatar District	Existing 2 floor building is established in 1973, connected to central heating, electricity, water supply and sewage system. The expansion will be additional floor on the roof.	
8	Khantaishir	Govi-Altai, Altai soum	The school is in the one floor old building constructed in 1961, which is proposed to be used as office of construction company temporarily. The building is connected to central heating, water supply and sewage system. School has possession of 3567 m ² land and the expansion will be a new 3 floor building, with capacity of 320 students and can be constructed in front of old building.	
B 2	Schools under	new construction :		
1	New school	Songinokhairkhan	The new construction site is situated in the edge of Ger	

No	Sub-Project	Location	Key features of sub-project component		
	components				
		District, 7 th khoroo	Khashaa Plot area. Total of 10000 m ² area for this site and it		
			owned by District Government. The area is empty but included		
			in town development plan, has no central heating, water supply		
			and sewage system infrastructure.		
2	New school	Darkhan, Mangirt,	Construct new school building with capacity of 960 students.1.5		
		15 th bagh	ha area is available with a possibility to connect to central		
			heating, sewage and water supply system. The site is included		
			in new development area and no other buildings in vicinity of		
			new kindergarten close to this site.		

47. For some of the school/kindergarten sub-projects, location specific blueprints are under development through accredited architects in Mongolia. The data regarding soil, topography, contour, land cutting and filling required, distance from water body and distance from major roads, details of forest/non-forest, fruit/non-fruit trees that can be affected, land details will be collected by engineering firms. However, if sites are changed other than those indicated here in the IEE, supplementary information will be supplied for each of new location for subprojects proposed by MES to ADB for prior to approval before finalizing design drawings.

4.0 **DESCRIPTION OF ENVIRONMENT (Baseline Data)**

48. The Schools/Kindergartens subprojects funded under the PPTA are situated in districts of Ulaanbaatar city and Govi-Altai, Govisumber, Darkan-Uul *aimags*. This chapter focuses on the present environmental conditions of the sub-project areas in Ulaanbaatar and other *aimags*.

49. Most sub-project activities will have minimal impacts to the environment and will not be influenced by current environment conditions. Thus, the main emphasis of this chapter is the description of physical, biological, and socioeconomic conditions in Ulaanbaatar and at other *Aimags*, and more specifically the environment at the schools/kindergartens.

4.1 Physical Environment of Mongolia

4.1.1. Topography

50. Although most of the country is flat, with rolling hills, there are several significant mountain ranges, notably the Altai, Khangai, Knentii and Khuvsgul. About half of the land is at an altitude of about 1,400 m or more above mean sea level. The altitudes range from 560 m (above sea level) at the lowest point of Khokh Nuur in the eastern steppes, to the highest of 4,374 m (above sea level) at Khuiten peak in the Altai Mountains.

51. The Khuvsgul *aimag* is considered to be one of the most beautiful places of Mongolia with its snowcapped majestic mountain ranges, deep blue lakes, thick forests, vast river valleys. The 24 sums are divided into three regions, High Mountain, Low Mountain, and Forrest-Steppe. Khuvsgul *aimag* is rich with mineral resources. Deposits containing many thousands of tons of phosphate, coal, graphite, gold, iron ore, limestone, mineral colors, marble, and granite have been explored in this region. By natural zonation the area is the forest steppe zone and belongs to *aimag* of Khangai vaulted massive mountain with the typical dark chesnut soil type of steppe valley and depression group. The area belongs to the sporadic permafrost region according to permafrost zones.

4.1.2. Climate

52. Mongolia lies in a transitional zone at 42° – 52° N, between the boreal forests of Siberia and the Gobi Desert, spanning the southernmost border of the permafrost and the northernmost deserts of Central Asia. Large distances and high mountain chains separate the country from the oceans. It has an extreme continental climate with marked differences in seasonal and diurnal temperatures and low precipitation. Mean annual observed precipitation ranges from 38.4 mm at Ekhiin gol in Bayankhongor *Aimag (aimag)* to 389.3 mm at Dadal in Khentii *aimag*. Most of the rainfall occurs in summer, between June and August. Mean monthly temperatures for the last thirty years range from -11.8°C (January) to 25.2°C (July) at Ekhiin gol, the warmest place, and from - 32°C (January) to 12.8°C (July) at Rinchinlhumbe, the coldest place in Mongolia.

53. Mongolia has a severe continental climate. Ulaanbaatar is the coldest national capital in the world, with temperatures ranging from approximately -37 $^{\circ}$ C to +25 $^{\circ}$ C. The country is also prone to severe winters, known as *dzud* which means any condition that stops livestock getting to pasture. The winters of 1999, 2000, 2001 and 2010 were *dzud* years, which resulted in the deaths of more than 25% of the livestock population. Ulaanbaatar is located at 1,350m altitude in the valley of four mountain ranges which rise to 1,650 to 1,949m altitude. Due to its location, the city experiences many temperature inversions. At least 80% of these inversions occur from October to April when air temperatures are from 7.5 to 11.7 $^{\circ}$ C and land temperatures are from minus 21 to minus 39 $^{\circ}$ C. The average depth of the inversions is 650 to 920 m.

54. Khuvsgul, Murun *soum* is influenced by the local steppe climate. There is little rainfall throughout the year. According to Köppen and Geiger, this climate is classified as BSk. The average temperature in Moron is -0.9 °C. The rainfall here averages 230 mm. The driest month is January, with 1 mm of rainfall. The greatest amount of precipitation occurs in July, with an average of 69 mm. The warmest month of the year is July, with an average temperature of 16.8 °C. The lowest average temperatures in the year occur in January, when it is around -21.7 °C. The difference in precipitation between the driest month and the wettest month is 68 mm. The variation in temperatures throughout the year is 38.5 °C. Murun city is in the Delgermurun river valley and Bulgan city is in the basin of Orkhon river. Bulgan and Khuvsgul *aimags* have a subarctic climate with long, dry, very cold winters and short, cool summers.

55. **Precipitation:** The country averages 257 cloudless days a year, and it is usually at the centre of a region of high atmospheric pressure. Precipitation is highest in the north, including Ulaanbaatar (average of 200 to 350 mm per year) and lowest in the south, which receives 100 to 200 mm annually. In Ulaanbaatar, 95-97 percent of precipitation falls during the warm season, including 75-80 percent in the summer. In winter, the precipitation ranges from 1 to 3 mm, whereas in July it ranges from 100 to 120 mm. At an average, it rains 40-70 days a year, snow falls on 25-30 days, and land is covered with snow for 140-170 days.

56. **Wind:** The dry environment exacerbates the frequent dust storms occurring in Mongolia each year. Wind erosion of soil is a dynamic process of soil degradation in which the share stress applied on the ground surface by wind exceeds the ability of the soil particles to resist separation and transportation. The wind erosion depends on the climatic factors, soil properties, landscape characteristics and availability of vegetation. In Ulaanbaatar, wind blows mostly from the north and northwest and average wind velocities are usually lower than in other parts of Mongolia. Monthly wind velocities average 1.6 - 4.4 m/s, with an average of 7 to 9 days per year where wind velocities exceed 10 m/s.

4.1.3 Ecosystems

57. Mongolia's position, size and topography have resulted in a unique assembly of ecosystems or natural zones. Studies of the flora and fauna of the country, together with climatic and geographic data, have resulted in the classification of Mongolia into six broad ecological regions, 16 *aimags* and 47 bio-geographical zones. Mongolia also has been divided into six broad vegetation zones (Alpine, Taiga, Forest-Steppe, Steppe, Desert-Steppe and Desert). Ecosystems are fragile and extremely vulnerable to many forms of economic exploitation.

58. **Alpine**: High mountains rising above the tree line occur in the Altai, Khangai, Khentii and Khuvsgul ranges. The tops of these mountains are relatively flat, with few sharp peaks. Vegetation consists of low shrubs and herbs, sedges, mosses, algae and lichens, and there are few birds and mammals living at this altitude.

59. **Taiga**: Mountain taiga forest covers areas of the Khuvsgul and Khentii mountains, the area north of the Tarvagatai Mountains, the upper reaches of the Orkhon river, and the Khan Khokhii range. It is the southern edge of the Siberian taiga that has the largest continuous forest system in the world.

60. **Forest-Steppe**: This zone lies between the steppe and the taiga, in the Khangai and Altai Mountain chains, including parts of Orkhon and Selenge river basins and Khyangan Mountains of eastern Mongolia. Coniferous forests are found on the northern slopes, while the southern slopes are covered with open steppe vegetation.

61. **Steppe**: The steppe zone extends from the western Great Lakes depression past Khangai and the middle Khalkha highlands to the steppes of Khentii, Dornogovi and Dornod. It is characterized by flat plains and rolling hills covered in feather grass and shrubs.

62. **Desert-Steppe**: Mongolia's desert-steppe or semi-desert is characterized by a dry climate with mean annual precipitation of 100-125 mm and vegetation dominated by low grasses and shrubs. Many of Central Asia's endemic plants occur in this zone.

63. **Desert**: Desert occurs predominantly in the south. The Mongolian desert is extremely dry, with mean annual rainfall lower than 100 mm, and some areas remain without rain for several years at a time. High winds and dust storms are frequent in spring and summer. There are oases with poplar, but for the most part the desert consists of bare sandy plains and Rocky Mountains.

4.1.4. Water Resources

64. Mongolia straddles a major continental watershed aligned east-west across the country. North of the divide, drainage is to the Arctic Ocean via the Lena River and Lake Baikal, and to the Pacific Ocean via the Amur and Yenisei rivers. South of the divide drainage terminates in dry lakes and salt pans with no outlet to the sea.

65. There are more than 3,800 rivers and streams with regular run-off in Mongolia. The total length of the river network is about 6,500 km. There are 186 glaciers of a total volume of 62.5 km³ and 3,500 lakes covering total surface area of 15,600 km² with a total volume of 500 km³ and 8,000 river lets. There are three major drainage basins: rivers in the west drain to the enclosed Basin of Central Asia; rivers in the north drain to Arctic Ocean Basin; and rivers in the east drain to Pacific Ocean Basin.

66. The potential water resources of the country are estimated to be about 36.4 km³. Of this, the surface water resources are 22.0 km³ and the usable groundwater resources are 12.6 km³. About 78% of the river run-off is formed on 36 % of the territory in northern, western, and northeastern mountainous areas and 22 per cent is formed on 64 % of the territory in the south of the country. On an average, the annual amount of water resources per capita is 17,300 m³. However, it ranges from 4,500 m³ per capita in the Gobi area to 46,000 m³ per capita in northern and central areas.

67. **Surface water:** Ulaanbaatar is located in the Tuul River basin. The Tuul River is 704 km long and drains an area 49,840 square km. Currently the Tuul River is suffering from pollution, some caused by Ulaanbaatar's central sewage treatment facility, as well as heavy mineral and sedimentation pollution caused by gold mining in the Zaamar area. The Selbe River, a tributary of the Tuul River with a catchment area of 303 square km, flows along the Eastern and Southern sides of Ulaanbaatar, eventually meeting the Tuul River approximately 20 km downstream of the city. The principal recharge mechanism for the Selbe River is the rainwater in summer and autumn therefore, water levels fluctuate considerably. The river is considered to be of low biological relevance and is not used as a drinking water source or for agriculture. **Table 4.1** provides average water quality in Tuul river of the Ulaanbaatar city.

Table 4.1: Average Water Quality in the Tuul river in Ulaanbaatar city (1998-2008)							
Summary	DO	BOD₅	COD	NH_4^+	NO ₂ -	NO ₃ -	PO ₄ -3
	[mg/l]	[mg/l]	[mg/l]	[mg/l]	[mg/l]	[mg/l]	[mg/l]
Mean	8.68	4.59	5.42	1.47	0.060	0.65	0.12
Min	6.87	1.79	2.96	0.11	0.003	0.15	0.01

Max	9.40	15.79	9.34	6.47	0.220	1.77	0.50	
Standard	0.81	4.37	2.22	2.18	0.079	0.51	0.17	
Source: Data from a	Source: Date from enclosing by Environmental monitoring loberatory of MNET in Ulaenbeater sity 1009, 2009							

Source: Data from analysing by Environmental monitoring laboratory of MNET, in Ulaanbaatar city, 1998-2008.

68. The Delgermurun river in Khuvsgul *aimag* in northern Mongolia, together with the Ider river, it is one of the main sources of the Selenge river. It runs 1.5km west of the Murun city site. The upstream of Delgermurun river is in the Ulaan Taiga mountain range located near the Mongolian Russian border. The Delgermurun river is frozen 128–175 days per year. It is 445 km long and is the largest river in the Selenge river system. The Delgermurun river is 25-40 m wide in the upstream part, and 50-100 m wide in the lower reaches with an average 0.5-2.5 m depth and flow velocity is 0.2-2 m/s. The largest tributary rivers of the Delgermurun river are Taris River (75 km), Beltes river (92 km), and the Bugsei river (110 km). The total groundwater resource in basin of Delgermurun river (23,017 km2) is calculated as 435 million m3 and the resource available for extraction is 229 million m3 with the yield of 7.0-15.0 l/sec; the water level can drop 3.5 - 5.6 m in summer due to extraction.

69. **Groundwater:** Groundwater exists in unconfined aquifers (alluvial sediments of late quaternary to recent period) at depths between 4 - 30 m. The static water level in the Tuul River valley is from 2-6 m in winter and 0.5-5 m in summer, if there are no wells in operation. However, extraction of groundwater can cause the static water level to drop from 10 - 13 m in winter and from 15 - 19 m in summer.

70. **Permafrost:** Two thirds of the population of Mongolia lives in the region with permafrost distribution. With the increasing activity of infrastructure networks, knowledge about the distribution patterns of mountain permafrost helps reducing installation costs and improves life safety of people in such area.

71. A map of seasonally frozen ground and permafrost distribution of Mongolia at a scale of 1:1500000 is available. This map was compiled by the results of Russian – Mongolian geocryological expedition in 1967 – 1971.

72. On the territory of Ulaanbaatar, annual and seasonal permafrost soil is spread in relation to land surface formation and climate feature. The annual permafrost intermittently and patchily spread here (Tumurbaatar, 1995). The annual permafrost spreads on relatively small area in intermittently through average high mountains near Tolgoit, Selbe, Uliastai and Gachuurt river outfalls in north part of the Ulaanbaatar. But above-mentioned rivers valleys and outfalls of Baruun Salaa and Zuun Salaa rivers in Tolgoit, Belkh and Selkh rivers, Sharga Morit and Khandgait rivers in Selbe river, Zuun gol and Baruun gol, Urd Bayn gol rivers in Uliastain river, Shijir, Shavart and Bugat rivers in Gachuurt river valley, the long-term permafrost spreads patchily. In other parts along or in low parts of land surface, medium bare mountain slopes and low hills relic soil spreads in seasonal permafrost. The annual permafrost spreads mostly in valley bottom and back side of mountains, humid sandy and argillaceous debris. Here phenomenon of cold salient, seasonal and annual cold fraction and overflow is commonly occurred by impact of the permafrost process. Furthermore, various micro types from the permafrost are derived in hollows and convexes. The most occurred phenomenon of the permafrost is the overflow "toshin". It is related to seasonal freezing and formed in river, stream and sprig beds, and sometimes it occupies even side areas. When it gets warm in spring its ice melts and breaks valley bottom in some extent.

73. Annual absolute thickness of the permafrost is 15-40 m in thick river beds, hollow and convex regions, 25-120 m on top of high mountains and their back slopes and average thickness is 30-100 m. Seasonal freezing of relic soil in natural normal condition of annual permafrost and its melting is 2.7- 3.4 m in alluvia gravel, gravelly sand and sandy soil or in river beds, 4.0- 5.6 m in

sandy soil with broken rocks of mountain slopes, 2.8- 3.1 m in mountain back slope soil and 5.1- 5.4 m in mountain top soil and sediment (Sharkhuu S., 2002).

74. Annual mean temperature of the relic soil freezes from zero degrees and its seasonal freezing and melting depth size decreases, when its loamy, fatty and humid feature is increased. In coherent to it, the relic soil seasonal melting average depth does not exceed over 2 m in marsh area of riverbeds and mountain flat slope and reaches at 3-4 m on valley slope dry area. Dominant average freezing of the relic soil seasonally is 2.5-3.5 m deep in average, but it does not exceed over 1.5-2.0 m in argillaceous debris enriched by humidity and reaches at 4-5 m in broken sandy debris lack of humidity in annual and seasonal permafrost process and phenomenon spongy debris spread is the most common in bottom of valleys and hollows regarding humidity and less distributed to mountain side slope, even in south slope.

75. For the last year's depth of permafrost relic soil is presumably to decline and annual permafrost to be changed in south line of the relic soil due to natural and human activities, which was mentioned by researchers of Institute of Geography. It is clearly observed in patchily spread areas, where the permafrost depth declined, marshes along rivers dried up and seasonal permafrost is decayed. Due to loss of the permafrost relic soil forestation and reproduction is stagnated and stretches from forest landscape to steppe landscape that affects loss of plant cover and chases wildlife away from its habitat. Therefore, the annual and seasonal permafrost relic soil and its process influence specifically on natural and socio-economic condition of this area. Currently there is no detailed research on permafrost of the Ulaanbaatar available and it is not possible to define changes made on its phenomenon, proves and relic soil freezing and melting in depth. **Figure 4.1** shows the regional distribution of permafrost near Ulaanbaatar.



Figure 4.1: Distribution of Permafrost in the area of Ulaanbaatar

4.1.5. Biodiversity

76. Animals: Mongolian fauna is relatively rich in animal species which inhabit different

habitats of the country's variable natural zones, such as forests, steppes, deserts, and high mountains. The Mongolian fauna includes many species which are common in Siberian Taiga, European forests, or West Asian and Triennia deserts. But there are also species which are endemic to the steppe and deserts of Central Asia and are common in Mongolia. In addition, Mongolia is one of the richest countries in the world by prehistoric remains of various animal species.

77. **Mammals:** Altogether 138 mammalian species belonging to 73 genera, 22 families, and 8 orders, out of which, 13 are insectivoruos, 12 chiropters, 6 lagomorphs, 69 rodents, 24 carnivores, 2 perissodectyls, 1 tylopods and 11 artiodactyls, exist in Mongolia.

78. **Birds:** 449 species belonging to 193 genera, 56 families and 17 orders have been recorded so far in Mongolia. More than 330 species from this total are migratory, and the remaining 119 species inhabit Mongolia year-round. 322 species nests in spring in Mongolia, and more than 10 species, nesting in the Tundra and in Arctic Ocean coasts, stay over winter in Mongolia. Approximately, 50 species migrate through Mongolia and 20 species are observed occasionally.

79. **Plants:** Detailed plant collections have still not been made for some regions, so it is likely that there are over 3,000 species of flowering plants in Mongolia. There are 845 species of medicinal plants, 68 species of soil-binding plants, and 120 species of important food plants in Mongolia. The factors threatening the Mongolian biological diversity are climate change, desertification, forest insects and disease, pasture harmful insects and unsustainable human activities.

80. **Forest:** The recorded forest resources of Mongolia accounts for about 11.6% of its land area. Area actually under closed forest is only about 8.1% equal to about 12.9 million hectares which is a substantial resource compared to that in many countries.

81. The natural regeneration of Mongolian forests is slow, and fires and insects often damage the forests. Mongolia's forest resources consist of more than 140 species of trees and shrubs and bushes, and 81.2% of the forest area is covered by natural coniferous forest, 15.8 % by saxauls (*Haloxylon ammodendron*), and 3.0% by shrubs and bushes.

82. Of the total forest land of Mongolia, 91.2 % or 16.68 million hectares is forest area, and 8.8 % or 1.60 million hectares is non-forest area. Of the total forest resources of 1,379.2 million m³ in Mongolia, 58.8 % is Siberian larch, 5.2 % is pine, 7.7% is cedar, 8.8 is Siberian spruce and fir, and 16.0% is saxaul. Other species like birch, poplar and willow and shrubs are spread in small quantities.

83. **Figure 4.2** gives the forest map of Mongolia and location of sub-projects.



Figure 4.2: Map of forest of Mongolia and location of project sites

4.1.6. Mineral Resources

84. Mongolia is rich in mineral resources: Eight thousand mineral deposits bearing over 600 mining sites have been discovered, including coal, iron, tin, copper, molybdenum, gold, silver, tungsten, zinc, tin, lead, phosphates, fluorspar, uranium and nickel. In addition, over 200 deposits of construction materials such as marble, granite, etc. have been discovered and these are currently in operation.

85. The Erdenet copper-molybdenum mine and ore-processing complex, which produces annually about 0.4 million tons of copper concentrate for export, dominates the mineral sector.

86. Other substances like oil shale, and semiprecious stones, such as agate, lapis, lazuli, garnet are also found in Mongolia. Of 200 known coal deposits, 32 have been exploited of which 13 sites are now closed. There are many large deposits of low-grade brown coal that cannot be used in some coal-fired installations as it has high sulfur content and air pollution potential. One uranium mine is under exploitation at present in Eastern *aimags*.

4.2 Sub-project locations

4.2.1 Ulaanbaatar city

87. Ulaanbaatar is the capital and political, business and cultural center of Mongolia. The city lies between north latitude and east longitude. It is bounded by Khentii *aimag* in the east, Tuv *aimag* in the West and in the South, and in the North. The total length of the Ulaanbaatar territory

from north to south is about 30 Kms and from east to west it is about 140 kms and lies at a height of 1350 meters above sea level. Ulaanbaatar has a total land area of 4,704 sq. km (0.3% of the size of the country) and is divided into 9 districts, which are further subdivided into 152 sub-districts (*khoroos*), comprising of micro-districts (*khesegs*).

88. The city has rapidly grown in size over the last decades as a result of rural to urban migration, attracting people seeking education, employment, services and business opportunities. Currently, the city is home to 1.3 million people, almost half of the nation's population of 3 million. The city has been an engine of innovation, job creation and economic development, being at the center of Mongolia's economic growth and responsible for over 60% of national Gross Domestic Product.

89. The city is proud to be a center of attraction and an engine of innovation, job creation and economic development. However, the rapid rate of urbanization also presents various challenges which negatively impact the environment and the livability of the city. Air pollution is severely affecting public health and constitutes one of the biggest challenges, especially in winter, covering the city in a thick layer of smog as a result of the burning of coal. Almost 60% of the population lives in low density peri-urban Ger areas, residents continue to lack access to basic urban services. Inadequate public transportation means that residents endure long and uncomfortable commutes to school, work or elsewhere in the city. Increasing numbers of vehicles on the road causing serious congestion and contributing to air pollution. The Tuul River, the main source of water supply for the city, is heavily polluted by under- and untreated sewage and sullage, damaging to the land and livestock it waters. Solid waste is mostly disposed of in three land fill sites, only one of which is sanitary.

90. Poor urban planning has meant many city development activities have been implemented near the Tuul River and in its watershed including the Selbe River. This has led to the degradation of water quality, exacerbated by pollution (sewage and garbage) from unplanned settlements, particularly in the *Ger* areas. While long term average water quality in the Tuul and the Selbe remain of satisfactory quality but rapidly deteriorates during low flow periods.

4.2.1.1 Projects in Ulaanbaatar city

91. **Table 4.2** provides list of sub-projects in Ulaanbaatar city.

	Table 4.2 List of Subproject in Glaanbaatar						
No	Sub-Project	Location	Infrastructure requirements (additional)				
	components						
Α	Kindergarten	S					
A 1	Kindergartens	under expansion					
1	Kindergarten	UB, Bayangol District,	The expansion will be 2 floor, separate new				
	No.164	4 th khoroo	building in the back yard.				
2	Kindergarten	UB, Bayangol District,	The expansion will be 2 floor, separate new				
	No.88	18 th khoroo	building in the back yard.				
3	Kindergarten	UB, Bayanzurkh	A separate 2 floor new building in the back				
	No.22	District, 1 st khoroo	yard.				
4	Kindergarten	UB, Bayanzurkh	The expansion will be separate new building				
	No.8	District, (16 th khoroo	in the back yard of kindergarten.				
5	Kindergarten	UB, Bayanzurkh	The expansion will be separate 2 floor new				
	No.82	District, 16 th khoroo	building in the back yard.				
6	Kindergarten	UB, Khan-Uul District,	The expansion will be separate 2 floor new				

Table 4.2 List of Subproject in Ulaanbaatar

No	Sub-Project	Location	Infrastructure requirements (additional)
	components		
	No.65	2 nd khoroo	building in the back yard.
7	Kindergarten No.72	UB, Khan-Uul District, 2 nd khoroo	The expansion will be 2 floor separate new building in the back yard.
8	Kindergarten No.84	UB, Songinokhairkhan District. 6 th khoroo	The expansion will be separate building in its premises.
9	Kindergarten No.104	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 12th <i>khoroo</i>	The expansion will be separate building in its premises.
10	Kindergarten	UB, Songinokhairkhan District 14 th khoroo	The expansion will be separate building in its premises
11	Kindergarten	UB, Songinokhairkhan District 15 th khoroo	The expansion will be 2 floor separate new building in its premises
12	Kindergarten	UB Songinokhairkhan	Not connected to central heating electricity
	No.176	District. 31 st khoroo	water and sewage system and has individual
			heat only boiler, holding tank and water well.
			The expansion will be an additional floor on
			the top of building.
13	Kindergarten No.68	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 3 rd <i>khoroo</i>	The expansion will be 2 floor separate new building in the back vard.
14	Kindergarten	UB, Sukhbaatar District,	The expansion will be separate new building
	No.160	3 rd khoroo	in the back yard of kindergarten.
15	Kindergarten	UB, Sukhbaatar District,	The expansion will be 2 floor separate new
	No.17	10 th khoroo	building in the own premises in the left side of
			old building.
A 2	Kindergartens	under new construction	
1	New	UB Bavanzurkh District.	The land allocated for this site currently used
1	kindergarten	24 th khoroo	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers
	kindergarten	24 th khoroo	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms.
2	kindergarten New	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District,	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ²
2	kindergarten New kindergarten	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i>	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ² area situated near the "Sport Comple".
2	kindergarten New kindergarten	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i>	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ² area situated near the "Sport Comple". Access road is available. The area is far away from District Heating Plant water supply and
2	kindergarten New kindergarten	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i>	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ² area situated near the "Sport Comple". Access road is available. The area is far away from District Heating Plant, water supply and sewage system
2	kindergarten New kindergarten	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Songinokhairkhan	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ² area situated near the "Sport Comple". Access road is available. The area is far away from District Heating Plant, water supply and sewage system. District Government owned 300m ² land area
2	kindergarten New kindergarten New kindergarten	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 25 th <i>khoroo</i>	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ² area situated near the "Sport Comple". Access road is available. The area is far away from District Heating Plant, water supply and sewage system. District Government owned 300m ² land area is available. Blueprint is developed. Access
2	kindergarten New kindergarten New kindergarten	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 25 th <i>khoroo</i>	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ² area situated near the "Sport Comple". Access road is available. The area is far away from District Heating Plant, water supply and sewage system. District Government owned 300m ² land area is available. Blueprint is developed. Access road is available.
2 3 B	kindergarten New kindergarten New kindergarten Schools:	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 25 th <i>khoroo</i>	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ² area situated near the "Sport Comple". Access road is available. The area is far away from District Heating Plant, water supply and sewage system. District Government owned 300m ² land area is available. Blueprint is developed. Access road is available.
2 3 <u>B</u> B 1	kindergarten New kindergarten New kindergarten Schools: Schools under	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 25 th <i>khoroo</i> expansion:	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ² area situated near the "Sport Comple". Access road is available. The area is far away from District Heating Plant, water supply and sewage system. District Government owned 300m ² land area is available. Blueprint is developed. Access road is available.
2 3 <u>B</u> 1	kindergarten New kindergarten New kindergarten Schools: Schools under School No.51	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 25 th <i>khoroo</i> expansion: Bayangol District, UB	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ² area situated near the "Sport Comple". Access road is available. The area is far away from District Heating Plant, water supply and sewage system. District Government owned 300m ² land area is available. Blueprint is developed. Access road is available. The expansion will be 3 floor separate building behind the existing school building.
2 3 B B 1 1 2	kindergarten New kindergarten New kindergarten Schools: Schools under School No.51 School No.18	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 25 th <i>khoroo</i> expansion: Bayangol District, UB UB, Khan-Uul District	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ² area situated near the "Sport Comple". Access road is available. The area is far away from District Heating Plant, water supply and sewage system. District Government owned 300m ² land area is available. Blueprint is developed. Access road is available. The expansion will be 3 floor separate building behind the existing school building. The expansion will be additional floor on the roof.
2 3 B 1 1 2 3	kindergarten New kindergarten New kindergarten Schools: Schools under School No.51 School No.18 "Erdmiin	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 25 th <i>khoroo</i> expansion: Bayangol District, UB UB, Khan-Uul District UB, Nalaikh District	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ² area situated near the "Sport Comple". Access road is available. The area is far away from District Heating Plant, water supply and sewage system. District Government owned 300m ² land area is available. Blueprint is developed. Access road is available. The expansion will be 3 floor separate building behind the existing school building. The expansion will be additional floor on the roof. The expansion will be 3 floor separate
2 3 B B 1 1 2 3	kindergarten New kindergarten New kindergarten Schools: Schools under School No.51 School No.18 "Erdmiin Orgil"	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 25 th <i>khoroo</i> expansion: Bayangol District, UB UB, Khan-Uul District UB, Nalaikh District	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ² area situated near the "Sport Comple". Access road is available. The area is far away from District Heating Plant, water supply and sewage system. District Government owned 300m ² land area is available. Blueprint is developed. Access road is available. The expansion will be 3 floor separate building behind the existing school building. The expansion will be 3 floor on the roof. The expansion will be 3 floor separate building with capacity of 640 students, in the
2 3 B B 1 2 3	kindergarten New kindergarten New kindergarten Schools under School No.51 School No.18 "Erdmiin Orgil" Complex	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 25 th <i>khoroo</i> expansion: Bayangol District, UB UB, Khan-Uul District UB, Nalaikh District	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ² area situated near the "Sport Comple". Access road is available. The area is far away from District Heating Plant, water supply and sewage system. District Government owned 300m ² land area is available. Blueprint is developed. Access road is available. The expansion will be 3 floor separate building behind the existing school building. The expansion will be additional floor on the roof. The expansion will be 3 floor separate building with capacity of 640 students, in the school yard.
2 3 B 1 1 2 3 4	kindergarten New kindergarten New kindergarten Schools: Schools under School No.51 School No.18 "Erdmiin Orgil" Complex "Ireedui"	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 25 th <i>khoroo</i> expansion: Bayangol District, UB UB, Khan-Uul District UB, Nalaikh District UB, Songinokhairkhan	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ² area situated near the "Sport Comple". Access road is available. The area is far away from District Heating Plant, water supply and sewage system. District Government owned 300m ² land area is available. Blueprint is developed. Access road is available. The expansion will be 3 floor separate building behind the existing school building. The expansion will be additional floor on the roof. The expansion will be 3 floor separate building with capacity of 640 students, in the school yard. The expansion will be additional floor on the
2 3 B 1 2 3 4	kindergarten New kindergarten New kindergarten Schools: Schools under School No.51 School No.18 "Erdmiin Orgil" Complex "Ireedui" Primary	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 25 th <i>khoroo</i> expansion: Bayangol District, UB UB, Khan-Uul District UB, Nalaikh District UB, Songinokhairkhan District	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ² area situated near the "Sport Comple". Access road is available. The area is far away from District Heating Plant, water supply and sewage system. District Government owned 300m ² land area is available. Blueprint is developed. Access road is available. The expansion will be 3 floor separate building behind the existing school building. The expansion will be additional floor on the roof. The expansion will be 3 floor separate building with capacity of 640 students, in the school yard. The expansion will be additional floor on the roof of building. Has permission of
2 3 <u>B</u> 1 1 2 3 4	kindergarten New kindergarten New kindergarten Schools under School No.51 School No.18 "Erdmiin Orgil" Complex "Ireedui" Primary School	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 25 th <i>khoroo</i> expansion: Bayangol District, UB UB, Khan-Uul District UB, Nalaikh District UB, Songinokhairkhan District	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ² area situated near the "Sport Comple". Access road is available. The area is far away from District Heating Plant, water supply and sewage system. District Government owned 300m ² land area is available. Blueprint is developed. Access road is available. The expansion will be 3 floor separate building behind the existing school building. The expansion will be additional floor on the roof. The expansion will be 3 floor separate building with capacity of 640 students, in the school yard. The expansion will be additional floor on the roof of building. Has permission of Specialized Inspection Agency to add one
2 3 B B 1 1 2 3 4	kindergarten New kindergarten New kindergarten Schools: Schools under School No.51 School No.51 School No.18 "Erdmiin Orgil" Complex "Ireedui" Primary School	24 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i> UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 25 th <i>khoroo</i> expansion: Bayangol District, UB UB, Khan-Uul District UB, Nalaikh District UB, Songinokhairkhan District	by branch of kindergarten # 168 using 4 Gers as classrooms. District Government owned land with 6000m ² area situated near the "Sport Comple". Access road is available. The area is far away from District Heating Plant, water supply and sewage system. District Government owned 300m ² land area is available. Blueprint is developed. Access road is available. The expansion will be 3 floor separate building behind the existing school building. The expansion will be additional floor on the roof. The expansion will be 3 floor separate building with capacity of 640 students, in the school yard. The expansion will be additional floor on the roof of building. Has permission of Specialized Inspection Agency to add one more floor on top.

No	Sub-Project	Location	Infrastructure requirements (additional)
	components		
	Secondary	District	roof of building. Has permission of
	School		Specialized Inspection Agency to add one
			more floor on top. Has permission of
			Specialized Inspection Agency to add one
			more floor on top.
6	School	UB, Songinokhairkhan	The school building has individual heat only
	No.122	District, 22 nd khoroo	boiler for heating, water reservoir for keeping
	(Green		transported water and individual holding tank
	school)		for wastewater, connected to central
			electricity line. The expansion will be 3 floor
			building with capacity of 640 students and has
			new blueprint of Green school.
7	School No.6	UB, Sukhbaatar District	The expansion will be additional floor on the
			roof. Has permission of Specialized
			Inspection Agency to add one more floor on
			top.
B 2	Schools under	new construction :	
1	New school	Songinokhairkhan	The new construction site is situated in the
		District, 7 th khoroo	edge of Ger Khashaa Plot area. The area is
			empty but included in town development plan,
			has no central heating, water supply and
			sewage system infrastructure.

4.2.1.2 Physical Environment in Ulaanbaatar city

92. **Geology.** Geologically the Ulaanbaatar region belongs to the Khentii geosyncline's depression. Ulaanbaatar City is mainly underlain by Cambrian, Devonian, and Carboniferous sandstone, and mudstone. Ulaanbaatar City is located on an alluvial plain. MNET confirmed that in the city, soil is low in permeability and gullying and erosion is visible on steep slopes in the *Ger* areas to the North of the City.

4.2.1.3 Environment in Ulaanbaatar city

93. **Air quality.** Air pollution in Mongolia is severe. Air pollution in the capital Ulaanbaatar surpasses standard levels with the adverse effect on the population's health and well-being as well as environmental balance. A World Bank study states that Particulate Matter (PM) is the largest and relatively most severe air pollution problem in the city. In terms of PM, Ulaanbaatar is "among the most polluted cities in the world. The main sources of air pollution including PM2.5 (fine particulates) are from heating and cooking, traffic and industrial sources such as coal fired power stations. Many of the diesel and petrol-run vehicles are outdated and do not meet environmental and safety standards.

94. **Noise.** WHO²¹ states that guidelines on community noise (not industrial workplace noise, therefore including traffic) should be based on the following:

a. Indoor sound levels, thresholds for guidelines should be based on a combination of

²¹ World Health Organisation (1999) Guidelines on Community Noise. Available at: http://www.who.int/docstore/peh/noise/guidelines2.html

values of 30 dB (average equivalent over 8 hours LAeq) and 45 dB (maximum for an individual noise event).

- b. **Outdoor sound levels** should not exceed 50 dB LAeq to protect the majority of people from being moderately annoyed during the daytime. Most countries in Europe have adopted 40 dB LAeq as the maximum allowable level for new developments.
- c. **Hospital** patients have less ability to cope with stress, the equivalent noise level should not exceed 35 dB LAeq in most rooms in which patients are being treated or observed; and
- d. **Schools** the background sound pressure level should not exceed 35 dB LAeq during teaching sessions.

95. It is clear from the noise measurements in Ulaanbaatar that in the majority of locations, ambient noise exceeds the WHO recommendations for community noise outside. However, with regards to the noise within sensitive receptors such as households, schools and hospitals, the data are of limited value as the distance from the source is not given and measurements are not taken within buildings.

4.2.2 Govi-Altai, Govisumber, Darkhan-Uul, Khuvsgul *aimag*s

	Table 4.3List of subprojects in local aimags				
No	Sub-Project	Location	Infrastructure requirements (additional)		
	components				
Α	Kindergarten	S			
A 1	Kindergartens	under expansion			
1	Kindergarten	Govisumber,	Blueprint is developed. The area is located nearby		
	No.5	Sumber <i>soum</i> , 3rd	main road and surrounded by Ger khashaa plots and		
		bagh.	small services. Access road is available.		
2	Kindergarten	Khuvsgul, Murun	The state inspector's conclusions were issued		
	No.6	soum, 8 th bagh	regarding the quality and condition of the building,		
			and it was determined that it did not meet the		
			requirements for use. Conclusion No. 23.07.028/115		
			dated September 24, 2021. The expansion will be a		
			2-floor building in behind of existing building.		
В	Schools				
B 1	Schools under	expansion:			
1	Khantaishir	Govi-Altai, Altai	The expansion will be a 3-floor building in front of old		
		soum	building.		
B 2	Schools under	new construction:			
1	New school	Darkhan, Mangirt,	The site is included in new development area and no		
		15 th bagh	other buildings besides the new kindergarten close to		
			this site.		

96.	Table 4.3 pr	ovides list of	sub-projects	situated in	the local	<i>aimag</i> s.
-----	--------------	----------------	--------------	-------------	-----------	-----------------

4.3 Human and Economic Development

97. Economic activity in Mongolia has traditionally been based on herding and agriculture. Mongolia has extensive mineral deposits. Copper, coal, molybdenum, tin, tungsten and gold account for a large part of industrial production. Soviet assistance at its height, one-third of GDP, disappeared almost overnight in 1990 and 1991 at the time of the dismantlement of the USSR. The following decade saw Mongolia endure both deep recession due to political inaction and natural disasters, as well as economic growth because of reform-embracing, free-market economics and

extensive privatization of the formerly state-run economy. Severe winters and summer droughts in 2000-2002 resulted in massive livestock die-off and zero or negative GDP growth. This was compounded by falling prices for Mongolia's primary sector exports and widespread opposition to privatization. Growth was 10.6% in 2004 and 5.5% in 2005, largely because of high copper prices and new gold production. Mongolia's economy continues to be heavily influenced by its neighbours. For example, Mongolia purchases 80% of its petroleum products and a substantial amount of electric power from Russia, leaving it vulnerable to price increases. China is Mongolia's chief export partner. Mongolia settled its \$11 billion debt with Russia at the end of 2003 on favourable terms. Mongolia, which joined the World Trade Organization in 1997, seeks to expand its participation and integration into Asian regional economic and trade regimes.

Agriculture and Crops

98. Agricultural sector in Mongolia has been and is still holding a weighty share in the country's economy. The agricultural sector produces over 25 per cent of GDP and 13 per cent of the national hard currency income is generated from exports of products of food and agricultural origin.

99. The agriculture sector therefore remains heavily focused on nomadic animal husbandry with 75% of the land allocated to pasture and cropping only employing 3% of the population. Crops produced in Mongolia include corn, wheat, barley, and potatoes. Animals raised commercially in Mongolia include sheep, goats, cattle, horses, camels, and pigs. They are raised primarily for their meat, although goats are valued for their hair which can be used to produce cashmere.

100. In 2009, 388,122 tonnes of wheat (area harvested: 248,908 ha), 1,844 tonnes of barley (area harvested: 1,460 ha) and 1,512 tonnes of oat (area harvested: 1,416 ha) were produced. Vegetables like tomatoes, carrots, peas, beans, onions and cucumbers are grown in several oases in the South of Mongolia.

101. **Existing Industrial Status.** Main industry in Mongolia constitutes of construction and construction materials; mining (coal, copper, molybdenum, fluorspar, tin, tungsten, gold); oil; food and beverages; processing of animal products, cashmere and natural fibre manufacturing.

4.4 Climate Change Risks in Mongolia

Climate change

102. In order to address the issue of global climate change and its effects on people and the economy, Mongolia affirmed the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC) in 1993 and the Kyoto Protocol in 1999. The Government of Mongolia has taken considerable steps toward the implementation of the UNFCCC, by accomplishing the required commitments such as the Initial National Communication, Technology Needs Assessment and the National Action Plan on Climate Change to address climate change and other legal commitments.

103. In 2007, Mongolia was ranked 96th in the list of CO_{2s} emitting countries, contributing around 0.04% to the global emission²². UNEP²³ states that in Mongolia, the energy sector (including stationary energy, transportation and fugitive emissions) was the largest source of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions comprising 65.4% of total emissions. The second largest source

²² United Nations Statistics Division, Millennium Development Goals Indicators. Available at http://mdgs.un.org/unsd/mdg/SeriesDetail.aspx?srid=749&crid=

²³ United Nations Environment Program (2009) Mongolia: Assessment Report on Climate Change 2009

of GHG emissions was the agricultural sector (41.4%). The report also states that total CO_2 removal was more than total CO_2 emissions in 2006 due to an increase in the area of abandoned lands and a reduction in newly cultivated land. However, by 2020, it is predicted that Mongolia's GHG emissions will be more than 5 times that of 2006.

104. Climate modelling for Mongolia is projecting changes which include increased air temperatures, increased precipitation in some areas and a reduction of water resources in other areas24. Potential evapo-transpiration increase would be higher than precipitation amount increase. Future climate changes are expected to negatively impact Mongolia, mostly in the agricultural and livestock sectors. This in turn will affect the society and economy, meaning climate change adaptation is a significant issue for the country.

4.5 Seismology in Mongolia

105. **Natural disasters.** Natural disasters in Mongolia are mainly caused by forest fires, floods, extreme cold, snowstorms and disease outbreaks. Forest fires accounted for 49% of the disaster events during the period 1990-2000. During this period, floods, disease outbreaks and extreme cold and snowstorms accounted for 11%, 13% and 5%, respectively^{25.} Floods and earthquakes are the natural disasters of potential relevance to the project and thus further discussed below.

106. **Earthquakes.** Mongolia has experienced four major earthquakes (Msk>8) and many more moderate earthquakes (Msk 5.3-7.5) in the last century. The seismic activity in Mongolia is related to its location between the compressive structures associated with the collision of the Indian-Australian plate with the Eurasian plate on the one hand and the extensional structure associated with the Baykal rift system on the other. The historical records (1903 onward) of the seismicity in Mongolia show a high concentration of seismic activity along the Mongolian-Altay and Gobi-Altay ranges and the north-western border with Russia and around Mogod east of Khangai mountain. The multi-organizational Global Seismic Hazard Assessment Program classifies Ulaanbaatar as "low" to "moderate" earthquake risk areas shown in **Figure 4.3**.

²⁴ Ibid.

²⁵ Source: National Center for Emergency, 2002.



Source: Research Center for Astronomy and Geophysics of Mongolian Academy of Science. **Figure 4.3**: **Seismicity in Mongolia from 1900 to 2000**

107. **Flooding.** Localized flooding can be caused in most areas of the country, especially in built-up areas through heavy rain events because of poor surface water drainage. This flooding is ephemeral, and the water subsides rapidly. More than 75% of precipitation in Ulaanbaatar occurs in July and August. Serious floods, mainly caused by the Tuul River, occurred in 1915, 1939, 1959, 1966, 1967, 1971, 1973, 1982 and 2003. In 1966, the Tuul water level reached 3.2 meters with a flow of 1500-1800 cubic meters per second and the flood killed over 100 people.

Major Floods							
Date	Peak discharge	Rainfall [mm]	Meteorologic al cause	Dead and	Major damages		
1966.07.10- 11	1700	103.5	Storm caused rainfall flood	13000 household	239617\$		
1982.08.15- 16	-	44	Storm caused flash flood	87 people died 119 households	91447 \$		
Major Droughts							
Period	Period Areas affected Major damage and counteractions						
1972	72 Whole catchment Livestock loss and hay making						
1999-2002	Whole catchment		Livestock loss a	and hay making			

Table 4.4: Major Flood and Drought Experiences	es in Tuul river basin (Catchment area 49,766
km ²	²)

108. Figure 4.4 shows flood prone areas of the city.



Source: Emergency Management Department of Ulaanbaatar Municipality Figure 4.4: Flood prone areas of Ulaanbaatar

4.6 Ecological Resources

109. Ecological resources of the potentially impacted environment are defined to include the area's flora and fauna, and specially protected areas. The sub-project sites include areas which have very little vegetation or exposed ground which may form habitats for fauna. However, there are a limited number of bird species observable in the Ulaanbaatar city, such as crows and sparrows, common to many urban environments. The project will not encroach on legally protected sites; the closest protected site is the Gorkhi Terelj National Park. This park is outside the city and not within the project's area of influence. There are no rare, threatened, or endangered species within the construction boundaries of the sub-projects.

4.7 Protected areas in Mongolia

110. Mongolia was probably one of the first countries in the world to recognize the importance of conservation. In 1778, the Bogd Khan Mountain, which is located outside Mongolia's capital, was officially designated by the State. The values and the knowledge leading to the establishment of Protected Areas (PAs) have varied throughout the years with the on-going development of scientific knowledge and increasing involvement of stakeholders. To date, Mongolia's PA network consists of 89 Protected Areas covering 17.4% (27.2 million hectares) of the Mongolian territory. The number of PAs has increased drastically over the past two decades following the National Programme on Protected Areas adopted by the Mongolian Parliament (1998) that set the goal of establishing a system of PAs that would cover 30% of the territory before 2015. The number of PAs, for instance, has increased from 71 to 89, which constitutes an increase of 4.5 million hectares just within the last two years. Simultaneously, it is, however, critical to improve the representativeness of ecosystems within the national PA system.

111. The Protected Areas which were established in accordance with the Law on Protected Areas fall into five different categories, subject to their protection and management arrangements.

112. 14 areas of altogether 12.4 million hectares were designated by the Parliament as Strictly Protected Areas (SPAs). These are areas "that represent unique features and characteristics of natural zones, have preserved their original conditions, and are of a special scientific and cultural significance."

113. The second category, National Parks (NPs), includes 30 areas of altogether 11.9 million hectares. These are areas "whose natural original condition is relatively preserved, and which have historical, cultural, scientific and ecological importance". Under the current legal framework both SPAs and NPs fall under the jurisdiction of the National government, i.e., MET, and are thus designated by the Central Parliament, financed through the State budget and managed through Protected Area Administrations (PAA).

114. The third category is Nature Reserves (NRs). To date 31 areas covering 2.8 million hectares of land are designated to "create conditions for protecting, preserving and restoring specific natural features as well as one of any natural resources and wealth".

115. The fourth category, Natural, Cultural and Historical Monuments (NCHMs), encompasses 14 areas covering 125,000 hectares. These are areas of unique natural formations and areas designated to protect historical and cultural monuments. Although designated by the National Parliament, Nature Reserves and Natural, Cultural and Historical Monuments are supposed to be managed and financed by the local governments (*Aimags*). In light of limited public finance for environmental conservation, especially at the local level, the management of these types of PAs tends to be kept at a bare minimum, unless the areas have attracted international projects and programmes.

116. The fifth category of protection includes Local Protected Areas (LPAs) which can be designated by the *Aimag* or *Soum* level Citizens Khural (local Parliament) for protection and conservation purposes independently from the Central Government's administrative body. To date *Soum* and *Aimag* Citizens' Khurals have designed some 937 Local Protected Areas in the last decade – covering nearly 17 million hectares – or over 10% of Mongolia's territory.

117. The first four categories are State PA, designated by the National Parliament, whereas category 5 is a Local PA, designated by *Aimag* or *Soum* Parliament. Management responsibility is with the 29 State Administrations for SPA (cat.1) and NP (cat.2) but given to *Aimag* and *Soum* not only for the Local PA (cat.5), but also for Nature Reserves (cat 3) and Monuments (cat.4). However, *Aimag* and *Soum* often lack capacities and resources for proper management of NRs and NCHMs. Therefore, their management is sometimes supported by international donors, NGOs or the State Administration (especially if they are in proximity to SPAs and NPs)

118. In accordance with the Law on Protected Areas, all Specially Protected Areas may have a Buffer Zone (BZ). The establishment and management of Buffer Zones are regulated by a separate Law on Buffer Zones. It aims to reduce, mitigate and prevent the actual and/or potential adverse impacts experienced in their respective PA by way of (i) increasing local communities' participation in the conservation of protected sites, by (ii) providing livelihood means to local communities and (iii) by ensuring the appropriate use of natural resources. Currently the Government actively advocates the establishment of Buffer Zones around SPAs and NPs. If properly managed the LPAs will in principle offer a good protection and they will also provide for an expansion zone of the Protected Areas. **Table 4.5** lists all protected areas in Mongolia.

Nº	Names of PA	Aimag name	Classificati on	Size	Total size (hectares)
1	Gobi Ikh/B/	Bavankhongor	SPA	927111.8222	963834.9905
2	Alag Khairkhan	Govi-Altai	NP	36723.16831	
3	Gobi Ikh /A/	Govi-Altai, Bayankhongor	SPA	4633299.775	4656395.739
4	Eej Khairkhan	Govi-Altai	NM	23095.9647	7
5	Khukh Serkhi Nuruu	Bayan-Ulgii, Khovd	SPA	75749.75203	242940.3987
6	Chigertein river valley	Bayan-Ulgii	NP	167190.6466	
7	Bogdkhan mountain	Tuv	SPA	41322.27316	41322.27316
8	Khasagt Khairkhan	Govi-Altai	SPA	26760.57436	298073.9928
9	Mongol Els	Govi-Altai	NP	271313.4184	
10	Numrug	Dornod	SPA	320982.1815	320982.1815
11	Dornod Mongol	Dornod	SPA	589905.6506	1453809.886
12	Mongol Daguur /A/		SPA	92880.45414	
13	Mongol Daguur /B/		SPA	15273.1854	
14	Yahi Lake		NR	251217.9575	
15	Ugtam		NR	46022.85092	
16	Toson Khulstai	Dornod, Khentii	NR	458509.7875	
17	Uvs lake	Uvs	SPA	441223.2166	597234.8923
18	Tsagaan Shuwuut		SPA	25537.7004	
19	Turgen mountain		SPA	130473.9754	
20	Tes river		NR		
21	Khan Khukhii	Uvs	NP	221598.2789	713144.2672
22	Hyargas lake		NP	341301.7869	
23	Altan els		SPA	150244.2014	
24	Otgontenger mountain	Zavkhan	SPA	90498.66441	349902.0528
25	Ulaagchin Khar lake	Zavkhan	NP	259403.3884	
26	Tsambagarav	Bayan-Ulgii	NP	113749.2134	928352.2948
27	Altai Tavan Bogd		NP	656106.3865	
28	Siilhem Nuruu /A/		NP	69935.4433	
29	Siilhem Nuruu /B/		NP	77942.5287	
30	Devel aral		NR	10618.72285	
31	Khangain nuruu	Arkhangai, Bayankhongor	NP	906604.5447	1040155.534
32	Khorgo-Terkh Tsagaan lake	Arkhangai	NP	76893.00337	
33	Noyon Khangai		NP	56657.98638	
34	Onon-Balj /A/	Khentii	NP	294079.7835	400466.775
35	Onon-Balj /B/		NP	106386.9926	
36	Khugnu Tarna	Bulgan, Uvurkhangai	NP	84143.05686	84143.05686
37	Dariganga	Sukhbaatar	NP	64547.60536	88788.83834
38	Shiliin Bogd		NM	18136.91995	
39	Khorgiin khundii		NM	6104.313042	
40	Khustain nuruu	Tuv	NP	48400.56794	48400.56794
41	Gobi Gurvan Saikhan	Umnugovi	NP	2697170.845	2697170.845
42	Khan Khentii	Tuy, Selenge, Khentii	SPA	1748103.891	1762660.811

Table 4.5: List of Protected Areas of Mongolia

N≌	Names of PA	Aimag name	Classificati on	Size	Total size (hectares)
43	Undurkhaan uul	Khentii	NP	8820.0	
44	Binderya uul	7	NM	5736.92	
45	Khangal nuur	7	NM	3913.0	
46	Gorhi-Terelj	Tuv	NP	291838.556	
47	Nagalkhaan mountain		NR	1860.721221	
48	Khar us lake	Khovd	NP	852997.2452	935804.6195
49	Mankhan	1	NR	82807.37429	
50	Tarvagatain nuruu	Zavkhan	NP	547629.8987	547629.8987
51	Little Gobi /A/	Umnugovi	SPA	1147812.066	1830429.418
52	Little Gobi /B/	Dornogovi, Umnugovi	SPA	682617.3514	
53	Ikh bogd mountain	Bayankhongor	NP	262855.8119	379164.3547
54	Zag Baidrag river		NP	116308.5428	
55	Tujiin nars	Selenge	NP	70804.71976	70804.71976
56	Orkhon river valley	Arkhangai, Uvurkhangai	NP	92717.98585	103867.05
57	Khuisiin naiman lake	Arkhangai	NM	11149.06413	
58	lkh gazar chuluu	Dundgovi	NR	175906.1387	175906.1387
59	Khuvsgul	Khuvsgul	NP	1175602.174	1206879.379
60	Dayan deerkhiin cave		NM	31277.20524	
61	Ulaan taiga	Khuvsgul	SPA	431694.4634	1534077.778
62	Khoridol Saridag	1 -	SPA	226672.0417	
63	Tengis-Shishged	1	NP	875711.2729	
64	Zed-Khantai- Buteeliin-nuruu	Bulgan	SPA	604265.563	604265.563
65	Myangan Ugalzat	Khovd	NP	303775.0681	303775.0681
66	Bulgan river- Ikh Ongog	Khovd	NP	92743.66388	598840.3653
67	Munkhkhairkhan mountain Uyench		NP	506096.7014	
68	Ikh Nart	Dornogovi	NR	66752.0	66752.0
69	Khar Ymaat	Dornod	NR	50691.0	50691.0

119. **Figure 4.5** provides location of Protected Areas of Mongolia and sub-project sites.



Figure 4.5 Location of Protected Areas of Mongolia and sub-project sites.

120. None of the proposed sub-projects are located inside or near or passing through the designated core and/or buffer zones of national parks, sanctuaries, biosphere reserves, and reserved forests. The nearest Protected Area to the project site is the Bogd Khan Mountain SPA which is situated about at 5-18 km from the proposed UB Schools/Kindergartens site and about 10 km away from kindergartens in Teshig *soum* of Bulgan *aimag*.

121. Zed Khantain Nuruu SPA is situated 10 km away from the kindergartens in Teshig *Soum* of Bulgan *aimag* is one of the largest protected area; covering an area of 604,265.563 ha is an excellent example of ecosystem of the Khuvsgul lake basin and its diverse fauna.

4.8 Environmental Parameters: Air, Ground Water, Soil, Noise Quality

4.8.1 Current Conditions and Major Problems

122. **General Conditions.** The country's environment resources offer great potential for expanding economic opportunities in mining, forestry, animal husbandry and tourism. However, many areas of concern are emerging highlighting the need for integrating comprehensive policies of sustainable development into the national development strategy and most importantly, ensuring effective implementation considering both the economic development and environmental conservation. The priority issues recognized are as follows.

123. **Air Pollution.** Air quality is a significant environmental problem in urban areas of Mongolia, particularly in Ulaanbaatar. Primary sources of air pollution in Ulaanbaatar are three thermal power plants, about 200 small and medium sized heating boilers, about 60,000 traditional Gers and

wooden houses, and over 40,000 automobiles. Topography and meteorology exacerbated ambient air quality conditions in the country, and particularly in Ulaanbaatar. Mountains surround Ulaanbaatar up to 2,250 meters in height inhibited dispersion of pollutants. To compound the situation, a stable atmospheric inversion forms during the winter season. As a result, ambient pollutant concentrations often remained for days or weeks at a time to exceed Mongolian and other international ambient air quality standards. Burning of coal and woods in the households in urban cities has been identified as major sources of air pollution, which affects ambient air quality and human health.

124. **Energy.** During the winter season, three large diesel power plants in Ulaanbaatar release 4.5 million cubic meters of gaseous pollutants, 4.14 tonnes of particulate matter, and 6.76 kilograms of carbon monoxide into the air every hour. The energy sector accounts for around 64% of Mongolia's greenhouse gas emissions. More than 250 steam boilers burn over 400,000 tonnes of coal every year. Gers and wooden houses with manual heating (in which 48% of the city population lives), use over 200,000 tons of coal and more than 160,000 cubic meters of fuel wood each year. For the cold seasons, the atmospheric content of carbon monoxide exceeds the permissible norm by 2-4 times.

125. **Transportation.** Transportation is a major source of air pollution in urban cities. The number of motor vehicles has increased vary rapidly in big cities and settlements in a short period of time. In 1995, it was estimated that over 60% of the vehicles emitted pollutants exceeded the maximum allowable limits.

126. **Industry.** Industrial activities are also one of the major sources of air pollution in Mongolia. As estimated approximately one fourth of greenhouse gas emission is emitted from industrial activities.

127. **Water Pollution.** Water shortage is one of Mongolia's major socio-economic and ecological problems. Though adequate in the north it is clearly a constraint on development in the south and particularly serious in urban areas including Ulaanbaatar, where water supplies are pumped from groundwater.

128. Little care has been taken over water supply and use. Water supply in pasture areas was improved over the period 1960/90 by construction of many wells to provide water to more than 60 percent of the rangeland, but only 40% of the existing 48,000 wells are currently functioning. Most wells drilled during the Soviet era are out of production.

129. Effluent from factories, tanneries, processing plants, households, waste disposal sites and road runoff has polluted the main rivers where people and industry are concentrated, particularly the Tuul, Yuro, Selenge and Orkhon Rivers. Of 102 centralized wastewater treatment plants built only 35 were in operation in 2002.

130. The pollution problem is due not just to domestic waste effluent, but also to the high levels of chromium used in the tannery process.

131. Even there are 5,500 rivers, 9,600 streams, 300 hot springs, 4,000 lakes and 30,000 wells registered in Mongolia, 3,000 rivers and streams had dried up by year 2000 and 1,200 wells are no longer in use because of depletion, deterioration of facilities or abandonment after the nomad's migration to the city. Consequently, the use of water resources is limited, causing water shortage.

132. **Land Degradation.** Causes of land degradation in Mongolia can be divided into two categories: human- induced and natural causes.

133. Natural causes include droughts with frequency of 2-3 years, natural drying, deficit in soil moisture, very thin layer of fertile soil, specifics of mechanical composition of soils, and strong wind in spring and autumn and dust storms.

134. Human causes include effects raised from rapid development of farmland, mining industry, changes in traditional livestock husbandry, and overgrazing, especially around settlement areas and water points.

135. Farmland degradation in Mongolia is one of the serious issues, which should be urgently tackled. A considerable amount of farmland has been degraded or abandoned because of slow action on transferring farmlands to individuals and economic entities for their long-term use or possession. As of today, most of the farmland is out of use and abandoned.

136. Producing over 50% of the country's total exports, mining is one of the rapidly growing and leading industrial activity in Mongolia. Mining is causing substantial soil destruction. No proper rehabilitation measures are being taken by enterprises during or after mining.

137. **Solid Waste Nuisance.** In Mongolia, solid wastes are disposed in the open air near the city. These wastes are scattered about and the disposition for soil to be polluted is becoming remarkable. Particularly, there is a big gap between city enlargement and city planning projects in Ulaanbaatar. Moreover, it doesn't have the good city planning project. There is much household garbage (33.8%), paper (18.9%), and plastics (15.2%) in summer. Ashes occupy no less than 60.2% in winter.

138. In Mongolia, there are no proper wastes treatment facilities. Therefore, the wastes are thrown away across the township. Particularly, Ulaanbaatar city has the serious wastes problem. Now, the proprietary company of public establishment private management and civilian enterprises which were entrusted from the municipal government prefecture are carrying out drawing in and disposal of the wastes of Ulaanbaatar city.

139. Solid wastes generated from factories, commercial establishment, and construction sites are collected by third party agencies. However, the solid wastes generated so much is over a wastes collection trader's interested collection capacity.

140. **Soil Contamination.** Mongolia's tanning industry generates soil pollution due to widespread drainage of chemicals from the leather tanning process, the waste oil from cars and mining process, employment of agricultural chemicals, etc. Utilization of coal is the biggest causality of air pollution. Soil is polluted due to coal handling as well as scattering of ashes on the ground.

141. The number of cars has increased dramatically in recent years in Ulaanbaatar. Petrol stations within the city have risen to about 100 in numbers. Furthermore, there are 10 backlog appliances of coal oil and small car garages numbering hundreds. Many of them are located in the place where drainage arrangements are not fixed. They throw away used oil in the drains leading to oil contaminating the soil. In addition, various medicines, such as disinfectant, insecticide, and agricultural chemicals, medical wastes, architecture scrap woods, etc. are increasing being used to spur productivity and economic growth.

142. In Mongolia, gold mines are being exploited in the northern Orkhon river and the Selenge river by 120 business corporations. These gold ores have high level of Mercury contamination which contributes as a material factor to widespread soil pollution. Moreover, leaching of chemicals

happen during heavy rains from various unscientifically designed waste disposal sites and sewage disposal plants.

143. **Deforestation.** The total remaining forest covers 10.4 million hectares in the north, 2.0 million hectares saxaul forest and 3.6 million hectares of depleted forest, mainly near transport corridors. Statistics on deforestation are confusing but the causes are known to include legal and illegal unsustainable logging, wildfire, insect and disease infestation, animal grazing, and climate change.

144. Through the 1960s to 1990 average official harvest figures were approximately 1,500-2,000 million m³ per annum, very roughly 50% roundwood and 50% fuelwood. In 2002, official figures recorded a harvest of 620 million m³, almost all fuelwoods. Other issues in forest management are the many forest fires and problems of disease control. The periodic infestations in the coniferous forests are natural disasters with serious local impacts.

145. **Desertification.** Mongolia is a country, which experiences serious drought and desertification. More than 40% of the territory is composed of arid and desert areas. There are estimates that 90% of Mongolia's territory is vulnerable to desertification and about 70% is already degraded to varying extents.

146. Desertification is characterized by (i) desertification of vegetation cover, (ii) desiccation of wetland ecosystems and (iii) increase of sand area. Causes of desertification can be divided into natural causes and anthropogenic causes.

147. Among the major cases are mentioned climatic variations which may lead to natural disasters that, through interaction with human factors, will lead to accelerated degradation at local level. For instance, desertification in the Gobi ecological zone is reported as being caused primarily by increasing aridity of climate and grazing impacts associated with livestock. The anthropogenic causes are overgrazing, wind and water erosion of cultivated soils and abandoned farmlands, intentional burning, and vehicle tracks.

148. Loss of Biodiversity. Growing population coupled with urbanization, economic development, and an increasing per capita demand for natural resources, have put enormous pressure on land and natural resources. At the same time, the recent transition from a centrally controlled economy to a free-market economy has opened the country's natural resources to free enterprise and market forces. Increasing economic activity such as mining, land cultivation and crop farming, and the production of wild and domestic animal products for internal consumption and export, have resulted in the disturbance hitherto undisturbed natural areas and the loss of wildlife habitat. Inadequately controlled or illegal hunting, and predator eradication programs also contribute to pressures on wildlife and on the natural balance in many areas.

149. **Climate Change.** During the last 50 years or so, the average annual temperature in Mongolia has increased by 0.7°C. This drop in the average temperature has resulted in a variety of changes including serious impacts on the growth of natural and cultivated plants. The annual growing season in Mongolia lasts for only about 120 days which is not sufficient for the stable growth of plants, and if the growing season becomes shorter, many plant species will be threatened with extinction and this condition will pose a threat to the survival of many herbivores.

150. **Desertification.** Desertification deteriorates the environment and reduces its biological resources. It worsens the environment and conditions for the normal propagation of plants, hence reducing resources for rare animals and plants in the desert and desert-steppe zones.

151. **Harvesting.** Nomadic herdsmen and urban Mongolians utilize wildlife in a variety of ways, including direct use of meat, skins, and other animal products. Other activities include commercial marketing of skins, commercial marketing of fish and fish meat, large-scale harvest of gazelles for the commercial market (till mid-1990s), and sport hunting of game and trophy species by Mongolian and foreign sportsmen.

152. **Industrialization.** Since the 1960s, the increasing use of energy, construction of new power stations, and the intensive use of strip-mining methods have seriously been contributing to the deterioration of the habitats of various species.

4.8.2 Monitoring of Air, Noise, Soil and Water along the project location

153. The establishment of a baseline for environmental monitoring is to determine trends in the quality of ambient air, water, ambient noise, and soil and how that quality is affected by the release of contaminants, other anthropogenic activities, and/or by waste treatment operations (impact monitoring). Environment monitoring needs to be carried out to estimate nutrient or pollutant fluxes discharged in atmosphere or ground waters or lakes or to the land across project and nearby areas. Monitoring is done to determine the quality of the ambient Environment before start of any kind of project related activities, as it provides a means of comparison with impact monitoring. It will be also used simply to check whether any unexpected change is occurring in otherwise pristine conditions. The National Agency for Meteorology, Hydrology and Environmental Monitoring (NAMEM) is responsible for environmental monitoring of water, air, acid deposition, soil, environmental radiation, dust-deposition and Sulphur gases to control the environmental quality. The laboratories in main cities make permanent measurements on air, water, soil quality and radiation level, meanwhile, control waste sources of pollution from such power plants and vehicles; carries necessary monitoring activities on environmental assessment; control industry wastes in cooperation with other environmental controlling organizations.

154. **Table 4.6** shows the types and responsibility of NAMEM and its *Aimag* level Departments of Hydrology, Meteorology and Environmental Monitoring for environmental monitoring.

U	U
Monitoring types	Site
Air quality in urban area /SO2, NOx, CO, O3, HC, PM10, PM2.5/	35 points
Acid rain /NH4, SO2, HCI, HNO3, NH3/	2 points
Greenhouse gas monitoring	1 laboratory
Sand /yellow/ dust storm observation /To define dust PM10, PM 2.5 dispersion in horizontal and vertical direction/	9 stations
Water quality	
Water quality /91 rivers, 16 lakes pH, EC, O2, etc./	188 points
Gray water monitoring /5 in Ulaanbaatar city and 28 in the countryside/	33 water cleaning facility
Soil quality in urban areas	340 points
Environmental radiation monitoring	35 points

 Table 4.6: NANEM's main monitoring responsibilities for Mongolia

Source: Introduction on National Agency for Meteorology and Environmental Monitoring, MET, 2016

155. **Ambient Noise.** Ambient noise can seriously harm human health and interfere with people's daily activities at school, at work, at home and during leisure time. The main health risks of noise identified by the World Health Organisation (WHO) are - pain and hearing fatigue, hearing impairment including tinnitus, annoyance, interference with social behaviour (aggressiveness, protest and helplessness) and speech communication, sleep disturbance and all its consequences on a long and short term basis, cardiovascular effects, hormonal responses (stress hormones) and

their possible consequences on human metabolism (nutrition) and immune system, and poor performance at work and school.

156. In project sites out of Ulaanbaatar city, in *aimags* there is no estimation about noise measurement. Allowable level of vibration caused by noise according to the "Standard of Mongolia MNS5002-2000" which was renewed in 2000 was normalized and set at the factory levels. At all other sectors, the standard is set as being in compliance with the standard of its technological safety procedure.

157. Noise pollution estimation of Ulaanbaatar city has been done according to the complex assessment of urban development in 2000 (**Figure 4.6**).



Figure 4.6. Noise pollution estimation of Ulaanbaatar city

Source: Journal published by Eurasian Union of Scientists, "International Conference on Science and Practice" March 2016.

158. To identify influence of noise pollution for the ecological assessment of the urban territory, the research work has dominantly used the comparison method and noise has been measured at the 2 objects of Ulaanbaatar city at the railway until the train passed and for 30 minutes on the highway according to the Standard of Mongolia MNS 5003-2000 using SLM 8925 tool at 12 points with 100 m intervals. Noise estimation (shown in **Table 4.7** below) has been set pursuant to the complex assessment of urban development and the Standard of Mongolia MNS 5002-2000.

#	Estimation	Noise level guideline of World Bank EHS Guideline* Equivalent Value		Complex estimation of
				Mongolia**
1	Residential; Institutional; educational	55 db	45 db	<60 db

Table 4.7: Noise estimation

2	Industrial; commercial	70 db	.70 db	60-80 db			
*Sour	*Source: General EHS Guideline of WB and Noise volume has been measured by Eurasian Union of Scientists. 2016						

**Source: Journal published by Eurasian Union of Scientists, "International Conference on Science and Practice" March 2016.

159. Noise volume has been identified by Eurasian Union of Scientists at 12 points near to railway and highway where loudest noise is caused in Ulaanbaatar city using above estimation. The result of that estimation explained in following **Table 4.8**.

No	Places measured	No	Evaluation			
NO	Flaces measured	Minimum	Maximum	Average	Evaluation	
	Ler	ngth which becam	ne distant from the	e railway		
1	At the railway	70.8	101	85.9	Unsuitable	
2	100 m from the railway	68.4	98.3	83.35	Unsuitable	
3	300 m from the railway	66.8	96.2	81.5	Unsuitable	
4	400 m from the railway	60	85.2	72.6	Limited suitable	
5	500 m from the railway	58	79.1	68.55	Limited suitable	
6	600 m from the railway	50.4	62.2	56.3	Suitable	
		Н	ighway			
7	On the highway	74	96.7	85.4	Unsuitable	
8	100 m	46.5	81.5	64	Limited suitable	
9	200 m	40	76.6	58.3	Suitable	
10	300 m	40	59.9	49.95	Suitable	
11	400m	40	55.3	47.65	Suitable	
12	500m	40	51.4	45.7	Suitable	

Table 4.8: Result of noise estimation

Source: Data of noise volume measured by Eurasian Union of Scientists, 2016

160. In 2000, 4 estimation zones of noise have been categorized for the urban planning of the urban territory according to the "Complex assessment or urban development" and noise estimation research has been conducted rarely since this research.

161. According to the research work done by Eurasian Union of Scientists, construction area of the centre of Ulaanbaatar city has extreme noise, 41.8 percent of all settled area has too much or great noise, 36.9 percent has an average noise and 21.3 percent has low estimation. Moreover, there is an estimation that it was 81.5-85.9 db(A) or unsuitable in the distance up to 300 m from the railway, 68.55-72.6 db(A) or limited suitable in the distance of 300-500 m, 56.3 db(A) or suitable in 500-600 m distance.

162. But it has been estimated that 64 db(A) or limited suitable was in the distance up to 100 m from the central highway of the city and 45.7-58.3 db(A) or suitable was in 100-500 m distance.

163. As described in the urban planning and construction norm, it has been determined that settled zone will be planned in the distance not less than 100 m from railway and further, it is required to plan to be in distance not less than 300 m from railway and 100 m from highway.

164. Noise measurements were made by the Central Laboratory of MNET at 14 locations using mobile equipment. Ambient noise levels throughout the city centre are consistent with little fluctuations (**Table 4.9**). Average noise levels comply with Mongolian standards (the Standard of Mongolia. Sorting code 13.100. Occupational safety and hygiene. General requirement for the measurement of noise. MNS 5003-2000), but periodically exceed the standards especially along transport corridors, as traffic is a major source of noise in the urban area along with construction noise. These data are further supported by monitoring for a domestic EIA report which observed

noise levels in the city at 62 dB at the curbside in peak hour traffic, dropping slightly to 61 dBA at the wall of the closest building at ground level. This figure reduces to 59 dB at 4 meters above ground.

No.	Monitoring point	2009 average (db(A))	2010 average (db(A))
1	Tolgoit	53.7	49
2	Devshil	56.7	No Data
3	Yarmag	56.5	49.25
4	Bayankhoshuu	54.5	50.25
5	Zuragt	57	No data
6	3rd Hospital	56.4	No data
7	Tsengeldeh	55.8	No data
8	Duuri	59	No data
9	4th school	61.3	No data
10	17th school	57.2	No data
11	Ulaankhuaran	53.2	59
12	Amgalan	52.5	51.75
13	Sansar	55.6	57.5
14	5 buudal	No Data	55.75
Mongo	olian National Noise Standa	rds: MNS 2007-4585 allowable li	mits: daytime is 60 dBA, night is 45 dBA.

Table 4.9: Noise Measurements in Ulaanbaatar

Night is 10pm-6am according to the Act on Labor.

1. 2009 based on 5 months (morning and evening) data

2. 2010 based on 2 months morning and evening data

Source: Central Laboratory of MET, 2010.

Remark:

165. **Air Quality.** Air quality is a significant environmental problem in urban areas of Mongolia, particularly in Ulaanbaatar. Primary sources of air pollution in Ulaanbaatar are three thermal power plants, more than 1,000 small and medium sized heating boilers, about 130,000 traditional Gers and wooden houses, and over 190,000 four-wheel combustible driven vehicles. Topography and meteorology exacerbated ambient air quality conditions in the country, and particularly in Ulaanbaatar. Mountains surround Ulaanbaatar up to 2,250 meters in height inhibited dispersion of pollutants. To compound the situation, a stable atmospheric inversion forms during the winter season. As a result, ambient pollutant concentrations often remained for days or weeks at a time to exceed Mongolian and other international ambient air quality standards. Burning of coal and woods in the households in urban cities has been identified as major sources of air pollution, which affects ambient air quality and human health.

166. **Energy.** During the winter season, three large diesel power plants in Ulaanbaatar release 4.5 million cubic meters of gaseous pollutants, 4.14 tons of particulate matter, and 6.76 kilograms of carbon monoxide into the air every hour. The energy sector accounts for around 64% of Mongolia's greenhouse gas emissions. More than 250 steam boilers burn over 400,000 tons of coal every year. Gers and wooden houses with manual heating (in which 48% of the city population lives), use over 600,000 tons of coal and more than 160,000 cubic meters of fuel wood each year. For the cold seasons, the atmospheric content of carbon monoxide exceeds the permissible norm by 2-4 times.

167. **Transportation.** Transportation is a major source of air pollution in urban cities. The number of motor vehicles has increased vary rapidly in big cities and settlements in a short period of time. In 1995, it was estimated that over 60% of the vehicles emitted pollutants exceeded the maximum allowable limits.

168. **Industry.** Industrial activities are also one of the major sources of air pollution in Mongolia. As estimated approximately one fourth of greenhouse gas emission is emitted from industrial activities.

169. The following **Table 4.10** shows the results for Air Quality monitoring or spot sampling measurement of sulfur dioxide and nitrogen dioxide at various points along the proposed Schools/Kindergarten are within the permissible limits prescribed by the Department for Hydro Meteorology and Environmental Monitoring of MET for project involved *aimags* and cities.

170. Because of lack of unified data, it was used several references as cited in the source reference. It can be shown that no parameters surpassed the maximum value established, but for the daily mean indexes; specially, in the household areas is higher with maximum values in 2014-2016 December measurement.

Name of monitoring point	Date of sampling	Time of sampling	SO ₂ mg/m ³	NO ₂ mg/m ³
Murup Source of Khuwarul aimag	2016.12.26	21:44-22:04	24	64
Murun Soum of Knuvsgul annag	2017.01.27	20:20-20:40	27	71
Sumber Sour of Covieumber	2014	average	1	18
	2015	average	7	14
Aimay	2016	average	9	26
	2015	January	118	62
Ulaanbaatar city	2016	January	124	75
	2017	January	98	78
Standard M	50	50		
WHO Ambient Air Quality Guideling of	50	40		

Table 4.10:Spot sampling measurement of sulphur dioxide and nitrogen dioxide in
project involving *aimag*s in 2014-2017

Source: Monitoring result of Environmental Monitoring Laboratories of department of Hydrology, Meteorology and Environmental Monitoring in Bayankhongor, Bulgan, Dornod, Govisumber, Orkhon *aimags*, 2016.

171. Concentrated road traffic or presence of air polluting industries in the area can result in a significant decline in air quality. Since most of the schools and kindergartens located in several *khoroos*, the Ambient Air Quality measurements along the project locations are within the limits of National Ambient Air Quality Standards. Particulate Matter (PM2.5)²⁶ is produced by combustion, including vehicle exhaust, and by chemical reactions between gases such as Sulphur dioxide, nitrogen oxides, and volatile organic compounds. Adverse health effects from breathing air with a high PM2.5 concentration include premature death, increased respiratory symptoms and disease, chronic bronchitis, and decreased lung function particularly for individuals with asthma.

172. The National Air Quality Office operates a network of 11 air quality monitoring stations situated in Ulaanbaatar. Data are collected and coordinated by the National Air Quality Office.

173. Further measurements at monitoring stations conducted in June 2008 (under World Bank's Air Monitoring and Health Impact Baseline Study) give even higher PM10 concentration levels. Recorded levels exceeded the Mongolian air quality standard (100 μ g/m³), World Health Organization (WHO) guideline value10 (50 μ g/m³ 24 hour mean PM10) and the European limit

²⁶ Fine Particulate Matter with a diameter smaller than 2.5 microns. (Human hair diameters range from 40 to 120 microns.)

value (40 μ g/m³). In addition, extremely high concentrations of PM were found at the mobile PM stations under World Bank's Air Monitoring and Health Impact Baseline Study in the Ger areas. Mostly during winter months, some days recorded levels of up to 4000 μ g/m³, although the report states that this value should be revised down by 40%¹¹ due to interference in the results by the relative humidity at the time of sampling.

174. More recent data of annual average air quality of a*imags* for 2013-2015 given in Figure **4.9**. The data show the annual average estimation of sulfur dioxide comparing with Mongolian standard, that presented to Parliament Standing Committee by the Central Laboratory of MET.





4.8.2.3 Surface and Ground Water

175. The results of water analysis (**Table 4.11**) shows level of indicators of water quality in rivers passing nearby project areas.

River Location	рН	SS	DO	BOD ₅	NH_4^+	PO4 ⁻³	SO ₄ -2
	[-]	[mg/l]	[mg/l]	[mg/l]	[mg/l]	[mg/l]	[mg/l]
Selbe River in Ulaanbaatar city	8.1	30.9	9.4	2.9	0.3	0.02	24.6
Tuul river in Ulaanbaatar city	7.63	18.7	1.6	3.6	0.4	0.1	7.8
MON standard for ambient water quality (MNS	6.5-8.5	-	6.4	3.0	0.5	0.1	100
4586-1998)							
Indicative Values for Treated Sanitary Sewage	6.0-9.0	50	125	30	10	2	-
Discharges in the WB EHS guideline.							

Source: Data from analysing by Environmental monitoring laboratory of Ulaanbaatar city, 2012-2016.

Remark: The EHS guideline of WB explains that discharges of process wastewater, sanitary wastewater, wastewater from utility operations or stormwater to surface water should not result in contaminant concentrations in excess of local ambient water quality criteria or, in the absence of local criteria, other sources of ambient water quality.

176. Water quality results by *Aimags*' Departments for Meteorology and Environmental Monitoring show the ground water has high amount of hardness. However, all other parameters such as copper, manganese, sulphate, nitrate, fluoride, phenolic compounds as C6H5OH, mercury, cadmium, selenium, arsenic, cyanide, lead, zinc, anionic detergents, chromium, mineral oil, alkalinity, aluminium and boron are found within permissible limits. Both sources of water -

ground water through borewells and/or surface water supplied through city water supply are safe for consumption.

177. **Soil Analysis.** A soil test chemically extracts and measures the elements essential to plant nutrition. It also measures soil acidity and pH. These factors are indicators of nutrient availability, and the potential of the soil to produce crops and presence of metals like chromium, cadmium, copper etc. before beginning of any project related activities. **Table 4.12** gives the site test results for soil analysis.

Devenuetore W/D EUS quidelines MNS Detectable Altai Covieumber								
Parameters	WB ERS guidelines	limits	Altai	Govisumber				
PH	-	-	-	8.24				
Moisture (%)	-	-	-	1.01				
Sulphates (SO ₄)	-	-	-	169.9				
(mg/kg)								
Ammonium nitrate (NH ₄	-	-	-	18.8				
)								
Total Organic Matter	-	-	-	1.51				
(%)								
Nitrogen (NO ₃) mg/kg	-	-	-	22.5				
Phosphorus (P ₂ 0 ₅)	-	-	-	21.3				
(mg/kg)								
Chlorides (%)	-	-	0.0	0.0				
Lead (Pb) (mg/kg)	-	100	14.3	9.9				
Zink (Zn) (mg/kg)	-	300	126.0	117.8				
Cuprum (Cu) (mg/kg)	-	100	29.1	27.98				
		800	36.2	12.0				
	-	000	30.2	12.0				
iviercury(Hg) (mg/kg)	-	2.0	0.0	0.0				
Chromium (Cr) (mg/kg)	-	150	134.3	0.0				

Table 4.12: Results of Soil Analysis Monitoring

Source: Data of measurement by Laboratories of Departments for Meteorology and Environmental Monitoring of Govi-Altai, Govisumber *aimags*. 2016.

Note: No estimation in the EHS guideline, it concerns contaminated land.

178. Other metals like zinc, copper, chromium, cadmium, nickel, lead are found below detectable limits signifies the low productivity of soil with no traces of any pollutants before start of project activities. **Table 4.13** gives locations for soil monitoring points that were studied by Institute of Geography, while preparing Report of Ulaanbaatar soil pollution study, 2014. **Figure 4.10** depicts the following locations on a geographical map of Ulaanbaatar city.

No.	Name of Places	Longitude (ddd.ddddd)	Altitude N(dd.ddddd)
1	Sonsgolon road	106.78545	47.89442
2	Termo Power Plant-4	106.81353	47.90423
3	Railway Station	106.88237	47.90941
4	10 th microdistrict, Tsetsuukh market	106.86243	47.91202
5	Termo Power Plant-2	106.83003	47.90110
6	Khar Khorin Market	106.83812	47.90908
7	School #113	106.86662	47.92515
8	Sambalkhundev Market in 3&4 th microdistrict	106.86639	47.93749
9	Bulag valley in Gachuurt	107.11208	47.92276
10	Back side entrance of Naran Tuul market	106.95076	47.91119
11	Sky resort village	107.04767	47.88998

No.	Name of Places	Longitude (ddd.ddddd)	Altitude N(dd.ddddd)
12	Chuluun oyoo	106,97914	47,90636
13	Amgalan Railway station	107 01292	47 90342
14	Bayanzurkh traffic checking point	107 07044	47 88778
15	Landfill of Khonkhor village	107 15969	47 80360
16	Dari Ekh landfill	106 94604	47.00000
17	Front side of Da Khuree market	107.00502	47 92830
18	Front side of Tsaiz market	106 95571	47.02000
19	Landfill in Tsagaan dayaa	106.99215	47.96012
20	Baast river in Nalaikh	107 26919	47 78727
21	Waste collecting point near Gorodok village	107.40025	47 76633
22	Landfill of Nalaikh district	107 27438	47 75422
23	Urgakh Naran microdistrict	107.107.36	47 87333
20	Glass factory of Nalaikh	107.25539	47.07000
25	South side of Emeelt	106 59183	47.88569
26	Songino resort center	106.69173	47.00000
20	Village in the north side of Songino resort	106.68717	47.88612
28	Near the office of 32 nd Khoroo of Songinokhairkhan district	106.63995	47.00012
20	Fastern valley of Takhilt	106 71414	47.92900
30	Bayankhoshuu east vallev	106.81660	48 01138
31	Orbit microdistrict in Bayangol	106 73847	47 92199
32	End of Lindur Deni	106.83030	47.02100
33	End stop of buses in Orbit	106 76452	47.91306
34	Waste collecting point in Selkh	106.76432	48 02210
35	Selbe resort	106.02810	48.01472
36	Western cross road	106.89/36	40.01472
37	Green lake	106.00400	47.93107
38	Dambadariaa	106.93302	47 97853
39	Institute of Geography	106.92935	47.92811
40	Morin davaa	106.68692	47.83161
41	Bukhug river	106 56861	47 74761
42	8 th khoroo of Khan Uul District, Yarmad	106 79658	47 86892
43	Leader Factory	106 89352	47 89256
44	Sens hill	106.63200	47 77431
45		106 71208	47 78158
46	Dalan Davkhar	106 88211	47 94104
47	Flood protection channel near Bumbugur market	106 89843	47 91958
48	Central post	106 91433	47 91685
49	TV Broadcasting Centre	106 89823	47 93835
50	Deniiin Myanga	106 91151	47 94256
51	Khailaast	106 91439	47 94975
52	6 Buudal	106.91670	47,95944
53	7 Buudal	106.91758	47.97172
54	Thermal Plant in Uliastai	107.03403	47,91979
55	School number 34 in Yarmad	106.83103	47.87367
56	Khonkhor	107.18623	47.81302
57	Chingeltei bulag, Nargui well	106.88196	47.98588
58	Sogoot 57 th street in Khailaast	106.89224	47,96446
59	Zaisan	106.91494	47.88690
60	East cross road	106.94289	47.91878
61	Selbe river near State Registration Center	106.92936	47.93713
62	Tsagaan Davaa	106,97039	47,94201
63	Mamba Datsan, FM-104.5	106.93961	47.93000
No.	Name of Places	Longitude	Altitude
-----	---------------------------------------	-------------	-------------
		(ddd.ddddd)	N(dd.ddddd)
64	Khailaast	106.87022	47.97377
65	Denj 1000	106.88480	47.95497
66	Cross road in Bayankhoshuu	106.82913	47.95630
67	Ulaanchuluut landfill	106.79127	47.94794
68	Train repair center	106.90896	47.90668
69	Khargia WWTP	106.89016	47.89048
70	Dari-Ekh, Selbe auto repair centre	106.93406	47.95339
71	Gants Khudag	106.96797	47.96194
72	Shar Khad auto repair centre	106.99222	47.92419
73	Khujir Bulan	107.08489	47.92486
74	Gachuurt drinking water supply centre	107.19328	47.89939
75	Uguumur auto market	106.95728	47.90844
76	100 ail road	106.92737	47.93139

Source: Institute of Geography, Report of Ulaanbaatar soil pollution study, 2014



Figure 4.10: Map of soil pollution in Ulaanbaatar city

Source: Institute of Geography, Report of Ulaanbaatar soil pollution study, 2014

179. Environmental baseline standards for air, water, soil and noise are attached as **Annexure 4.** A regular monitoring of all above parameters during construction, operation, and maintenance phase will further describe the pollutants loads in the ambient environmental conditions. This tracking will lead to an effective use of Environment Management and Monitoring Plan in ensuring compliance with design parameters.

4.9 Existing and associated facilities

180. The planned schools and kindergartens by the project are all located in the state-owned lands registered under each school and kindergarten, and they will be connected to the existing infrastructures of the municipal distribution network of Ulaanbaatar city and Murun city. The legal due diligence status of each of project sites (additional financing) to the existing and associated facilities is described in **table 4.14**.

Permis	sion status by a	uthorized serv	vice providers o	of existing fac	ilities*	
Names of Project sites	Communicatio n/ Information & Communicatio n National Network	Electricity supply/UB Electricity Distribution Network	Heating supply /UB Heating Network	Water supply/wate r supply and wastewater service (USUG)	Wastewate r collection/ (USUG)	Remarks
"Ireedui" Secondary school. SHD, UB.	Permission No. THB665/2020	Permission No. 15/03715/2 0	Permission No.291/2020	Permission No. 729/20	Permission No. 729/20	Proposal reviewed and approved. No negative impact to associated facilities
"Ireedui" Primary school. SHD, UB.	Permission No. THB664/2020	Permission No. 15/03714/2 0	Permission No.291/2020	Permission No. 728/20	Permission No. 728/20	Proposal reviewed and approved. No negative impact to associated facilities
School No. 6. SBD, UB.	Permission No. THB666/2020	Permission No. 15/03730/2 0	Permission No.285/2020	Permission No. 587/20	Permission No. 587/20	Proposal reviewed and approved. No negative impact to associated facilities
Kindergarte n No.82. BZD, UB.	Permission No. THB614/2020	Permission No. 15/05066/2 0	Permission No.402/2020	Permission No. 859/20	Permission No. 859/20	Proposal reviewed and approved. No negative impact to associated facilities
Kindergarte n No.88. BGD, UB.	Permission No. THB613/2020	Permission No. 15/04331/2 0	Permission No.0032/202 0	Permission No. 842/20	Permission No. 842/20	Proposal reviewed and approved. No negative impact to associated facilities
Kindergarte n No.104. SHD, UB.	Permission No. THB502/2020	Permission No. 15/04462/2 0	Permission No.356/2020	Permission No. 650/20	Permission No. 650/20	Proposal reviewed and approved. No negative impact to associated facilities
Kindergarte n No.160.	Permission No. THB508/2020	Permission No.	Permission No.219/2020	Permission No. 608/20	Permission No. 608/20	Proposal reviewed and

Table 4.14. Legal due diligence status of associated facilities for the project proposed (additional
financing) kindergarten and school buildings

SBD, UB.		15/03207/2 0				approved. No negative impact to associated facilities
A new kindergarte n No.168. BZD, UB.	Permission No. THB726/2020	Permission No. 15/05361/2 0	Advised other source due to remote location	Advised autonomou s source of water supply or delivery of water due to remote location	Advised small scale wastewate r treatment plant due to remote location	Permitted to connect to communication and electricity services. No impact to these facilities. For heating/water supply/wastewate r- autonomous system will be installed.
Kindergarte n No. 6. Murun, Khuvsgul Province	Permission No. 2022/08/15 by Khuvsgul Branch of CICNN	Permission No. 215/2022 by Khuvsgul Erchim khuch LLC	Permission No. 2022/11 by "Khuvsgul Heating Station" Shareholding	Permission No. 11 by "Khuvsgul water service" company	Permission No. 11 by "Khuvsgul water service" company	Proposal reviewed and approved for connection. No negative impact to associated facilities

Remarks:*- copies of permissions issued by authorized associated facilities (in Mongolian) for project sites are in the annexure-7.

During the construction period, a construction contractor will be responsible for waste management, and it needs to establish a contract with local authority for collection and transportation of household and construction and demolition waste to the government designated dump sites according to the Law of Mongolia on Waste Management (2017). During the operation period, kindergarten/school management is responsible for contracting with local authorities for waste management services to dispose of the waste in the designated dump sites. As there is not expected any toxic and hazardous waste during the construction period, no harm will be foreseen to the operation of existing waste management facilities in project sites.

Infrastructure facilities that are integral parts of the city-wide centralized networks and designed to provide the whole Ulaanbaatar city and Murun city with utility services. These include the main ground water wells and central pumping stations for the Ulaanbaatar city and Murun city, central wastewater treatment plant of Ulaanbaatar city and Murun city, Power Plants No.3 and No.4 and central landfill sites of the Ulaanbaatar city and Murun city. District and aimag USUGs (Water supply and distribution authority of Mongolia), Heating Distribution Network SOE, and Heating Distribution are in charge of maintenance and connection of these networks. Infrastructure connection of each school and kindergarten building is summarized in the current chapter and suggested infrastructure for subprojects and the tables 6.2 – 6.4, table A1.3 Physical features, table A1.4 other physical distances and table A1.5 School receptors. During implementation, the project will be monitoring whether the project works trigger any unanticipated impacts on existing and associated facilities through the Environmental Monitoring Reports.

4.10 Socio-Economic Development

181. **Population.** The population of Ulaanbaatar, the capital city of Mongolia, has been increasing rapidly from 0.78 million (Mongolia: 2.40 million) in 2000 to 1.08 million (Mongolia: 2.67 million) in 2008 with an average annual growth rate of 2.8%. This rapid increase of population is chiefly due to a rapid migration from rural area to urban area. The average number of populations migrated in the past 10 years is estimated at around 20,000 per year which cause the expansion of Ger area surrounding the apartment area of Ulaanbaatar. At present Ulaanbaatar accounts for

40% of the total population of Mongolia. The projected urban population of 2030 is 1.87 million or 1.7 times larger than the population in 2008.

182. **Economy.** The economy of Mongolia has grown rapidly at average annual growth of around 5.6% and transition to market economy has proceeded at remarkable speed as well. The economic growth has been pushed by increased international commodity price as well as expansion of copper output until the global financial crisis occurred in 2008. Meanwhile, the regional domestic production of Ulaanbaatar City accounts for around 56% of the National gross domestic production (GDP), as the city has historically been the centre of the economy as well as of the administration.

183. In Mongolia, mining and quarrying are the biggest financial contributors to industrial output (58%) with manufacturing second (32%). The Tavan Tolgoi area is the world's largest untapped coking coal deposit. Manufacturing includes metals (such as copper and steel foundries) as well as woollen products such as cashmere and carpets. Ulaanbaatar has some manufacturing plants but is also the base for offices of international and national companies; because of the current infrastructure constraints, it is considered difficult to operate a significant and effective business outside Ulaanbaatar.

184. **Unemployment.** According to the Mongolian Statistical Yearbook 2009, the 'Registered Unemployment Rate' for Ulaanbaatar is 1.6%. However, this is the rate of people that are officially registered unemployed. The book also provides an 'unemployment rate' which is 14% for the city, derived from a new methodology of calculation based on the results of a Labor Force Survey.

185. **Poverty.** The Mongolian Statistical Yearbook 2009 provides background data on poverty levels within the city. The Poverty Headcount Index is a widely used poverty measure, giving the percentage of the population whose consumption is below the poverty line. For Ulaanbaatar, this rate is 36.7% in 2009, which compares to 38.7% nationally. This increases to over 49% in rural areas, showing that relatively speaking, Ulaanbaatar is wealthier than the rural areas. This translates to an average household income of nearly 455,000 MNT in urban areas, and 332,000 MNT in rural areas.

186. The following **Table 4.15** gives overview of selected key development indicators gives a first indication of the poverty situation in Mongolia:

Table 4.15: Key Development indicators in Mongolia						
Key Development Indicators	Measure	Year				
Total population	2.7 million	2010				
% under 15	27.3	2010				
Population Distribution (% Rural)	36.7	2010				
Human Development Index (HDI)	0.653	2011				
HDI Rank. out of 187 countries	110	2011				
Gini Coefficient	36.5	2000-2011				
Total Health Expenditure (% of GDP) (USA 15.4%.	3.0	2010				
Germany 9.1%. Russia 5.4%)						
Government spending on health as % of total	8.7	2010				
Government expenditure						
Gross National Income (GNI) per Capita USD	2,247	2010				
GDP per Capita. USD	3,522	2009				
Literacy rate (15+)	.97.8%	2010				
Multi-dimensional poverty index	0.065	2005				
% population with improved drinking water access	51	2011				
Life Expectancy at Birth	68.5	2011				

Table 4.15: Key Development Indicators in Mongolia

Key Development Indicators	Measure	Year
Infant Mortality Rate (<5)	19.4 per 1.000 live births	2010
Maternal Mortality Rate	45.5 per 10.000 live births	2010

Sources: UNDP 2011. WHO CHIPS 2011. Health indicators. 2010. Human Development report. 2011. WHO / UNICEF (2012)

187. The analysis of the first Living Standard Measurement Survey (LSMS) in 1996 provided a profile of the poor and identified the most vulnerable groups in the country. More than 800,000 people or 36 % of the population were reported as poor. The assessment showed that female-headed households had a higher incidence of poverty as do unemployed and rural households owning less than 15 animals. Urban poverty is marginally higher than rural poverty particularly in provincial capitals that have been hard hit by the closing of state enterprises. These observations are most probably still valid, although no new data exist.

188. Income comes from different sources and varies according to location as shown in **Table 4.16**.

Types of income	National	Ulaanbaatar	Aimag	Soum	Rural
	average (%)	(%)	centers (%)	centers	areas
				(%)	(%)
Income Total	. 100.0	100.0	.100.0	100.0	100.0
Monetary Income Total	91.5	97.0	94.6	89.4	70.9
Wages and salaries	.48.5	.57.0	52.5	49.3	.13.8
Pensions. allowances and	20.0	18.3	22.2	20.5	22.1
compensation*					
Income from livestock products	. 5.3	.0.2	.1.9	.5.7	26.6
Income from crop products	0.5	0.0	0.3	2.4	0.8
Income from non-agricultural	10.7	14.0	11.2	5.9	3.4
production and services					
Other income	6.5	7.5	.6.5	5.6	4.2
Food and non-food products	3.1	2.8	2.9	1.4	5.7
received from others free of charge					
Food consumption from own	.5.4	.0.2	2.5	9.2	23.4
business					

Table 4.16: Monthly Average Income per Household (By sources of income and by location)

(Source: NSO 2012)

189. Private transfers by family members living in the capital or abroad provide a significant source of income in poor households accounting for nearly 20 % of total income. Without these private transfers the poverty rate would increase to 46 % of the population.

190. The survey found that there was a strong correlation between unemployment and poverty with 58 % of the unemployed being poor. Unemployment was a particularly difficult problem in both the urban and rural areas. In addition to the 100,000 already unemployed the civil service reform will create another 30,000-unemployed former public service employees. In addition, over 25,000 people enter the labour market annually finishing their education. Among the rural poor 35 % of the very poor and 14 % of the poor were unemployed. Among the urban poor, the situation was even worse with 55 % of the very poor and 34 % of the poor being unemployed.

191. Mongolia is experiencing a growing difference between the living conditions of rich and poor herders, about 37 % of livestock-owning households struggle to subsist.

192. **Ethnic minorities.** Ethnic Mongols account for about 85% of the population and consist of Khalkha and other groups, all distinguished primarily by dialects of the Mongol language. The

Khalkha make up 90% of the ethnic Mongol population. The remaining 10% include Buryats, Durved Mongols and others in the north and Dariganga Mongols in the east. Turkic peoples (Kazakhs, Tuvans, and Chantuu (Uzbek) constitute 7% of Mongolia's population, and the rest are Tungusic peoples, Chinese, and Russians. Most but not all Russians left the country following the withdrawal of economic aid and dissolution of the Soviet Union in 1991.

193. **Education.** The educational system of Mongolia is composed of nursery, kindergarten, primary school, secondary school, and university facilities. Every *soum* has at least one nursery school and kindergarten. There are often also privately run nursery schools and kindergartens (for children over the age of 3). Each *Soum* centre has schools with boarding facilities, where children from the more remote herder families are accommodated. Primary and secondary schooling used to be for 10 years but was extended to 11 years. The school year of 2008-2009 marked the beginning of the 12-year system. In Mongolia, the school year begins in September. Pupils who want to complete secondary school often need to attend schools in the *Aimag* centres. Generally, men and women in rural areas have attended school up to year 8 and can read and write. 84% of the 35,228 pupils, who went to school in rural areas and stayed in dormitories, come from herder families (2009). Girls and boys have equal access to schools, vocational training, and other state services.

194. With the advent of the free-market economy and increasing urbanization primary education has experienced some ups and downs. As more families move to the cities with their children, urban schools are suffering from overcrowding while rural schools suffer from low attendance. After the communist regime stepped down and free markets were introduced, the Mongolian education system was reformed through decentralization by handing over management to the local provincial governments. Prior to this, the government heavily subsidized education in Mongolia. Education consumed 27% of the national budget in 1985, but by 1999 this had dropped to below 15% of the total budget. Every child, no matter how remote their location, was able to attend well-equipped schools that had some of the lowest student to teacher ratios in the world.

195. The situation changed when the economic downturn of the 1990s put pressure on the financial stability of families and strained the school budgets. This led to an increasing number of children being taken out of school and put to work helping their families. The introduction of capitalism put more than 36% of the Mongolian population below the poverty line by 1995. At one point, more than 15% of rural children were being put to work, mostly with herding. Furthermore, over 8% of urban children were working instead of attending school.

196. In addition, herders may question the need for education, as the aging parents had to herd the flocks themselves if their children were going to school. The dropout rate was exacerbated by the fact that many children needed to attend boarding school a long way from home. At one point the schools implemented a 'Meat Requirement' to help cover the cost of feeding students. This meant that a family had to provide 70 kg of meat per child per year. The 'Meat Requirement' was in essence a school fee that some families could not afford. Boys had the highest dropout rates because they were more likely to be needed for tending herds and were often seen as problem students. Fortunately, primary education in Mongolia has largely rebounded and school dropout rates are decreasing. However, the quick growth of the dropout rate during the economically turbulent 1990s does illustrate how fragile access to education can be in Mongolia.

197. In contrast, the reform of higher education has always had high priority. As part of the educational reform of 1995 courses and degrees were transformed to a Bachelor/master's system based on the system used in the USA. The development of competitive private education providers was encouraged by the introduction of university fees with such success that Mongolia was considered a worldwide model. The new opportunities were taken up on a large scale, not only by

Mongolian institutions, but also by foreign universities with bases in Russia, Kazakhstan, and the USA, among other countries. More than 100 private universities have been established up to date. The most important funding source for the universities is university fees, which reach astronomical proportions particularly for prospective students at the lower end of the income scale. On the other hand, there are scholarship opportunities for poorer students. In the 2001/2002 academic year, the State paid the study fees for about 5% of the circa 90,000 students and over one-third of students received State loans. However, the internationalization of tertiary education has largely remained a one-way road. Preferred target countries of Mongolian students are the USA and Germany. In Mongolia itself, foreign students and visiting scientists come mostly from East Asia.

198. A total of approximately 210,000 students were registered in 2010 with the country's universities, higher educational institutions, colleges, technical and vocational schools. One peculiarity of Mongolian education is the disproportionate involvement of women. This inequality starts with the first day of school and widens with the increasing length of education such that the proportion of women university graduates reaches 63% (2009).

199. Among the population aged 10 and above the percentage of people with at least primary education is 92.5% (2010), with an increase of 4.6% compared to 2000. The percentage of males with higher education has increased twice between the two censuses, whereas the same figure has increased 2.8 times among females. Literacy level among population aged 15 and above is 98.3%, which has increased by 0.5% since 2000.

200. **Health Care.** During the Socialist Period health services were publicly funded, but despite achievements in facilities and improved health status, the system was inefficient. In the mid-1990s, the health sector reform focused on improving primary health care and disease prevention. This, along with economic development, contributed to improvements in health status over the last 15 years.

201. The leading causes of mortality are non-communicable diseases (cardiovascular diseases and neoplasms) and external causes (injuries and poisonings). Respiratory and digestive system diseases are the main causes of morbidity, along with external causes (injuries and poisonings) in urban areas and urinary tract diseases in rural settings.

202. The health system is decentralized to the level of the *Aimag*. The majority of health services are delivered by the public sector.

203. Mongolia has more than twice the average number of hospitals of EU countries and other transition countries, although the numbers have been declining since 1998. At the same time there has been a decline in the number of in-patient beds, though Mongolia still has a high number of beds at 68.1 per 10,000 inhabitants in 2011.

204. However, there are more and more reports that the quality of health services is deteriorating. Thousands of people who urgently require medical care are at risk not to get adequate care. According to doctor's reports there is a general lack of functioning anaesthesia devices and medication. There is also a lack of medical information, e.g., in 2008, in average only 12% of women were aware and had a correct understanding about transmission modes of HIV/AIDS and only 22% had at least a basic understanding transmission mode of HIV/AIDS.

205. The deteriorating state of the national health care system has clear negative impacts on the health situation of the population. Infant mortality, for example, has not only increased in several regions (Western, Khangai and Eastern) but also in the national average.

206. Also, infectious diseases are spreading/increasing: In the first 11 months of 2012 the total number of cases reached 39,301, an increase by 873 cases or 2.3% compared to same period of the previous year. The increase in the number of infectious disease cases was mainly due to increases of 7,408 (9.3 times the previous figure) in mumps and 466 (11.8%) in syphilis - although there were decreases of 6,228 (49.4%) in viral hepatitis.

207. To improve the situation, the government has established a National Quality Programme and a National Programme on Improving Hospital Quality Management (2008-2013), but yet there are no reports about the extent to which these plans have been implemented and no actual evidence whether they have actually enhanced quality.

208. The State funding of primary health care aims to provide access for everyone. Vulnerable groups are exempt from co-payments (mothers, children under 5 years, the elderly and youth). However, there is still an urban-rural disparity in access. Provision of services favours urban and non-poor areas. Rural areas suffer from a shortage of health workers. These days, when someone has a medical emergency, they are more likely to seek contact to the next urban centre.

209. The Government of Mongolia has placed a high priority on achieving the Millennium Development Goal 5. Some of the major achievements in moving towards this goal are the high coverage of antenatal care (87.7%) and delivery by skilled birth attendants (99.8%). However, providing maternal services to a mobile and migrant population is a challenge and the infant mortality rate stays high, especially in remote areas – where the herders live.

210. There are international NGOs like "Nomadicare" which recognize that the nomadic lifestyle is at risk due to its extreme remoteness, compounded by the lack of infrastructure like roads, electricity, and water. If nomads get sick and need to go to a provincial hospital with adequate diagnostic and treatment capacity, it can be many hours away. To support their cultural survival, nomads need effective health care close to their homes. Nomadicare works on this problem.

211. **Land use pattern.** The land use pattern map of Ulaanbaatar is shown below in **Figure 4.7** which shows the new land use classification and zoning scheme of Ulaanbaatar and **Table 4.17** gives the details of Control of building use by Land Use Zones. With its territory of 156.412 million ha, Mongolia occupies 17th place by the size of territory and first place by per capita land resources (65 ha) in the world. Per capita agricultural land in Mongolia (53.8 ha) accounts for 20 times over the world's average.



Table 4.17. Control of building use by Land Use Zones

Source: Gantulga Gombodorj and Chinbat Badamdorj. Urban land use classification and functional zoning of Ulaanbaatar city, Mongolia, 2010.

The land, except that given to the citizens of Mongolia for private ownership, as well as the 212. subsoil with its mineral resources, forests, water resources and wildfowl shall be the property of the State. The State may give for private ownership plots of land, except pasturage and land under public utilization and special use, only to the citizens of Mongolia. This provision shall not apply to the ownership of the subsoil thereof. Citizens shall be prohibited to transfer the land in their ownership to foreign citizens and stateless persons by way of selling, bartering, donating, or pledging as well as from transferring it to others for their possession and use without permission from competent State authorities. The State shall have the right to hold landowners responsible for the land, to exchange or take it over with compensation on the grounds of special public need or confiscate the land if it is used in a manner adverse to the health of the population, the interests of environmental protection or national security. The State may allow foreign citizens, legal persons, and stateless persons to lease land for a specified period of time under conditions and procedures as provided for by law. Also, in provision 16.2 of the Constitution was indicated that the citizens of Mongolia are guaranteed to enjoy the following rights and freedoms: the right to a healthy and safe environment, and to be protected against environmental pollution and ecological imbalance.

213. In the provision 17.2 it was indicated that "1. Citizens of Mongolia, while upholding justice and humanity, shall fulfil in good faith the following basic duties: 2) to respect dignity, reputation, rights, and legitimate interests of others;" and in the provision 19.1 "The State shall be responsible to the citizens for the creation of economic, social, legal and other guarantees ensuring human rights and freedoms, to fight against violations of human rights and freedoms and to restore infringed rights."

214. As per the Provision 10 of Law on Land of Mongolia, land is classified in six categories as stated below in **Table 4.18**:

No	Classification of Land Use	2013	2014	Changes
I	Agricultural land	115361.4	115008.6	-352.8
1	Pastureland	111026.1	110646.7	-379.4
2	Hay making area	1712.3	1717.6	5.3
3	Crop land	986.8	1012.8	26.0
4	Abandoned land	304.9	304.9	0.0
5	Land under Agricultural building and facilities	71.4	76.8	5.4
6	Land unsuitable for agricultural use	1259.7	1259.7	0.0
	Urban Land	699.6	712.1	12.5
7	Land for Construction and facilities	73.1	75.3	2.2
8	Public land/area	330.1	330.3	0.2
9	Industrial area	40.4	41.1	0.7
10	Mining land	200.9	206.2	5.3
11	Ger area	54.5	59.3	4.8
	Roads and Communication Land	437.3	454.8	17.5
12	Road	319.7	329.7	10.0
13	Railway	27.8	29.9	2.1
14	Land for air transport	8.8	8.9	0.1
15	Communication land	80.8	86.2	5.4
16	Land for port of water transport	0.0	0.0	0.0
IV	Forest Land	14295.4	14320.5	25.1
17	Forest covered area	12138.6	12181.3	42.7
18	Logged area	142.4	142.0	-0.4
19	Land for forest nursery	46.5	50.9	4.4
20	Forest restoration area	744.0	743.6	-0.4
21	Other land area of forest	1223.7	1202.7	-21.0
V	Water Land	686.8	686.7	-0.1
22	Rivers	228.5	228.5	0.0
23	Lakes and founds	444.7	444.3	-0.4
24	Creek and springs	12.4	12.4	0.0
25	Glaciers and	1.1	1.6	0.5
VI	Land for State Special Needs	24931.1	25228.9	297.8
26	Protected Areas	20948.3	21140.9	192.6
27	Border zone area	3111.9	3111.9	0.0
28	Land for National Defence	124.1	124.1	0.0
29	Land for International Diplomatic Consulates	0.0	0.0	0.0
30	Land for Scientific experiment and meteorological observation and monitoring	22.9	22.9	0.0
31	Inter-Aimags reserve pastureland	586.2	691.4	105.2
32	Hay making area of State Forage Foundation	110.9	110.9	0.0
33	Oil and petroleum contracted land	24.4	24.4	0.0
34	Land for economic free zone	2.1	2.1	0.0
	GRAND TOTAL	56411.5	56411.5	0.0

Table 4.18: Classification of Land Use of Mongolia

Source: Report on Mongolian Environmental status in 2013-2014.

215. **Figure 4.7** depicts the map of land use pattern or Land use classification and zoning scheme of the Ulaanbaatar.



Source: Gantulga Gombodorj and Chinbat Badamdorj. Urban land use classification and functional zoning of Ulaanbaatar city, Mongolia, 2010.

4.11 Historical, Cultural and Archaeology Sites/Places

216. Ulaanbaatar is rich in physical cultural resources. The list of important heritage, cultural and religious sites of Mongolia and its *aimags* revised in 1994, 1998 and 2008. In this list, total of 460 objects were registered and out of them 175 have to be under the state protection and 285 have to be under provincial protection. There are not any heritages, cultural and religious sites in or close to the project involved sites in Ulaanbaatar city and aforementioned *aimags*.

	Table 4.13. Number of heritage, cultural and rengious sites in wongona							
#	Name of Aimags	Number of heritage, cultural and		Number of herit	ages, cultural and			
		religious sites		religious sites in/ı	nearby project sites			
		Under State	Under Provincial	Under State	Under provincial			
		protection	protection	protection	protection			
1	Arkhangai	14	24	-	-			
2	Bayn-Ulgii	16	13	-	-			
3	Bayankhongor	10	10	None	None			
4	Bulgan	10	25	None	None			
5	Govi-Altai	8	29	None	None			
6	Govisumber	0	2	None	None			
7	Darkhan Uul	3	2	None	None			
8	Dornogovi	5	8	None	None			
9	Dornod	3	8	None	None			

Table 4.19. Number of heritage, cultural and religious sites in Mongolia

#	Name of Aimags	Number of heritage, cultural and religious sites		Number of herit religious sites in/	ages, cultural and nearby project sites
		Under State	Under Provincial	Under State	Under provincial
		protection	protection	protection	protection
10	Dundgovi	7	16	-	-
11	Zavkhan	6	5	-	-
12	Orkhon	0	1	None	None
13	Uvurkhangai	9	26	None	None
14	Umnugovi	8	15	-	-
15	Sukhbaatar	8	4	-	-
16	Selenge	2	5	None	None
17	Tuv	15	6	-	-
18	Uvs	5	8	-	-
19	Khovd	9	8	-	-
20	Khuvsgul	9	26	-	-
21	Khentii	13	23	-	-
22	Ulaanbaatar	15	11	None	None
	TOTAL	175	285		

Source: "Guideline for registration of cultural heritages" by MES and Centre for Cultural Heritages of Mongolia, 2014.

5.0 ANTICIPATED ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES

5.1 Environment Impacts and Mitigation Measures

217. During site visits, the officials and consultants made numerous observations and held discussions with school managements concerned which would be helpful for project design (summarized below):

- (i) noted location of proper access roads, laydown area for materials to be used by the construction companies to use without disturbing the school working and minimizing utilization of playground areas,
- (ii) proper discussion on avoidance of underground existing pipes for water, heating, sewage etc. at these proposed work sites,
- (iii) discussions on ensuring right of way for construction vehicles and provide traffic safety during construction to residents living adjoining these schools,
- (iv) traffic caused by construction of new buildings/expansion projects by use of concrete, dump trucks etc. transporting materials inside school premises,
- (v) discussed traffic safety for children and their parents during operations of school in normal work hours (September 2017 onwards),
- (vi) lack of safety equipment such as smoke alarms in most old buildings and the need for adequate firefighting extinguishers and imparting evacuation drills and emergency response procedures training,
- (vii) review the distances of these schools from non-sensitive biodiversity areas and cultural heritage sites to ensure no impact,
- (viii) dust and noise emissions from the construction subprojects and their impacts on school children and apartment dwellers adjoining the school area,
- (ix) noises from any surroundings areas during construction and operations,
- (x) review if any shadow is produced onto adjoining buildings due to new structures to be constructed as part of this project,
- (xi) use of any banned substances generated as part of any expansion project such as asbestos etc.,
- (xii) managing emissions from coal-based heating and water boilers (some cases), review if insulation works are required in schools to ensure energy efficiency, i.e., loss of heat due to old walls,
- (xiii) if any associated facilities are present, and
- (xiv) review locations for climate change vulnerability.

218. The team along with district officials and schools shall also conduct group discussions with the public residing in these subproject areas to sensitize them about project activities, their impacts and get their suggestions.

5.2 Environment Problems due to Project Location and Design

219. All buildings shall be designed in compliance with relevant the Government of Mongolia's design standards and codes for energy-efficient, safe buildings, including but not limited to: Mongolian national standards (MNS) 3838: 2008 and Construction standard package # 91.040. World Bank's EHS guidelines 2007 standards will apply in-case where the Mongolian standards are less stringent.

220. Potential adverse environment impacts associated with schools/kindergarten has been avoided or minimized through careful location selection. Subproject location sites have avoided

geologically unstable areas, which can also pose foundation related problems. No land acquisition is required for schools as the government public or existing school land is available. Shrubs and trees may be uprooted and transported to locations inside the school premises.

221. **Green Building and Energy Efficiency**: The building design must include green building and energy efficiency features as listed in Section 4. Use of more energy efficient smokeless heat only boilers (HOBs) may have to be mandated in bidding documents. Alternatively, the design must include alternatives to HOBs such as electric floor heating that can be controlled using heating control regulators.

222. Type and scale of insulation to be installed in the building will be designed by the Construction Company as per norms followed in Mongolia. The design must lead to introduction of other energy efficiency elements (heat meters; heat insulation that meets the requirements on Mongolian Energy Efficiency Regulations; LED lighting; triple glazed windows) etc.

223. **Linked facilities**: The PIU must confirm from concerned authorities of various linked facilities such as landfills to accept solid waste, and power, heating, water, wastewater facilities to each of the school/kindergartens on their ability to deliver required services and without interruptions. Any underground utilities such as heating pipes, sewage drainage, water pipeline etc. if disconnected to the premises will be restored before school reopens after vacation.

224. **Rehabilitation of Old Buildings**: **Annexure 1** lays out details of infrastructure that requires rehabilitation such as installation/provision of modern fire control systems/firewalls, smoke alarms, building insulation, possible plumbing and/or heating systems upgrades. The PIU and the construction company must ensure proper design be implemented in the expansion schools/kindergarten so that the infrastructure become coherent and complies to national and international health and safety norms.

225. **Ambient Air Quality**: Given the low ambient air quality (noticeable in Section 4), it is proposed to introduce Air conditioners, air purifiers inside the kindergartens and schools to provide safe ambient air quality inside the buildings. High Efficiency Particulate Air (HEPA) purifier, Anion Air Purifier etc. can be used. HEPA filters, as defined by the USA Department of Energy (DOE) standard adopted by most American industries, remove at least 99.97% of airborne particles 0.3 micrometres (μ m) in diameter. The operation and maintenance costs of HEPA purifier which includes replace of filters periodically which would need to be borne by school/kindergartens from their own funds.

226. **Sanitation Systems**: The design improvements in the project require upgrade of sanitation facilities where access to the municipal sanitation system is not possible, septic systems are to be installed to reduce the requirement for vacuum truck clearance to a minimum. A "septic tank system" is a small-scale sewage treatment system common in areas that lack connection to main sewage pipes provided by local governments or private corporations. The term "septic" refers to the anaerobic bacterial environment that develops in the tank which decomposes or mineralizes the waste discharged into the tank. Septic tanks can be coupled with other onsite wastewater treatment units such as bio filters or aerobic systems involving artificially forced aeration. Since septic systems require large drain fields, they are not suitable for densely built cities. Periodic preventive maintenance is required to remove solids that remain and gradually fill the tank, reducing its efficiency.

227. Several kindergartens are using holding tanks due to physical limitations. "Holding tanks" are used exclusively for those areas where shallow ground water and saturated soil represent a real threaten and vehicle for pollutants migration from pits. In fact, the Ger Districts of Ulaanbaatar

are characterized by areas environmentally not suitable for human settlements but due to lack of protection zones or law enforcement many of these areas are densely populated resulting in an environmental and public health threat due to migration of pollutants from pit latrines directly into water sources or via saturated soil. The low-cost facility does not allow the use of holding tanks installed for grey water disposal.

228. **Restoration**: Associated impacts on any play area outside each school building inside its premises used for storage and workmen office will be restricted to the construction phase and will be temporary in nature. After construction is complete, the playground or any other play areas within the premises will be repaired and can be used again.

229. **Climate Change**: All facilities shall be properly sited to minimize the risk of scouring that may result from increase intensity of precipitation because of climate change.

5.3 Environmental Impacts Associated with Pre-Construction Stage

230. **Land Acquisition.** The proposed project site in the school premises doesn't require any relocation of homestead since the project would be implemented at the school's own vacant land. No precious ecological issue is involved with this project since the project site is barren land, has no natural habitat and is not immediately adjacent to watercourses. However, following measures will have to be taken prior to the project activities:

- Ensure existing drainage facilities are maintained in working condition,
- Protect /preserve topsoil and reinstate after construction is completed, and
- Repair /reinstate damaged play areas etc. after construction is completed.

231. **Impacts on Temporary Use of Land.** The mobilization of construction equipment and construction materials will require space for storage and parking of construction vehicles and equipment, construction material storage yards, disposal sites, and labour camps for human resource to avoid environmental impact and public inconvenience. These locations must comply with the local laws and regulations and need approval from authorities to utilize these facilities (access roads, telecommunication, and pipe borne water supply). It is important that selection of temporary lands does not infringe upon adjoining residential areas, water bodies, natural flow paths, access roads to garages, schools and other amenities in the area. Removal of trees should be minimized during preparation of construction area, access road and other facilities.

232. **Banned substances – Asbestos generated in Expansion projects.** Mongolia recently banned the use of asbestos building products, but the management of asbestos containing materials (ACM) remains fairly poor.

233. **Volatile Organic Compounds.** Only low or no volatile organic compound (VOC) emitting materials shall be used (including paints, coatings, adhesives, carpet and furniture's) to ensure high indoor air quality. Water-based nontoxic, no allergenic paint for drywall or plaster surfaces shall be preferred to latex or oil-based paints.

234. **Environmental problems associated with construction and operation stage.** The project activities during construction phase will involve construction of school buildings, which will involve excavation for building and equipment foundations, concreting, civil works and erection of equipment, clearing of area including transplanting trees wherever required, and restoring topsoil in all playground areas within the school premises. During the operation phase, most of the construction phase impacts will get stabilized and the impacts will be restricted only to the operation and maintenance of the school building.

235. The impacts on the environment from various activities of the project can be categorized as follows:

- Impact on Physical Resources
 - Impact on Topography
 - Impact on Climate
- Impact on Environmental Resources
 - Impact on Air Quality
 - Impact on Noise Levels
 - Impact on surface Water Quality
 - Impact on ground Water Quality
 - Impact on Soils and Geology
- Impact on Ecological Resources
 - Terrestrial Ecology
 - o Wildlife
 - Aquatic Ecology
 - Impact on Human Environment
 - Health and Safety
 - Agriculture
 - Socio-economic
 - Resettlement and Rehabilitation
 - Cultural sites
 - Traffic and Transport
 - Interference with other utilities and traffic
- Waste Disposal
 - Solid waste disposal
 - Liquid waste disposal
 - Hazardous waste disposal

236. The impacts of the project activities on various environmental attributes are discussed in subsequent sections.

5.3.1.1 Impact on Physical Resources

237. **Impact on Topography.** During the construction of the schools/kindergartens, the most prominent impact on the surface topography will be due to the excavation for foundations, removing of the trees (if any) and erection of buildings. The impact will be irreversible as the present feature of the site as well as the land use will change due to construction of new buildings for the schools/kindergartens.

238. The construction phase involves site preparation, clearing of existing vegetation and some earthworks for levelling the surface. These activities may cause some negative impacts such as:

- Change in landscape
- Emission of dust
- Associated noise
- Improper management of construction debris and solid waste may pose risk to the neighbours.

239. No topographical changes are envisaged during the operation phase of the schools and kindergartens.

240. **Impact on Climate.** Design and construction of School buildings should consider 'climate proofing design' since the occurrence of earthquakes is gradually increasing in Mongolia. Earthquake resistant design should be incorporated in design consideration of the building. Alternative solutions and final designs should be subject to expert and community consultation.

241. However, the overall impact on the climate conditions from the proposed sub-projects during operation phases will not be significant.

5.3.1.2 Impact on Environmental Resources

5.3.2.2.1 Impact on Air Quality

242. During the construction phase, the activity would involve excavation for the erection, movement of transporting vehicles carrying the construction materials etc. along the access road. All these activities would give rise to emission of dust particles thereby affecting air quality marginally at the site which although will be transitory in nature. Though the emissions are temporary and not expected to contribute significantly to the ambient air quality and will be within prescribed limits for industrial regions by National Ambient Air Quality Standards, necessary measures are to be taken.

243. The air quality in the project area may slightly deteriorate for the time being during construction mostly due to dust emission. Dust produced will potentially negatively affect the following:

- School students, teachers, and general public
- Adjoining apartment dwellers and other buildings in the vicinity
- Community areas playgrounds, parking areas etc.
- Construction workers

244. Regular sprinkling of water on open surface and dust emitting grounds should be done regularly until paving is done during dry season and keeping all soil, sand, and aggregate piles covered (whether on the site, or on trucks) to minimize the air pollution during the construction stage. If there is any complain of dust emission from students, teachers, and neighbours, should be given proper attention.

245. The construction of Schools/Kindergartens will not have any negative impact on the air quality of the region during the operation phase.

5.3.2.2.2 Impact on Noise Levels

246. During the construction phase, the major sources of noise pollution are movement of vehicles transporting the construction material and equipment within and outside the construction site. Most of the access roads along the location are wide enough and can be used to bring construction material without obstructing the neighbourhood roads. The major work of the construction is expected to be carried out during the daytime however the movement of trucks and concreting may happen in the night to avoid congestion in the area in the day time. There residents living nearby will be exposed to noise generated during day and night during the construction phase.

247. Construction works may cause objectionable noise nuisance to workers, students or teachers. School authority and students must be notified in writing on the date of commencement of construction work at least one month in advance. Following measures will help to keep noise and vibration in acceptable level during construction phase:

- Contractor shall equip their heavy construction equipment and plants with exhaust silencers to limit the engine noise not to exceed 75 db(A) (compacters/rollers, loaders and cranes) and regularly maintain all construction vehicles and machinery that should meet the Mongolian National Standards for Noise Emission.
- Contractor shall preferably limit working time for activities that create noise within normal waking hours of the public except for construction site near public sensitive receptors. Construction related activities closer to sensitive receptors have to be scheduled in coordination with the residents and relevant authorities.
- Contractor and its suppliers of construction materials should strictly implement noise control regulations stipulated for Noise pollution for all construction vehicles and equipment. All machines will be fitted with noise reduction devices. Ulaanbaatar has many construction sites, some of which operate 24 hours a day. Mongolian standards currently establish a maximum environmental noise goal for residential receptors of 60 decibels (A-weighted) (dB(A)) during the daytime and 45dB(A) during the nighttime, with night being defined as between 22:00-06:00 hours. Depending on noise attenuation and proximity to the construction works, 24 hour a day construction may breach the National Standard for Noise (MNS 4585:2007). World Bank EHS guidelines 2007 for noise limits will apply as they are more stringent than the Mongolian noise standards.

248. For managing noise nuisance, construction works should be limited to daytime hours and all employees likely to be exposed to ear noise must use ear protectors. However, the noise impacts will be local limited to the premises and very short term. Loud noise may disturb the local resident apartment dwellers during normal hours of waking as well. Due consideration must be given by the Construction Company in consultation with local residents. Noise barriers may be installed by the Construction company to ensure residents are not inconvenienced.

249. During the operation phase of the project, the ambient noise level meets the World Bank EHS guidelines for residential areas (55 dB(A) during daytime and 45 dB(A) during nighttime).

250. During normal school hours, noise from playgrounds may also disturb some residents, but they have been consulted prior to the start of construction.

5.3.2.2.3 Impact on Surface Water Quality

251. The construction and operation of the schools/kindergarten will not have any major impact on the surface and ground water quality in the area. Contamination of water bodies, if any in that area, may result due to spilling of construction materials and surface runoff from the construction site adjoining the water body. There may be increase in the turbidity levels temporarily where the surface runoff during construction meets the drainage of the area. This can be avoided by careful selection of the raw material and waste material storage at the construction site.

252. Proposed activities will create temporary impacts to the existing drainage system in the area including in earthen and line drains. Thus, it will create temporary inundation closer to the above locations during rainy season. Stagnation of water will create direct impact on public health. Thus, incorporation of following measures will minimize anticipated impact due to obstruction of natural flow paths and existing drainage:

- Provisions of temporary drainage facilities to the particular locations if existing drains are obstructed due to construction activities.
- Maintenance of all drainage paths by avoiding blockages at all times.
- Contractor should minimize excavation of drainage systems in the project affected area.
- If any school is situated in immediate vicinity of the waterbody/river, adequate

reinforcement of embankment will be done to ensure no surface runoff gets discharged into the waterbody/river.

253. Care shall be taken to locate the temporary construction worker sheds away from the drainage/water bodies. Adequate drinking water facilities, sanitary facilities, and drainage in the temporary sheds of the construction workers should be provided to avoid the surface water pollution. Provision of adequate washing and toilet facilities should be made obligatory. This should from an integral component in the planning stage before commencement of construction activity.

5.3.2.2.4 Impact on Ground Water Quality

254. Ground water pollution can take place, if chemical substances and oily waste get leached by precipitation of water and percolate to the ground water table. For schools/kindergartens construction activity, no chemical substance or oil is used hence there is no impact on ground water quality. The silt discharge from the earth work around water bodies, oil, grease and fuel release from the construction vehicles / equipment and spoil from construction and other construction related activities such as raw sewerage from worker accommodation sites will mix with runoff water. This situation will increase during the rainy season and have a critical impact on surface and ground water. Thus, following measures will be required to prevent deterioration of water from the construction related activities:

- All construction vehicles and equipment should be maintained in proper conditions without any leakages,
- Contractors shall use silt traps and erosion control measures where the construction is carried out near the water bodies to avoid entering of cement particles, rock, rubbles and wastewater to the surrounding drains,
- Construction activities requiring digging should be preferably done in the dry season,
- Waste oil should be collected properly and disposed to the approved location.

5.3.2.2.5 Impact on Soil and Geology

255. Project activities including excavation, cut and fill operations, removal of trees and green cover vegetation etc. will enhance the soil erosion during the rainy season. The excavation activity and land clearance in the erosion prone areas have been minimized. Levelling and stabilization of construction sites will be done after completion of construction activity. Also, increased acceleration of surface runoff will damage the topsoil. The impacts associated with excessive erosion and other civil works can be avoided or minimized by following mitigation measures:

- Effort should be taken to minimize removal of trees and green cover vegetation.
- Minimize obstruction or destruction to natural drainage pattern of the surrounding area.
- Proper treatment of clearing and filling areas against flow acceleration.
- Contractors shall restrict cut and fill operation around sharp/deep slope areas.
- Topsoil which are removed during construction must be stored separately for future utilization.

5.3.1.3 Impact on Ecological Resources

256. Since schools/kindergartens are constructed in government lands, there is no displacement of people or animals. It is also not causing any disturbance to the life of people and local animals and birds' movement. There is no dynamic equipment and moving machinery causing noise pollution, water and air pollution. There is no national wildlife park, bird sanctuary, wetland in the location of the proposed schools/kindergartens. The ecological impacts are briefly described in the

following sections.

257. **Effect on Flora and Fauna.** On visual inspection, it seems that small number of trees will need to be removed at only a few schools. None of the declared environmentally sensitive areas is located within the project area. It is not expected that any flora and fauna that are rare, endangered, endemic, or threatened will be affected - no migratory paths of small mammals and reptiles may be affected due to construction activities. Also, noise, vibration and emission from construction vehicles, equipment will occur during construction and pre-construction stages in temporary manner. The impacts related to above activities are temporary and can be mitigated through following measures:

- Strict attention on worker force regarding disturbance to surrounding areas.
- Selection of approved locations for material storage yards and labor camps away from the environmental sensitive or populated areas.
- Avoid entering of construction waste (cement particles, rock, rubbles and wastewater) and sanitary waste to the surrounding water bodies.

258. **Impact on Terrestrial Ecology.** There is no sensitive ecological area / protected forest area such as national wildlife park, bird sanctuary crossing the proposed sub-project locations. The removal of herbaceous vegetation from the soil and loosening of the topsoil generally causes soil erosion. However, such impacts would be primarily confined to the project site during initial periods of the construction phase and would be minimized through adoption of mitigation measures like paving and surface treatment and water sprinkling.

259. **Removal of Trees.** The construction works along the location involves land clearance, cutting, filling, and levelling that may cause loss of trees. About 51 trees may be affected by the construction works within the compounds of 10 schools and kindergartens. All these trees are owned by the particular school or kindergarten. The exact number of trees affected will be known during the final location survey and construction. This will be an irreversible impact. However, any tree that will be cut may be transplanted depending on its type and its suitability for transplantation within the school or kindergarten premises. This will minimize the tree loss.

260. It is highly recommended to establish a tree replanting programme which should be undertaken e.g., where two trees will be planted when a single tree is cut. This was accepted and supported by school/kindergarten managements, city, *Soum* and *Aimag* Governments concerned. The construction company would be responsible for replantation of trees cut from the construction area within the school/kindergarten premises.

261. **Effect on Local Road Network.** Iron bars, concrete materials, piling equipment, etc. will be transported through the local road network to the project site. Transporting of large quantities of materials using heavy vehicles could exceed the carrying capacity of the road. This would lead to physical damages to local road network. Thus, it will be necessary to obtain consent from the road/highway authorities to use local/national highway roads prior to transportation.

262. The Construction Company should properly maintain all road sections, install road signs warning of children crossing etc. which will be utilized for the construction related activities. In presence of multiple school/kindergarten sites in the vicinity of construction area, the Construction company will ensure free and safe access roads to each school and install appropriate road safety signs as necessary in the area.

263. **Effect on Visual Aesthetics.** The proposed project site has some grass and scrub vegetation that will be affected due to the land development. But with completion of the school

building and replanting of new vegetation and trees around the building, the school building site should recover the visual aesthetics.

264. **Disposal of Debris.** As a result of construction related activities, spoil and debris will be generated during the construction stage. Improper disposal of the debris will have an impact on the surrounding ecology, public health and scenic beauty. Following measures will minimize the impacts associated with disposal of debris:

- Spoil materials (soil, sand, rock etc.) generated from construction activities shall be used wherever possible for site levelling, back filling etc. Any dismantled and demolished structural materials, if any, should be dumped in accordance to government norms.
- Preparation of Disposal Management Plan for the project and selection of the disposal site by excluding locations, which are closer to residential, commercial and public sensitive areas, is necessary by the construction company. Prior approval should be obtained for linked facilities such dumping grounds / land fill sites from relevant local authorities.
- Dumped materials will interfere with the drainage pattern of the area, any water bodies, agricultural lands, marshlands and down slope or any environmental sensitive areas if not planned properly.

265. During operation phase, there is no requirement for disposal of debris.

266. **Wildlife.** For selected the sub-project locations, no wildlife locations have been included as far as possible during the field visits. National Park or Protected Areas near Ulaanbaatar and other *aimags* which are around 7-80 km away from the nearest project Schools/Kindergarten.

267. **Impact on Aquatic Ecology.** There are no major rivers or tributaries in the location of subprojects. No significant impacts on aquatic ecology of the river are envisaged and will not have any impact due to subproject activities.

5.3.1.4 Impact on Human Environment

268. **Traffic and Transport.** During the construction phase, traffic disturbance needs to be minimized by avoiding heavy traffic hours, ensuring proper access roads and avoiding road blockage. Increase in vehicular traffic in the area is likely to be experience during construction phase of the school building because of trucks ferrying in off construction material and carrying waste material from site. Following are the impacts likely to occur due to increased traffic:

- (i) Slightly more congestion near the main entrance to the school.
- (ii) Increased number of vehicles on local roads will result in increased wear and tear of local roads thus reducing lifespan of affected roads.
- (iii) Pedestrians and cyclists using local roads will have to exercise more care with increase of vehicular traffic on the said roads.
- (iv) There will be an increase of exhaust emission from vehicles, which will pollute local atmospheric air.

269. The contractor may have to carry the construction material into the site at night or during least congestion period. So, the traffic related congestion and air pollution would be least affected in this case.

270. Slightly more congestion near the main entrance to the school could exist at the gates due to limited entry available at the school site until entire construction is complete. The construction company will post traffic managers at all access roads at of the school/kindergarten sites and will

ensure parking places are not encroached by placing any construction/waste material or parking of construction vehicles.

271. **Health and Safety.** Health and safety impacts will be in terms of risk of accidents and exposure to electric shock at the construction site. Necessary training regarding safety aspects to the personnel working at the schools will be provided by the construction company. The workers should wear PPE (Personal Protective Equipment), safety goggles, and other necessaries during construction period and during the maintenance work. First aid facilities will be made available with the labour gangs and doctors called in from nearby towns when necessary. Article 16 of the National Constitution of Mongolia states that every employee has the right to 'suitable conditions of work'. The government adopted a National Program for Occupational Safety and Health Improvement in 2001 and national standards are also adopted such as the National Standard on Occupational Health and Safety MNS 5002:2000.

272. In addition, when construction work takes place in a public environment, safety measures are often lacking to protect the public. Project activities may create accidental damage to public and the construction workers. Therefore, Construction Company should take necessary action to enhance personal safety during the construction through following measures:

- Organize awareness programmes relevant to personal safety of the workers and general public in the area;
- Installation of warning signs to particular locations such as transverse points of local road network by Schools/Kindergarten;
- Provide protective safety belts, footwear, helmets, goggles, eye-shields and clothes to workers depending on their duty;
- Arrangement of proper first aid unit and transport facilities to take injured people to the hospitals;
- Health and safety issues due to construction activities will be an issue for workers, students, teachers, and others. Accident can happen occur during earth cutting, casting, construction works and installation of heavy machinery if care is not taken in their operation; and
- The whole work site will have to be fenced off and marked, to prevent the access of school children and neighbours to the construction site. When land clearing is complete, the work area is finished, and facilities are in place, all the above impacts and risks will be neutralized.

273. **Sanitation Hazard & Drinking Water.** The health of the project personnel, construction workers and laborers at the site could be impacted if arrangement of sanitation and drinking water is not ensured adequately and properly. The project activities shall make higher demand on the local utilities and service facilities particularly construction and drinking water, health, and sanitary facilities.

274. **Emergency response during construction.** The Construction Company must train its project personnel, construction workers and laborers, schoolteachers and staff to have knowledge of sufficient emergency response systems put in place. Fire safety management training and mock drill should be practiced periodically and emergency equipment and facilities like fire extinguisher/water hose, first aid etc. must be available to manage fire hazard or any medical emergency.

275. **Temporary Outage of the Electricity.** Temporary disconnection of power supply will occur during the construction activities. Thus, public and the apartment dwellers, who live in the vicinity of the sub-project area, will face inconvenience for short periods of time. Thus, following measures will have to be taken:

- Advance notice to the public about the time and the duration of the utility disruption, and
- Restore the utilities immediately to overcome public inconvenience.

5.3.1.5 Socio Economics

276. **Agriculture.** There will not be any land acquisition for the school projects.

277. **Local Employment.** Construction of Schools/Kindergartens will generate local employment, as number of unskilled laborers (both men and women) will be required at the time of construction activities. Local employment during this period will increase socio-economic standards.

278. **Resettlement and Rehabilitation.** For the construction of schools/kindergartens, no land acquisition is required, hence there is no resettlement and rehabilitation involved in the project.

279. **Cultural sites.** There are no archaeological, historical or cultural important sites along the location; hence the impacts on these sites are not envisaged.

5.3.1.6 Waste Disposal

280. **Solid Waste Disposal.** The solid waste generation will be at the location of the construction site which will include metal scraps, wooden packing material etc. Wooden waste and metal scrap will be collected and disposed of in compliance with applicable regulations and rules.

281. **Sanitary Waste Disposal at Construction Sites and Labor Camps.** The labour camps at the site of construction will be temporary in nature and the human excreta will not be significant to cause contamination of ground water. Those places where most labour will be staying will be near apartments which may use some community or school facilities for solid waste, water and sanitation. Adequate drinking water facilities, sanitary facilities and drainage in the temporary sheds of the construction workers should be provided to avoid the surface water pollution.

282. There should be proper solid waste disposal procedure to enhance sanitation of workers who stay in camps. Thus, possibilities of infecting water borne diseases or vector borne diseases (Parasitic infections) will be eliminated by adopting proper solid waste disposal procedure. Unacceptable solid waste disposal practices such as open dumping of solid waste and poor sanitation facilities will lead to pollution of surrounding environment, contamination of water bodies and increase adverse impact to the general public inhabited in the area. Surrounding of labour camps, garbage disposal sites and material storage yards provide favourable habitats for diseases. Improper dumping of spoil materials and solid wastes may cause environmental degradation of the school area and students, teachers and neighbouring people will face problems like: bad smell, aesthetically unpleasant environment, diseases etc.

283. Thus, following measures are needed to protect and enhance the quality of environment during the construction stage:

- A better way to overcome garbage disposal as mentioned above by reducing or avoiding the construction of labour camps, thus the selection of majority of skilled and unskilled workers from the project influence area will be a proper measure in this regard.
- Proper sanitation system should be provided and at the same time, regular, proper and safe disposal of human waste should be ensured. Contractors and workers should obey appropriate means of waste removal and sanitation measures. Adequate number of toilets and bathrooms should be made for the workers, and proper disposal system

(septic tank) of sewage waste should be implemented for sanitation purpose and the workers should be aware to use those facilities. Contractor should provide adequate facilities to manage its wastes in accordance with the guidance given by the Mongolian law on Solid Waste and Law on Construction, and related regulations.

- Provision of the solid waste disposal, sanitation and sewage facilities at all site of the construction/labour camps to avoid or minimize health hazards and environmental pollution.
- Contractor should handle and manage waste generated from the construction/labour camps without contamination to natural environment and it will reduce risk to public who stay close to sites. Also, Construction Company should be responsible to enhance the quality of environment.
- Adequate supply of water should be provided to the urinals, toilets, and washrooms of the workers' accommodation.
- Contractor should provide garbage bins to all worker's accommodation and construction sites, for dumping wastes regularly in a hygienic manner in the area.

284. **Liquid Waste Disposal.** There will be no oil or chemical waste generated during the construction of Schools/Kindergartens, hence no mitigation is required.

285. **Hazardous Waste Disposal.** During the Schools/Kindergartens construction generation of any hazardous waste generation is not expected. Any Asbestos, batteries, and solar panels (if used) would constitute waste material that needs to be disposed of as per Mongolian law on Solid Waste and regulations and guidelines related to Hazardous Wastes.

5.4 Environmental Impacts Associated with Operational Stage

286. **Impact on School Environment.** During operations, the school building must ensure a better quality of school infrastructure for students (both interior and outside) besides better quality of education facilities. Improper heating, washrooms, inconvenient classroom arrangement, poor condition of classrooms, unsatisfactory teacher-student ratio, absence of separate washrooms for boys and girls, suffocation problem etc. are possible adverse impacts that will eventually lead to a poor school environment. The building would be designed to ensure the suitable heating, water, lighting, storage areas, proper ventilation, sufficient toilets & washrooms and support infrastructure.

287. **Disadvantaged children.** The new schools/kindergartens would incorporate certain design improvements required for the disadvantaged children. These would include: (i) disabled access, sanitation, and signage (wheelchair access ramps to be included above ground level if deemed appropriate by MES; wheelchair access to one toilet cubicle per sanitation block (male and female) to be included; Dual handrails on stairs for small children and adults; Brightly coloured and braille signage to be included). The construction company will ensure proper design to ensure that these are free from any encumbrances, obstruction and defect free in their installation.

288. **Increased demand of utilities-electricity, heating, sewage and drinking water.** The new/expansion buildings will require services (notably sewage, water, heating, and electricity), which could cause additional demand during periods of low water availability and load-shedding. The proposed building design features that address water and energy conservation would help considerably in this regard.

289. The schools/kindergartens must design a management procedure in coordination with PIU to maintain the septic tanks, individual heat only boiler, water heater, electricity generators (if any) on the premises. They also need to ensure proper funds are available for regular upkeep and maintenance of these facilities.

290. **Impact Due to Solid Waste.** Operation of the school building will result in production of solid waste, which will require careful storage, separation, and handling. Properly marked waste containers should be available at each floor and outside the building. All solid waste will be segregated properly, disposed to the safe places carefully. The PIU, the City Public Service Company and the Construction Company will provide training on solid waste management to both staff/students to segregate waste by placing separate containers stating waste type before being collected by the City Public Service Company.

291. Sweeping and washing should be done to provide students a waste free healthy environment. It is important that solid waste and sewage from the school/kindergarten building should not be nuisance to the community.

292. **Impact due to Liquid Discharge.** The school building will not create any process liquid. The liquid discharge will be mainly water used for domestic and toilet uses. The domestic liquid waste will be disposed through a septic tank. The project will have planned drainage system to discharge the surface runoff.

293. **Chemistry laboratory waste**. New schools will have chemistry classes' chemicals and they will manage chemical wastes according to the "Guideline on Methodology and Technology to Dispose, Storage, Transportation, Collection of Chemical Wastes; (2009). Currently, all schools collect and keep chemicals used for chemical classes which is disposed of by the District Branch of Emergency Management Agency. The Specialized Inspection Agency monitors this procedure regularly and registers all chemicals used by schools.

294. **Emergency response during operations.** The school management will have sufficient emergency response systems in place. The stairs of the building will be well designed and adequate for easy passage of the occupants. Fire safety management training and mock drill should be practiced periodically and emergency equipment and facilities like fire extinguisher/water hose, first aid etc. must be available to manage fire hazard or any medical emergency.

295. **Electric Shock.** This may lead to death or injury to the school staff, students and public in the area if facilities are not constructed properly. This can be minimized or avoided by providing security enclosures, establishment of warning signs, and careful design using appropriate technologies to minimize hazards.

296. **Noise Generation.** There will be minimal nuisance to the community around the school/kindergartens due to operations.

6.0 ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES

6.1 MES Approach for Planning of a subproject

297. At the planning stage itself, one of the factors that govern the establishment of the Schools/Kindergartens is the availability of scarce land available in the cities concerned. Preliminary location selection is done by MES based on the interpretation and walk over survey.

6.2 Alternatives for Subproject Components

298. **No "Build" Alternative.** The 'No Build' alternative in the present case would mean there would be shortage of classrooms and other facilities at proposed schools/kindergartens and hence, the development of education in Mongolia will be hampered. Hence, the 'No build' alternative is unacceptable, and the potential socioeconomic benefits of implementation of such a project far outweigh the adverse impacts, all of which can be controlled and minimized to an acceptable level.

299. **Education Sector Development.** New building construction for schools/kindergartens will ensure more access of education to students and availability of such facilities at affordable prices. Thus, it will help in development of secondary education sector in Mongolia and will contribute to building of a more efficient nation.

300. **To "Build" Alternative.** The project has been designed to provide extra space to schools at its own vacant space adjacent to existing school building, thus involved no resettlement issues. So, there is no logic to find alternative site for the project since it is in the existing school premises.

6.3 Methodology for sub-project site selection: environmental view

301. Site selection among alternatives consider requirements of environmental parameters, availability of logistic support during construction, operation and maintenance of Schools/Kindergarten and specific feasible locations that were identified based on the relevant site maps and walkover surveys.

6.3.1 Schools/Kindergarten

302. For selection of appropriate site for Schools/Kindergartens, the following points are taken into consideration:

- Site selection should consider seismicity and geography of the local area; the area should not be prone to landslide or be unstable.
- Construction activities do not adversely affect the population living near the proposed Schools/Kindergarten and does not create any threat to the survival of any community with special reference to tribal (herder) community etc.
- The location of schools/kindergartens does not affect any monument of cultural or historical importance.
- No resettlement of households by the schools/kindergartens site, no loss of livelihoods, siting of schools away from sensitive receptors with due consultation with the community and local government units concerned.
- Construction techniques and machinery selection shall be made with a view to minimize ground disturbance.
- While planning for schools/kindergarten, all underground infrastructure drainage, sewage heating etc. shall be marked and to avoid seepage/leakages and pollution of

water sources.

- Construction Company to ensure that noise will not be a nuisance to neighbouring properties. Provision of noise barriers near Schools/Kindergartens sites will be made if required.
- Security fences will be erected around Schools/Kindergarten construction sites. Warning signs shall be displayed at site and road signs to be installed at appropriate locations.
- MES shall incorporate the best technical practices to deal with environmental issues in its working.
- Design of schools/kindergarten shall be made to include modern fire control systems/firewalls. Provision of fire-fighting equipment would be made at locations easily accessible etc.
- The location of schools/kindergartens does not affect any public utility services like power, heating and gas lines, sewage, and drainage pipes other underground structures such as hydrocarbon pipelines and unstable ground feature (permafrost etc.). etc.
- Minimum cutting of trees and safety of people and property and favourable ground profile.
- Avoidance of reserved forest, archaeological and other sensitive areas, animal / bird sanctuaries
- Avoidance of rocky stretches and areas reserved for planned and future development, marshy low-lying areas, riverbeds and earth slip zones.
- The blueprint of design to ensure no shadow of the proposed new buildings should fall on to adjoining buildings in keeping with building byelaws of the Mongolia.

303. Keeping above in mind, various expansion sub-projects proposed by MES officials for funding were taken up for initial assessment of environmental impacts. Similarly, MES has selected available government lands that are available in the area which are nearly barren with no or very little vegetation for schools/kindergarten at UB and other *aimags*. **Table 6.1** provides locational details about Schools/Kindergarten proposed in Ulaanbaatar and other *aimags*.

				•		
No	Sub-Projects	Location	Latitude	Longitude	Altitude (m)	Land Area Status
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Α	Kindergartens					
A 1	Kindergartens	under expansion				
1	Kindergarten	UB, Bayangol	N47º54'42.1	E106 ⁰ 52'49.7	1288	480m² is
	No.164	District, 4th khoroo				available
2	Kindergarten	UB, Bayangol	N47º55'17.8	E106 ⁰ 53'05.8	1320	2500m² is
	No.88	District, 18th khoroo				available
3	Kindergarten	UB, Bayanzurkh	N47º55'34.6	E 106º56'16.4	1327	1100m² is
	No.22	District, 1 st khoroo				available
4	Kindergarten	UB, Bayanzurkh	N47º55'14.7	E106º58'29.5	1328	640m² is
	No.8	District, (16 th khoroo				available
5	Kindergarten	UB, Bayanzurkh	N47º55'10.6	E106 ⁰ 58'57.8	1324	1600m² is
	No.82	District, 16 th khoroo				available
6	Kindergarten	UB, Khan-Uul	N47º54'05.6	E106º54'13.4	1291	1100m² is
	No.65	District, 2 nd khoroo				available
7	Kindergarten	UB, Khan-Uul	N47º54'05.0	E106º54'01.0	1290	900m² is
	No.72	District, 2 nd khoroo				available
8	Kindergarten	UB,	N47º56'00.0	E106º49'21.1	1324	1000m² is

Table 6.1. Locations of proposed Schools/Kindergartens in Ulaanbaatar/other ai	<i>mag</i> s an	d
Land status		

No	Sub-Projects	Location	Latitude	Longitude	Altitude (m)	Land Area Status	
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	
	No.84	Songinokhairkhan, 6 th <i>khoroo</i>				available	
9	Kindergarten No.104	UB, Songinokhairkhan, 12th <i>khoroo</i>	N47º54'57.7	E106 ⁰ 51'09.1	1282	3000m² is available	
10	Kindergarten No.107	UB,Songinokhairkha n, 14 th <i>khoroo</i>	N47º54'52.6	E106º50'35.7	1279	1400m ² is available	
11	Kindergarten No.110	UB,Songinokhairkha n, 15 th <i>khoroo</i>	N47º54'55.5	E106º50'20.3	1279	1400m ² is available	
12	Kindergarten No.176	UB, Songinokhairkhan, 31 st <i>khoroo</i>	N47º56'01.4	E106º51'09.2 1389		400m ² is available	
13	Kindergarten No.68	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 3 rd khoroo	N47 ⁰ 54'41.4	E106 ⁰ 53'56.1	1291	760m² is available	
14	Kindergarten No.160	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 3 rd <i>khoroo</i>	N47 ⁰ 54'35.1	E106º43'25.1	1290	1100m² is available	
15	Kindergarten No.17	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 10 th <i>khoroo</i>	N47º55'50.8	E106 ⁰ 55'20.9	1312	1800m² is available	
16	New kindergarten	Govisumber, Sumber <i>Soum</i> , 3 rd bagh	N46º21'15.89	E108º 23'.45	1327	4000m ² is available	
17	Kindergarten No.6	Khuvsgul, Murun soum, 8 th bagh	N49º38'21.04	E100º 09'25,2	1282	5600m ² is available	
A 2	Kindergartens	under new construction	on				
1	New kindergarten	UB Bayanzurkh District, 24 th <i>khoroo</i>	N47º56'09.3	E106 ⁰ 59'41.6	1393	600m ² is available	
2	New kindergarten	UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i>	N47º46'55.8	E107º14'44.5	1460	6000m ² is available	
3	New kindergarten	UB, Songinokhairkhan, 25 th <i>khoroo</i>	N47º57'59.3	E106º49'46.7	1390	300m² is available	
В	Schools:						
B 1	Schools under	expansion:					
1	School No.51	Bayangol District, UB	N47º54'59.7	E106º52'44.3	1297	600m ² is available	
2	School No.18	UB, Khan-Uul District	N47º53'59.3	E106º53'40.8	1291	200m ² is available. Use the top of school building	
3	"Erdmiin Orgil" Complex	UB, Nalaikh District	N47º46'06.7	E107º14'50.5	1460	6000m² is available	
4	"Ireedui" Primary School	UB, Songinokhairkhan District	N47º54'53.9	E106º50'01.3	1276	600m ² is available. Use the top of school building	
5	"Ireedui" Secondary School	UB, Songinokhairkhan District	N47º54'58.9	E106º50'29.1	1278	600m ² is available. Use the top of school <u>bui</u> lding	
6	School No.122	UB, Songinokhairkhan	N47º55'10.5	E106º41'44.8	1300	6000m² is available	

No	Sub-Projects	Location	Latitude	Longitude	Altitude (m)	Land Area Status
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
		District, 22 nd khoroo				
7	School No.6	UB, Sukhbaatar District	N47º54'36.8	E106 ⁰ 54'05.9	1290	Use the top of school building
8	Khantaishir	Govi-Altai, Altai <i>soum</i>	N 46º22' 4.09	E 114º15' 18.1	2204	800m² is available
B 2		School under new	construction :			
1	New school	Songinokhairkhan District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i>	N47 ⁰ 57'13.0	E106º48'43.4	1329	10000m ² is available
2	New school	Darkhan, Mangirt, 15 th <i>bagh</i>	N49º28'08.0	E105 ⁰ 58'34.9	980	15000m ² is available

Plot Size on Land available (Column 7 above)

304. The blueprints (technical drawings) will be developed by the schools/kindergartens through accredited architects in Mongolia. The plot size for each school/kindergarten will vary depending upon the size, location, orientation of land, access road, and its suitability for expansion/new construction design. Normally, a school/kindergarten plot size would vary between 400-700 square meters (i.e., 20mx20m for kindergarten and 20mx35m for school).

6.3.2 Distance from Various Receptors

305. Distance from various receptors is give in **Table 6.2** below. These details were collected by the consultant team during the site visits, public consultations and recorded in **Annexure 1**. Summary details as listed in Annexure 1 are presented in summary form. Annexure 1 can be referred for more details on each topic.

Table 6.2: Approximate distance of subprojects from Receptors

Site number	Sub-Project Components	Average Distance of Schools/Kindergartens from District HQ	Minimum distance from apartments or any buildings of constructed area (m)	Distance from other schools/kindergartens in the area (km)	Number of Trees Affected	Distance from water body (km)	Distance from Railway Line (km)	Distance from Two lane Roads (km)	Distance from Airport (km)	Distance f- waste water treatment facility (km)	Distance from Power Plant (km)	Distance from utilities – heating, water supply (km)	Distance from urban landfill site (km)	Distance from Fire station (km)
A	∠ Kindergarten und	ler expai	4 nsion	5	0	1	ð	9	10	11	12	13	14	15
1	Kindergarten	03	50	1	2	1.8	00	0.2	15	10	5	0.0	20	2
-	No.164	0.5	50		2	1.0	0.9	0.2	15	10	5	0.9	20	2
2	Kindergarten No.88	6	100	0.4	0	7	2.6	0.8	16	9	6	0.4	19	7
3	Kindergarten No 22	6	60	0.4	5	0.7	8	0.4	19	14	10	0.5	9	6
4	Kindergarten	1.5	40	1	4	9	8	0.1	22	18	6	1	8	8
5	Kindergarten	1.9	50	0.5	8	8	8	0.3	24	20	6	0.7	8	7
6	Kindergarten	5	20	2	0	0.6	1.2	0.5	19	21	5	0.8	21	3
7	Kindergarten	2	20	1	0	0.6	1.2	0.3	11	17	5	1	21	8
8	Kindergarten	5	50	3	0	3	12	0.2	13	8	4	1	7	19
9	Kindergarten No.104	10	80	0.3	0	5	6	0.5	16	9	5	0.4	14	10
1 0	Kindergarten No107	11	50	0.1	0	5	6	0.3	16	15	6	0.5	15	10
1 1	Kindergarten No.110	12	200	0.5	0	5-8	6	0.4	15. 5	15	6	0.4	15	10
1 2	Kindergarten No.176	12	10	3	0	2	8	2	18	15	7	6	14	12
1 3	Kindergarten No.68	5	20	0.3	4	2.5	1	0.3	14	10	9	0.3	20	5
1 4	Kindergarten No.160	3	20	0.3	2	2.5	1	0.6	13	11	10	0.4	20	2
1 5	Kindergarten No.17	2.5	50	1	3	2	6	0.3	18	14	11	0.6	15	3
1 6	Govisumber, Sumber <i>Soum</i> , 3rd <i>bagh</i>	0.7	120	0.6	0	N/A	1	0.4	N/ A	2	7	0.4	8	1
1 7	Kindergarten No.6, Khuvsgul, Murun <i>soum</i> , 8 th <i>bagh</i>	0.6	60	0.5	4	0.8	N/A	0.1	5.2	3.2	2.7	0.2	5.3	1.6
A 2	Kindergarten und	ler new o	construc	tion										
1	UB Bayanzurkh District, 24 th <i>khoroo</i>	9	30	1	0	9	5	1	23	20	4	6	9	18
2	UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i>	1	120	1	0	6	0.8	0.2	60	5	3	2	7	2
3	UB, Songinokhairkha	10	50	1	0	1	6	0.0 3	17	14	8	9	8	24

Site number	Sub-Project Components	Average Distance of Schools/Kindergartens from District HQ	Minimum distance from apartments or any buildings of constructed area (m)	Distance from other schools/kindergartens in the area (km)	Number of Trees Affected	Distance from water body (km)	Distance from Railway Line (km)	Distance from Two lane Roads (km)	Distance from Airport (km)	Distance f- waste water treatment facility (km)	Distance from Power Plant (km)	Distance from utilities – heating, water supply (km)	Distance from urban landfill site (km)	Distance from Fire station (km)
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15
	n District, 25 th <i>khoroo</i>													
В 1	Schools under ex	pansion	1											
1	School No.51	1	20	1	20	2	2	0.2	16	10	8	0.1	17	4
2	School No.18	0.6	30	0.7	0	0.4	1	0.2	10	8	4	0.1	17	8
3	"Erdmiin Orgil" Complex	0.5	120	0.2	0	7	0.7	0.2	N/ A	2	1.8	0.1	7	1
4	"Ireedui" Secondary School	10	100	0.6	0	5	5.7	0.3	14	8	4.4	0.2	13	6
5	"Ireedui" Primary School	10	80	0.6	0	5	6	0.2	14	8	5	0.2	14	6
6	School No.122	8	120	5	0	0.3	2.5	0.2	15	9	7	5	5	17
7	School No.6	3	20	0.3	0	2.5	1	0.4	17	10	9	0.1	20	3
8	Khantaishir school	0.6	50	0.7	0	N/A	N/A	0.0 7	3	4	0.8	0.1	9	1
В 2	Schools under ne	ew const	ruction											
1	Songinokhairkha n District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i>	9	100	4	0	0.1	13	3	17	9	5	5	2	19
2	Darkhan, Mangirt, 15 th <i>bagh</i>	1	900	0.9	0	N/A	3	1	N/ A	5	5	0.1	4	1

NAV: Not available as detailed survey not completed by MES

Trees Affected– Lopped or cut as detailed survey will be done by construction company N/A = Not applicable

For some of the Schools/Kindergartens sub-projects, the blueprint development is underway. The data regarding soil, topography, contour, land cutting and filling required, distance from water body and distance from major roads, details of forest/non-forest, fruit/non-fruit trees can be affected, land details will be collected by Construction Company. If sites are changed other than those indicated here, supplementary information will be supplied for each of these subprojects by MES to ADB for prior approval before contract award.

6.3.3 Distance from Reserve Forest/Protected Areas/National Park/Sanctuary

306. The distance from the Schools/Kindergarten to the national parks/protected areas/reserve forests are given in the **Table 6.3**.

Table 6.3: Distance from Protected Areas	s (National Parks	Sanctuaries and Forest reserves)
for	all subprojects	

No	Sub-Projects	Location	Distance from Protected
4	2	2	Areas (km)
1	<u> </u>	3	4
A A 1	Kindergartens	ngion	
	Kindergarten No. 164	IIIB Bayangal District 4th kharaa	Road Khan SRA is 10 km
2	Kindergarten No. 104	UB, Bayangol District, 4 th khoroo	Bogd Khan SPA is 10 km
2	Kindergarten No.00	UB, Bayangoi District, 10 th Kiloroo	Bogd Khan SDA is 12 km
3	Kindergarten No.22	UB, Bayanzurkh District, 1 st Khoroo	Bogd Khan SDA is 22 km
4	Kindergarten No.82	UB, Bayanzurkh District, 16th khoroo	Bogu Khan SPA is 22 km
5	Kindergarten No.62	UB, Khon Lul District, 10 th Khoroo	Bogu Khan SPA is 15 kill
0	Kindergarten No.05	UB, Khan-Uul District, 2nd kharaa	Bogd Khan SPA is 6 km
/	Kindergarten No.72	UB, Khan-Uui District, 2 rd Khoroo	Bogd Khan SPA is 8 km
8	Kindergarten No.84	UB, Songinoknairknan, 6 ⁴⁴ knoroo	Bogd Knan SPA is 9 km
9	Kindergarten No.104	UB, Songinoknairknan, 12th knoroo	Bogd Knan SPA is 9 km
10	Kindergarten No.107	UB, Songinokhairkhan, 14" khoroo	Bogd Khan SPA is 9 km
11	Kindergarten No.110	UB, Songinoknairknan, 15 ^{er} knoroo	Bogd Khan SPA is 9 km
12	Kindergarten No.176	UB, Songinokhairkhan, 31 st khoroo	Bogd Khan SPA is 17 km
13	Kindergarten No.68	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 3 ^{ra} khoroo	Bogd Khan SPA is 8 km
14	Kindergarten No.160	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 3 rd khoroo	Bogd Khan SPA is 7 km
15	Kindergarten No.17	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 10 th khoroo	Bogd Khan SPA is 15 km
16	Kindergarten No.5	Govisumber, Sumber Soum, 3 rd bagh	Ikh Nart Nature Reserve is 65
17	Kindergarten No.6	Khuvsgul, Murun <i>soum</i> , 8 th bagh	Khuvsgul lake National Park is 90 km
A 2	Kindergartens under new	construction	
1	New kindergarten	UB Bayanzurkh District, 24 th khoroo	Bogd Khan SPA is 20 km
2	New kindergarten	UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th khoroo	Bogd Khan SPA is 16 km
3	New kindergarten	UB, Songinokhairkhan, 25 th khoroo	Bogd Khan SPA is 19 km
В	Schools:		
B 1	Schools under expansion:		
1	School No.51	Bayangol District, UB	Bogd Khan SPA is 10 km
2	School No.18	UB, Khan-Uul District	Bogd Khan SPA is 8 km
3	"Erdmiin Orgil" Complex	UB, Nalaikh District	Bogd Khan SPA is 17 km
4	"Ireedui" Primary School	UB, Songinokhairkhan District.	Bogd Khan SPA is 10 km
5	"Ireedui" Secondary School	UB, Songinokhairkhan District	Bogd Khan SPA is 10 km
6	School No.122	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 22 nd	Bogd Khan SPA is 19 km
7	School No.6	UB. Sukhbaatar District	Bogd Khan SPA is 9 km
8	Khantaishir	Govi-Altai, Altai <i>soum</i>	Khasagt Khairkhan National
-			Park is 50 km
B 2	Schools under new constr	uction :	
1	New school	Songinokhairkhan District, 7 th khoroo	Bogd Khan Mountain SPA is 20 km
2	New school	Darkhan, Mangirt, 15 th bagh	Tujiin Nars NP is 90 km

6.3.4 Current vs. Suggested solutions for infrastructure for sub-projects

307. Total of 30 sites including 10 schools and 20 kindergartens suggested to be supported by the project. Currently, from rest 30 project sites, 5 sites require new construction (NC), 22 sites to be built in separate buildings (SB),3 sites require additional floor (AF) expansion. Out of them, 22 sites have connected to Central Heating (CH), 2 sites have individual Heat Only Boiler (HOB) and 1 site has Electric Heating (EH), 22 sites have connected to Central Water Supply System (CWSS), 2 sites have individual Deep Water Well (DWW) for water supply and 1 site have transporting water from other area. In total 22 sites have connected to Central Sewage System (CSS), 1 site have individual Holding Tank (HT), 1 site has no sewage facility and uses a pit for grey water disposing.

308. Basing on current situation of infrastructure and possibilities to be connected service infrastructures of project sites, the project future solution would be suggested as in **Table 6.4** that 25 sites which have the possibilities have to be connected to Central Heating (CH), 5 sites will have individual Heat Only Boiler (HOB) or Electric Heating (EH), 25 sites will be connected to Central Water Supply System (CWSS), 5 sites must have Deep Water Wells (DWW) for water supply and 25 sites will be connected to Central Sewage System (CSS), 2 sites can have individual Septic Tank (ST) and 3 sites which have no enough space for installing ST can be have Holding Tank (HT) for disposing waste water.

309. **Table 6.4** lists all current vs suggested infrastructure solutions for each sub-project site.

N o	Sub-Project Location Type of projected components		Current/Future situation of infrastructure or Utilities				ation of Jtilities			
			NC/SB/AF	Capac ity	He	ating	Water Supply		Waste wa	
					Curr	Future	Current	Fut	Current	Fut
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	<u>9</u>	10	11
Α	Kindergartens	-								
A 1	Kindergartens und	er expansion								
1	Kindergarten No.164	UB, Bayangol District, 4 th <i>khoroo</i>	SB	150	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
2	Kindergarten No.88	UB, Bayangol District, 18 th <i>khoroo</i>	SB	140	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
3	Kindergarten No.22	UB, Bayanzurkh District, 1 st <i>khoroo</i>	SB	140	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
4	Kindergarten No.8	UB, Bayanzurkh District, (16 th <i>khoroo</i>	SB	240	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
5	Kindergarten No.82	UB, Bayanzurkh District, 16 th <i>khoroo</i>	SB	140	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
6	Kindergarten No.65	UB, Khan-Uul District, 2 nd khoroo	SB	240	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
7	Kindergarten No.72	UB, Khan-Uul District, 2 nd <i>khoroo</i>	SB	150	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
8	Kindergarten No.84	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 6 th <i>khoroo</i>	SB	200	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
9	Kindergarten No.104	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 12th <i>khoroo</i>	SB	140	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
1 0	Kindergarten No.107	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 14 th <i>khoroo</i>	SB	140	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S

Table 6.4: Existing and suggested infrastructures at each sub-project site

N o	Sub-Project components	Location	Type of projection	ected		Curren infras	t/Future tructure	situ or l	ation of Jtilities	
			NC/SB/AF	Capac ity	He	ating	Water Supply		Waste w	ater
					Curr ent	Future	Current	Fut ure	Current	Fut ure
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11
1	Kindergarten	UB. Songinokhairkhan	SB	140	СН	СН	CWS	CW	CSS	CS
1	No.110	District. 15 th khoroo		_		_	-	S	-	S
1 2	Kindergarten No.176	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 31 st <i>khoroo</i>	AF	100	HO B	НОВ	DWW	DW W	HT	ΗT
1 3	Kindergarten No.68	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 3 rd khoroo	SB	150	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
1 4	Kindergarten No.160	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 3 rd <i>khoroo</i>	SB	140	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
1 5	Kindergarten No.17	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 10 th <i>khoroo</i>	SB	240	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
1 6	Kindergarten No.5	Govisumber, Sumber <i>Soum</i> , 3rd <i>bagh</i>	NC	240	Non e	СН	None	CW S	None	CS S
1 7	Kindergarten No.6	Khuvsgul, Murun <i>soum</i> , 8 th bagh	SB	240	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
A 2	Kindergartens un	der new construction								
1	New kindergarten	UB Bayanzurkh District, 24 th <i>khoroo</i>	NC	240	EH	HOB or EH	Transp orting	DW W	Gray water pit	ΗT
2	New kindergarten	UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th <i>khoroo</i>	NC	240	Non e	СН	None	CW S	None	CS S
3	New kindergarten	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 25 th <i>khoroo</i>	NC	150	Non e	НОВ	None	DW W	None	ΗT
В	Schools:									
В 1	Schools under ex	pansion:		-		_			_	
1	School No.51	Bayangol District, UB	SB	320	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
2	School No.18	UB, Khan-Uul District	AF	320	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
3	"Erdmiin Orgil" Complex	UB, Nalaikh District	SB	320	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
4	"Ireedui" Primary School	UB, Songinokhairkhan District	AF	320	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
5	"Ireedui" Secondary School	UB, Songinokhairkhan District	AF	320	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
6	School No.122 (Green school)	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 22 nd <i>khoroo</i>	SB	640	HO B	НОВ	DWW	DW W	HT	ST
7	School No.6	UB, Sukhbaatar District	AF	320	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
8	Khantaishir	Govi-Altai, Altai Soum	SB	320	СН	СН	CWS	CW S	CSS	CS S
B 2	Schools under ne	w construction :								
1	New school	Songinokhairkhan District, 7 th khoroo	NC	640	Non e	НОВ	None	DW W	None	ST
2	New school	Darkhan, Mangirt, 15 th <i>bagh</i>	NC	920	Non e	СН	None	CW S	None	CS S

Remark:NC-New Construction, SB-Separate Building, AF-Additional Floor, CH-Central Heating, CWS-Central Water Supply, CSS-Central Sewage System, DWW-Deep Water Well, HOB-

Heat Only Boiler, ET-Electric Heating, GAWDS- Ger Area Water Distribution System and HT-Holding Tank, ST-Septic Tank.

6.4 Cumulative Impact Analysis of subprojects

310. The potentially affected environment in the project area is defined principally in regard to two factors: (i) the nature and scale of the proposed action; and (ii) the sensitivity and circumstances of the environment in which the proposed action will occur or issues of special concern (such as induced and cumulative impacts, etc.). The project's area of influence regarding potential impacts associated with noise and traffic congestion during construction will extend to areas around the construction zones.

311. There are no physical-geological and hydro-dynamically difficult conditions that may adversely impact the construction, and there is a low earthquake potential. No environmentally sensitive areas were observed near the sites as all infrastructure improvements are located in Ulaanbaatar City and other *Aimags/aimags*. There are no cultural heritage sites in the project areas.

312. **Densification of area.** The schools/Kindergartens have sufficient vacant pieces of land required for expansion project in the current premises that was not used as a playground. Therefore, the issue of densification of construction in the area does not arise.

313. **Influence zone of each School/kindergarten.** In some areas, where the other schools are located in vicinity (about 100m distance), the expansion plan is located in the other direction so the distance does not decrease. Figures in **Annexure 1b** provide details about the affected area for each school/kindergarten. The effective area of influence taken for each school is a 100 m radius for all impacts – noise, dust, and traffic.

314. **Noise.** During construction phase, there is no concurrent construction in two adjoining schools so there will be no amplification of noise to the neighbourhood. The Construction company will install noise barriers during construction if the residents complain of higher noise incidence from construction activities. However, during operations, the noise from the playgrounds may increase due to increased number of children, the residents during the consultations have assured that they would not be inconvenienced on that account.

315. **Greenhouse Gas emissions.** The project would install about 10 heat only boilers in locations where the district heating is not available (Ger areas). Given that the hours of operation would for 12 hours for 210 days (1 October to 1 May) at the emission rate of 2500g/s for 10 boilers would lead to 9 tonnes/annum (Calculated using data from **Table 14.2 in Annexure 4**). The EHS guideline which states that GHG emission limit for project should not exceed 25,000²⁷ tonnes/annum is well within limits. However, the discussion were held with MES to install electric floor heating and electric boiler for hot water in these schools to avoid handling of coal, ash and its related impacts of using Heat only Boiler. Eight of the nine sub-projects that will be implemented under additional financing will be connected to central heating, and the detailed design for one kindergarten building's heating has been developed using electric heating.

316. Summary of Impacts. Potential environmental impacts (both positive and negative)

²⁷ EHS Guideline, Guidance Note 3 Resource Efficiency and Pollution Prevention, 2012

associated with all project phases were identified in this section is illustrated by the following Table. Most of the minor, temporary adverse environmental impacts relate to the building construction process, and can be relatively easily mitigated with standard best practices that are increasingly being required of the construction industry. **Table 6.5** provides a summary analysis of positive and adverse impacts of the sub-projects.

 Table 6.5:
 Summary Analysis of Positive and Adverse Impacts:

1	Project Activities	Positive Impacts (Type)
Α	Pre-Construction	
i	Increasing local businesses	Local business will be enhanced due to the construction activities in the area. Local construction companies will be contracted. (Temporary)
<u>В</u> і	Construction Employment	Employment opportunity to local population. (Temporary)
<u>c</u> i	Socio -economic impact	Development of education facilities will help nomadic population in the country to send their children for education and thereby may develop the society and neighbourhood (Permanent)
ii	State of Art new facilities	Most schools building are between 30-40-year-old buildings having inefficient heating, electricity, rusted water and inadequate sanitation. (Permanent)
2	Project Activities	Adverse Impacts (Type)
Α	Pre-Construction	
i ii	Site Access Site preparation, clearing and earthworks	Loss of access to the site for students play area. (Temporary) Clearing of vegetation, trees; land development may create problems in local drainage pattern; emission of dust, Improper management of construction debris and solid waste may pose risk to the students and others; construction noise (Temporary).
_	• • •	Reduction in visual aesthetics at site, access road, truck traffic, construction equipment and permanent building (Permanent).
<u>B</u> i	Construction Influx of workers	Health & safety of workers at site may pose to risk; concentration of labour force creates un-hygienic condition and sanitation hazard (Temporary).
ii	Construction equipment / materials	Brick/stone crushing and equipment installations may create noise; carrying of construction materials may create traffic congestion; cutting/filling, stockpiling of construction material and traffic movement may create dust emission, improper management of construction debris and solid waste may pose risk to the workers, students and residents (Temporary).
iii	Vehicle and pedestrian traffic	More congestion near the main entrance to the; increased number of vehicles on local roads will result in increased wear and tear of local roads thus reducing lifespan of affected roads; pedestrians to exercise care with increase of vehicular traffic on the adjacent roads and increase of exhaust emission from vehicles (Temporary).
<u>С</u> і	Operation Vehicle and pedestrian traffic adjacent to School building Generation of	Slightly more congestion near the main entrance to the School; Pedestrians to exercise more care with increase of vehicular traffic at school gates for drop-pickup of students; increase of exhaust emission from vehicles, which will pollute local atmospheric air (Temporary). Improper solid waste management, sanitation hazard. (Temporary)
	consumables	
iii	Increased demand	Increased risk of water shortages and electricity load shedding.
-----	-----------------------	--
	on local services	(Permanent)
iv	Extreme climate	Mongolia is earthquake prone area. Fire hazard or any medical
	events, disasters and	emergency may arise during operation of the school. (Permanent)
	emergency	

317. **Impacts on key environmental parameters (Air, water, soil and Noise).** The **Table 6.6** below lists impacts on environment parameters of the sub-project areas where the project will be implemented.

Table 6.6: Impact of key environment parameters						
#	Environmenta I Parameter	Type of	Reason	Proposed Mitigation Measures		
		Impact				
1	Air Quality	Low	Insignificant air emission from the construction activity except during stacking/storage of soil, construction material at site	Sprinkling of water, proper handling of excavated soil, construction material, banned substances/VOCs etc.		
2	Water Quality	Low	The project will require small quantity of water for construction. No hazardous effluent is envisaged to be discharged during construction	The required water will be sourced from tankers by the construction company. Domestic effluent shall be discharged in holding tanks which will be cleaned regularly and waste thrown at urban body's solid waste management site.		
3	Soil Quality	Low	Land is available-has open/vacant areas within the school premises for expansion projects and government land for new schools.	Construction company to ensure proper housekeeping, sanitation and cleanliness at work site.		
4	Noise Quality	Low	The construction activity may lead to noise pollution during concreting –steel cutting, bending, casting using vibrators, operation of mechanised equipment and drills etc. that will affect the residents of the area. Small noise related installations within shell structure may continue beyond school holidays	The schools shall be closed for summer vacation during shell construction of the building to minimize disruption. Noise monitoring will be done at regular intervals. If any night construction activity that is noise intensive is undertaken, neighbourhood must be consulted to determine suitable timings.		
5	Hazardous Substance – e.g. Asbestos,	Minimal	The expansion sub- projects will not impact the main buildings of the	Sections of buildings, if they contain any hazardous material will not be selected for		

#	Environmenta I Parameter	Type of Impact	Reason	Proposed Mitigation Measures
	VOCs		schools	improvement actions.
6	Terrestrial Ecology	Low	No ecologically sensitive place (protected area/reserved forest/Important flora and fauna species) within 5 km radius from each sub-project site	Tree replantation/transplantation to be carried out inside school if any trees are cut by the construction company

7.0 ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN

7.1 Critical Environmental Review Criteria

(i) Loss of irreplaceable resources

318. The School/Kindergarten projects do not involve any large-scale excavation and land Thus, there will be no net "Biodiversity Loss" due to project implementation due to felling of trees.

(ii) Accelerated use of resources for short-term gains

319. The project will not use any natural resources occurring in the area during construction, operation and maintenance phases. The construction material such as steel, cement, etc. shall come from factories while the excavated soil shall be disposed in designated waste management sites designated by urban body. Thus, the project shall not cause any accelerated use of resources for short term gains.

(iii) Endangering of species

320. No endangered species of flora and fauna exist in the project area and there seems to be no possibility of endangering/causing extinction of any species.

(iv) **Promoting undesirable rural-to urban migration**

321. The project will not cause any submergence or loss of land holdings that normally trigger migration. It also does not involve acquisition of any private land holdings. Hence, there is no possibility of any migration.

(v) Increase in affluent/poor income gap

322. The project will increase availability of education facilities to the neighbourhood communities. Several vulnerable communities are also going to be benefitted due to these facilities. Thus, the project is expected to contribute in reduction of affluent/poor income gap by providing education opportunities for children of "herder" nomadic population thereby making them equal footing into mainstream of economic streams in future.

7.2 Disaster Management, Health and Safety, Training

323. **Disaster Management.** Though major earthquake in recent years, small to moderate earthquake have been felt in Mongolia. The flood risk in Ulaanbaatar, Darkhan and other a*imags* is lower than that of the other parts of country. The *aimag* Emergency Management Agencies are formed under the National Emergency Management Agency (NEMA) of Government and have been designated to take care of disaster management issues in their respective areas. Disaster resilient features²⁸ will be built into new and expanded schools and kindergartens. The facilities will have sound seismic design to withstand earthquakes, winter snow storms, improved flood control and precipitation resistant features for all the proposed kindergartens/schools.

324. **Health and Safety Issues Management.** To avoid/ minimize inherent risks during construction, operation and maintenance, the construction company will follow national and

²⁸ The ability of a system, community, or society exposed to hazards to resist, absorb, accommodate to, and recover from the effects of a hazard in a timely and efficient manner, including through the preservation and restoration of its essential basic structures and functions (UNISDR Terminology on Disaster Risk Reduction. https://www.unisdr.org/we/inform/terminology) Source: Reducing Disaster Risk by Managing Urban Land Use, Guidance Notes for Planners, ADB, 2016

international Environment, Health and Safety Procedure for construction and expansion of schools/kindergartens and the operations and maintenance (O&M) period. Some other implications and mitigations from safety point of view are listed in **Table 7.1** below:

No	Implication	Mitigation					
1	Falling object accidents	Proper signs to avoid areas where falling objects can hurt passers-by, school children etc.					
2	Open construction boundary	Construction company to install metal sheet barriers that are high enough to make a boundary so that children, residents cannot get unauthorized access into construction sites					
3	Electrical shock/fire due to any open wiring at construction site	Ensure all access points to the schools do not have any open electrical connections/wires lying in open					
4	Accidents at school gates due to congestion caused during construction	Alighting area for children from cars, buses					

Table 7.1: Safety	Implication and Mitigation
-------------------	----------------------------

325. Training Programs. The training program will be developed by PIU team comprising of Environment Specialist, M&E Specialist who will be contracted with PIU during project implementation. Each of training should last 1 day with specific program and should include interactive problem solving tasks

326. Trainings on EMP implementation for construction company, Emergency Response systems for all emergency situations, Occupational Health and Safety etc. are proposed to be held as per training program as shown below in **Table 7.2.** The costs for all the training programs are included in the ADB funding for the project.

	Table 7.2. Training programme - summary of training needs								
Training topic:	Summary of training purpose and content	Recipients/ Participants	Frequency or target date						
Induction to	Overview of EMP including site information, pollution risks	All PIU	At beginning of						
EMP	and controls, and programmes. Preparation of site specific	engineers /	project						
	EMPs and training on implementation to staff of construction company (s)	contractors							
Review of	Review of EMP including new changes and updates	All PIU	One year after						
EMP,		Engineers /	project start, or						
Refresher		contractors	more						
training on			frequently if						
EMP			required						
Training on	specific pollution risks and controls								
Emergency	To identify on-site "potential accident scenario" and how to	All PIU	During the						
case	plan potential emergency response actions.	Engineers	project						
response		/contractors/	implementation						
planning		residents							
Air Quality	Ambient Air Quality, Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs),	All PIU	During the						
Monitoring	Particulate Matter (PM), Ozone Depleting Substances	Engineers	project						
	(ODS), Greenhouse Gases (GHGs)	/contractors	implementation						
Water	Water Monitoring and Management, Process Water Reuse	All PIU	During the						
Conservati	and Recycling, Heating Systems	Engineers	project						
on		/contractors	implementation						

Training programma cummon of training poods

Training topic:	Summary of training purpose and content	Recipients/ Participants	Frequency or target date
Wastewate r and Ambient Water Quality	Liquid Effluent Quality, Discharge to Surface Water, Discharge to Sanitary Sewer Systems, Land Application of Treated Effluent, Septic Systems, Wastewater Management	All PIU Engineers /contractors	During the project implementation
Hazardous Materials Manageme nt	General Hazardous Materials Management, Hazard Assessment, Management Actions	All PIU Engineers /contractors	During the project implementation
Fire safety	Fire, and Explosion Prevention, Control Measures,	All PIU Engineers /contractors	During the project implementation
Occupation al Safety, Health and Safety	Occupational Health and Safety Emergency Preparedness and Response, Community Involvement and Awareness	All PIU Engineers /contractors	During the project implementation
Waste Manageme nt	General Waste Management, Waste Management Planning, Waste Recycling and Reuse, Treatment and Disposal, Waste Storage, Transportation, Treatment and Disposal, Commercial or Government Waste Contractors	All PIU Engineers /contractors	During the project implementation
Monitoring a	nd evaluation		
Participator y M&E of impacts.	Simple methods for recognizing adverse impacts on environment. Methodology of monitoring and evaluation on the water quality	Local residents, School managements/c onstruction company	During the project implementation
Energy Efficiency and Green Buildings	Introduction to energy efficiency, heat loss, green school concept	Local residents, School managements	During the project implementation
Project manageme nt and implementa tion	M&E, Implementation assessment the program. Principle of donor organizations' support to local beneficiaries.	All PIU Engineers /contractors	At the beginning of the project

7.3 Environmental Impact Matrix

327. The environmental impacts management matrix has been prepared for the project that discusses the anticipated impacts, monitoring requirements, and development of mitigation measures with respect to the following stages: (i) pre-construction, (ii) construction, and (iii) operation and maintenance. Detailed, site-specific mitigation measures and monitoring plans were developed and will be implemented during the project implementation phase. A summary environmental impact matrix and the mitigation measures are mentioned in **Table 7.3**.

SI N	Environmental attribute	Potential impacts	Nature of impact	Mag impa Lo	Magnitude of impacts Lo Mediu Hig		Mitigation measures	Implementa tion and Monitoring
Α	Physical Resource	S						
<u>.</u> 1.	Topography	Change in the surface features and present aesthetics due to the constructio n of the project.	Direct/Local / irreversible		Х		The surface soil will be restored to normal slope after erection. If there is any excess soil, it shall be disposed of at suitable location. Any loss of vegetation will be attended by MES as per existing Government of Mongolia norms and per EMP.	During construction activity.
2.	Climate	No impact on the climatic conditions	Direct/Local / irreversible	Х			No impact on the climatic conditions, hence no mitigation is required.	
В	Environmental Res	sources						
1.	Air Quality	Project will have marginal impact on air quality during the constructio n period due to increase in the dust emission due to cutting/fillin g, stockpiling of constructio n material and traffic movement	Direct/Local / reversible	X			Water sprinkling at construction site, limited bare soils, maintenance of vehicles.	During construction activity.
2.	Noise	Noise from piling, brick/stone crushing, concreting and	Direct/Local / reversible	X	_		Restriction of noise generating activities at night and use of personal protective	During construction activity.

Table 7.3: Environmental Impact Matrix

SI	Environmental attribute	Potential impacts	Nature of impact	Mag impa	nitude acts	of	Mitigation measures	Implementa tion and	
N °		-		Lo	Mediu m	Hig h		Monitoring	
		equipment installation.					equipment like ear plugs, mufflers.		
3.	Surface and Ground Water quality	Runoff from the constructio n site.	Direct/Local / reversible	Х			Land development may create problems in local drainage pattern, minor impact. Careful siting of soil dump and construction material at site.	Before and during construction activity.	
		Domestic wastewater from constructio n sites. Cutting/fillin g at constructio n site would create natural drainage blockade during rainy season.	Direct/Local / reversible	X			Domestic waste treatment by providing septic tank/soak pits at work site for workers at each location.	During construction and operation.	
4.	Soils and Geology	Soil erosion due to clearing of topsoil at site.	Direct/Local / reversible		Х		Rehabilitation and stabilization of disturbed land at the Schools/Kinderga rtens.	During and after the construction activity.	
		Damage due to seismic activity.	Direct/regio nal/ reversible	х			Site selection and proper foundation design considering the geological conditions and seismicity of the area.	Before the construction activity.	
		Settling of foundations due to permafrost	Direct/regio nal/ reversible		x		Site selection and proper foundation design considering the geological conditions of the area.	Before the construction activity.	
С	Ecological Resour	ces							
1.	Terrestrial Ecology	Loss of vegetation.	Direct/Local / irreversible		X		The tree planting/transplan tation for trees	Before the construction phase.	

SI	Environmental attribute	Potential impacts	Nature of impact	Mag impa	nitude acts	of	Mitigation measures	Implementa tion and
N 0				Lo w	Mediu m	Hig h		Monitoring
							felled will be done by the Construction Company	
2.	Terrestrial Fauna	No significant impacts envisaged.	Direct/Local / reversible	Х			No direct impact	Before and during construction phase.
3.	Aquatic Ecology	No significant impacts envisaged.	Direct/Local / reversible	x			Disposal of construction waste and other waste to avoid polluting any water body and streams.	Before and during construction phase
D	Human Environme	ent						
1	Health and Safety	Fires, explosion and other accidents, Health & safety of workers at site may pose to risk in some cases.	Direct/Local	х			Use of personal protective equipment during construction. Regular inspection of construction site for faults prone to accidents. Volatile organics to be handled	During construction and operation phase
		Banned Substances ; Safe drinking water and Sanitation hazard	Direct/Local		X		Presence of Asbestos in old buildings, concentration of labour force creates un- hygienic condition; provide proper facilities	During construction phase
2.	Agriculture	No significant impacts envisaged.	Direct/Local / reversible	Х			No agriculture land used for new school/expansion.	Before and during construction phase.
4.	Socio-economics	Beneficial impacts job opportunitie s during constructio n phase	Direct/regio nal		X		Unskilled labour and indirect benefits. Overall economic growth of the region.	During operational phase
5.	Resettlement	No significant impacts envisaged.	Direct/Local / reversible	Х			No resettlement issues.	Before the construction phase.
6.	Archaeological/C ultural sites	No archaeologi	Direct/Local / reversible	Х			No archaeological.	
		J.	-				J /	

SI	Environmental attribute	Potential impacts	Nature of impact	Mag impa	nitude acts	of	Mitigation measures	Implementa tion and
N 0				Lo	Mediu	Hig b		Monitoring
		cal, historical, or cultural important sites are affected by the constructio n.		w			historical, or cultural important sites are affected.	
7.	Traffic and Transportation	Traffic congestion due constructio n vehicles, ferry of constructio n and waste material. Increase in temporary traffic at gates due to pickup of students	Direct/Local / reversible	X			Proper traffic signs at the construction site, ensuring availability and maintenance of proper access roads. Ensuring more staggered timings for students.	During construction phase During construction and operation phase
8.	Waste Generation	Probability of Surface and ground water pollution. Improper manageme nt of constructio n debris and solid waste may pose risk to the neighbours.	indirect/Loc al/ reversible	X			Minimization, reuse and recycle whenever possible. Final wastes to be collected and disposed off in compliance with applicable regulations and rules.	During operation phase
		Pollution from liquid discharge	indirect/Loc al/ reversible	Х			Noliquiddischargefromtheproject,domesticsewageshouldbedisposedthroughseptic tank	During operation phase
9	Site Security	Improper site security may pose risk to the school children or community	Direct/Local / reversible	X			Proper fencing and protection at the construction sites, and manned security a must at the school site.	During construction phase

7.4 Monitoring

328. In addition to the EMP, to ensure that project would not be generating a negative impact to the overall environment quality, an Environmental Monitoring Plan (EMoP) will be prepared. The monitoring activities of the project include site supervision, verification of permits, monitoring of water quality, soil, noise and air. Monitoring of the quality of water, soil, air and noise during the construction stage is a responsibility of civil works contractors. PIU engineers (who are contracted by PIU) will supervise civil works contractors. Monitoring of sanitary waste treatment should be done periodically to avoid water pollution. Other environmental good practices include noise abatement, maintaining hygienic conditions, maintenance of fire and safety equipment etc. Environmental monitoring report will check whether the project works during implementation may trigger any unanticipated impacts or any impacts on existing and/or associated facilities or not, and measures for such impacts are undertaken. Monitoring report should be prepared once in six months with the corrective action plan for the problem areas.

329. MES will be responsible for implementing internal monitoring systems for EMP implementation, and will forward semi-annual progress reports to the Government and ADB. The reports will cover EMP implementation with attention to compliance and any needed corrective actions. On-going consultation measures will be incorporated in the EMP.

330. The PIU will be responsible for internal monitoring of the EMP implementation and will develop quarterly progress reports with details of activities and progress made during EMP implementation. The PIU will submit annual monitoring reports to ADB. If project activities are noticed to have significant adverse environmental impacts, ADB requires MES to retain qualified and experienced experts²⁹ or qualified Non-Government Organisation (NGO) or Community Based Organization (CBO) to verify the report. If required, these external experts/NGO or CBO will report on a semi-annual basis directly to ADB to verify if sound environmental management practices were followed during implementation. In case the implementation of EMP measures is not satisfactory, the external experts/NGO or CBO will recommend actions to enhance environmental compliance. A template of the Environment Monitoring Report is attached as **Annexure 5**, which will be required to submit bi-annually by MES to ADB.

7.5 Environmental Management Plan (EMP)

331. The Environmental Management Plan (EMP) for the project is attached as **Annexure 2**, which identifies feasible and cost - effective measures to be taken to reduce potential significant, adverse, impacts to acceptable levels. Here, proper mitigation measures are proposed for each potential impact, including details on responsible parties for implementation of mitigation measures and supervision. Performance indicators which will describe the desired outcomes as measurable events to the extent possible, such as performance indicators, targets, or acceptable criteria that can be tracked over defined time periods will be designed and implemented. The performance monitoring shall be done by the PIU as part of EMP and EMoP implementation monitoring.

7.6 Environmental Monitoring Plan (EMoP)

332. The mitigation measures suggested requires monitoring of environmental attributes both during construction and operational phase of the project by the MES. During the construction and operation phase of this project, the monitoring of the environmental aspects shall be done at the Schools/Kindergarten by the environment specialist of the PIU.

²⁹ External expert who is not involved in day-to-day project implementation or supervision.

333. **Review process of site specific EMPs.** The Environment Specialist will review the Contractor's internal procedures ad capacity to manage and implement site specific environmental management mitigation measures. To this end, the training program in **Table 7.2** has provision for training of the Contractor's staff. The Environment Specialist³⁰ will be the key person reviewing the implementation of EMP. **Annexure 3** provides the periodicity of the measurements of environmental parameters – air, noise, soil and water at the various schools/kindergartens to be implemented by the Construction Company during the construction phase. The Annexure also lays down the following checklist/clauses for the Construction Company to adhere to.

- Environmental Site Inspection and Monitoring Checklist, and
- Environmental Safeguard Clauses for Civil Works Contracts.

334. The environmental monitoring plan is to be utilized for measuring the extent of compliance with the EMP during the project implementation. The main objective of environmental monitoring is:

- to evaluate the performance of construction company in mitigating negative impacts vs. the proposed measures in the EMP;
- to provide information on unanticipated adverse impacts or sudden change in impact; to determine if any impacts are irreversible in nature which required remedial measures and monitoring;
- to suggest improvement in environmental mitigation measures, if required.

335. During the construction phase, civil works contractors should ensure that activities like handling of earth works clearing work, access road construction, putting proper traffic signals is done properly to have minimum impact. This in turn should be monitored by the construction supervision specialists responsible for the school/kindergarten project.

336. Implementation of environmental mitigation measures will be ensured through both routine and periodic monitoring. **Table 7.4** lists environmental monitoring activities during construction phase:

	Table 7.4	: Construction Pha	ase Monitoring	
#	Indicators of Monitoring	Types of Monitoring/	Monitoring	Responsibility
		Method of Monitoring	Frequency	
1	Safe transportation of	Visual Inspection	Regular	Civil works
	construction material through	Continuous	during	contractors
	neighbourhood and roads		construction	
2	Stockpiling of excavated	Visual Inspection	Regular	School/Civil works
	materials and appropriate		during	contractors
	disposal		construction	
3	Occupational health and	Use of PPE	Regular	Civil works
	safety, use of safety gears	Visual Inspection	during	contractors
	by workers		construction	
4	Safety to students, staff,	Record of injury or	Regular	School
	apartment dwellers etc.	accidents	during	
			construction	
5	Inconvenience to	Visual Inspection	Regular	School/Civil works
	apartment dwellers,	Continuous	during	contractors
	water logging etc.		construction	
6	Solid waste	Visual Inspection	Regular	Civil works
	segregation		during	contractors
	disposal		construction	

³⁰ The TOR for Environment Specialist lists this requirement and is attached to the Project Administration Manual (PAM)

7	Cutting/trimming of trees	Continuous	Regular during construction	School, Civil works contractors
8	Environmental Parameters Quality	Air, Water, Noise, soil sampling lab testing & comparison with Baseline of the area	Six Monthly	Civil works contractors

PPE: personal protective equipment

337. During the operation phase, the schools/kindergartens through MES could continue to conduct monitoring as specified below in **Table 7.5**:

Table 7.5: Operations Phase Monitoring									
#	Indicators of Monitoring	Types of Monitoring/ Method of Monitoring	Monitoring Frequency	Responsibilit y					
1	Solid waste management system	Records of waste collected and managed	Bi-annual	School/ PIU					
2	Number of orientation and trainings on safety, facility usage to students, staff	Number of orientation and trainings conducted	Regular	School/ PIU					
3	Preparation of monitoring reports and Impact audits	Preparation of monitoring reports and Compliance with EMP	Bi-Annual	School/ PIU					

EMP = environmental management plan, PIU = project implementation unit

338. **Construction Contracts.** The construction company will adhere and comply with all measures and procedures identified in the EMP. The EMP and EMoP which are endorsed by the EA and Government of Mongolia, will be monitored in accordance to ADB Safeguard Policy 2009 requirements. Mitigation measures related to construction as specified in the EMP will be incorporated into civil works contracts, and their implementation will be primarily the responsibility of civil works contractors. In addition, civil works contractors will be requested to submit monthly progress reports on the implementation of EMP measures to EA/PIU.

339. **Reporting.** The EA in turn will be expected to report to the ADB on progress achieved against the EMP activities and milestones on a quarterly basis. Progress reports will include a description of implementable activities and their status; identify the responsible parties involved in their implementation; and provide project management schedules and timeframes for doing so, along with their associated costs.

7.7 Environmental Management Plan Budget Costs

340. The main benefits of the environmental mitigation plan are (i) ensuring that environmental standards are met during design, construction, and operation of the project; (ii) providing offsets to negate project impacts especially ecological impacts. Without such expenditures, the project might generate significant environmental impacts, causing the biophysical environment in the area to deteriorate and indirectly depressing the economies of local communities.

341. The compliance with the EMP has been prepared based upon optimum and reasonable costs that are derived upon minimization of mitigation measures on a "least-cost" basis. The estimated budget for implementing the EMP is USD\$ 280,000 of the total project cost of USD 40 million as shown in **Table 7.6**.

	Table 7.6. Estimated costs for implement	enting EMP.
#	Type of expenses	Cost Estimates USD \$

1	Promotion and advertisement of the EMP*	30,000
2	Support the implementation of mitigation activities**	100,000
3	Reviewing and revising of EMP***	30,000
4	Training and Consultancy ****	30,000
5	Budget for the Monitoring activities	50,000
6	Budget for public consultation and feedback	40,000
	TOTAL	280,000

"Promotion and advertisement of the EMP" include activities to provide awareness on EMP to relevant stakeholders and public communities in surrounding areas of construction sites as well as informing them of the roles and responsibilities of various parties involved. Costs may include development of promotional materials, advertising etc.

** Approximately 0.25% of total project cost for individual package

*** Revision of IEE/EMP, if major scope of project activities change during implementation

**** Training costs for items as per Table 7.2 above

342. The cost components include items such cost towards promotion, advertisement and implementation of mitigation activities (Construction Company's civil works scope), review and revision of IEE/EMP is scope changes, Training and consultancy (identified in Table 7.2), monitoring of EMP and support implementation of mitigation activities etc. in entire location of Schools/Kindergarten and future public consultations required. These activities will be coordinated by the PIU Coordinator, Environment Specialist, M&E specialist, and the construction supervision specialists hired for project implementation and supervision of the construction company.

7.8 **Institutional Arrangements**

7.8.1 **Project Implementation Organizations: Roles and Responsibilities**

343. The Ministry of Education and Science (MES) will be the executing agency of the project and will oversee overall project implementation and management activities to ensure smooth and timely implementation and completion of project activities. The MES and UMED will be the implementing agencies. The overall project will be implemented from September 2017 to December 2026.

344. The project steering committee will be established by MES and comprise MECSS directors, representatives of MOF, UMED, Engineering Supply Department of Ulaanbaatar Municipality, Education Evaluation Center, General Authority for Education, and Mongolian National Research Institute of Education. The MES will constitute a Project Implementation Unit (PIU) for implementing the ADB loan which will be established by MES to manage day-to-day activities of the project. Table 7.7 below depicts Management roles and responsibilities.

Table 7.7: Management Roles and Responsibilities										
Project Implementation	Management Roles and Responsibilities									
Organizations										
Executing agency – Ministry of	(i) Establish project implementation unit.									
Education and Culture, (MES)	(ii) Establish project steering committee.									
	(iii) Establish systems, procedures, and mechanisms to ensure									
	effective and efficient project implementation.									
	(iv) Oversee overall project implementation and management									
	activities to ensure smooth and timely implementation and									
	completion of project activities.									
Project steering committee	(i) Approve annual budgets and plans for the project.									
	(ii) Oversee progress in project implementation.									
	(iii) Guide and support project implementation.									

	(:)	Dravida apardination batwaan ministrica and other
	(IV)	Provide coordination between ministnes and other
		stakeholders involved in project implementation.
Implementing Agencies	(i)	Provide strategic, policy, and coordination support for the
– General Authority for	()	implementation of outputs 1–5.
Education (GAE)	(ii)	Supervise all project activities under outputs 1–5.
Project implementation unit	(i)	Perform day-to-day management of the project.
	(ii)	Coordinate and implement project activities, including
		procurement, recruitment, disbursement, contract
		administration, monitoring, and reporting.
	(iii)	Prepare, on behalf of the executing and implementing
		agencies, bidding documents, terms of reference, reports,
		and other supporting documents and submit them for review
		and approval.
	(iv)	Maintain on behalf of the executing agency the imprest
		accounts; and prepare and submit withdrawal applications
		and supporting documents, quarterly and annual reports,
		annual audit reports and financial statements.
ADB	(i)	Provide technical support for project implementation.
	(ii)	Supervise and ensure compliance by the executing and
		implementing agencies with Asian Development Bank's
		policies and procedures in project implementation.

ADB = Asian Development Bank.

345. The project implementation unit will be staffed with experienced professionals (a project coordinator, a procurement specialist, a financial management specialist, monitoring and evaluation specialist (M&ES), social and gender specialist, curriculum and assessment specialist, teaching and learning material specialist, teacher training specialist, and a civil works subunit comprising civil, mechanical and electrical engineers, cost estimator, and environment specialist (ES)) to handle day-to-day project management.

7.8.2 Project Organization Structure

346. The interactions between steering committed, Ministry of Education, UMED and the PIU at the project level are shown in **Figure 7.1**.



Figure 7.1: Project Organization Structure

7.8.3 EMP implementation arrangements.

347. The Project Implementation Unit (PIU) which will assume primary responsibility for the environmental assessment as well as implementation of EMP through Construction Company (civil works contractors) or any third-party consultants. The Project coordinator will be assisted by the ES for environmental monitoring and EMP measures. Given the capacity of MES, it is proposed that ES and MES to coordinate with each construction company to address environmental mitigation issues³¹.

348. The duties of the Environmental Specialist will include at a minimum: (i) oversight of Construction Company for monitoring and implementing mitigation measures; (ii) liaising with the school/kindergarten management and Construction Company (civil works contractors) and seeking their help to solve the environment-related issues of project implementation; and (iii) technical progress reporting as well as preparation of environmental management reports every 6 months (as required by ADB).

349. The ES will be assisted by the Monitoring and Evaluation specialist (M&ES) in monitoring of the contract requirements and any specialist functions by the construction supervision specialists (civil, mechanical and electrical engineers etc.) hired under the PIU. Additional third-party services may be employed by the MES as necessary. Further details on person/agencies responsible for EMP activities are in **Table 7.8**.

Activity	Responsible Person/Agency										
Sub-project Initiation Stage											
Establish PIU and award contracts	Project Coordinator,										
	Procurement Specialist, PIU										
MES											
Clearances/approvals from relevant Government of Mongolia	PIU, MES										
agencies-urban, water, power etc.											
Disclosure of subproject EMP details on MES website	PIU, MES										
Conducting discussions/meetings/workshops with APs and other	ES and other Specialists at PIU										
stakeholders											
Updating of EMP mitigation measures based on discussions	ES, M&ES, PIU										
EMP Implementation Stage											
Meetings at community/household level with APs	ES, Construction Company										
Implementation of proposed EMP mitigation measures	ES, Construction Company										
Consultations with APs during EMP mitigation measures	ES, Construction Company										
implementation											
Grievances Redressal	PIU /District Administration										
Internal monitoring	PIU/ MES										
External monitoring*	External Experts										
ADB = Asian Development Bank; AP = Affected Persons; EA	A = Executing Agency; EMP =										

Table 7.8: Institutional Roles and Responsibilities for EMP Implementation Activities

³¹ ADB advises that all EAs develop in-house capability for environmental, health, and safety (EHS) program consistent with international best practices. The EHS program should include accounting for environmental benefits resulting from investment projects within three months of loan approval. The monitoring agency shall report on semi-annual basis directly to ADB and determine whether sound environmental management practices have been achieved, and suggest suitable recommendations and remedial measures for midterm correction and improvement.

Environmental Management Plan; PIU = Project Implementation Unit; ES = Environment Specialist *Note –External monitoring only required when projects are noticed to have significant adverse environmental impacts. Normally not required for Environment Category B project.

7.9 Implementation Plan

350. The proposed project involves expansion of 9 Schools, 21 Kindergartens on their premises at and construction of 3 new Schools and 12 Kindergartens on government owned land. The project will involve survey work, land clearance, design and engineering of plant equipment, floating tenders for procurement, civil work and testing and commissioning of buildings. Total project work in is costing USD 40 million (including IDCs and contingencies).

351. The overall draft project implementation schedule for Output 1 under the project is attached **as Table 7.9.**

	1 8		20	19			2020			2021				2	02 2			202 3		2024					2025				02 6		
Activities	4	1	2	3	4	1	2	3	4	1	2	3	4	1	2	3	4	1	2	3	4	1	2	3	4	1	2	3	4	1	2
Output 1: Gap in enrolr	nen	t ca	ара	city	/ of	sc	hoo	ols	and	d ki	nde	erga	arte	ens	na	rro	we	d													
1.1 Advertise and																															
recruit engineering																															
firm's packages (10																															
schools and 20																															
kindergartens)																															
1.2 Prepare drawings,																															
specifications, and																															
BOQ for 10 schools																															
1.3 Prepare drawings,																															
specifications, and																															
BOQ for 20																															
kindergartens																															
1.4 Prepare																															
specifications for																															
buildings, equipment,																															
and furniture (10																															
schools and 20																															
kindergartens)																															
1.5 Prepare and																															
advertise																															
procurement																															
packages of civil																															
works for 2 schools'																															
construction and 8																															
schools' expansion																															
and sign civil works																															
contracts for schools																															
1.6 Prepare and																															
advertise																															
procurement																															
packages of civil																															
works for 3																															
kindergartens																															
construction and 17																															
kindergartens																															
expansion and sign																															
civil works contracts																															
for kindergartens	for kindergartens																									l					
1.7 Apply for building																															
land and utility permits																															

Table 7.9: Overall Project Implementation Schedule (OUTPUT 1)

	1		20)19		2020			2021		202			202			2024			2025				202								
Activities	8		~~`		_		2020			2021					2				3			2727								6		
1.8 Recruit an																																
supervision training																																
specialist																																
1 9 Recruit 5 individual		-	-	1			-																									
construction																																
supervision specialists																																
1.10 Train construction																																
supervision specialists																																
and conduct other																																
consultative meetings																																
and training																																
1.11 Supervise civil																																
works on school and																																
kindergarten sites																																
1.12 Recruit social and																																
gender specialist																																
(international)							-																									
1.13 Recruit social and																																
gender specialist																																
1 1/ Implement	<u> </u>																															
n. 14 Implement, monitor, and report on																																
environment																																
management plans																																
1.15 Undertake civil																																
works for school																																
construction and																																
expansion																																
1.16 Conduct civil																																
works completion																																
inspections for the																																
constructed and																																
expanded schools																																
1.17 Undertake civil																																
works for kindergarten																																
construction and																																
1 19 Conduct civil				_							-	-																				
1.16 Conduct civil																																
inspections for the																																
constructed and																																
expanded																																
kindergartens																																
1.19 Prepare and																																
advertise procurement																																
packages for school																																
and kindergarten																																
furniture, and sign																																
contracts for school																																
and kindergarten																																
furniture and					1	1																										
	-	-		+	-										-	-												$\left - \right $	┍─┤			
advertise procurement					1	1																										
nackages for school					1	1																										
furniture and	1		1		1	1																										
equipment, and sign				1	1	1																										
contracts for school					1	1																										
furniture and					1	1																										
equipment	1		1		1	1																										
1.21 Supply the				1																												
furniture and	1		1	1	1	1																							.			

Activities	1 8	2019		2020			20)21	2	02 2		2(02 3		20	24		20	25	2	02 6
equipment to the schools																					
1.22 Establish a working group and strengthen schools' capacity to conduct blended learning by developing guidelines and train teachers																					

NOTE - This schedule is tentative and will be finalised based on each site as well as estimated schedule indicated by bidders for each contract.

8.0 INFORMATION DISCLOSURE, CONSULTATION AND PARTICIPATION

8.1 Consultation Process

352. During the project formulation stage, MES has conducted a project scoping exercise and reconnaissance survey of the existing system. Accordingly, during public consultation sessions, considerable dialogue had been held between MES representatives, individuals, and groups from the community to make them aware of the proposed project.

353. The project-affected community residing beside the proposed Schools/Kindergartens has already gained a reasonable knowledge about the potential grievances, which may arise in the future. The community were also informed about the Grievance Redress Mechanism (GRM), which will be followed by MES as per ADB SPS 2009 guidelines.

8.2 Consultation Details

354. During the site visits, the officials and consultants made numerous observations and held discussions with school managements concerned which would be helpful for project design: (i) location of proper access roads, laydown area for materials to be used by the construction companies to use without disturbing the school working and minimizing utilization of playground areas, (ii) avoidance of underground existing pipes for water, heating, sewage etc. at these proposed work sites, (iii) right of way for construction vehicles and provide traffic safety during construction to local residents living adjoining these schools, (iv) traffic caused by construction of new buildings/expansion projects by use of concrete, dump trucks etc. transporting materials inside school premises; traffic safety for children and their parents during operations of school in normal work hours (September 2017 onwards), (vi) lack of safety equipment such as smoke alarms in most old buildings and the need for adequate firefighting extinguishers and imparting evacuation drills and emergency response procedures training, (vii) distances of these schools from nonsensitive biodiversity areas and cultural heritage sites to ensure no impact, (viii) dust and noise emissions from the construction subprojects and their impacts on school children and apartment dwellers adjoining the school area, (ix) noises from any surroundings areas during construction and operations, (x) avoid any shadow projection onto adjoining buildings due to new structures to be constructed as part of this project, (xi) any banned substances generated as part of any expansion project such as asbestos etc., (xii) emissions from coal based heating and water boilers (some cases), (xiii) if insulation works are required in schools to ensure energy efficiency, i.e. Loss of heat due to old walls (xiv) if any associated facilities are present, and (xv) check climate change vulnerability of the location.

355. The team along with district officials and schools shall also conduct group discussions with the public residing in these subproject areas to sensitize them about project activities, their impacts and get their suggestions between January 26 to March 18, 2016, and August 29, 2023. **Annexure 6** indicates a summary of public consultations conducted during the field survey along with socio economic profile in the project affected area.

356. Consultations were carried out with various stakeholders such as MES officials, Government of Mongolia officials, relevant land departments and the sub divisional magistrate of the project area. As part of the assessment, approximately 2961 representatives from surrounding households, entities, apartments/buildings have been surveyed/interviewed to collect the data during the months of January/March 2017 and August 2023. These discussions were carried out at almost at nearby apartments/buildings that were situated in the vicinity of schools.

357. The resident community consulted was requested to air their opinions freely, on the project, its impact, and suggestions for mitigating adverse impacts. People participated in voluntary public consultation sessions to express their view about the proposed project. No major environmental issues were raised during the consultation process.

358. For the additional financing, the PIU reconsulted with the investment specialist of the Ulaanbaatar Municipality Education Department, principals of schools and the managers of kindergartens sites to clarify any land acquisition or involuntary resettlement issues in May-September 2023. Land acquisition will not be an issue for the two school expansions which will be expanded by an additional storey. Also, the PIU held public consultation meeting for nearby communities about expansion of 6th kindergarten of **Murun soum**, **Khuvsgul aimag** which was not included in ongoing project's scope.

359. The existing building of kindergarten in **Murun soum Khuvsgul aimag** does not meet quality and safety requirements for operation and hygiene by the state professional inspection. By supporting the Government's Action Plan for 2020-2024 for allowing every child of the countryside to enroll in a kindergarten, EA sent a request for changing scope of the project to ADB in December 2022. The public consultation meeting was conducted in the "Citizen Hall" of the Governor's Office of Murun *Soum* on 29 August 2023 by covering a total of 79 people from the local citizens of the 3rd and 8th *khoroo* and parents (guardians) on the expansion of kindergarten. Total of 79 people including parents, teachers, and local citizens were reached with 59 or 74.7 % were women, 13 or 17.7% were from ethnic backgrounds such as Khotgoid, Darkhad and Buriad), 51 or 64,5% were with bachelor and above, 28 or 35,5% were with secondary education. All attendees supported the construction for the expansion of the kindergarten. Attendees recommended to taking mitigation measures to reduce environmental impact, and to ensure safety during the construction work.

360. **Table 8.1** provides summary of public consultations. **Table 8.2** summarizes some follow-up actions recommended by the consultees.

#	Issues Discussed	Summary Responses and Suggestions from the Participants
1	Do you support for the construction at school.	Almost 100% of participants would support the new construction and expansion of schools/kindergartens. They expressed that accessibility to kindergartens/schools in vicinity of their homes is an important necessity. All schools and kindergartens have exceeded the number of students per their design capacity. The residents of these areas wished to have more increased access/admissions to school/kindergarten in their area.
2	What is educational status of your community?	Mostly people who reside in these areas have lower-than- average income or minimum income; completed secondary education and or even some are illiterate according to local social surveys conducted by social coordinator of the schools/kindergartens.
3	Will this construction at School/ Kindergartens give any negative impact to your apartment complex?	Majority or more than 905 of participants were explaining that there won't be any negative impacts on them regarding the noise and dust caused by the construction works since our residential area is located nearly 70-200 meters away from the school grounds. Since the playground outside kindergarten is large and spacious, no negative impact would be exerted when constructing a building. Teachers and the other employees see no negative effects.

 Table 8.1
 Summary Findings of Public Consultations

#	Issues Discussed	Summary Responses and Suggestions from the Participants
		Some participant expressed that though no negative effects are expected, but safety norms and standards should be followed. At one meeting, 77% answered "no impacts" to children due to construction at the kindergarten; 2% answered there would not be significant negative effects. 10% answered there would be some negative effects and about 11% did not answer.
4	What benefits do you perceive from this construction?	Pre-school age children at home will be provided with an opportunity to study at kindergarten due to increased capacity. Many parents wanted to send their children to kindergartens, to be provided with opportunity to start children's education and correct upbringing, and also take up a job for a better life if the new kindergartens are constructed.
5	Would you have any problem with school if construction company makes access road in your parking area, dig any pipeline etc. for repair for diversion?	Participants see the construction as a temporary difficulty and are willing to cope with any problem for development of school/kindergarten in the future. They felt that the construction company should be accountable for the works and the environment should be rehabilitated after the installation of utilities facilities/pipes etc. is completed. After the construction, road must be maintained due to damages occurred by trucks and other machinery. Possible difficulties such as power shortage and closing of roads can take place when installing utilities facilities must be attended immediately by construction company. At one meeting 67% of the participants answered, "it can be managed temporarily", "it is ok during summertime" and a "big issue is being solved" expressing that there would not be any conflicts. 7% answered there would be issues. Remaining 26% did not answer the question.
6	Would you be having any construction causes some dust during digging and storing in the school premises?	Dust and noise will not be causing issues for children and kindergarten teachers, because they will be on holiday during construction period. Apartments are located about 120-250m distance from construction site. It would be better if construction work is conducted after children and elder people are off to their summer houses. Other than this, there will not be a problem. Infants might have difficulties to sleep due to loud noise as well as dust from construction site. So, construction work must be finished at scheduled hours.
7	Will you have a problem if the construction company required to work during the night to bringing construction material?	Most of participants expressed that since it's a development work and there should be no problems. Offices and service establishments around the areas work during the daytime, so they won't be having any difficulties. Transportation of building materials won't inconvenience the residents as even now many construction activities are ongoing without taking care residents' comfort. The construction will offer no hindrance since the main way to kindergarten and special fencing are available. They expressed that the construction work must be completed within the time specified.
8	Will you have a problem if the construction company required to work during the night to carry construction requiring extreme vibration and noise such as concreting, cutting, digging	No hindrance since the building of kindergarten is short and construction area is large. Also, most households go to their summer house or travel around countryside which results in a smaller number of residents during summertime thus we consider the problems relating to construction work will be

#	Issues Discussed	Summary Responses and Suggestions from the Participants
	etc.?	minimal. Working hours need to finish before the night. Most of the residents reside at their summer camp house during that time, so there should be no problem there. At a meeting, some participants said that there will be no problems, majority of the residents will be out of the city at their summer camp houses, and kindergarten for our children is a vital need for their community. They expressed willingness to work in harmony with construction company if it works with proper procedures.
9	How would you react to construction company transporting waste and construction material through your apartment area or parking area?	Most residents are desperate for having a kindergarten for years, they don't like to complain about it. Heavy and large vehicle could cause some traffic issues, proper transportation vehicles need to be used by the construction company. Disposal and the removal process of all the wastes should be carried out daily. Every damage on nature caused by the construction work should be restored afterwards. Open loading wastes and failing to follow the waste removal procedures can cause some negative impacts. If all the waste removal procedures carried out properly, there is no problem. All the accidents while transporting materials such as things falling off or dragged through the road must be avoided. If the construction company performs well and responsibly, they don't have any negative comment or impression.
10	Are you concerned about Health & Safety of residents and children during the construction?	There are no concerns because there is plenty of space where kindergarten building will be constructed, and it has safe distance from their residences. However, there might be some cases where livestock or animals might fall into the excavated holes which would require proper fencing for preventing such incidents. For children, the construction company must set up safety zone parameter, put warning signs. Since the main construction work will be carried out during the summer break (June to September), they feel that there may not be any problems during this time. However, during other months, the children will be going to their schools, so they are worried. They recommended that proposals from parents in tandem with residents and governors must be taken up by the construction company regarding warnings, safety precautions to ensure safety and health of children.
11	Would you like to participate in safety monitoring and controlling activities?	Most of participants want to be involved if they are free during that time. Service establishment employees expressed that they won't be involved on this matter. Governor's office expressed their readiness to provide professional support such as giving guidelines and evaluation through their civil servants during the construction work.
12	Would you be willing to form a committee to help to school during the construction period?	If deemed necessary, it can be either voluntarily or in accordance with the appropriate procedures. Private sector organizations were not willing to be involved in a committee or a council activity. Citizens felt that it would be better if that type of committee or council is formed for active involvement. At a meeting, 84% of the participants answered, "inspection committee should be established"

#	Issues Discussed	Summary Responses and Suggestions from the
		Participants
		and will take part in it il possible. 7% answered inspection
10		Committee is not wanted . 9% did not answer.
13	Any other critical environment related issue and concern by the residents for the during construction and operation stage?	Main concern was that the environment in the area should be rehabilitated after construction. The area should be sprinkled with water to prevent from causing allergies to the people during the construction. Green area should be established. In one meeting 68% of the participants answered, "trees should not be cut", "not concerned because it is conducted during children's holiday" and "construction work should be conducted by taking the area where children will play into account". 11% answered "nothing to be considered". Outside of the kindergarten should be maintained. Vegetation and establishment of green area must be carried out satisfactorily and felt that it should be carried out by professional people, not a construction company. Construction wastes should be removed in a timely manner. Signs with pictures that can be understood by children should be placed around construction waste area. <i>Soum</i> Government Administration expressed interest in cooperating with the construction company regarding provision of construction materials such as sand, cement, and water. <i>Soum</i> have number of natural attractions and receives many tourists. For this reason, there should be a dedicated road for transportation of construction materials. Heavy equipment might damage the surface of the soil. They do not have a paved road except for the main road.
14	If you have any problem caused by this school/kindergarten construction, whom would you like to contact? (Construction company, school, urban department etc.)	70% of the participants answered, "construction company". 4% answered "administration of the district". 21% answered "administration of the kindergarten". They felt that clear information should be given on the issue by the Construction company and local administration organizations, district administration, educational department, and other applicable organizations such as Environment Inspector or Educational Department of Ulaanbaatar. It should be informed to the administration of the <i>aimag</i> , governor of the bag and/or the construction company.
15	What would you expect to improve at current school building (such as changing coal heating to electric heating etc.)	At most of consultations, participants said that hot water pipelines must be renewed and reinstalled, and sewage pipelines must be replaced, outside facade of the current building need to be renovated, improvement of the surrounding areas, adding more playground for children. Some of the participants suggested for "restructuring classrooms, maintenance for ceiling, walls, other parts, playground, physical training hall, plumbing maintenance, heat loss, roof, kitchen, auditorium, extension of the building and rooms and ventilation system".
16	Any shops/commercial establishments and industrial activity disturbed by this construction?	Main comment was that construction work such as blocking the road by heavy vehicles, digging and excavating holes and trenches should not affect the business of the area. A problem will not be caused to the shops, business and service centers that are located around kindergarten building. At some locations, there will be no problem, because there are no shops, business, industrial or service

#	Issues Discussed Summary Responses and Suggestions from the Participants										
		centers in/near the school area. They felt that the area was a cultural place of the <i>aimag</i> , thus construction works should be managed when the cultural place is operating.									
17	What other organizations of environment & nature conservation (NGOs/CBOs/ Civil Society) active in the area? Name of these organizations	There are not so many NGOs and civil society organizations. However, at a meeting held at Ulaanbaatar, participants mentioned several NGOs but had not knowledge fi any one NGO works in this area. At consultations held in <i>Soums</i> and <i>Aimags</i> , participants expressed that environmental protection works are actively conducted in these areas. They have public servants, state inspector in charge of environmental matters of <i>Soums</i> and inspection agency.									

Table 8.2: Summary of Recommendations by the Consultees

#	Issue	Responsible Party
1	Introducing of EMP back to communities surrounding the sites for improving their knowledge about their responsibilities and participation in monitoring is important	Civil works contractors and School using Advertising budget of EMP
2	 Traffic Management The Construction company to ensure proper road safety for resident's children during construction. To conduct transportation using a dedicated road to ensure safety of the citizens. To park the vehicles in the dedicated parking space If Ger area street road must be used for transportation, the least populated street shall be used 	Civil works contractors adhere to EMP
3	Noise Not to conduct works that emit loud noise during night time.	Civil works contractors to adhere to EMP and to citizen council requirements
4	A Committee of citizens, schools, and MES for inspecting the quality of the construction and process of following safety procedures during construction.	MES and School Management to form citizen council
5	 New building of the kindergarten must meet the standards and use quality construction materials. Ventilation, heating, and plumbing system should be taken into serious consideration. Complete external landscaping and maintenance must be done e.g., fence, road, street lighting and play ground and equipment 	Architect, MES, and Civil works contractors

8.2.1 Locations and participants

361. Consultation meetings were held at 33 sites in total out of them 4 sites will be under new construction where the administrations, directors of the existing school / kindergartens assisted the team. However, for 16 new construction kindergarten/school locations, consultations could not be done as there was no social or technical person has been appointed as well as lack of time availability and lack of organizers at these new locations.

362. **Annexure 6** gives the names of all participants of the public consultation conducted by the team. Consultation details for the 30 sites is also attached (Some documents are being translated). **Table 8.3** provides a summary of location and number of participants for the consultations.

No	Sub-Project	Location	Number of	oants of	
	components		Cor	nsultation	IS
			Total	Male	Female
1	2	3	4	5	6
А	Kindergartens				
A 1	Kindergartens under	expansion			
1	Kindergarten No.164	UB, Bayangol District, 4 th khoroo	51	21	30
2	Kindergarten No.88	UB, Bayangol, 18 th <i>khoroo</i>	414	193	221
3	Kindergarten No.22	UB, Bayanzurkh, 1 st <i>khoroo</i>	58	29	29
4	Kindergarten No.8	UB, Bayanzurkh District, (16 th khoroo	125	31	94
5	Kindergarten No.82	UB, Bayanzurkh District, 16 th khoroo	74	28	46
6	Kindergarten No.65	UB, Khan-Uul District, 2 nd khoroo	468	191	277
7	Kindergarten No.72	UB, Khan-Uul District, 2 nd khoroo	33	6	27
8	Kindergarten No.84	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 6 th khoroo	57	35	22
9	Kindergarten No.104	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 12 th khoroo	314	139	175
10	Kindergarten No.107	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 14 th khoroo	111	26	85
11	Kindergarten No.110	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 15 th khoroo	453	182	271
12	Kindergarten No.176	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 31 st khoroo	24	7	17
13	Kindergarten No.68	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 3 rd khoroo	45	14	31
14	Kindergarten No.160	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 3 rd khoroo	18	8	10
15	Kindergarten No.17	UB, Sukhbaatar District, 10 th khoroo	45	13	32
16	Kindergarten No.5	Govisumber, Sumber Soum, 3rd bagh	234	65	169
17	Kindergarten No.6	Khuvsgul, Murun <i>soum</i> , 8 th bagh	79	20	59
A 2	Kindergartens unde	r new construction			
1	New kindergarten	UB Bayanzurkh District, 24 th khoroo	57	26	31
2	New kindergarten	UB, Nalaikh District, 7 th khoroo	-	-	-
3	New kindergarten	UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 25 th khoroo	-	-	-
В	Schools:				
B 1	Schools under expa	nsion:			
1	School No.51	Bayangol District, UB	48	16	32
2	School No.18	UB, Khan-Uul District	-	-	-
3	"Erdmiin Orgil"	UB, Nalaikh District	-	-	-
	Complex				
4	"Ireedui" Primary	UB, Songinokhairkhan District	-	-	-
-	School		4.0.0		
5	"Ireedui" Secondary	UB, Songinokhairkhan District	120	38	82
6	School No 122	UB Songinokhairkhan District 22 nd khoroo		-	-
Ŭ	(green school)				
7	School No 6	UB. Sukhbaatar District	-	_	-
8	Khantaishir	Govi-Altai, Altai soum	113	39	74
B 2	Schools under new co	onstruction :	1.1.0	100	
1	New school	Songinokhairkhan, 7 th khoroo	-	-	-
2	New school	Darkhan, Mangirt, 15 th bagh	20	4	16
-		GRAND TOTAL	2961	1131	1830

 Table 8.3
 Location and Number of Participants of Consultations

8.3 Information Disclosure

363. In line with ADB's Public Communications Policy, MES is required to ensure that relevant project information about environment safeguard issues is made available during the initial stages to affected people and other stakeholders, including the general public at *Aimag*/district headquarters where it is publicly accessible in Mongolian language and any other vernacular local language. ADB and MES will also upload and display the IEE documents for their respective

websites.

364. Incorporation of the environmental concerns of affected persons (APs) through the public consultation in the decision-making process will avoid or minimize conflict situations during the implementation process as well as enable them to provide meaningful inputs into the project design and its implementation. During implementation period, MES through the schools/construction company can conduct public consultation and information disclosure through public meetings and notice.

9.0 GRIEVANCE REDRESS MECHANISM

9.1 Grievance Channels (Framework)

365. During public consultation sessions of the IEE study, the discussions with apartment dweller groups and individuals were conducted to make them aware of the proposed project. Thus, the project-affected community residing beside the proposed Schools/Kindergartens has already gained a reasonable knowledge about the potential grievances, which may arise in future.

366. The public was informed that there will be no involuntary acquisition of land, or involuntary restrictions on land use which result in physical displacement and economic displacement. After construction of School/kindergarten, the land used will be restored back to its original use.

9.2 Time Frame

367. A community awareness programme must be conducted one month prior to construction by the Project Implementation Unit (PIU) of MES regarding the scope of the project, procedure of construction activities, utility of resources, identified impacts and mitigation measures. These awareness programmes will help the community to resolve problems, clarify their distrusts related to the proposed project at initial stage. The Community should be informed about the Grievance Redress Mechanism (GRM), which is already established as per MES and Government of Mongolia procedure for making complaints, including the place and the responsible person to contact in practical way in this regard. Almost all the stakeholders related to the GRM will also be aware of the established grievance process, the requirement of grievance mechanism, goals, benefits, relevant laws regulations etc.

9.3 The Grievance Redress Mechanism

368. MES does not have any specific Environment or Social Safeguards Policy currently. ADB procedures require MES to establish a Grievance Redressal Mechanism (GRM) for Environment having suitable grievance redress procedure for the project affected persons. The GRM would address affected persons' concerns and complaints promptly, using an understandable and transparent process that is gender responsive, culturally appropriate, and readily accessible to the affected persons at no cost. This GRM consists of a Grievance Redress Committee (GRC) for Environment headed by the PIU Coordinator who is permanent official of the EA and supported by District/*Soum* officials, and environment specialist. The committee has the following constitution as listed in **Table 9.1**:

Table 9.1: Constitution of Grievance Redress Committee

1 PIU Coordinator

Chairman

- 2 District/Aimag Education officer/School Management
- 3 Environment Specialist
- 4 Citizens' Council representative and one woman representative
- 5 Representative of Construction Company
- 6 Affected Person

369. This Grievance Redress Mechanism (GRM) would provide an effective approach for resolution of complaints and issues of the affected person/community. Project Implementation Unit (PIU) shall formulate procedures for implementing the GRM and PIU's engineering staff shall undertake GRM's initiatives that include procedures of taking/recording complaints, handling of on-the-spot resolution of minor problems, taking care of complainants and provisions of responses to

distressed stakeholders etc. paying particular attention to the impacts on vulnerable groups.

370. During Construction period, the GRM can have multiple tiers for grievance redress i.e., at Construction Company level, the district school/kindergarten administrations levels; and/or the PIU level, or by courts.

- Stage 1: Access to GRM. If a concern arises, the affected person (AP) [residents, government official, worker of contractor, etc.] may contact the school/kindergarten administration and the construction company. They will register APs complaint giving all details, grievance issue, solution offered and the APs decision if he would like to resolve the issue of concern directly with the construction company or make his/her complaint known to either the PIU directly, or through the *bagh* or *soum*/whichever level of authority he/she is most comfortable with. If the AP files the complaint at *bagh/soum* level, the *bagh/soum* representative will forward to the PIU.
- Stage 2: Official Complaint to PIU. The PIU will register the complaint and must assess its eligibility. If the complaint is not eligible, e.g., related to an issue outside the scope of the project, PIU will provide a clear reply within five working days to the AP. It the complaint is related to the scope of the project, the PIU inform the AP accordingly and as well as inform the respective *aimag*, construction company, the Steering Committee and ADB of the complaint. The PIU, with support of the loan implementation consultant will take steps to investigate and resolve the issue. This may involve instructing the construction company to take corrective actions. Within seven days of the redress solution being agreed upon, the contractor should implement the redress solution and convey the outcome to the PIU and notify ADB. However, if AP is still not satisfied or if no solution can be identified by the PIU, the complaint shall be sent to Stage 3.
- Stage 3: **GRC Meeting**. Within two weeks of the complaint being referred to Stage 3, the head of PIU Coordinator will organize a GRC meeting together with local *aimag*/district officials, citizen's council, women representative, construction company representative, environment specialist and the AP. The meeting should result in a solution acceptable to all and identify responsibilities and an action plan. The construction company should implement the agreed redress solution and convey the outcome to the GRC within seven working days.
- Stage 4: *Aimag* Governor Resolution/Court of Law. However, if the GRC meeting cannot resolve the problem and the AP is still unsatisfied, the PIU will set up a meeting with the *aimag* Governor to identify a solution. For the solution provided by the Governor and agreed by the AP, the construction company must be developing an implementation plan within 7 days for approval by the Governor. The GRM will not impede an AP's desire to access judicial remedies.

371. The PIU will keep records of all grievances received including: contact details of complainant, date that the complaint was received, nature of grievance, agreed corrective actions and the date these were effected, and final outcome. The PIU will issue public notices to inform the public within the project area of the GRM. The PIU's phone number, fax, address, email address will be disseminated to the people at the *bagh* and *soum* levels. The PIU will have facilities to maintain a complaints database and communicate with construction company, construction supervision engineers, the environmental inspectors of the local offices of GASI, local *aimag* environmental authorities and representatives of affected *soums* and *bagh*s. Procedures and timeframes for the grievance redress process are as follows and shown in **Figure 9.1**.

372. The GRM will be in place for the first year of operations; and will utilize the above mentioned GRM procedure for grievance redressal.





* (Affected person can take the matters to Court of Law at any point of GRM) PIU = Project Implementation Unit

10.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

373. This report assessed various existing environmental parameters in and around the subproject and the actions planned to minimize any significant negative impact. As part of Output 1, the project will support physical construction, expansion, and rehabilitation of education facilities. It was found that the existing designs used for the construction and expansion of kindergartens and schools in Mongolia are reasonably sound.

374. The sub-project sites are not located near any sensitive areas as well no significant historical and cultural areas. The project will not cause any significant adverse environmental impacts during construction and expansion of school/kindergarten buildings. Rather, the project activity will have a positive impact as indicated earlier.

375. Impacts are manageable and can be managed cost effectively - Environmental impacts are likely to result from the proposed construction of school buildings. Careful mitigation and monitoring, specific selection criteria and review/assessment procedures for subprojects have been specified to ensure that minimal impacts take place. The detailed design would ensure inclusion of any such environmental impacts that could not be specified or identified at this stage are considered and mitigated where necessary. Those impacts can be reduced using mitigation measures such as correction in work practices at the construction sites, or through the careful selection of sites and access locations.

376. The limited project impacts are associated with drainage congestion/water logging, dust and noise pollution, occupational health hazards, risk from poor sanitation system, improper lighting and ventilation system in school, and management of labour at the site. Moreover, most of the associated impacts are expected to be limited to the construction phase and will therefore be temporary in nature. Regular monitoring of the recommended mitigation measures shall also be carried out during the implementation phase of the project.

377. The selected lands for all new schools are located within the government land. Thus, acquisition of land will not be required from the surrounding communities. Since proposed for are barren, no need for removal of trees for the construction of new schools/kindergartens. No endangered or protected species of flora or fauna are reported at any of the subproject sites.

378. The proposed project will have number of positive impacts and negative impacts to the existing environment as follows:

- Construction of state-of-the-art new building for schools in Mongolia is the main positive impact.
- Environment pollution due to cut and fill operations, transportation of construction materials, disposal of debris, disturbance to the school activities, nuisance from dust, noise, vehicle fumes, black smoke, vibration etc. due to construction activities are the short-term negative impacts due to proposed project.
- Although there is negligible removal of waste, noise, health and safety, trees for the Schools/Kindergartens, which is the main negative impact to the proposed project area.

379. It is required to establish baseline parameters in the beginning to monitor changes of the quality of water, air, soil and noise during the construction and operation periods.

380. Proper GRM will have to be implemented by MES to overcome public inconvenience during the proposed project activities.

381. EMP and Environment Monitoring Plan has been prepared and attached as Annexures 2

and 3 respectively. One round of public consultations was conducted. The results indicate broad support for the project based on perceived economic and social benefits. Most impacts are expected to occur during the construction phase and are of a temporary nature. The school construction sites were carefully selected after undergoing an options assessment. This enabled the architects of blueprints for each building to bypass important underground utilities water supplies and resources nearby any sensitive ecological areas.

382. Environment impact analysis have been done with various criteria like demographic factors, climate and natural habitat, community and employee health and safety etc. based on the impact analysis. It was found that there is no adverse impact on any natural existing land resources nor will affect the regular life of people resident in the subproject area. The environment impact associated with Schools/Kindergartens project is limited to the extent of construction phase and can be mitigated through a set of recommended measures and adequate provision for environment and social impact which cover monitoring, measuring and mitigation. The main project impacts are associated with clearing of digging, waste management and excavation and movement of soils.

383. The IEE performed is adequate for purposes of project implementation. Based on the environmental assessment and surveys conducted for the project, the potential adverse environmental impacts can be mitigated to an acceptable level by adequate implementation of the mitigation measures identified in the EMP. Adequate provisions are being made in the project to cover the environmental mitigation and monitoring requirements, and their associated costs.

384. The potential cumulative and residual impacts of the sub-components indicate that the project classifies as a Category "B", in accordance with ADB's Safeguards Policy Statement 2009 and MET Guidelines of Mongolia. Thus, IEE report has been prepared for the project. Thus, a full Environmental Impact Assessments (EIA) for the project is not required. The project is not considered highly sensitive or complex.

ANNEXURES Annexure 1: Inventorization of Schools/Kindergarten

LIST OF SCHOOL AND KINDERGARTEN EXPANSION AND CONSTRUCTION SITES

No.	Location	Expansion/ New Construction	School No.								
1	Bayangol District, UB	Expansion	School No.51								
2	Khan-Uul District, UB	Expansion	School No.18								
3	Nalaikh District, UB	Expansion	"Erdmiin Orgil" Complex								
4	Songinokhairkhan District, UB, 7th <i>khoroo</i>	New Construction									
5	Songinokhairkhan District, UB	Expansion	"Ireedui" Primary School								
6	Songinokhairkhan District, UB	Expansion (additional floor)	"Ireedui" Secondary School								
7	Songinokhairkhan District, UB, 22nd <i>khoroo</i>	Expansion	School No.122 (green school)								
8	Sukhbaatar District, UB	Expansion	School No.6								
9	Darkhan <i>Soum</i> , Darkhan, Mangirt, 15th <i>bagh</i>	New Construction									
10	Altai <i>Soum</i> , Govi-Altai (Khantaishir)	Expansion	Khantaishir								

Table A1.1 Schools

Table A1.2 Kindergartens

No.	Location	Expansion/ New Construction	Kindergarten No.
1	Bayangol District, UB, 4th khoroo	Expansion	Kindergarten No.164
2	Bayangol District, UB, 18th <i>khoroo</i>	Expansion	Kindergarten No.88
3	Bayanzurkh District, UB, 1st <i>khoroo</i>	Expansion	Kindergarten No.22
4	Bayanzurkh District, UB, 16th khoroo	Expansion	Kindergarten No.8
5	Bayanzurkh District, UB, 6th khoroo	Expansion	Kindergarten No.82
6	Bayanzurkh District, UB, 2nd khoroo	New Construction	
7	Khan-Uul District, UB, 2nd khoroo	Expansion	Kindergarten No.65
8	Khan-Uul District, UB, 2nd khoroo	Expansion	Kindergarten No.72
9	Nalaikh District, UB, 7th khoroo	New Construction	
10	Songinokhairkhan District, UB, 6 th <i>khoroo</i>	Expansion	Kindergarten No.84
11	Songinokhairkhan District, UB, 12th <i>khoroo</i>	Expansion	Kindergarten No.104
12	Songinokhairkhan District, UB, 14 th khoroo	Expansion	Kindergarten No.107
13	Songinokhairkhan District, UB, 15th <i>khoroo</i>	Expansion	Kindergarten No.110
14	Songinokhairkhan District, UB, 25th <i>khoroo</i>	New Construction	
15	Songinokhairkhan District, UB, 31st <i>khoroo</i>	Expansion	Kindergarten No.176

No.	Location	Expansion/ New Construction	Kindergarten No.
16	Sukhbaatar District, UB 3rd <i>khoroo</i>	Expansion	Kindergarten No.68
17	Sukhbaatar District, UB 3rd khoroo	Expansion	Kindergarten No.160
18	Sukhbaatar District, UB 10th khoroo	Expansion	Kindergarten No.17
19	Sumber Soum, Govisumber	Expansion	Kindergarten No.5
20	Khuvsgul, Murun <i>soum</i> , 8 th bagh	Expansion	Kindergarten No.6

Sewage Heating supply Water supply Ν water Fire-fighting facilities Type of proposed construction ο # of Schools and Kindergartens manageme **Type of existing** building /year constructed nt facility Location GPS District Connected to central heating water reserved etc. Heating from Holding tank in own water an own HOB From central water supply transported From own water well Connected Septic tank to central Electric heating From 7 1 2 3 4 5 11 12 13 14 16 6 8 9 1 15 0 A1. Kindergarten under expansion N47⁰54'4 KG # BGD, Expansion Current Fire-Yes 1 Yes Yes ---164 4^{th} 2.1 by 2 floor fight building khor E106°52' new is 2 floor ing 49.7 building building hydr 00 with 7 construct ant classroom ed in (FF 1973. ÌH). 180 children Kinderga Has and needs rten has no 480 m². 9213 m² alar Has no area m blueprint. land. 2 N47º55'1 KG BGD. Expansion Current Fire-Yes -_ Yes _ _ Yes _ _ 18th by 2 floor # 88 7.8 building fight E106°53' khor building. is 1 and ing 05.8 Has no 2 floor, 00 hydr blueprint. brick. ant More than Construc (FF 2500 m² is ted in H) available 1982. KG Has for has no 10118 m² alar expansion area. m 3 KG BZD. N47⁰55'3 Two Expansion Fire-Yes Yes Yes -_ _ _ _ by new 2 4.6 #22 1 st floors. fight khor floor construct Е ing 106°56'1 building. ed in hydr 00 6.4 1970. ant Has 3400m² land. N47º55'1 Yes 4 KG # BZD, Yes Yes Expansion Existing _ --16th 8 4.7 by new 2 floor E106⁰58' building khor building 29.5 establish 00 ed in 1957. N47º55'1 5 KG BZD, Has 2 Yes Yes Yes Expansion Fire--_ _ _ _ 16^{th} #82 0.6 will be a floor fight khor E106⁰58' separate building, ing 57.8 two floor establish hydr 00 new ed in ant 1980. KG building has 7420 m² land 6 KG # KUD. N47⁰54'0 Expansion Two Non Yes Yes Yes

 Table A1.3
 School Physical Features

N						s	Sev w	wage ater	9	Heatiı	ng suj	pply	W	later :	supply
0	and ins			osed	ting aar od	cilitie	man nt fa	ager acilit	ne v						
	# of Schools Kindergarte	District	Location GPS	Type of propo constructio	Type of exist building /ye constructe	Fire-fighting fac etc.	Connected to central	Septic tank	Holding tank	Connected to central heating	Heating from an own HOB	Electric heating	From central water supply	From own	From transported water reserved in own water
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	1 0	11	12	13	14	15	16
	65	2 nd khor oo	5.6 E106 ⁰ 54' 13.4	by 2 floor new building. Blueprint is ready.	floors, brick. Construc ted in 1972.	e									
7	KG # 72	KUD, 2 nd khor oo	N47 ⁰ 54'0 5.0 E106 ⁰ 54' 01.0	Expansion by 2 floor new building. 900m ² land is available.	Two floor building construct ed by brick in 1976.	Non e	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-
8	KG # 84	SKD, 6 th <i>khor</i> <i>oo</i>	N47 ⁰ 56'0 0.0 E106 ⁰ 49' 21.1	Expansion by 2 floor new building with 12 classes for 280 children. Has no blueprint.1 000 m ² land is available.	KG construct ed in 1948. The building is not purposed for kindergar ten. KG has 3422 m ² area. KG is taking care 240 children in 7 classes, but 2 of them are in Ger.	Fire- fight ing hydr ant, Has no smo ke alar m.	Yes		-	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-
9	KG # 104	SKD, 12 th khor oo	N47 ⁰ 54'5 7.7 E106 ⁰ 51' 09.1	Expansion by 2 floor new building connectin g to old one. 3000 m ² land is available.	Kinderga rten's building construct ed in 1986 by brick. KG has 10172 m ² area.	Fire- fight ing hydr ant, Has no smo ke alar m.	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-
1 0	KG # 107	SKD, 14 th <i>khor</i> 00	N47 ⁰ 54'5 2.6 E106 ⁰ 50' 35.7	Expansion by 2 floor new building. 1400 m ²	KG construct ed in 1986. KG has	Fire- fight ing hydr ant,	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-
N o	s and ens		E	oosed ion	sting ear ed	acilities	Sev w man nt fa	wage ater ager acilit	e ne Sy	Heatii	ng su	pply	N	ater :	supply
--------	----------------------------	---	---	--	--	--	--------------------------	--------------------------------	---------------	------------------------------------	----------------------------	---------------------	------------------------------	----------	---
	# of Schools Kindergart	District	Locatio GPS	Type of pror construct	Type of exit building /y construct	Fire-fighting fa etc.	Connected to central	Septic tank	Holding tank	Connected to central heating	Heating from an own HOB	Electric heating	From central water supply	From own	From transported water reserved in own water
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	1 0	11	12	13	14	15	16
				land is available.	8659.6 m² land.	Has no smo ke 11al arm.									
1	KG # 110	SKD, 15 th khor oo	N47 ⁰ 54'5 5.5 E106 ⁰ 50' 20.3	Expansion by 2 floor new building with 12 classes for 280 children. Has no blue print.1400 m ² land is available.	KG construct ed in 1987 by brick. KG has 10026 m ² area.	Fire- fight hydr ant, Has no smo ke alar m.	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-
1 2	KG # 176	SKD, 31 st khor oo	N47º56'0 1.4 E106º51' 09.2	Expansion by additional floor on the top of the building with capacity of 2 classroom s and 50 children.	The KG is construct ed in 2011. Capacity is 2 classroo ms, 50 children. The KG has 125 children.	Non e	-	-	Y e s	-	Ye s	-	-	Yes	-
1 3	KG # 68	SBD, 3 rd khor oo	N47º54'4 1.4 E106º53' 56.1	Expansion by 2 floor new building. 760m ² land is available.	Two floor, brick. Construc ted in 1973.	Non e	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-
1 4	KG # 160	SBD, 3 rd khor oo	N47 ⁰ 54'3 5.1 E106 ⁰ 43' 25.1	Expansion by 2 floor new building.	2 floor building, construct ed in 1980.	Non e	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-
1 5	KG # 17	SBD , 10 th <i>khor</i> oo		The expansion will be a two floor separate building.	Has 2 floor building, construct ed in 1963. KG	FFH	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-

							Sev	wage	e	Heatir	ng sup	oply	N	later s	supply
N	σ			σ	-	ties	W	ater	no						
0	anc		_	ose	tinç ear ed	cilit	nt fa	acilit	ty						
	# of Schools Kindergarte	District	Location GPS	Type of prop constructi	Type of exis building /ye constructe	Fire-fighting fa etc.	Connected to central	Septic tank	Holding tank	Connected to central heating	Heating from an own HOB	Electric heating	From central water supply	From own	From transported water reserved in own water
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	1 0	11	12	13	14	15	16
				1800m² land is available.	has 3950m ² land, 810m ² area is under the building.										
1 6	KG #5	Sum ber, 3rd bagh , Govi sumb er aima g	N46º21'15 .89 E108º 23' 9.45	The area is located nearby main road and surrounde d by Ger khashaa plots and small services.	Governm ent owned 300m ² land is available. Has blue print. Access road is available	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
1 7	KG #6	Khuv sgul, Muru n soum , 8 th bagh		Expansion by new 2 floor building.	2 floor building, construct ed in 1976.	-	Yes	_	-	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-
A2	Kinderg	arten Ur	nder New Co	onstruction			1								
1	Branc h of KG # 168	BZD, 24 th <i>Khor</i> oo	N47 ⁰ 56'0 9.3 E106 ⁰ 59' 41.6	New building	Gers used as class room	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
2	New KG	Nalai kh distri ct, 7 th <i>khor</i> oo	N47º46'5 5.8 E107º14' 44.5	New building with 8 classroom s for 240 children. 6000 m ² area is available.	Will build new building	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
3	New KG	SKD. 25 th khor oo	N47 ⁰ 57'5 9.3 E106 ⁰ 49' 46.7	New building. 300m ² land area is available. Has blue print.	None	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
B1	Schools	Under	Expansion	Expansion	2 floor	Non	Vaa			Vee			Vaa		
	# 51	BGD	9.7	by new	brick	e	res	-	-	but	-	-	162	-	-

N o	p "			pə	ວ.	ities	Sev w man	wage ater ager	e ne	Heatiı	ng su	oply	W	later :	supply
	# of Schools ar Kindergartens	District	Location GPS	Type of propos construction	Type of existin building /year constructed	Fire-fighting facili etc.	Connected to central	Septic tank	Holding tank	Connected to central heating	Heating from an own HOB	Electric heating	From central water supply	From own water well	From transported water reserved in own water
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	1 0	11	12	13	14	15	16
			E106 ⁰ 52' 44.3	building. Has blue print.	/1974					not suffici ent					
2	SCH # 18	Khan uul,	N47 ⁰ 53'5 9.3 E106 ⁰ 53' 40.8	Expansion by adding new floor on top.	3 Floor, brick /1979	Non e	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-
3	Prima ry schoo I "Erdm iin Orgil"	Nalai kh distri ct, 2 nd <i>khor</i> oo	N47º46'0 6.7 E107º14' 50.5	Expansion by new building with 14 classroom s for 640 students.	The primary school has a 1 floor building construct ed in 1970.	Non e	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-
4	High SCH # 1 of "Ireed ui"	SKD, 15 th khor oo	N47 ⁰ 54'5 8.9 E106 ⁰ 50' 29.1	Expansion by adding one more floor on top. Has a model blue print.	Building is 2 floor, construct ed in 1983. School has 14602.2 m ² land.	Fire- fight ing hydr ant, Has no smo ke alar m.	Yes		-	Yes	1. 	1	Yes	-	-
5	Prima ry schoo I # 3 of "Ireed ui"	SKD, 17 th khor oo	N47 ⁰ 54'5 3.9 E106 ⁰ 50' 01.3	Expansion by additional floor. Has a blue print.	Building is 2 floor, construct ed in 1983. School has 14281.7 m ² land.	Fire- fight ing hydr ant, Has no smo ke alar m.	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-
6	SCH #122	SKD, 22 nd khor oo	N47 ⁰ 55'1 0.5 E106 ⁰ 41' 44.8	The expansion will be 3 floor building with capacity of 640 students and has a blue print for	Has 18,000 m ² land, 4 floor building, with capacity of 640 students, construct ed in 2013.		-	-	ΗT	-	H O B	-	-	-	Yes

N o	and ens		_	on	tting ear ed	cilities	Se w man nt fa	wage ater ager acilit	e ne ty	Heatii	ng su	pply	N	later s	supply
	# of Schools Kindergart	District	Location GPS	Type of prop constructi	Type of exis building /y construct	Fire-fighting fa etc.	Connected to central	Septic tank	Holding tank	Connected to central heating	Heating from an own HOB	Electric heating	From central water supply	From own water well	From transported water reserved in own water
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	1 0	11	12	13	14	15	16
				building.	currently 1500 students.										
7	SCH #6	SBD, 3 rd <i>Khor</i> oo	N47 ⁰ 54'3 6.8 E106 ⁰ 54' 05.9	Expansion by adding one more floor on top.	Two floor, brick. Construc ted in 1973.	Non e	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-
8	SCH Khant ishir	GA, Altai town,	N 46º22' 4.09 E 114º15' 18.1	School has 3567 m ² land. The expansion will be a new 3 floor, with capacity of 320 students.	The school has one floor building construct ed in 1961, used as office for construct ion company	Non e	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-	Yes		-
B2	Schools	Under	New Constr	uction	ľ	1		1							
	New SCH	SKD, 7 th <i>Khor</i> <i>oo</i>	N47 ⁰ 57'1 3.0 E106 ⁰ 48' 43.4	New school building with 24 classroom s for 960 students. Has blue print. 1.0 ha land is available.	No building.		Far fro m CS S			Has no possib ility to conne ct CHS			Has no pos sibil ity to con nec t to CW S		
2	New SCH	Dark han- Uul <i>aima</i> g, Dark han city	N49 ⁰ 28'0 8.0 E105 ⁰ 58' 34.9	Construct new school building with capacity of 960 students	1.5 ha area is available		Pos sibl e to con nec t to CS S			Has a possib ility to conne ct to CHS			Pos sibl e to con nec t to CW S		

FFH = Fire Fighting Hydrant, HOB = Heat Only Boiler, HT = Holding Tank, CSS = Central Sewage System, CHS = Central Heating System, CWS = Central Water Supply, KG = Kindergarten, SCH = School, BZD = Bayanzurkh district, BGD = Bayangol district, SBD = Sukhbaatar district, SKD = Songinokhairkhan district, KUD = Khan-Uul district, SUD = Sukhbaatar district, GA = Govi-Altai.

Table A1.4 Other Physical Distances

No	School	District	Aerial Distance	Aerial	Aerial	Aerial Distance	Aerial	Aerial distance from	Aerial Distance from
	Name		from National	Distance from	Distance from	from Solid waste	Distance from	Power station,	any river/water body
			Parks	Industrial	Gas station	site	Railway/	power line,	
				Zones			Major Road	substation	
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
A1. ł	Kindergarten	under expan	sion						
1	KG # 164	BGD,	10 km to Bogd	1 km to Train	2 km	20 km	0.9 km	5 km to Thermal	5 km to Tuul river, 1.8
		4 th khoroo	Khan SPA	repair center				Power Plant # 3	km to Dund gol river
2	KG # 88	BGD, 18 th	12 km to Bogd	5 km	4 km	19 km	2.6 km	6 km to Thermal	7 km to Tuul river
		khoroo	Khan SPA					Power Plant # 3	
3	KG #22	BZD, 1 st	Bogd Khan SPA is	3km to car	0.5 km	9km	0.7km highway	10 km to Thermal	Selbe river is 0.7 km,
		khoroo	18 km away from	repair			8km railway	Power Plant # 3	Tuul river is 12 km
			site	500 / T ·		<u> </u>			
4	KG # 8	BZD, 16 ⁴¹	10 km to Bogd	500 m to Isaiz	800 m	8 km	8 km	6 km to Amgalan	9 km to 1 uul river
-	KO #00	Knoroo	Knan SPA	market	000	0.1	01		
5	NG #82	BZD, 10 ^m	Bogo Khan SPA IS	TKM to TSalz	900m	8 KM	ökm	6 Km to Amgalan	Ullastal river is 8 km,
6	KC # 65		8 km to Boad Khan	2 km to	2 km	21 km	1.2 km	5 km to Thormal	3 km to Tuul rivor 0.6
0	KG # 05	KUD, 2 ^m	0 KIII 10 DOYU KIIAII 9 DA	Tipping	2 KIII	2 I KIII	1.2 KIII	Dowor Plant # 2	km to Dund gol river
		KIIOIOO		factories					Kill to Dulla gol liver
7	KG # 72	KUD 2 nd	8 km to Bogd Khan	3 km to	2 km	21 km	1.2 km	5 km to Thermal	3 km to Tuul river 0.6
		khoroo	SPA	Tinning	2 1011	211011		Power Plant # 3	km to Dund gol river
				factories					
8	KG # 84	SKD, 6 th	15 km to Bogd	14 km to main	1.5 km	7 km "Ulaan	12 km	4 km to Thermal	15 km to Tuul river
		khoroo	Khan SPA	industrial area		chuluut" waste		Power Plant #2	and 3 km to Baruun
				and 0.5 km to		dumping			Salaa river
				building					
				material					
				factory					
9	KG # 104	SKD,	9 km to Bogd Khan	7 km	1.9 km	14 km	6.0 km	5 km to Thermal	8 km to Tuul river and
- 10	KO # 407	12 ⁴¹ khoroo	SPA	7.	0.01	451	0.01	Power Plant #3	5 km to Dund gol river
10	KG # 107	SKD, 14th khoroo	9 KM to Bogo Khan	7 KM	2.0 KM	15 KM	6.0 KM	6 Km to Thermai	8 km to Tuul river and
11	KG # 110		0 km to Boad Khan	7 km	2.0 km	15 km	6.0 km	6 km to Thormal	8 km to Tuul rivor and
	KG # 110	15 th khoroo	9 KIII to Bogu Kilali QDA		2.0 KIII		0.0 KIII	Power Plant #3	5 km to Dund gol river
12	KG # 176	SKD 31st	12 km to Boad	10 km from	1.0 km	14 km to "Illeen	8 km from	7 km to Thermal	13 km from Tuul river
12	10 # 170	khoroo	Khan SPA	main industrial	1.0 Km	chuluut" waste	main railway	Power Plant #3	and 2 km from Dund
		1410100		area		dumping	mainrainray		gol river
13	KG # 68	SBD, 3 rd	10 km to Boad	3 km to Train	0.8 km	20 km	1 km	9 km to Thermal	7 km to Tuul river. 2.5
		khoroo	Khan SPA	repair centre.				Power Plant # 3	km to Dund gol river
14	KG # 160	SBD, 3 rd	10 km to Bogd	2 km to Train	0.7 km	20 km	1 km	9 km to Thermal	7 km to Tuul river, 2.5
1		khoroo	Khan SPA.	repair centre.				Power Plant # 3	km to Dund gol river
15	KG # 17	SBD,10 th	Bogd Khan SPA is	1 km to	900m	15km	6km	11 km to Thermal	Selbe river is 2 km

No	School Name	District	Aerial Distance from National Parks	Aerial Distance from Industrial Zones	Aerial Distance from Gas station	Aerial Distance from Solid waste site	Aerial Distance from Railway/ Major Road	Aerial distance from Power station, power line, substation	Aerial Distance from any river/water body
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
		khoroo	15 km	construction market				Power Plant # 3	
16	KG #5	Sumber, 3rd <i>bagh</i> , Govisumbe r <i>aimag</i>	65 km away from Ikh Nart Nature Reserve.	2km to market	0.5km	8km	1km	0.7km to Heating Center	No river
17	KG #6	Khuvsgul, Murun <i>soum</i> , 8 th bagh	Khuvsgul lake National Park is 90 km.	2.5 km	0.5 km	5km	0.2 km	0.2 km	0.7 km to Delger murun river
A2 K	indergarten	Under New C	Construction	1		1	-	1	
1	Branch of KG # 168	BZD,24 th khoroo	11 km to Bogd Khan SPA	600m to Auto market, Car repair shops	1 km	9 km	5 km	4 km to Amgalan Thermal Plant and 0.3 km to Power Station	9 km to Tuul river
2	New KG	SKD,25 th khoroo	18 km to Bogd Khan SPA	2 km to market places	1 km	8 km	6 km	8 km to Thermal Power Plant # 2	2 km to Baruun Salaa river and 1 km to Zuun Salaa river
3	New KG	Nalaikh district, 7 th <i>khoroo</i>	16 km to Bogd Khan SPA and 9 km to Gorkhi-Terelj NP.	1.4 km to Coal Mining	0.6 km	6 km	0.8 km	2.8 km to Thermal Heating Plant of Nalaikh	6 km to Tuul river
B1 S	chools Und	er Expansion							
1	SCH # 51	BGD	8 km to Bogd Khan SPA	3 km	2km	17 km	2 km	8 km to Thermal Power Plant # 3	7 km to Tuul river, 2 km to Dund gol river
2	SCH # 18	KUD	5 km to Bogd Khan SPA	1 km to Tinning factories	1 km	17 km	1 km	4 km to Thermal Power Plant # 3	2 km to Tuul river and 400 m to Dund Gol river
3	Primary school "Erdmiin Orgil"	Nalaikh district, 2 nd <i>khoroo</i>	15 km to Bogd Khan SPA and 10 km to Gorkhi-Terelj NP.	2 km to Coal Mining	1 km	7 km	0.7 km	1.8 km to Thermal Heating Plant of Nalaikh	7 km to Tuul river
4	High SCH #1 of Ireedui	SKD, 15 th khoroo	10 km to Bogd Khan SPA.	8 km	1.5 km	14 km	5.7 km	4.4 km to Thermal Power Plant #3	8 km to Tuul river and 5 km to Dundgol river
5	Primary school #3 of Ireedui	SKD, 17 th khoroo	10 km to Bogd Khan SPA.	7.5 km	1.0 km	13 km	6.0 km	5 km to Thermal Power Plant #3	8 km to Tuul river and 5 km to Dundgol river
6	SCH #122	SKD, 22 nd	Bogd Khan SPA is 19 km	8km to oil/petrolium	4km	5km	2.5km	7 km to Thermal Power Plant #2	Takhilt (small seasonal creek) river

Table A1.4 Other Physical Distances

No	School	District	Aerial Distance	Aerial	Aerial	Aerial Distance	Aerial	Aerial distance from	Aerial Distance from
	Name		from National	Distance from	Distance from	from Solid waste	Distance from	Power station,	any river/water body
			Parks	Industrial	Gas station	site	Railway/	power line,	
4	0	•		Zones	•			substation	40
1	2	3	4	5	6	1	ð	9	10
		khoroo		storage					is 0.3 km
7	SCH #6	SBD, 3 rd	10 km to Bogd	3 km to Train	0.8 km	20 km	1 km	9 km to Thermal	7 km to Tuul river, 2.5
		khoroo	Khan SPA	repair centre.				Power Plant # 3	km to Dund gol river
8	SCH	GA, Altai	50 km far from	0.7km to	0.3km	9km	N/A	0.8km to HOB	No river
	Khantishi	soum	Khasagt Khairkhan	market					
	r		National Park.						
B2 S	chools Unde	er New Const	ruction						
1	New	SKD, 7 th	16 km to Bogd	17 km to main	2.0 km	2 km "Ulaan	13 km to main	5 km to Thermal	13 km to Tuul river
	SCH	khoroo	Khan SPA.	industrial area		chuluut" waste	railway and 1	Power Plant #2	and 0.02 km to
				and 3 km to		dumping.	km to sub-		Baruun salaa river.
				building			railway		
				material					
				factory.					
2	New	Darkhan-	None.	2 km from	1 km	4 km from	3 km	5 km to Thermal	5 km to Kharaa river
	School	Uul <i>aimaa</i> .		industrial area		Darkhan waste		Heating Plant of	
		Darkhan				point		Darkhan	
		citv				F			
KG =	Kindergarte	n SCH = Scho	ol BZD = Bavanzurkh	district BGD = Ba	vangol district_SF	3D = Sukhbaatar distr	ict_SKD = Songin	okhairkhan district KUD	= Khan-Uul district_GA
= Go	/i₋∆ltai_NP =	National Park	c SPA = Strictly Protect	ed Area					
= 00	-7 and -7 and -7 and -7		$x_i = 0$ and $y = 10000$						

Table A1.4 Other Physical Distances

 Table A1.5
 School Receptors

No	School Name	District	Distance from Road (all sides)	Setback and t	type of buildings	/distance in me	eters	Adverse impact if any	Trees to be cut/ transferred	Debris/Soil disposal reqd. outside premises
				Front	Back	Left side	Right side			
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	
A1. k	Kindergarter	n under expansion								
1	KG # 164	BGD, 4 th <i>khoroo</i> ,	Left 80 m	50 m to apartment	70 m to apartment	70 m apartmnt	30 m to new apartment	None	No	yes
2	KG # 88	BGD, 18 th khoroo,	Back 110 m, front 26 m.	school #96. 30 m	10 m garages	30 m garages	15 m garages and 50 m to Apartment	None	No	Yes
3	KG #22	BZD, 1 st khoroo	Right 200m, left 40m	Apartment 100m	Apartment 80m	Apartment 60m	Apartment 55m School 45m	None	No	Yes
4	KG # 8	BZD, 16 th khoroo	20 m to Dandar Baatar street road	Small road 30 m	Housing 30 m	Housing 20 m	Housing 20 m	none	No	Yes
5	KG #82	BZD, 16 th khoroo	Front 200m, left 50m	Apartment 100m	Apartment and garage 70m	Apartmnt 60m	Apartment 30m	None	8 trees will be transferred	Yes
6	KG # 65	KUD, 2 nd khoroo	Back 15 m small road	20 m Apartment	20 m to Apartment	School # 52 50 m	40 m Apartment	None	No	yes
7	KG # 72	KUD, 2 nd khoroo	Left side 40 m small street	20 m to old apartment	30 m to apartment	Apartment 20 m	Private house 20 m	None	2 trees	yes
8	KG # 84	SKD, 6 th khoroo	Back 80m, left 60m	Apartment 100m	Ger housing 150m	Apartmnt 80m	Office and Apartment 50m	None	None	Yes
9	KG # 104	SKD, 12 th khoroo	Left 300m	Kindergarten 120m	Apartment 100m	Garage 80m	Apartment 80m	None	None	Yes
10	KG # 107	SKD,14 th khoroo	Left 80m, right 50m	Kindergarten 50m	Open field	Apartment 200m	School 100m	None	None	Yes
11	KG # 110	SKD, 15 th khoroo	Right 60m	KG 150m	Apartment 200m	Apartmnt 200m	Garage 50m	None	None	Yes
12	KG # 176	SKD,31 st khoroo	Left 50m	Ger area 10m	Ger area 100m	Ger area 40m	Ger area 50m	None	None	Yes
13	KG # 68	SBD, 3 rd Khoroo	Back 10 m small road	40 m to School #6	20 m to Apartment	Apartment 20 m	20 m to Apartment	None	4 trees	yes
14	KG # 160	SBD, 3 rd Khoroo	Front 20 m small road	Housing 30 m	Apartment 20 m	Apartment 20 m	Apartment 20 m	None	2 trees	yes
15	KG # 17	SBD,10 th khoroo	Left 60m	Apartment 80m	Garage 60m	Apartment 50m	Apartment 50m	None	3 trees	Yes
16	New KG	Sumber, 3rd bagh, Govisumber Aimag	Front 110m, right 200m	Apartment 120m	Nothing	School 250m	Nothing	None	None	Yes
17	KG #6	Khuvsgul, Murun <i>soum</i> , 8 th bagh	Khuvsgul lake Nature Complex	Apartment 60 m	Housing 80 m	Apartment 70 m	Apartment 60 m	None	4 trees will be cutted, 50 trees	Yes

No	School Name	District	Distance from Road (all sides)	Setback and t	type of buildings	/distance in me	eters	Adverse impact if any	Trees to be cut/ transferred	Debris/Soil disposal reqd. outside premises
				Front	Back	Left side	Right side			
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	
			is 90 km.						will be transferred	
A2 K	lindergarten	Under New Constru	iction	-	-			-		
1	Branch of KG # 168	BZD,24 th khoroo	1.2 km to Shar Khad road	Open area 80 km	Households with Ger 20 m	Households with Ger 10 m	Shop 20 m	If remove the existing Ger classrooms during the constructio n, the operation of kindergarte n will stop.	No	Yes
2	New KG	SKD, 25 th khoroo	Front 10 m road	Road 10 m	Shop 10 m	Shop 30 m	Restaurant 10 m	None	No	ves
3	New KG	Nalaikh district, 7 th khoroo	Back 80m,	Nothing	Ger area 120m	Nothing	Nothing	None	None	Yes
B1 S	chools Und	er Expansion			•					
1	SCH # 51	BGD	Back 20 m Front 150 m to Peace Avenue	Group Housing 50 m	University, Group Housing 20 m	Group Housing 20 m	Group Housing 20 m	Shadow to residents in back	20 – Bitola, Birch trees	Yes
2	SCH # 18	KUD	Front 150 m to Chinggis Khan Avenue	Apartment building 40 m	Mechanical Engineering School 60 m	Apartment building 30 m	Dormitory of Mechanical Engineering School 30 m	None	No	Yes
3	Primary school "Erdmiin Orgil"	Nalaikh district, 2 nd <i>khoroo</i>	Front 100m	Garage 120m	Gear area 280m	School 150m	Current school building 50m	None	None	Yes
4	High SCH #1 of Ireedui	SKD, 15 th khoroo	Left 100m	School 100m	Apartment 130m	Apartmnt 100m	Apartment 120m	None	None	Yes
5	Primary school #3 of Ireedui	SKD, 17 th Khoroo	Bach 150m	School 150m	Apartment 180m	Apartmnt 140m	Apartment 80m	None	None	Yes
6	SCH #122	SKD, 22 nd khoroo	Front 200m, right 190m	Ger area 250m	Vegetable planting 120m	Nothing	Ger area 400m	None	None	Yes
7	SCH #6	SBD, 3 rd Khoroo	Front "Narnii zam" road100 m	Housing 30 m	Kindergarten # 68 40 m	Apartment 30 m	Apartment 20 m	None	No	yes
8	SCH	GA, Altai town	Front 90m, Right	Gas station	Group housing	Housing	Ger area 400m	None	None	Yes

No	School Name	District	Distance from Road (all sides)	Setback and	type of buildings	/distance in me	eters	Adverse impact if any	Trees to be cut/ transferred	Debris/Soil disposal reqd. outside premises
				Front	Back	Left side	Right side			
1	2	3	4	5 6 7 8				9	10	
	Khantais hir		130m	200m	50m	70m				
B2 S	chools Und	er New Construction								
1	New SCH	SKD, 7 th Khoroo	Right 290m, Left 180m	Nothing	Nothing	Ger area 200m	Ger area 100m, Baruun salaa river 20m	In the medow of river, may be flood prone, risckable area	None	Yes
2	New School	Darkhan-Uul <i>aimag</i> , Darkhan city	Front 180m, Left 180m	Nothing	Nothing	Kindergarten 900m	Ger area 1000m,	None	None	Yes

Abbreviations:

KG = Kindergarten, SCH = School, BZD = Bayanzurkh district, BGD = Bayangol district, SBD = Sukhbaatar district, SKD = Songinokhairkhan district, KUD = Khan Uul district, GA = Govi-Altai

Table A1.6 School Follow-up Actions

No	School Name	District	Consultations	Construction safety training	Access for construction	Preferred start of construction	Additional recommen- dation	Remarks
					period			
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
A1. K	Kindergarter	n under expansio	n					
1	KG # 164	BGD, 4 th Khoroo	Consultation held in 16 Feb 2017 with residents of front, left and right sides	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must opened in south side for construction.	During Break – June-August	The wall of existing building of KG needs improvement of insulation.	A small storage built by kindergarten management should be under attention during the transporting construction material.
2	KG # 88	BGD, 18 th Khoroo	Consultation held in 30 Jan 2017 with residents of right sides and school management	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must be used for construction	During Break – May-August	Access road should be established in the western side of the kindergarten premises.	Transportation of construction material should be scheduled clearly and informed to nearest residents and signed.
3	KG #22	BZD, 1 st <i>Khoroo</i>	Consultation held in 19 Feb 2017 with	Must to students and teachers by	Separate entrance must	During Break – May-August	Access road should be established in the	Transportation of construction material

No	School Name	District	Consultations	Construction safety training	Access for construction period	Preferred start of construction	Additional recommen- dation	Remarks
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
			residents of right, front, back and left sides	Construction Company	be used for construction		northern side of the kindergarten premises.	should be scheduled clearly and informed to closest residents and signed.
4	KG # 8	BZD, 16 th Khoroo	Consultation held in 9 Feb 2017 with residents of back and left sides	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must be used for construction	During Break – May-August	Support improving the insulation and plumbing system.	The current building does not meet the requirements of the EHS guideline of WB because of the washrooms have poor sanitation condition, walls and ceiling of classrooms are broking down, and water and wastewater plumbing systems have deteriorated.
5	KG #82	BZD,16 th khoroo	Consultation held in 20 Jan 2017 with residents of front and left sides	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must be used for construction	During Break – May-August	Support improving the insulation of existing building.	The wall of existing building is constructed by limestone bricks so has many cracks and loses much heat.
6	KG # 65	KUD, 2 nd Khoroo	Consultation held in 30 Jan 2017 with residents of back side	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must opened in north-east side for construction	During Break – June-August	Access road should be established in the southern side of the kindergarten premises.	Transportation of construction material should be schedulled clearly and informed to closest school, residents and signed.
7	KG # 72	KUD, 2 nd Khoroo	Consultation held in 29 Jan 2017 with residents of front, right and back sides.	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must opened in front side for construction.	During Break – June-August	Support improving the insulation of existing building.	The wall of existing building is constructed by limestone bricks so has many cracks and loses much heat.
8	KG # 84	SKD, 6 th <i>Khoroo</i>	Consultation held in 23 Jan 2017 with residents of back, front and left sides	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must be used for construction	During Break – May-August	Access road should be established in the southern side of the kindergarten premises.	The plumbing systems of current building is too old.
9	KG # 104	SKD, 12 th Khoroo	Consultation held in 13 Jan 2017 with residents of back and right sides	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must be used for construction	During Break – May-August	Access road should be established in the north-eastern side of the kindergarten premises.	Transportation should be schedulled clearly and informed to closest school, residents and signed.
10	KG # 107	SKD,	Consultation held in	Must to students	Separate	During Break –	Access road should be	Transportation should be

No	School Name	District	Consultations	Construction safety training	Access for construction period	Preferred start of construction	Additional recommen- dation	Remarks
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
		14 th Khoroo	23 Jan 2017 with residents of left sides	and teachers by Construction Company	entrance must be used for construction	May-August	established in the western side of the kindergarten premises.	schedulled clearly and informed to closest school, residents and signed.
11	KG # 110	SKD, 15 th <i>Khoroo</i>	Consultation held in 1 Feb 2017 with residents of back and left sides	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must be used for construction	During Break – May-August	Access road should be established in the western side of the kindergarten premises.	Transportation should be schedulled clearly and informed to closest school, residents and signed.
12	KG # 176	SKD,31 st Khoroo	Consultation held in 1 Feb 2017 with residents of four sides	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Back side entrance must be used for construction	During Break – May-August	Improve water and coal storage in the kindergarten's building.	The north entrance of the fencing can be used as access road.
13	KG # 68	SBD, 3 rd Khoroo	Consultation held in 16 Feb 2017 with residents of left and back sides	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must opened in north-east side for construction	During Break – June-August	Access road should be established in the north-eastern side of the kindergarten premises.	Transportation should be schedulled clearly and informed to closest school, residents and signed.
14	KG # 160	SBD, 3 rd Khoroo	Consultation held in 22 Feb 2017 with residents of left side	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must opened in south-east side for construction	During Break – June-August	None	None
15	KG # 17	SBD,10 th khoroo	Consultation held in 9 Feb 2017 with residents of back, right and left sides	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must be used for construction	During Break – May-August	Support improving the insulation and plumbing system of existing building.	None
16	KG # 5	Sumber, 3rd bagh, Govisumber aimag	Consultation held in 18 Feb 2017 with residents of front, side apartment	Must to residents by Construction Company	The entrance must be defined by contractor,	Any time of the year	New area. No recommendation	None
17	KG #6	Khuvsgul, Murun <i>soum,</i> 8 th bagh	Consultation held in 29 Aug 2023 with residents and citizens of surrounding apartments	Must to students and teachers, residents by Contractor	Separate entrance should be used for civil work	Any time of the year	Improve playground and existing underground engineering facility	The transportation schedule should be informed to residents
A2 K	indergarten	Under New Cons	struction	Nationage	Deedeefety	During Breek	Quere est te install	Lies individual also tri-
1	Branch of	BZD,24"	Consultation held in	NOT NECESSARY	Road safety	During Break –	Suggest to install	Has individual electric

No	School Name	District	District Consultations		Access for construction period	Preferred start of construction	Additional recommen- dation	Remarks
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
	KG # 168	khoroo	24 Feb 2017 with residents of left and back side		marks have to be installed	May-August	holding tank and drilled water well for drinking water and sewage water.	heating, no any holding tank for waste water and uses simple pit, transporting drinking water.
2	New KG	SKD,25 th khoroo	Required with residents of front and left sides	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	The entrance must be defined by constructor,	Whenever possible any time of the year	New area. No recommendation	None
3	New KG	Nalaikh district, 7 th <i>khoroo</i>	Required with residents of back side	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	The entrance must be defined by constructor,	Any time of the year	New area. No recommendation	None
B1 S	chools Und	er Expansion	1	r	T	T		
1	SCH # 51	BGD	Consultation held in 24 Feb 2017 with residents of back side	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must be used for construction	During Break – June-August	Fire fighting in old building required.	 Construction company to ensure proper safety Add one more floor on top.
2	SCH # 18	KUD	Consultation held in 9 Jan 2017 with residents of front side	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must be opened in the right side for construction	During Break – June-August	None	None
3	Primary school "Erdmiin Orgil"	Nalaikh district, 2 nd <i>Khoroo</i>	Consultation held in 23 Feb 2017 with residents of front, side apartment	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must be opened in the back side	During Break – June-August	Construction site have to have sheet barrier	Current premise is big enough
4	High SCH #1 of Ireedui	SKD, 15 th Khoroo	Required with residents of backt, left and right sides apartment	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must be opened in the back side	During Break – June-August	None	None
5	Primary school #3 of Ireedui	SKD, 17 th khoroo	Consultation held in 16 Feb 2017 with residents of backt, left and right sides apartment	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must be opened in the back side	During Break – June-August	None	None
6	SCH #122	SKD, 22 nd khoroo	Not required	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must be opened in the back side	During Break – June-August	Green school blue print can be introduced in this site	Ministry of Environment and Tourism is supporting to develop green school concept

No	School Name	District	Consultations	Construction safety training	Access for construction	Preferred start of construction	Additional recommen- dation	Remarks
					period			
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
								here.
7	SCH #6	SBD, 3 rd khoroo	Required with residents of right side	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must opened in south side for	During Break – June-August	None	None
8	SCH Khantais hir	GA, Altai town	Consultation held in 7 Feb 2017 with residents of front, and right sides apartment	Must to students and teachers by Construction Company	Separate entrance must be opened in the back side	During Break – June-August	The blue print of the expansion should be focus how to connect new and existing buildings.	Existing building of the school is not proposed for school but for office of construction company.
B2 S	chools Und	er New Construc	tion	-				
1	New SCH	SKD, 7 th khoroo	Required with residents of Ger areas	Not necessary	Separate entrance must be opened in the back side	Any time of the year	Suggest to install septic tank and drilled water well.	The area is far away from infrastucture.
2	New School	DarkhanUul <i>aimag</i> , Darkhan city	Consultation held in 6 Feb 2017 with residents of east side ger area	Not necessary	Separate entrance must be opened in the back side	Any time of the year	New area. No recommendation	None

Abbreviations:KG-Kindergarten, SCH-School, BZD-Bayanzurkh district, BGD-Bayangol district, SBD-Sukhbaatar district, SKD-SonginoKhairkhan district, KUD-Khan Uul district, SUD-Sukhbaatar district, GA-Govi-Altai,

A1	Kinderga	artens unde	er expansion
1	KG # 164	BGD, 4 th khoroo,	
2	KG # 88	BGD, 18 th khoroo,	
3	KG #22	BZD, 1 st khoroo	

Annexure 1b: Google Earth Images of Schools Identified

4	KG # 8	BZD, 16 th Khoroo	
5	KG #82	BZD,16 th khoroo	
6	KG # 65	KUD, 2 nd khoroo	

7	KG # 72	KUD, 2 nd khoroo	
8	KG # 84	SKD, 6 th khoroo	
9	KG # 104	SKD, 12 th khoroo	

10	KG # 107	SKD, 14 th khoroo	
11	KG # 110	SKD, 15 th khoroo	
12	KG # 176	SKD,31 st khoroo	

13	KG # 68	SBD, 3 rd khoroo	
14	KG # 160	SBD, 3 rd khoroo	
15	KG # 17	SBD,10 th khoroo	

16	KG # 5	Sumber, 3 rd bagh, Govisumbe r <i>aimag</i>	
17	KG #6	Khuvsgul, Murun <i>soum</i> , 8 th <i>bagh</i>	
A2	Kinderg	artens und	er new construction
1	Branch of KG # 168	BZD,24 th khoroo	

2	New KG	Nalaikh district, 7 th <i>khoroo</i>	
3	New KG	SKD,25 th khoroo	
B1	Schools	under exp	ansion
	SCH # 51	BGD	

2	SCH # 18	KUD	
3	Primary school "Erdmiin Orgil"	Nalaikh district, 2 nd <i>khoroo</i>	
4	High SCH #1 of Ireedui	SKD, 15 th khoroo	

5	Primary school #3 of Ireedui	SKD, 17 th khoroo	
6	SCH #122	SKD, 22 nd khoroo	
7	SCH #6	SBD, 3 rd khoroo	

8	SCH Khantais hir	GA, Altai town	
B2	Schools	under new	construction
	New SCH	SKD, 7 th khoroo	
2	New School	Darkhan- Uul <i>aimag</i> , Darkhan city	

Project Activity	Potential Environmental Impact	Mitigation Action	Parameters to be Monitored	Standards ^{32/} Measurement/ Frequency	Institutional Responsibilit y	Implementat ion Schedule
		Pre-construction	and Design			
1. Physic	al Resources					
Building specifications and design parameters	Release of effluents in receptors (air, water, land).	Avoid all underground utilities during design	Blue prints	Inspection Agency - Once.	MES	Detailed design.
	Structural Safety for construction of extra floor.	Schools to get Specialized Inspection Agency approval for structural integrity	Seismic design in Blue Prints	Inspection Agency - Once.	MES	Detailed design.
Rehabilitation of old infrastructure in school/ kindergarten	Decayed infrastructure will damage new installations. Loss of heating and seepage etc. in building	Install modern fire control systems/firewalls, building insulation, plumbing and heating system upgrades	Structural safety of the old buildings and connected utilities to the building	Inspection Agency - Once.	MES	Detailed design.
2. Enviro	nment Resources (Rece	ptors)				
Location of land for Schools/ Kindergarten	Impact to the existing surface water environment.	Construction facilities should be placed at suitable distance from water bodies, natural flow paths, important ecological habitats and residential areas. Careful site selection to avoid existing settlements	Water and Air Quality. Site location (distance to dwelling, and/or utilities).	Consultation with local authorities and land owners. Air quality Standards and Water Quality standards – Once.	MES	Detailed design/Plann ing Stage.
Schools/Kind ergartens location and design for Noise	Noise generation Exposure to noise, Nuisance to neighbouring properties.	Schools/Kindergartens location/designed to ensure noise will not be a nuisance to neighbouring properties.	Expected noise emissions based on Schools/Kindergarte ns design, noise levels.	Noise control regulations Noise levels to be specified in tender documents	MES	Detailed design/Plann ing Stage
Interference with drainage patterns	Temporary flooding hazards.	Appropriate siting.	Site selection.	Consultation with local authorities and design	MES	Detailed location survey and

³² World Bank EHS guidelines will be used as a standard if any local Mongolian Standards are less stringent as per ADB SPS 2009

Project Activity	Potential Environmental Impact	Mitigation Action	Parameters to be Monitored	Standards ³² / Measurement/ Frequency	Institutional Responsibilit y	Implementat ion Schedule
Dismantling of portions of buildings for connectivity of expansion section	Asbestos present as insulation in some section of the building	Asbestos shall be handled carefully during dismantling, storage and disposal	Air quality	engineers. Air quality standards – once	MES	design. Part of detailed project siting and survey and design.
3. Ecolog	ical Resources					
Encroachmen t into precious ecological areas	Loss of precious ecological values/ damage to precious species.	Avoid encroachment by careful site and location selection and reconnaissance before final siting of activities.	Floral and faunal habitats loss.	Enumeration of flora and fauna at site.	ESO of MES.	Detailed design/Plann ing Stage.
4. Human	Environment					
Involuntary resettlement or land acquisition.	Loss of lands and structures.	Compensation paid for temporary/ permanent loss of residential land.	Public complaints	Rates paid as per the Resettlement plan/Frame work for the project.	ESO of MES	Prior to construction phase/Land Acquisition.
Removal of Trees	Loss of trees.	Avoid siting of structures to avoid any permanent loss of trees wherever possible. Implement tree replantation or transplantation as the case may be	Statutory approvals for tree trimming /removal from competent authority.	Consultation with local authorities and design engineers in consonance with MES.	MES	Part of detailed location survey and design.
Location and design of Schools/Kind ergartens	Disturbance to adjacent lands and the people due to digging and construction operations.	Maintain adequate clearance, construction of retaining structures, minimize digging close to the dwellings.	Building specifications and compliance with setback distances ("as-built" diagrams).	Technical specification- Once Measure setback distances to nearest house structures – Once.	MES	Detailed design/Plann ing Stage.
Location of Schools/Kind ergartens location and design	Exposure to safety related risks.	Setback of dwellings to designed in accordance with permitted safety distances	location selection with respect to nearest dwellings.	Setback distances to nearest houses – Once.	MES	Part of siting survey and detailed location survey and design.
Explosions/Fir	Hazards to life	Design of Schools/Kindergarten to	Schools/Kindergarte	I ender document	MES	Part of

Project Activity	Potential Environmental Impact	Mitigation Action	Parameters to be Monitored	Standards ³² / Measurement/ Frequency	Institutional Responsibilit y	Implementat ion Schedule
е		include modern fire control systems/firewalls.	ns design compliance with fire prevention and	to mention detailed specifications –		detailed Schools/Kind ergartens
		be located close to electrical/heating installations.	control codes.	Unce.		design /drawings
		Construction	n Phase			
A. Physic	al Resources					
Construction site clearance	Removal of topsoil and loose soil storage at site may lead to dust emission	Sprinkle water at site and cover soil dump against air pollution	Air and water pollution	Visual inspection (Dust)	Contractor through contract provisions under supervision of MES	Construction period
Removal or disturbance to other public utilities	Public inconvenience	Advance notice to the public about the time and the duration of the utility disruption Use of well trained and experienced machinery operators to reduce accidental damage to the public utilities Restore the utilities immediately to overcome public inconvenience	Disruption to other commercial and public activities / Public complaints	Technical specification	MES and Contractor through contract provisions	Throughout construction period
Electrical/fire safety Equipment layout and installation	Sparks and fire hazard during construction	Record of all Schools/Kindergartens electric fittings and fire safety devices located within secure casings	Electrical casings at Schools/ Kindergartens	As per International standards Once in year	MES Contractor through contract provisions	Throughout construction/ erection period
Asbestos is found during construction	Lead to inhalation and long term health impact on workers and occupants	Record of all Schools/Kindergartens	Roofing and walls at school/kindergartens	Mongolian national standards (MNS) 3838: 2008 and Construction standard package # 91.040.– once a	Contractor through contract provisions under supervision of MES	Construction period

Project Activity	Potential Environmental	Mitigation Action	Parameters to be Monitored	Standards ³² / Measurement/	Institutional Responsibilit	Implementat ion
	Πηρασι			vear	У	Schedule
Use of Volatile organic compounds	Toxicity and air contamination inside building	Use of low or no volatile organic compounds – water based nontoxic etc.	Air quality – measure volatility as per Mongolian standards – four times a year	Mongolian national standards (MNS) 3838: 2008 and Construction standard package # 91.040. – four times a year	Contractor through contract provisions under supervision of MES	Construction period
Surplus earthwork/soil	Runoff to cause water pollution, solid waste disposal	Storage of excess soil near drainage and settlement areas stored in restricted area and construction work should be carefully designed to minimize obstruction or destruction to natural drainage. Excess soil from foundation excavation to be reused on site or disposed of in accordance to construction site management plan by contractor.	Location and amount (m ³) of fill disposal Soil disposal locations and volume (m ³)	Visual inspection (Turbidity and sedimentation) Appropriate fill disposal and dispersal locations quarterly	Contractor through contract provisions under supervision of MES	Construction period
B. Enviro	nment Resources					
Equipment layout and installation	Noise and vibrations	Selection of construction techniques and machinery to minimize ground disturbance.	Construction techniques and machinery	Minimal ground disturbance Monthly	Contractor through contract provisions, MES	Construction period
Provision of facilities for construction workers at work site	Contamination of receptors (land, water, air).	Construction workforce facilities to include proper sanitation, water supply and waste disposal facilities at work site.	Amenities for Workforce facilities.	Presence of proper sanitation, water supply and waste disposal facilities - Once.	Contractor through contract provisions under supervision of MES	Construction period
Mechanized construction	Noise, vibration equipment wear and tear and operator safety, efficient operation	Construction equipment to be well maintained. Construction techniques and Machinery selection to minimize ground disturbance. Proper maintenance and turning off plant not in use. Noise barriers will be installed	Construction techniques and equipment - estimated noise emissions and operating schedules.	Technical specifications, safety regulations, Noise control regulations-	Contractor through contract provisions under supervision of	Construction period

Project Activity	Potential Environmental Impact	Mitigation Action	Parameters to be Monitored	Standards ³² / Measurement/ Erequency	Institutional Responsibilit	Implementat ion Schedule
	Impact	to reduce incidence of noise to local residents.		Quarterly.	MES.	Concure
Construction of access road for ingress into premises	Increased land requirement for temporary accessibility	Existing separate gates used for construction and maintenance access to the site wherever possible.	Access gates, road, locations (length and width of access roads).	Blue print design for access restricted to from normal school entrances not used by students.	Contractor through contract provisions under supervision of MES.	Construction period
C. Ecolog	ical Resources				• • •	• • • •
Site clearance	Vegetation	Marking of vegetation to be removed prior to clearance, and strict control on clearing activities to ensure minimal clearance. Construction Company will replant or transplant trees to be cut within the school/kindergarten premises.	Vegetation marking and clearance control (area in m ²).	Clearance strictly limited to target vegetation – Once.	Contractor through contract provisions under supervision of MES.	Construction period
Trimming/cutti ng of trees within school boundary	Loss of vegetation and deforestation	Trees that can survive pruning to comply should be pruned instead of cleared. Felled trees and other cleared or pruned vegetation to be disposed of as authorized by the statutory bodies. Construction Company will replant or transplant trees to be cut within the school/kindergarten premises.	Species-specific tree retention as approved by statutory authorities (average and maximum tree height at maturity, in meters).	Presence of target species	MES, Contractor through contract provisions under supervision of department	Construction period
D. Human	n Environment				•	
Construction schedules for Schools/Kind ergartens	Noise nuisance to neighbouring properties	Minimize construction activities undertaken during the night and local communities informed of the construction schedule. Noise barriers will be installed to reduce incidence of noise to local residents.	Timing of construction (noise emissions in decibels (dBA).	Construction as per Scheduled timings only.	MES, Contractor through contract provisions.	Construction period.
Temporary use of land	Losses to neighbouring land uses/ values.	Contract clauses specifying careful construction practices. School Land will be reinstated following completion of construction.	Contract clauses Design basis and layout. Reinstatement of land status (area affected, m2).	Incorporating good construction management, design engineering practices.	Contractor through contract provisions under supervision of	Construction period.

Project Activity	Potential Environmental	Mitigation Action	Parameters to be Monitored	Standards ³² / Measurement/ Frequency	Institutional Responsibilit	Implementat ion Schedule
	IIIpact			C	MES	Schedule
Transportatio n and storage of materials	Nuisance to the general public.	Transport loading and unloading of construction materials should not cause nuisance to the people by way of noise, vibration and dust. Avoid storage of construction materials beside the road, around water bodies, residential or public sensitive locations.	Water, Air Quality and Noise in decibels (dBA).	xx Emission standards and Water Quality standards - Quarterly.	Contractor through contract provisions under supervision of MES.	Construction period.
		Construction materials should be stored in covered areas to ensure protection from dust, emissions and such materials should be bundled in environment friendly and nuisance free manner.				
Temporary outage of the electricity	Loss of power supply to the local community when distribution lines crossing the new Schools/Kindergartens are switched off.	Advance notice to the public about the time and the duration of the utility disruption. Restore the utilities immediately to overcome public inconvenience.	Power disruption to houses and commercial premises.	Regular monitoring during the period of strengthening the conductors	Contractor through contract provisions under supervision of MES	Throughout the construction period.
Health and safety	Injury and sickness of workers and members of the public.	Contract provisions specifying minimum requirements for construction camps. Contractor to prepare and implement a health and safety plan and provide workers with required PPE. Contractor to arrange for health and safety awareness programmes including on AIDS and sexually	Contract clauses (number of incidents and total lost-work days caused by injuries and sickness).	MES and ADB Health and safety standards - Monthly.	Contractor through contract provisions under supervision of MES.	Construction period.
Community Health and Safety	Injury and accidents caused to residents in the area	transmitted diseases (STD). Installation of proper warning signage, installation of sheet barriers to avoid people, children, animals falling into	Contract clauses (number of incidents caused by injuries	EHS guidelines, MN Health and safety standards -	Contractor through contract	Construction period.

Project Activity	Potential Environmental Impact	Mitigation Action	Parameters to be Monitored	Standards ³² / Measurement/ Frequency	Institutional Responsibilit v	Implementat ion Schedule
		trenches, or projectile material hitting the residents walking by or damaging property	and accidents in neighbourhood).	Monthly.	provisions under supervision of MES.	
Capacity Building	Improve standards of implementation and monitoring.	Training of MES.	Training schedules.	Number of training program - Yearly.	MES.	Construction period.
		Operation and Main	tenance Phase			
A. Physic	cal Resources					
Operation of Electrical safety systems, fire safety systems	Electric sparks, fire and explosion	Record of all Schools/Kindergartens electrical switchbox located within secure casings.	Schools/Kindergarte ns electricity distribution boards – Monthly.	MNS: 0640 (1989) Fire safety standard - Monthly	MES.	Throughout the operation.
B. Enviro	onmental Resources					
Oil spillage	Contamination of land/nearby water bodies.	Record of all oil spillage at schools/kindergartens	Schools/Kindergarte ns bounding ("as-built" diagrams)- Monthly.	Guideline on Transportation, storage, use and disposal of toxic and hazardous chemicals (2009) - Yearly	MES.	Throughout the operation
C. Ecolog	gical Recourses					
None	- F					
D. Huma Effluent Management from School	n Environment Chemicals from Chemistry laboratory, sewage flowing into city drains	Schools to ensure that chemistry class effluent is collected and disposed off to the District Branch of Emergency Management Agency Maintenance and regular upkeep of septic tanks and holding tanks by school to avoid surface discharge.	Water discharge parameters as specified in EMoP	Waste water standards – quarterly	School	Throughout operations
Training on Health and safety and	Lack of awareness for health and safety procedure.	Training of School personnel and children on safety and emergency response in compliance with District's	Training schedules.	Number of training program- Yearly.	MES	Operation

Project Activity	Potential Environmental Impact	Mitigation Action	Parameters to be Monitored	Standards ³² / Measurement/ Frequency	Institutional Responsibilit y	Implementat ion Schedule
emergency response		Emergency Management Agency requirements				
Segregation of Solid waste	Nuisance to local community	Training of School personnel and children in proper segregation and storage and waste at school	Training by PIU	Number of training program- Yearly.	Schools and kindergartens	Operation
Management of emissions from HOB	Low ambient air quality inside premises	Monitoring of HOBs operations to ensure the air emissions, ash handling etc. are within permissible limits	Air quality and contamination of soil	Air quality and soil contamination standards – every six months	Schools and kindergartens	Operation
O&M of building equipment- heating, building insulation and generators etc.	Loss of heating, high operational costs	Insulation to ensure efficient operations	Energy efficiency parameters	Energy conservation norms of buildings – Once/year	Schools and kindergartens	Operation
Electric shock or accidents	Death or injury to the staff and public.	Security warnings around fittings. Careful design using appropriate technologies to minimize hazards.	Proper maintenance of distribution boxes and sign boards. Usage of appropriate technologies (lost work days due to injuries).	Periodic maintenance. Number of programmes and percent of staff/ workers covered.	Schools and kindergartens	Throughout the operation

Environm ental compone nt	Project stage	Parameters to be monitored	Sampling Location	Monitoring Frequency	Regulatory Standards for parameter	Performance indicator	Agency responsible for implementation
1.Air Quality	A. Pre-construction and Design stage (Baseline development)	PM ₁₀ , PM _{2.5} , SO ₂ , NOx, SPM, CO (Visible dust)	Boundary of Schools/Kindergarte ns	One time	National Air quality standards of MNS 4585- 2007 "Air quality. General technical requirements" (Maximum acceptable level of toxic elements in outdoor air)	Results of measured tests and records of activities before, during and after construction	MES
	B. Construction Stage	PM ₁₀ , PM _{2.5} , SO ₂ , NOx, SPM, CO (Visible dust)	Boundary of Schools/Kindergarte ns	Every one month of construction period	National Air quality standards of MNS 4585- 2007 "Air quality. General technical requirements" (Maximum acceptable level of toxic elements in outdoor air)		Construction Company
	C. Operation Stage	PM ₁₀ , PM _{2.5} , SO ₂ , NOx, SPM, CO (Visible dust)	Boundary of Schools/Kindergarte ns	One time during commissioning	National Air quality standards of MNS 4585- 2007 "Air quality. General technical requirements" (Maximum acceptable level of toxic elements in outdoor air)		MES
2.Water Quality	A. Pre-construction and Design stage (Baseline development)	EC, TSS, DO, BOD, P ^H Oil and grease, Pb.	Nearest well near Schools/Kindergarte n	One time	National water quality standards of MNS 4586:1998	Results of measured tests and records of activities before.	MES
	B. Construction Stage	EC, TSS, DO, BOD, P ^H Oil and grease Ph	Nearest well near Schools/Kindergarte n	One time	National water quality standards of MNS 4586:1998	during and after construction	Construction Company
	C. Operation Stage	EC, TSS, DO, BOD, P ^H Oil and grease, Pb,	Nearest well near Schools/Kindergarte n	One time during commissioning	National water quality standards of MNS 4586:1998		MES
3.Noise/ Vibration	A. Pre-construction and Design stage (Baseline development)	Noise level [dB(A)]	Boundary of Schools/Kindergarte ns	One time	National standards for Noise MNS 4585:2007	Results of measured surveys/reports and records of	MES
	B. Construction	Noise level	Boundary of	Every one month	National standards for	activities before,	Construction

Annexure 3: Environment Monitoring Plan (Environmental Parameters)

Environm ental compone nt	Project stage	Parameters to be monitored	Sampling Location	Monitoring Frequency	Regulatory Standards for parameter	Performance indicator	Agency responsible for implementation
	Stage	[dB(A)]	Schools/Kindergarte ns	of construction period	Noise MNS 4585:2007	during and after construction	Company
	C. Operation Stage	Noise level [dB(A)]	Boundary of Schools/Kindergarte ns	One time during commissioning	National standards for Noise MNS 4585:2007		MES
4. Soil	A. Pre-construction and Design stage (Baseline development)	Visible spills and/or soil staining, Oil & grease	1 location inside Schools/Kindergarte ns	One time	Guideline on Transportation, storage, use and disposal of toxic and hazardous chemicals (2009)	Results of measured surveys/reports and records of	MES
	B. Construction Stage	Visible spills and/or soil staining, Oil & grease	1 location inside Schools/Kindergarte ns	One time	Guideline on Transportation, storage, use and disposal of toxic and hazardous chemicals (2009)	activities before, during and after	Construction Company
	C. Operation Stage	Visible spills and/or soil staining, Oil & grease	1 location inside Schools/Kindergarte ns	One time during commissioning	Guideline on Transportation, storage, use and disposal of toxic and hazardous chemicals (2009)		MES

Abbreviations:

 SO_2 = Sulphur Dioxide; NO_2 = Nitrogen Dioxide; CO = Carbon Monoxide; Pb = Lead; $PM_{2.5}$ = Particulate Matter <2.5; PM_{10} = Particulate Matter <10;

EC = Electric Conductivity; TSPM = Total Suspended Particulate Matter; DO = Dissolved Oxygen; TSS = Total Suspended Solids;

BOD = Biological Oxygen Demand; ORP = Oxidation Reduction Potential; NAAQS = National Ambient Air Quality Standards specified by MET.
Environmental Safeguard Clauses for Civil Works Contracts

The general environment, health and safety obligations of the Contractor within this Contract, without prejudice to other official provisions in force, include the following:

- The Contractor shall ensure that the construction and decommissioning of project facilities comply with (a) all applicable laws and regulations of Mongolia relating to environment, health and safety; (b) the Environmental Safeguards stipulated in ADB's Safeguards Policy Statement (2009); and (c) all measures and requirements set forth in the Generic environmental management plan (EMP).
- The Contractor shall establish a telephone hotline to received community complaints, staffed at all times during working hours. Contact details shall be prominently displayed at the sites. The Contractor shall disseminate in a timely manner information on the construction progress, including anticipated activities that might cause safety risk.
- The Contractor shall secure all necessary permits and licenses before undertaking the works.
- The Contractor shall assign sufficient qualified staff to manage site-EMP implementation, and ensure adequate financial resources are available to implement the site-EMP throughout the construction period.
- The Contractor shall provide equal pay for equal work, regardless of gender or ethnicity; provide those they employ with a written contract; provide the timely payment of wages; use local unskilled labor, as applicable, comply with core labor standards and the applicable labor laws and regulations, including stipulations related to employment, e.g. health, safety, welfare and the workers' rights, and anti-trafficking laws; and not employ child labor. The Contractor shall maintain records of labor employment, including the name, ethnicity, age, gender, domicile, working time, and the payment of wages.
- All buildings shall be designed in compliance with relevant the Government of Mongolia's design standards and codes for energy-efficient, safe buildings, including but not limited to: Mongolian national standards (MNS) 3838: 2008 and Construction standard package # 91.040. Only low or no volatile organic compound (VOC)-emitting materials shall be used (including paints, coatings, adhesives, carpet and furniture's) to ensure high indoor air quality. Water-based nontoxic, no allergenic paint for drywall or plaster surfaces shall be preferred to latex or oil-based paints. All facilities shall be properly sited to minimize the risk of scouring that may result from increase intensity of precipitation as a result of climate change.
- The Contractor shall take necessary precautions to avoid interruptions to water supply, wastewater collection, heating and other utility services during the civil works.
- The Contractor shall prepare a construction site-EMP based on the Generic construction EMP.
- The Contractor shall take appropriate sanctions against personnel violating the applicable specifications and provisions on environment, health and safety.
- The Contractor shall document, and systematically report to the school management and the project implementation unit (PIU), of each incident or accident, damage or degradation caused to the environment, workers or residents or their assets, in the course of the works.
- The Contractor shall provide all relevant information about the Generic EMP and the Site-EMP to subcontractor/s and be responsible for their actions.
- The Contractor shall provide the school administration and the PIU with a written notice of any unanticipated environmental, health and safety risks or impacts that arise during implementation of the contract that were not considered in the Generic EMP.

Environmental Site Inspection and Monitoring Checklist

Note: This form is designed for use by the project implementation unit (PIU) project coordinator during site inspections and monitoring and may not be exhaustive. Modifications and additions may be necessary to suit individual sub-projects and to address specific environmental issues and mitigation measures.

Name of school:	
Inspection Date:	
Inspection Time:	
Inspector(s):	

Inspection Item	Yes	No	N.A.	Remarks (i.e. problem observed, possible cause of nonconformity and/or proposed corrective/ preventative actions)
1. Has contractor appointed a construction supervisor and is the supervisor on-site?				
2. Is information pertaining to construction disclosed at construction site (including construction period, contractor information, grievance hotline, etc)?				
3. Are chemicals/hazardous products and waste stored on impermeable surfaces in secure, covered areas?				
4. Is there evidence of oil spillage?				
5. Are chemicals stored and labelled properly?				
6. Is construction equipment well maintained (any black smoke observed)?				
7. Is there evidence of excessive dust generation?				
8. Are there enclosures around the main dust-generating activities?				
9. Does contractor regularly consult with school management as well as nearby residents to identify concerns?				
10.Is there evidence of excessive noise?				
11.Any noise mitigation measures adopted (e.g. use noise barrier / enclosure)?				
12.Is construction wastewater and domestic wastewater discharged to sewer systems (if possible), or are on- site treatment facilities (septic tank) provided?				
13.Is there any wastewater discharged to soil or surface water?				
14.Is the site kept clean and tidy (e.g. litter free, good housekeeping)?				
15.Are separated labelled containers/areas provided for				

Inspection Item	Yes	No	N.A.	Remarks (i.e. problem observed, possible cause of nonconformity and/or proposed corrective/ preventative actions)
facilitating recycling and waste segregation?				
16.Are construction wastes/recyclable wastes and general refuse removed off site regularly?				
17.Is safe supply of clean water and an adequate number of toilets provided for workers?				
18.Is personal protection equipment provided for workers?				
19.Are clear information and warning signs placed at construction sites in view of the students and staff as well as the public?				
20.Are all construction sites made secure, discouraging access through appropriate fencing?				
21.Are disturbed areas properly re- vegetate after completion of works?				
22.Were any complaints filed with the contractor, and have staff and nearby residents raised any concerns related to the performance of contractor?				
23.Any other problems identified or observations made?				

Date, Name and Signature of PIU staff/ consultant

Annexure 4: Standards for Environment Monitoring for Air, Water, Noise and Soil Sampling

Toxic elements	Average duration of	Measuring	Maximum acceptable			
	measurement	unit	content			
Chemical influence						
(SO ₂)*	Average for 20 minute	mkg/ m ³	450			
	Average for 24 hours		50			
	Average for 1 year		20			
(CO)*	Average for 20 minute	mkg/ m ³	60000			
	Average for 1 hour	_	30000			
	Average for 8 hours		10000			
(NO ₂)*	Average for 20 minute	mkg/ m ³	200			
	Average for 24 hours	_	50			
	Average for 1 year		40			
(O ₃)*	Average for 8 hours	mkg/ m ³	100			
Dust (Total particular matter)*	Average for 20 minute	mkg/ m ³	500			
	Average for 24 hours	_	150			
	Average for 1 year		100			
Particular matter bigger size (PM 10)*	Average for 24 hours	mkg/ m ³	100			
	Average for 1 year	_	50			
particular matter small size	Average for 24 hours	mkg/ m ³	50			
(PM 2.5)*	Average for 1 year	_	25			
(Pb)*	Average for 24 hours	mkg/ m ³	1			
	Average for 1 year	_	0,25			
(C ₂₀ H ₁₂)*	Average for 24 hours	mkg/ m ³	0,001			
Physical influence						
Noise*		dB	60			
- day time (07-22)	Average of 16 hours		45			
- night time (22-07)	Average of 8 hours					
Note: * Can be used for indoor air quality						

MNS 4585- 2016 "Air quality. General technical requirements"

Table 1. Maximum acceptable level of toxic elements in outdoor air

Table 2. Maximum acceptable level of toxic elements in indoor air

	Average duration of measurement	Measuring unit	Maximum acceptable content
Chemical influence	e		
(CO ₂)	Average for 24 hours	mkg/ m ³	1800
(Rn)	Average for 24 hours	Mk3v/ m ³	0,005
(CH ₂ O)	Average for 24 hours	mkg/ m ³	0,3
Air oxidizing	Average for 24 hours	mkg/ m ³	4000-6000

Table 3. Maximum acceptable level physical features of outdoor air

	Assessment condition	Measuring Unit	Acceptable level
Temperature*	In average	0C	18-22
Velocity of air movement		m/c	0.2-0.4
Relative humidity		%	30-60
Luminescence			
- People stay permanently		Lux	150-300
- People do not stay permanently			50-150

Area Code Category of Area/Zone		Limits in dB(A) Leq *			
		Day Time	Night Time		
(A)	Industrial area	75	70		
(B)	Commercial area	65	55		
(C)	Residential area	55	45		
(D)	Silence Zone	50	40		

 Table 4. Ambient Air Quality Standards in Respect of Noise³³: MNS 4585-2016

Note;

1. Day time shall mean from 6.00 a.m. to 10.00 p.m.

2. Night time shall mean from 10.00 p.m. to 6.00 a.m.

3. Silence zone is defined as an area comprising not less than 100 metres around hospitals, educational institutions and courts. The silence zones are zones which are declared as such by the competent authority.

4. Mixed categories of areas may be declared as one of the four above mentioned categories by the competent authority.

*dB(A) Leq denotes the time weighted average of the level of sound in decibels on scale A which is relatable to human hearing.

A "decibel" is a unit in which noise is measured.

"A", in dB(A) Leq, denotes the frequency weighting in the measurement of noise and corresponds to frequency response characteristics of the human ear.

Leq: It is an energy mean of the noise level, over a specified period.

Source: Ministry of Environment and Tourism

Table 5. World Bank Environmental Air Quality Guideline (IFC 2007)

Parameter	Average duration of	Measuring	Maximum acceptable	
	measurement	unit	content	
Particular matter bigger size	Average for 1 year	mkg/m ³	20	
(PM 10)	Average per 24 hour	mkg/m ³	50	
particular matter small size	Average for 1 year	mkg/m ³	10	
(PM 2.5)	Average per 24 hour	er 24 hour mkg/m ³	25	
(80.)	Average per 24 hour	mkg/m ³	20	
(302)	10 minutes	mkg/m ³	500	
	Average for 1 year	mkg/m ³	40	
(NO2)	Average per hour	mkg/m ³	200	
Ozon (O ₃)	Average per 8 hour	mkg/m ³	100	

Table 6. Soil microbiological pollution standard MNS 3297:91

Soil Sanitation Condition	E.Coli, titer	CL, perfringens, titer
No pollution	1.0<	0.1<
Low pollution	0.1-0.01	0.1-0.01
Medium pollution	0.01-0.001	0.01-0.001
High pollution	0.001>	0.0001>

Table 7. Quality parameters of water sphere MNS4586:1998

Parameters	Quality parameters of water sphere MNS4586:1998
HCO3-	N/A
CO32-	N/A
CI	300/150

³³ MNS4585: <u>https://estandard.gov.mn/standard/v/3377</u>

SO42-	100/100
NO3	9/3-N
Na+	N/A
K+	N/A
Ca2+	none<45
Mg2+	none<30
Mineralization	none<300
Hardness	none<3.55
ПИЧ	none<5.0
pН	6.5-8.8

Table 8. Mongolian and WHO Standards for drinking water quality (permissible limit of chemical composition)

		WHO 2011	MNS	MNS	MNS	MNIS 4586.
Parameters		4 th edition	900 · 2010	6148 2010	4943 · 2011	1998
Aluminum	AI	$(0.9)(^{1})(ha)(^{2})$	0.5(***)(3)	0.5	0.5	
Ammonium	NH4 ⁺	<i>n.g.</i> (⁴) (1.5)	1.5(**)	3.0	6.0 (as N)	0.5 (as N)
Antimony	Sb	0.020	0.020(***)	0.006		. ,
Arsenic	As	0.010	0.01	0.01	0.01	0.01
Barium	Ва	0.7	0.7	2	1.5	
Beryllium	Ве	n.g. (0.012)(ha)	0.0002(*)	0.001	0.001	
Bor	В	2.4	0.5	1.0	0.3	
Bromide	Br	n.g.		0.01 bromate?		
Cadmium	Cd	0.003	0.003(*)	0.003	0.03	0.005
Calcium	Ca	n.g.(300)	100			
Cloride	CI	n.g.(250)	350	350		300
Chromium	Cr	0.050	0.050	0.070	0.300	0.050
Chromium 6+	Cr ⁶⁺	n.g.		0.005	??	0.010
Cobalt	Со	n.g.			0.020	0.010
Copper	Cu	2.0	1.0	1.0	0.3	0.010
Cyanide	CN⁻	n.g. (0.070)	0.010(*)	0.1/0.005(7)	0.05/0.005(7)	
Fluoride	F	1.5	0.7-1.5	1.5		1.5
Hydrosulfuric	H ₂ S	<i>n.g</i> (0.1)	0.1	0.002	0.5	
acid						
lodine	1	n.g.	1.0(***)			
Iron	Fe	n.g. (0.3)	0.3(***)	0.3	1.0	
Lead	Pb	0.010	0.010(***)	0.050	0.100	0.010
Magnesium	Mg	see Hardness	30			
Manganate	Mn	0.4(ha)/(0.1)	0.1	0.1	0.5	0.1
Mercury	Hg	0.006 (5)	0.0005(*)	0.002	0.001	0.0001
Molybdenium	Мо	n.g. (0.070)	0.070	0.040	0.500	0.250
Nicle	Ni	0.070	0.020(***)	0.1	0.2	0.010
Nitrate	NO ₃ -	50	50(**)	50	15 (as tot N)	9.0 (as N)
Nitrite	NO ₂ -	3.0	1.0(**)	1.0		0.02 (as N)
Phosphate	PO4 ³⁻	n.g.	3.5	3.5	1.5 (as tot P)	0.1 (as P)
Selenium	Se	0.040	0.010	0.040	0.020	
Argentium	Ag	n.g.(0.1)(ha)	0.1	0.1		
Sodium	Na	n.g. (200)	200			
Strontium	Sr	n.g.	2		2.0	
Sulphate	SO4	n.g. (250)	500	500		100
Thallium	TI	n.g.		0.0005		

Vanadium	V	n.g.		0.06 V ₂ O ₅	0.1	
Copper	Zn	<i>n.g.</i> (4.0)	5.0(***)	5.0	1.0	0.01
Temprature	Т°С	n.g.			20°C	
pН	рН	n.g. (6.5-8.5)	6.5-8.5	6.5-8.5	6.0-9.0	6.5-8.5
Total	TDS	n.g. (1000)	1000(1500)		1000 (⁸)	
dissolvable						
solids						
Hardness	Н	(15 meq/L)	7.0 meq/L			??
	meq/L					
Uranium	U	0.03/10 Bq/L	0.015	0.020	0.050	
Radium	²²⁶ Ra	1 Bq/L				
Total alpha	α tot	0.5 Bq/L (⁶)	0.1 Bq/L			
Total beta	β tot	1 Bq/L (⁶)	1 Bq/L			

Remark:

- 1. (¹):(xx) Sub-normative for drinking water; (²): (*ha*) Health monitoring (aging); (³): (**) industrial or Agricultural pollution, (***) eliminate pollution; (⁴): *n.g.* or clarified : ther is no interpretation, value; (⁵) non organic mercury; (⁶) screening level to be studied further; (⁷) total/free; (⁸) value that more than max or natural contents by 20%; put the values to be checked in cells highlighted or shaded by color. The measuring unit would be mg/l when the values are not indicated.
- MNS 900: 2010 Drinking water. Hygienic requirement and quality monitoring WHO ISBN 978 92 4 154815 1 – Drinking water quality general guideline, 4th edition, 2011. MNS 6148: 2010 – Water quality. Maximium limit for polluters in underground water MNS 4943: 2011 – Neutralised wastewater effluent to the environment MNS 4586: 1998 – Water quality, general requirement (To evaluate surface water quality)

Parameter	Standard Drinking water Specification as		
	Desirable Limit	Permissible Limit in absence of alternate	
		source	
Essential Characteristics-			
Physical Parameter			
Color, Hazen Units	5	25	
Odour	Unobjectionable	-	
Taste	Agreeable	-	
Turbidity, NTU	5	10	
рН	6.5 – 8.5	-	
Essential Characteristics-			
Chemical Parameters			
Total Hardness as CaCO ₃	300 Mg / L	600 Mg / L	
Iron as Fe	0.3 Mg / L	1.0 Mg / L	
Chloride as Cl	250 Mg / L	1000 Mg / L	
Residual Free Chlorine	0.2 Mg / L	-	
Desirable Characteristics-			
Chemical Parameters			
Dissolved Solids	500 Mg / L	2000 Mg / L	
Calcium as Ca	75 Mg / L	200 Mg / L	
Magnesium as Mg	30 Mg / L	100 Mg / L	
Copper as Cu	0.05 Mg / L	1.5 Mg / L	
Manganese as Mn	0.1 Mg / L	0.3 Mg / L	
Sulphate as SO ₄	200 Mg / L	400 Mg / L	
Nitrate as NO₃	45 Mg / L	No relaxation	
Fluoride as F	1.0 Mg / L	1.5 Mg / L	
Phenolic Compounds as C ₆ H ₅ OH	0.001 Mg / L	0.002 Mg / L	
Mercury as Hg	0.001 Mg / L	No relaxation	
Cadmium as Cd	0.01 Mg / L	No relaxation	
Selenium as Se	0.01 Mg / L	No relaxation	
Arsenic as As	0.05 Mg / L	No relaxation	

Table 9. Drinking Water Standards

Cyanide as CN	0.05 Mg / L	No relaxation
Lead as Pb	0.05 Mg / L	No relaxation
Zinc as Zn	5 Mg / L	15 Mg / L
Anionic Detergents as MBAS	0.2 Mg / L	1.0 Mg / L
Chromium as Cr ⁺⁶	0.05 Mg / L	No relaxation
Mineral Oil	0.01 Mg / L	0.03 Mg / L
Alkalinity	200 Mg / L	600 Mg / L
Aluminum as Al	0.03 Mg / L	0.2 Mg / L
Boron as B	1 Mg / L	5 Mg / L
Bacteriological Characteristics		
Coliform Organisms	10 CFU	10 CFU
E. Coli	Absent	Absent

Remark: CFU-Colony Forming Unit

Parameter	Desirable Limit	Permissible Limit in absence of alternate
		source
Color, Hazen Units	5	25
Turbidity, NTU	5	10
Residual Free Chlorine	0.2 Mg / L	-
Copper as Cu	0.05 Mg / L	1.5 Mg / L
Manganese as Mn	0.1 Mg / L	0.3 Mg / L
Phenolic Compounds as	0.001 Mg / L	0.002 Mg / L
C ₆ H₅OH		
Mercury as Hg	0.001 Mg / L	No relaxation
Cadmium as Cd	0.01 Mg / L	No relaxation
Selenium as Se	0.01 Mg / L	No relaxation
Arsenic as As	0.05 Mg / L	No relaxation
Cyanide as CN	0.05 Mg / L	No relaxation
Lead as Pb	0.05 Mg / L	No relaxation
Zinc as Zn	5 Mg / L	15 Mg / L
Anionic Detergents as	0.2 Mg / L	1.0 Mg / L
MBAS	-	
Chromium as Cr ⁺⁶	0.05 Mg / L	No relaxation
Mineral Oil	0.01 Mg / L	0.03 Mg / L
Aluminum as Al	0.03 Mg / L	0.2 Mg / L
Boron as B	1 Mg / L	5 Mg / L

Table 10. Water analysis parameters

Table 11. Acceptable level of pollutants in effluent to be discharged into surface waterMNS 4943:2015

#	Pollutants	Measuring unit	Acceptable level
1	Water temperature	OO	20
2	Hydrogen indicator, pH	-	6-9
3	Odor	Sensing	No odor
4	Weighing substance	mgO/l	30
5	BOD	mgO/l	20
6	COD	mgO/l	50
7	Permanganit oxidation	mgO/l	20
8	Dissolved salt	mg/l	1000
9	Total nitrogen	mgN/l	15*
10	Total phosphorus	mgP/I	1.5*
11	Hydrogen sulfide (H ₂ S)	mg/l	0.5
12	Residual chlorine (Cl ₂)	mg/l	1
13	Barium (Ba)	mg/l	1.5
14	Beryllium (Be)	mg/l	0.001
15	Boron (B)	mg/l	0.5
16	Vanadium (V)	mg/l	0.1

17	Cuprum (Cu)	mg/l	1
18	Cadmium (Cd)	mg/l	0.03
19	Cobaltous (Co)	mg/l	0.02
20	Manganese (Mn)	mg/l	0.5
21	Molybdenum (Mo)	mg/l	0.5
22	Hg	mg/l	0.001
23	Nickel (Ni)	mg/l	0.2
24	Selen (Se)	mg/l	0.02
25	Strontium (Sr)	mg/l	2
26	Total iron (Fe ²⁺³)	mg/l	1
27	Uranium (U)	mg/l	0.05
28	Pb	mg/l	0.1
29	Chromium (Cr)	mg/l	0.3
30	Cr 6+	mg/l	0.01
31	Aluminum (Al)	mg/l	0.5
32	As	mg/l	0.01
33	Zinc (Zn)	mg/l	3
34	Stannum (Sn)	mg/l	0.05
35	Cyanide (CN)	mg/l	0.05
36	Hydrogen cyanide (HCN)	mg/l	0.005
37	Phenol (C6H5OH)	mg/l	0.05
38	Benza(a) C20H12	mg/l	0.005
39	Fat	mg/l	5
40	Mineral grease	mg/l	1
41	All types of detergents	mg/l	2.5
42	C2HCI3	mg/l	0.2
43	C2CI4	mg/l	0.1
44	Pathogenic bacteria of the	-	Not detectable in 1
	intestinal group		ml

Table 12. Acceptable level of pollutants in effluent to be discharged into ground soil MNS 4943:2015

#	Pollutants	Measuring unit	Acceptable level
1	Water temperature	O ₀	20
2	Odor		Odor has not to be
			smelled
3	Hydrogen indicator		6-9
4	BOD	мгО/л	50
5	COD	мгО/л	100
6	Permanganit oxidation	мгО/л	30
7	Particular matter	mg/l	150
8	Dissolved salt	mg/l	1000
9	Cianyte	mg/l	0.2
10	Mineral grease	mg/l	3
11	Fat	mg/l	10
12	Sulphide	mg/l	0.5
13	Cu	mg/l	0.5
14	Cd	mg/l	0.05
15	Manganuim	mg/l	1
16	Mercury	mg/l	0.001
17	Sb	mg/l	0.1
18	Ni	mg/l	0.5
19	Selenium	mg/l	0.02

20	Fe	mg/l	2
21	Pb	mg/l	0.5
22	Chromium total	mg/l	0.5
23	Chromium 6	mg/l	0.1
24	Zn	mg/l	2
25	Ammonium	mg/l	15
26	Nytrogen total	mg/l	30
27	Phosphor total	mg/l	5

Table 13. Acceptable content of chemical susbstances in water sphere	MNS
4586:1998	

#	Substances	Measuring unit	Acceptable level
1	pН		6,5-8,5
2	Oxigen dissolved*	mgO/l	Not less than 6 and 4
3	BOD ₅	mgO/l	3
4	COD- Mn	mgO/l	10
5	NH4-N	mgN/l	0,5
6	NO ₂ -N	mgN/l	0,02
7	NO ₃ -N	mgN/l	9.0
8	PO ₄ -P	mgP/l	0,1
9	CI	mg/l	300
10	F	mg/l	1.5
11	SO ₄	mg/l	100
12	Mn	mg/l	0.1
13	Ni	mg/l	0.01
14	Cu	mg/l	0.01
15	Мо	mg/l	0.25
16	Cd	mg/l	0.005
17	Со	mg/l	0.01
18	Pb	mg/l	0.01
19	As	mg/l	0.01
20	Cr total	mg/l	0.05
21	Cr ⁶⁺	mg/l	0.01
22	Zn	mg/l	0.01
23	Hg	мkg/л	0.1
24	Mineral fat	mg/l	0.05
25	Phenol	mg/l	0.001
26	Surface active complex substances	mg/l	0.1
27	Benzo (a) pyren	mkg/l	0.005

* It has to be not less than 6 mgO/l in warm season and not less than 4 mgO/l in the period with ice cover.

Table 14. MNS 5457- 2005 "Maximum acceptable level and measuring method of toxic elements (CO, SO₂, NOx, ash) in the exhaust gases contents of heating boilers and home stoves"

Table	14.1	
-------	------	--

	Boiler	(NO _x)			(SO ₂)				
	installed	Emitted by	Emitted by	Concentration	Emitted	Emitted by	Emitted	Concentration	Emitted
	capacity (Q),	burning	1 MJ heat	in the exhaust	in unit	burning	by 1 MJ	in the exhaust	in unit
	MW	1kg fuel	produced,	gases mg/m ³	of time,	1kg fuel	heat	gases mg/m ³	of time,
		equivalent,	g/MJ		g/s	equivalent,	produced,		g/s
		g/kg f.e.	-			g/kg f.e.	g/MJ		-
1	Q ≤ 0.8	6.75	0.23	450	0.3	12.0	0.4	800	0.4
2	0.8 ≤ Q ≤ 3.15	6.0	0.2	400	0.25	9.0	0.3	600	0.5

Table 14.2.

	Boiler		(CO)				Ash			
	installed capacity (Q), MW	Emitted by burning 1kg fuel equivalent, g/kg f.e.	Emitted by 1 MJ heat produce d, g/MJ	Concentration in the exhaust gases mg/m ³	Emitted in unit of time, g/s	Emitted by burning 1kg fuel equivalent, g/kg f.e.	Emitted by 1 MJ heat produced, g/MJ	Concentration in the exhaust gases mg/m ³	Emitted in unit of time, g/s	
1	Home stove			4000				2500		
2	Q ≤ 0.8	37.5	1.28	2500	1.8	6.0	0.15	400	0.34	
3	0.8 ≤ Q ≤ 3.15	30	1.02	2000	1.5	4.5	0.2	300	0.23	

Annexure 5: Sample Environment Monitoring Report

Environmental Safeguards Document

Environment Monitoring Report

Document Stage: Project Number: Period – Reporting –

Mongolia: Sustaining Access to and Quality of Education During Economic Difficulties

Prepared by Ministry of Education, Culture, Science and Sports (MES) for Asian Development Bank

The environment monitoring report is a document of the borrower. The views expressed herein do not necessarily represent those of ADB's Board of Directors, Management, or staff, and may be preliminary in nature.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Executive Summary

• Brief status of environmental compliance during the coverage period

1.0 Introduction

- 1.1 Brief Project Description
- 1.2 Project Progress Status and Implementation Schedule

2.0 Compliance to National Regulations

2.1 Environmental Conservation

3.0 Compliance to Environmental Covenants from the ADB Loan Agreement

3.1 Schedule 5 Environment (prepare a matrix to show how compliance was achieved)

4.0 Compliance to Environmental Management Plan

(Refer to the EMP of the Project)

5.0 Safeguards Monitoring Results and Unanticipated Impacts

(Refer to the Environmental Monitoring Plan and document any exceedance to environmental standards (if any), or any unanticipated impact not included in the EMP or any unanticipated impacts on existing or associated facilities and any correction action/measures taken)

6.0 Implementation of Grievance Redress Mechanism and Complaints Received from Stakeholders

(Summary of any complaint/grievance and the status of action taken)

7.0 Conclusion and Recommendations

Page

Annexure 6: Details of Public Consultation (Environment)

1. Details of Public Consultation (Environm

Participants' opinion, comments and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites. No 1. School Khantaishir in 2. School #18, in UB, 3. School #122, in UB 4. Kindergarten #84 In 5. New school in Mangirt Issues Govi-Altai Aimag Khan-Uul district Songinokhairkhan UB, Songinokhairkhan, bag of Darkhan Uul Aimag 6th khoroo district 1 2 5 3 4 100% of the participants Do you support for the All the 61 /28 men and 33 All participants supported Construction of new school 1 All participants construction at school? women/ participants the construction. supported because of are encouraged building is supported 100%. support the construction the school has almost 2 constructing a new of school building times exeeded number building for the extension. Schools and of students kindergarten. The kindergarten is being run kindergartens being in the vicinity of their home is activities in an old very important to the building which was built in 1948. parents Education level of the 2 What is educational status People's educational level Education level of this Most of residents of this We do not have a secondary area are resettled from of your community? is average and most of area is at satisfactiry level people who live around school in the area. the households are below countryside, and they this area is medium. have low education and subsistence level. There are many lack of livelihood Extension of the school immigrated people from building will help pushing income. the aimags. educational level forward. Majority of the 3 Will this construction at No, this consruction is We do not see any There is no positive There will be no effects to the Schools/Kindergarten give participants said there small than other big negative impact because influence on the solution kindergarten since it is 450 m would be no significant buildings constructing in of this area is more of the problems. A new any negative impact to distant. negative effects and the remote from other vour apartment complex? this area. building can be minority of the residential settlement constructed in the north participants said that side of the kindergarten and buildings. there might be some building where is an negative effects such as emptier place. noise and dust. It was also said that the negative effects can be managed since a favourable condition for learning is created for the children. 4 What benefits do you Favourable condition for Children's educational We hope that the school Pre-school group B Construction of this school perceive from this learning is created for the condition will be class shift will be student Bilegsaikan's shall allow those children. construction? children and access to improved, more children reduced from 3 shift to 2 mother Delgertsetseg: I who commute 2-4 km from education will be can involved in school. have nursed my children home to school, to go to a shift, and students increased. Children's claas size will be studying condition will be who are 2-4 years old at school that is near to their commute to school and decreased improved. home and from this year I homes. Construction of back to home will be have started to work. apartment area is planned in safer. Time will be saved. Since this year my the area. Thus, children living and the parents will be children have started in the apartments can go to

ent) (1-5)

No	Participants' opinion, comments and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites.							
	Issues	1. School Khantaishir in Govi-Altai <i>Aimag</i>	2. School #18, in UB, Khan-Uul district	3. School #122, in UB Songinokhairkhan district	4. Kindergarten #84 In UB, Songinokhairkhan, 6 th khoroo	5. New school in Mangirt bag of Darkhan Uul <i>Aimag</i>		
		1	2	3	4	5		
		more satisfied. Children's enthusiasm to learn will be raised and the number students will increase. Appearance of the city will be elevated. And the income of the near service centers will increase.			educating in the kindergarten. My spouse is also employing and there are many mothers like me around here. Medium group B student Anar-Erdene's mother Munkhtungalag: I am very glad that my youngest child is educated in the kindergarten, and I have possibilities to work somewhere. Medium group B student Mandakhnaran's father Nyamdavaa: It is already 12 years have passed but there is not have been built new kindergarten around this place. Before the elections to the parliament the party candidates promised to build new building in the territory of our <i>khoroo</i> . This meeting is one of these kinds of promises. If the promise is real thing, I will be pleased to buar it	this school too.		
5	Would you have any problem with school if construction company makes access road in your parking area, dig any pipeline etc. for repair for diversion?	If a road for construction work is determined, there shall be a little effect on the parking. Due to having a little space in that area, vehicles should be parked in the construction area. There is a cultural place near construction site.	May be some problem in our car parking and there could be increased trafic gem during the transporting construction material.	There would not be any conflict because of the distance between school and households is far more than 250m.	There is no conflict because the new building will be constructed in the territory of the kindergarten. There is spacious surrounding area around kindergarten #84.	If the road for the construction work is settled, there shall be a little effect on the parking. Due to having a little space in that area, vehicles should be parked in the construction area. There is a cultural place near construction site. Therefore, no difficulties should be		

No	o Participants' opinion, comments and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites.						
	Issues	1. School Khantaishir in Govi-Altai <i>Aimag</i>	2. School #18, in UB, Khan-Uul district	3. School #122, in UB Songinokhairkhan district	4. Kindergarten #84 In UB, Songinokhairkhan, 6 th khoroo	5. New school in Mangirt bag of Darkhan Uul <i>Aimag</i>	
		1	2	3	4	5	
		should be caused to its operations. Some of participants said that there will be no impact because the parking area is distant.					
6	Would you be having any construction causes some dust during digging and storing in the school premises?	Dust and noise will affect to a certain degree. However, construction of kindergarten is more important for the local development. We, the residents, will try to stay level-headed and will be involved in mitigating difficulties.	There will not be any dust raising because of this is the expansion on top of the school, adding one floor	There would not be any conflict because of the distance between school and households is far more than 250m.	We encourage to build a new kindergarten.	Construction site is 600 m distant from the settlement area. Therefore, there will be no issues.	
7	Will you have a problem if the construction company required to work during the night to bringing construction material?	There will be no difficulties caused for the people who work in offices and service centers, because they will be in the area only during the day time. Households in the immediate vicinity of the construction site are expected to have more difficulties. We hope they will not be transporting construction materials every night. And, we will be involved in mitigating difficulties.	That is better to bring construction material during the night time, because of preventing trafic gem during day time.	No problem	Difficulties for us will not be created because it will be big investment for our children.	Construction site is 600 m distant from the settlement area. Therefore, there will be no issues.	
8	Will you have a problem if the construction company required to work during the night to carry construction requiring extreme vibration and noise such as concreting, cutting, digging etc.?	There will be no difficulties caused to the people who work in offices and service centers. Compared to young people, the elderly might have more difficulties such as having trouble to sleep. So, we	Do not think so, the expansion can be mostly using wooden material	No problem	There are no difficulties for activities of the kindergarten. The kindergarten is running its activities during the day time.	Construction site is 600 m distant from the settlement area. Therefore, there will be no issues.	

No	Participants' opinion, comments and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites.						
	Issues	1. School Khantaishir in Govi-Altai <i>Aimag</i>	2. School #18, in UB, Khan-Uul district	3. School #122, in UB Songinokhairkhan district	4. Kindergarten #84 In UB, Songinokhairkhan, 6 th khoroo	5. New school in Mangirt bag of Darkhan Uul <i>Aimag</i>	
		1	2	3	4	5	
		would like the construction company to properly manage their works.					
9	How would you react to construction company transporting waste and construction material through your apartment area or parking area?	There will be no problem if transportation norms are observed. Any accidents related to falling and dragging of things being transported should be prevented. Wastes that are harmful to health must be removed immediately in a timely manner. There will be no negative impressions if these are taken care of.	If the construction company has proper schedule about the transportation and imforme us, there would not be any problem.	Will not have negative perception	There are no difficulties. It is related to the creation.	Construction site is 600 m distant from the settlement area. Therefore, there will be no issues.	
10	Are you concerned about Health & Safety of residents and children during the construction?	All the participants expressed their concerns related to safety of children. Works such as patrolling should be conducted by involving the patrols of the construction site, school teachers, workers, parents, and the people who live in the area, especially during the time when school starts and finishes.	We hope so that the construction activity will be carried out during vocation of school and all parties have to set up proper protection barriers around the site.	If the construction will continue during the school time, there should be built proper barriers.	The teachers should inform parents about constructing process and parents have to pay more attention to their children especially during the earth moving work. Also, a construction company should pay more attention on the safety.	Construction site is 600 m distant from the settlement area. Therefore, there will be no issues.	
11	Would you like to participate in safety monitoring and controlling activities?	People who work in offices and service centers expressed their interests not to be involved. However, the residents were supporting the idea of conducting inspections and they expressed their interests in being involved in	If school requires our participation we will be organized.	Yes we would like to participate	Our teachers and workers can control if it is required.	Such council can be established.	

No	Participants' opinion, con	nments and suggestions fr	om consultation meetings	with residents of surroun	ding area of sites.	
	Issues	1. School Khantaishir in Govi-Altai <i>Aimag</i>	2. School #18, in UB, Khan-Uul district	3. School #122, in UB Songinokhairkhan district	4. Kindergarten #84 In UB, Songinokhairkhan, 6 th khoroo	5. New school in Mangirt bag of Darkhan Uul <i>Aimag</i>
		1	2	3	4	5
		conducting inspections.				
12	Would you be willing to form a committee to help to school during the construction period?	Most of the participants proposed an establishment of a council to ensure the safety of children and to protect the rights of the residents. Also, it can conduct inspections for the construction work.	Some of participants liked this idea and decided to discuss with school management.	We would establish such acouncil.	If it is necessary, we can organize a committee of the teachers and the parents.	We want it.
13	Any other critical environment related issue and concern by the residents for the during construction and operation stage?	Number of things should be taken into account. For example, damages to school building, its green area, roads, and the environment should be prevented. After the construction, the area should be maintained. Construction materials such as sand and aggregate should be supplied from a designated place.	The expansion is on the top of school there for we are concerning for protection measurement against falling down something.	None	I have no idea on it.	Environmental impact assessment should be conducted by professional organization. And the assessment should be observed for the works.
14	If you have any problem caused by this school/kindergarten construction, whom would you like to contact? (Construction company, school, urban department etc.)	Management of the contractor / company/. Administration of the school. Responsible person of the sum administration. Responsible person of the <i>aimag</i> administration and/or State professional inspector.	School management, construction company and District Government	Construction company and school	A construction company and for other related officials	Will contact the Darkhan city Governor's office and urban development office
15	What would you expect to improve at current school building (such as changing coal heating to electric heating etc.)	Heating is supplied from steam boiler in Govi-Altai <i>aimag</i> , but it is not enough to meet the standard. Due to issues related to heating, many	The insulation of school has to be improved	Transportation of water should be changed with deep water well, school has to have office for teachers	The building is old and it was built in 1948. Plumbing and sewage system will be changed, front side and facade will be fixed and ventilation	The building to be constructed should use environmentally friendly solar energy and power for its heating. Energy saving technology should be used.

No	Participants' opinion, con	ments and suggestions fr	om consultation meetings	with residents of surrour	iding area of sites.	
	Issues	1. School Khantaishir in Govi-Altai <i>Aimag</i>	2. School #18, in UB, Khan-Uul district	3. School #122, in UB Songinokhairkhan district	4. Kindergarten #84 In UB, Songinokhairkhan, 6 th khoroo	5. New school in Mangirt bag of Darkhan Uul <i>Aimag</i>
		1	2	3	4	5
		new buildings cannot operate during winter. Poor heating of building deteriorates its quality and durability. Therefore, we prefer electric heating.			will be improved.	
16	Any shops/commercial establishments and industrial activity disturbed by this construction?	There will be no problem, because there are no shops, business, industrial or service centers in the school area. However, there is the cultural place of the <i>aimag</i> , thus construction works should be managed when the cultural place is operating.	No shops, commercial activities disturbed.	None	There are no large markets and stores and shops around the kindergarten.	There are no shops or business/service centers in the area.
17	What other organizations of environment & nature conservation (NGOs/CBOs/ Civil Society) active in the area? Name of these organizations	Environmental protection works are actively conducted in the area. There are no NGOs and civil society organizations. We have public servants, state inspector in charge of environmental matters of sums and inspector in charge of environmental matters of professional inspection agency.	We do not know.	None	No idea.	No information.
	Other issues	-To construct the building with quality material within the expected date. -To observe health and safety norms and standards during the construction work. -To consider comments and proposals from local administration and citizens. -To fulfil its social	None	The construction should be finished on time.	None	-Landscaping and maintenance of the environment and green area should be taken into serious consideration. -Safety should be number one importance during construction and the workers of every stage of the project should be trained on HSE. -Professional and experienced company should

No	Participants' opinion, comments and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites.						
	Issues	1. School Khantaishir in Govi-Altai <i>Aimag</i>	2. School #18, in UB, Khan-Uul district	3. School #122, in UB Songinokhairkhan district	4. Kindergarten #84 In UB, Songinokhairkhan, 6 th khoroo	5. New school in Mangirt bag of Darkhan Uul <i>Aimag</i>	
		1	2	3	4	5	
		responsibility to rehabilitate the environment after the construction.				be selected for the construction. -Clean water should be used properly for the activities of the project. -There should be a dedicated point for landfill and a contract should be concluded with the authorized organization regarding landfill. Wastes should be taken to the landfill on a regular basis. Sanitation and disinfection shall be carried out regularly and environmental pollution should be prevented. -To cooperate with organizations and agencies in charge to ensure the implementation of law on environmental protection. -Information board shall be operated for the public; vehicles should be properly parked without blocking movements and signs should be placed. -For the lighting of the building, energy saving lights shall be used. -To create conditions for vehicles to move and pass freely in case of emergency.	

No	Participants' opinion, comments and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites.							
	Issues	6. KG#22 in	7. KG #82 in	8. KG #65 in	9. KG# 8 in	10. Kindergarten #107,		
		Ulaanbaatar	Ulaanbaatar	Ulaanbaatar	Ulaanbaatar city	in UB		
						Songinokhairkhan 14		
						khoroo		
		6	7	8	9	10		
1	Do you support for	Citizen, Battumur: An	Supported by the 94%	Number of children in	We support the	105 participants out of		
	the construction at	idea to extend the	of the participants.	one class will be less,	construction.	111 are supporting of		
	school.	kindergarten building		teachers' work load	The kindergarten	expansion. 5 participants		
		is supported for a		will reduced, and they	should have 8 to 12	say they don't support if		
		reason that there is no		will be given an	classes.	the construction will be a		
		land for construction of		opportunity to work		new commercial building		
		new school or		with every child.		because they are not		
		kindergarten in the		Children will be		sure if Kindergarten will		
		area. with the		learning in safer		be made.		
		extension of		environment. Parents				
		kindergalten building,		will have lime to work				
		children at the		income Our				
		kindergarten will		kindergarten bas a				
		increase and the		land for extension				
		parents will be enabled		According to a law				
		to work		there should be 25				
				children in a class.				
				but we have 60-70				
				children. Due to this				
				problem, children get				
				sick easily and there				
				is not enough air.				
				Kindergarten building				
				extension is what we				
				want.				
2	What is educational	Our district is one of	Of the participants,	The 65 th kindergarten	Educational level is	49 participants replied		
	status of your	the oldest districts of	17% said the	became one of the	average.	good, 38 replied medium		
	community?	the capital city and the	enrolment is	top kindergartens		and 17 evaluated bad.		
		residents of the 1 st	satisfactory; 35% -	among state owned				
		knoroo are sedentary	average; 5% - no; 28%	Kindergartens in				
		their educational level	- not satisfactory.	kindergarten of Khan				
				Lul district twice and				
		is above average.		the hest kindergarten				
				award from				
				"Kharaatsai" cultural				
				competition organized				
				by the World Vision				
				Teachers and the				

No	Participants' opinion, comments and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites.						
	lssues	6. KG#22 in Ulaanbaatar	7. KG #82 in Ulaanbaatar	8. KG #65 in Ulaanbaatar	9. KG# 8 in Ulaanbaatar city	10. Kindergarten #107, in UB Songinokhairkhan 14 <i>khor</i> oo	
		6	7	8	9	10	
				employees have many years of experience.			
3	Will this construction at Schools/Kindergart en give any negative impact to your apartment complex?	There will be no effects. If labor safety is observed in a dedicated area, there will be no effects. Many new buildings were constructed in a place where we live, and we had no issues related to noise or dust.	77% answered "no" because children will be enrolled in kindergarten. 2% answered there would not be significant negative effects. 10% answered there would be negative effects. 11% did not answer.	The kindergarten has a land for extension on its left side. Thus, there will not be negative effects in the area.	No negative effects, because it is distant from houses and apartments located along the road.	92 participants replied that there will be no negative impact. 14 felt that there will be impact because of lack of car parking area in the vicinity.	
4	What benefits do you perceive from this construction?	Every child will go to kindergarten and a favourable environment will be created for children to learn and develop. Access to kindergarten will be increased as well as workplace.	Every child will go or will be given an opportunity to go to kindergarten. 84% of the participants answered a favourable condition was created for the children. 16% answered no.	Children will be 100% enrolled in kindergarten. Number of children in one class will be less, teachers' work load will reduced, and they will be given an opportunity to work with every child. Children will be learning in safer environment. Parents will have time to work and increase their income.	Children will be provided with an opportunity to learn in more comfortable environment and the number of enrolled children will increase. With the increase of number of enrolled children, workplace will be added. We see it as an investment for the children. Number of children in one class will be reduced.	105 participants out of 111 are supporting of expansion. 5 participants say they don't support if the construction will be a new commercial building because they are not sure if Kindergarten will be made.	
5	Would you have any problem with school if construction company makes access road in your parking area, dig any pipeline etc. for repair for diversion?	It is a temporary difficulty, and we should see the development in the future. Construction company should be accountable for the works they had done, and the environment should be rehabilitated	67% of the participants answered, "it can be managed temporarily", "it is ok during summer time" and a "big issue is being solved" expressing that there would not be any conflicts. 7% answered there would	There will not be a problem related to vehicles entering and exiting construction site and installation of pipes etc.	There will not be a problem. We expect the roads and pavements would not be used, because the construction will be conducted in the plot of the kindergarten.	49 participants replied good, 38 replied medium and 17 evaluated bad.	

No	Participants' opinion, comments and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites.						
	Issues	6. KG#22 in Ulaanbaatar	7. KG #82 in Ulaanbaatar	8. KG #65 in Ulaanbaatar	9. KG# 8 in Ulaanbaatar city	10. Kindergarten #107, in UB Songinokhairkhan 14 <i>khoro</i> o	
		6	7	8	9	10	
6	Would you be having any	after the installation of utilities facilities /pipes etc./. After the construction, road must be maintained due to damages occurred by mixer truck. Possible difficulties such as power shortage and closing of road can take place when installing utilities facilities, and they should be taken care of.	be issues. Remaining 26% did not answer the question. 64% of the participants answered, "it can be	Dust and noise will not be causing issues	Noise will be a problem. But it can be	92 participants replied that there will be no	
	construction causes some dust during digging and storing in the school premises?	conducted after children and elder people are off to their summer houses. Other than this, there will not be a problem. Infants might have difficulties to sleep due to loud noise from construction. And construction dust might have negative effects on human body. So, construction work must be finished at scheduled hours.	managed temporarily", "it can be worked out" and "no". 2% answered "a little bit". 21% answered it will be a difficulty, thus it should be conducted during day time.	for children and kindergarten teachers, because they will be on holiday during construction. Apartments are 120- 250 m distant from construction site.	managed by closing the windows etc.	negative impact. 14 felt that there will be impact because of lack of car parking area in the vicinity.	
7	Will you have a problem if the construction company required to work during the night to bringing	There will not be a significant problem. The other construction companies might have transported construction materials	77% of the participants answered, "it is not a big issue since it is for the children", "it can be worked out if it is not very late" and "no".	Night time construction and transportation is acceptable, because apartments are 120- 250 m distant from	We, the citizens, will support the construction if it is carried out according to the relevant legislations.	81 people said no problem, where 24 said if the Construction Company works during the night, it will be difficult. 4 people said no	

No	Participants' opinion, comments and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites.					
	Issues	6. KG#22 in Ulaanbaatar	7. KG #82 in Ulaanbaatar	8. KG #65 in Ulaanbaatar	9. KG# 8 in Ulaanbaatar city	10. Kindergarten #107, in UB Songinokhairkhan 14 <i>khor</i> oo
		6	7	8	9	10
	construction material?	during night time. We did not hear any noise and slept through it.	12% answered it is unacceptable during night time, thus it should be conducted during work hours.	construction site.		idea.
8	Will you have a problem if the construction company required to work during the night to carry construction requiring extreme vibration and noise such as concreting, cutting, digging etc.?	Since the Government is not building a kindergarten for us, we will try to negotiate on the terms. If labour safety is observed in the area, there will be no effects.	74% of the participants answered, "it is ok if not for many days", "it can be worked out" and "no difficulties". 21% answered "the construction company should take the residents into account" and "there will be issues".	There will not be a problem.	We will try to be patient because it is a construction of kindergarten. We hope there will not be loud noises every day and night. The construction company should understand that there are people trying to rest and sleep.	70 people answered if they work during day time it is no problem as they are working for kindergarten. 36 persons felt if the noise increased beyond limitations norm, it will be difficult.
9	How would you react to construction company transporting waste and construction material through your apartment area or parking area?	There is nothing to object the night time transportation. It should be conducted taking the parking load into consideration. Heavy vehicles and trucks might collide with the other cars when they enter and exit the construction site, thus such incidents must be prevented.	70% of the participants answered, "there will not be problems if kindergarten is being constructed", "it is ok" and "no difficulties if it is rehabilitated after the work". 17% answered "there will be negative effects".	The fact that there are 65-70 children in one class is one of the biggest difficulties and it is bigger and more serious than construction waste.	They should inform us about how they are going to manage construction waste. We can stay unworried as long as there is a contract or rules applied regarding waste management and transportation.	73 replied there should not be any negative perception. 31 said if the transportation will be according to guideline, there will be no problem.
10	Are you concerned about Health & Safety of residents and children during the construction?	There will not be a problem if the construction company is accountable for its actions by observing relevant safety norms. And we, parents, will keep an eye on our children.	Very concerned. It should be conducted during holiday and safety must be ensured. A person who oversees construction work must take these into consideration.	We do not have concerns over children's health and safety because they are sent to camps or summer houses during that time. Signs should be placed around	Safety norms and standards must be observed during construction to prevent from potential accidents. A contract on accountability should be concluded. Safety should be a	66 people replied that construction should be continued for short period of time. 35 people replied that labour safety rules have to be followed accurately and Construction Company must take into account

No	Participants' opinion, comments and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites.							
	Issues	6. KG#22 in Ulaanbaatar	7. KG #82 in Ulaanbaatar	8. KG #65 in Ulaanbaatar	9. KG# 8 in Ulaanbaatar city	10. Kindergarten #107, in UB Songinokhairkhan 14 <i>kh</i> oroo		
		6	7	8	9	10		
			Construction company is responsible for the safety. 70% of the participants answered, "it is ok when it is taken into account" and "yes". 30% answered "there is nothing to object since there are a lot of buildings in the area".	construction area.	priority in the works of the construction company.	installation of barrier and other safety measures.		
11	Would you like to participate in safety monitoring and controlling activities?	If no specialization is required, we can take part in it. Citizen, Otgonsuren: I think professional people should be recruited.	67% of the participants answered, "acceptable if possible" and "wanted". 30% answered "no or not wanted".	We would like to take part in it.	We, teachers and kindergarten employees, can conduct inspection. The construction company can inform us about how we can be involved.	52 people said that they do not want to participate. 46 relied on if they have time, they can participate. 6 people have no idea.		
12	Would you be willing to form a committee to help to school during the construction period?	We want it and professionals should be recruited. And the other people should not intervene when there are people already recruited.	84% of the participants answered, "inspection committee should be established" and "will take part in it if possible". 7% answered "inspection committee is not wanted". 9% did not answer.	Council of the kindergarten, parents' council, and teachers' council should be involved.	A council which will help works of the kindergarten should be established. A council comprised of teachers of the kindergarten and representatives of parents can be established, but we want to understand the benefits of establishing such a council first.	71 people said it was not necessary, 28 persons said they want to form a council whereas 2 have no idea.		
13	Any other critical environment related issue and concern by the residents for the during construction and operation stage?	Environment should be rehabilitated after construction. The area should be sprinkled with water to prevent from causing allergies to the people during the construction.	Green area should be established. 68% of the participants answered, "trees should not be cut", "not concerned because it is conducted during children's holiday" and	Construction wastes should be removed in a timely manner. Signs with pictures that can be understood by children should be placed around construction waste	Outside of the kindergarten should be maintained. Vegetation and establishment of green area must be carried out satisfactorily. It should be carried out by professional	65 people said no problem, 31 said protection barriers must be established correctly. The Construction Company has to define the parking area for construction machinery. The children's playground		

No	Participants' opinion, comments and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites.						
	Issues	6. KG#22 in Ulaanbaatar	7. KG #82 in Ulaanbaatar	8. KG #65 in Ulaanbaatar	9. KG# 8 in Ulaanbaatar city	10. Kindergarten #107, in UB Songinokhairkhan 14 <i>khoroo</i>	
		6	7	8	9	10	
			"construction work should be conducted by taking the area where children will play into account". 11% answered "nothing to be considered".	area.	people, not a construction company.	has to be renovated and trees and bushes should not be destroyed.	
14	If you have any problem caused by this school/kindergarten construction, whom would you like to contact? (Construction company, school, urban department etc.)	30 people answered to contact the construction company; 9 people answered to contact the kindergarten administration;12 people answered to contact the administration of the district; 5 people answered they did not know;	70% of the participants answered, "construction company". 4% answered "administration of the district". 21% answered "administration of the kindergarten".	If any issue arises, we will contact the construction company for resolution.	Construction company and the other responsible people.	Construction Company, Kindergarten management, city and district government and <i>khoroo</i> government	
15	What would you expect to improve at current school building (such as changing coal heating to electric heating etc.)	It is very cold during winter unless heated by electricity. An advanced technology should be used.	24% of the participants voted for "restructuring classrooms, maintenance for ceiling, walls, other parts, playground, physical training hall, plumbing maintenance, heat loss, roof, kitchen, auditorium, extension of the building and rooms and ventilation system". 31% voted for "extension of building". And 25% voted for "improvement of green area".	Power source equipment should be renewed, bathrooms of the classrooms should be maintained, some of the pipes should be re-installed and kitchen should be extended to the principal's room.	It is connected to the central heating, thus not necessary. Auditorium, physical training hall, bathrooms and bedrooms must be separate. Ventilation system must be properly installed.	Improve the plumbing system, the class rooms must be big and have natural light. The current old building has to be renovated.	

No	Participants' opinion, comments and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites.						
	Issues	6. KG#22 in	7. KG #82 in	8. KG #65 in	9. KG# 8 in	10. Kindergarten #107,	
		Uldalibaatai	Uldalibaatai	Uldalibaatai	Uldalibaatar City	Songinokhairkhan 14	
						khoroo	
		6	7	8	9	10	
16	Any shops/commercial establishments and industrial activity disturbed by this construction?	Construction work such as blocking the road by heavy vehicles, digging and excavating holes and trenches should not affect the business of the area.	62% of the participants answered "no" and "it would be ok". 7% answered "there will be issues" and "construction company will resolve the issues". 16% answered "do not know".	A problem will not be caused to the shops, business and service centers that are located around kindergarten building.	There are no service centers in the area.	86 participants said that the construction would not interrupt the commercial and shop business.	
17	What other organizations of environment & nature conservation (NGOs/CBOs/ Civil Society) active in the area? Name of these organizations	No information.	No information.	None	No information.	No idea	
	Other issues		Playground should be renovated and maintained. Building extension should be completed prior to the commencement of the next academic year. Ventilation system, plumbing, building insulation and the roof should be maintained because of mold and fungus caused by humidity. The building has been in use for many years, and it should be extended. Population is growing year by year because of construction of	Extension of kindergarten building be completed before the start of the next academic year. Proposals from the administration of kindergarten be reflected. Bedrooms of the classes to be separate. Music lesson hall, storage, rooms for principal and senior teacher must be reflected in the design.	New building of the kindergarten must be meeting the standards and be completed within short amount of time by using quality construction materials. Each class should have a place for eating and bedrooms etc. Ventilation, heating and plumbing system should be taken into serious consideration. We hope many kindergartens will be constructed. Construction work should be started with proper construction hoarding without	One kindergarten constructed in some part of the same Kindergarten; it was privatised. This should not happen. If that happens again, we are not allowing this construction expansion.	

No	Participants	s' opinion, comments ar	nd suggestions from co	nsultation meetings wit	th residents of surround	ling area of sites.
	Issues	6. KG#22 in Ulaanbaatar	7. KG #82 in Ulaanbaatar	8. KG #65 in Ulaanbaatar	9. KG# 8 in Ulaanbaatar city	10. Kindergarten #107, in UB Songinokhairkhan 14 <i>khoro</i> o
		6	7	8	9	10
			apartments in the area and all of the children could not go to kindergarten. Therefore, the building should be extended.		operations.	

3. Details of Public Consultation (Environment) (11-15)

No	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites.						
	Issues	11. New KG in Sumber	12. KG #88 in	13. KG # 104 in UB	14. KG# 176 in	15. KG# 68 in Ulaanbaatar	
		Soum of Govisumber	Ulaanbaatar Bayangol,	Songinokhairkhan 12	Ulaanbaatar city		
			18 th khoroo	khoroo			
		11	12	13	14	15	
1	Do you support for the	We support the idea of	All participants supported	Increase the size of	Out of over 800 children	Since all the children in the	
	construction at school.	constructing a new	the construction because	kindergarten is priority in	in the age of 2 - 6 living in	age of 2 to 5 of all households	
		kindergarten because the	there is lack of	our <i>khoroo</i> and they	micro district 31, only 125	residing in micro districts 3	
		currently operating 5	kindergarten space for	support the construction	children are brought up at	and 5 cannot attend in	
		kindergartens are	children.	expansion.	the kindergarten. For this	kindergarten, we strongly	
		overcrowded. Those			reason, it is reasonably	support construction of new	
		children who could not go			required to build	extension building for the	
		to one of these 5			extension for	kindergarten.	
		kindergartens go to			kindergarten.		
		private kindergarten, so			-		
		we need a new					
		kindergarten in town.					

No	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites.					
	Issues	11. New KG in Sumber Soum of Govisumber	12. KG #88 in Ulaanbaatar Bayangol, 18 th khoroo	13. KG # 104 in UB Songinokhairkhan 12 <i>khoroo</i>	14. KG# 176 in Ulaanbaatar city	15. KG# 68 in Ulaanbaatar
		11	12	13	14	15
2	What is educational status of your community?	Education sector activities are perceived to be satisfactory.	98% of all participants expressed that the education level of <i>khoroo</i> is sufficient.	245 participants said good quality of education, 69 participants said "Medium".	Mostly people who have lower-than-average income or minimum income reside here. According to the studies of parents, educational attainment of residents includes complete secondary education and even illiteracy.	According to our consideration, educational attainment for the residents is excellent since it is within "A" class location of the city.
3	Will this construction at Schools/Kindergarten give any negative impact to your apartment complex?	Teachers and the other employees see no negative effects.	They feel there will be no negative impact if the construction company does not park any trucks and cars blocking any residential roads.	300 particpants replied that there would not be any negative impact. 16 replied that they will negatively impacted if childrens playground in front their building is used.	Considering that it won't affect comfort and convenience of residents.	Since the playground outside kindergarten is large and spacious, no negative impact would be exerted when constructing a building.
4	What benefits do you perceive from this construction?	Pre-school age children at home will be provided with an opportunity to go to kindergarten. Every child should have pre- school education.	All children of <i>khoroo</i> can get education at this kindergarten.	All children of <i>khoroo</i> can get education at this kindergarten. They hope the condition of education will improve and parents will be satisfied.	Many parents say that they would give their children to kindergarten, be provided with opportunity to start children's education and upbringing correctly and do any job for a better life if the new kindergarten is constructed.	We conclude that it can provide those who cannot attend with kindergarten, reduce number of children per teacher and enable to work with every single child.
5	Would you have any problem with school if construction company makes access road in your parking area, dig any pipeline etc. for repair for diversion?	We do not object since an environment that enables provision of education for our young children is created.	There will be no conflict. They will be happy if the kindergarten is constructed for their children.	If the construction company will have good coordination and organising for keeping construction material, trucks, cars, there would not having any conflict. Because the kindergarten area is big enough fenced area. The construction will be carried out inside the	No problem arising from. We strongly support construction of extension for the school/kindergarten.	No conflict will be raise.

No	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites.					
	Issues	11. New KG in Sumber Soum of Govisumber	12. KG #88 in Ulaanbaatar Bayangol, 18 th khoroo	13. KG # 104 in UB Songinokhairkhan 12 <i>khoroo</i>	14. KG# 176 in Ulaanbaatar city	15. KG# 68 in Ulaanbaatar
		11	12	13	14	15
-				kindergarten construction area. Activities such as digging of soil etc. should be inside the fenced area of the kindergarten. If they dig some channels, and carryout some piping activity, there should be enough signages and warnings.		
6	Would you be having any construction causes some dust during digging and storing in the school premises?	We do not think it is impossible. It is important to carry out quality work during the construction. Other than that, there are no difficulties.	Maybe noise can be increased and disturb them. Within their residential area, generally there is no dust rising because all roads are constructed roads. If the construction company inform and introduce the plan and schedule of activities, they can coordinate their work and life to that schedule thereby making it easy for all parties.	312 participants replied there would not any interruption in the work	Noise and dust from construction work won't affect residents and those who are living around.	If they consider it from the perspective of constructing kindergarten, they will indeed respect us, instead of interrupting.
7	Will you have a problem if the construction company required to work during the night to bringing construction material?	Noise from construction will not be a problem.	There will be no problem as they are expecting that construction company will not transport construction material every day and regularly at night.	297 participants said there will not be any problems. 15 said if they create big noise in sleeping time it will be difficult.	Transportation of building materials won't affect comfort and convenience of residents.	We assume there won't be any difficulties since residents in micro district 3 and 5 are pleased with construction of extension for kindergarten.
8	Will you have a problem if the construction company required to work during the night to carry construction requiring extreme	The 5 th kindergarten is distant from the new kindergarten location. So, there will be no problems related to noise. And the kindergarten operates until 5 PM.	There would be some problem, but the construction company will have to collaborate with residents of the area and inform and negotiate when such activities will	282 participants said there will be no problem. 32 participants replied the noise making activities should not continue for long time. They will be patient in	Noise from construction work won't affect residents and those who are living around.	It is impossible to predict about any potential hindrance or risk prior to commencement of work since the construction company and client work together for the sake of children by concluding

No	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites.					
	lssues	11. New KG in Sumber Soum of Govisumber	12. KG #88 in Ulaanbaatar Bayangol, 18 th khoroo	13. KG # 104 in UB Songinokhairkhan 12 <i>khoroo</i>	14. KG# 176 in Ulaanbaatar city	15. KG# 68 in Ulaanbaatar
		11	12	13	14	15
	vibration and noise such as concreting, cutting, digging etc.?		happen.	this regard.		tripartite agreement.
9	How would you react to construction company transporting waste and construction material through your apartment area or parking area?	We do not think there is a negative impact related to transporting construction waste.	They hope that the construction company will be transporting the waste regularly in time.	The kindergarten has separate garbage point. If they can collect all refuse from that point then there would be no problem. The construction company if does not organise its storage of waste, there may be some problem.	No negative impression on transporting debris.	If the construction company performs well and responsibly, we won't express any negative comment or impression.
10	Are you concerned about Health & Safety of residents and children during the construction?	If the health, safety and environment norms and standards are followed properly, we do not think there will be any danger to the safety of the people.	They not worried about that as construction company will follow all norms and regulations. Even now many buildings are ongoing construction besides the kindergarten.	They are little bit concerned if there will be rise of dust from construction. The construction company must link the construction to weather and wind condition.	Consider on warning residents not to let their children play around the building when it is under construction.	Introduced recommendations and proposals from parents in tandem with residents and governors. We consider there is nothing to worry about since all residents and parents warn to ensure safety and health of children.
11	Would you like to participate in safety monitoring and controlling activities?	The commission from professional organization should include representative of the parents.	They were not sure to participate according to most participants	235 replied that it is not necessary to participate. 75 participants said they can be involved in safety and environment pollution controlling at the site	Would like to engage in ensuring safety and health of children.	
12	Would you be willing to form a committee to help to school during the construction period?	Yes	They were not interested to participate in the committee.	It is not necessary to establish such as a council by 263 participants. 49 participants said they would need such a council because of after completion of construction, the Construction company must clean up and restore the area.	Fully able to establish committee for assisting construction work.	Parents' council of kindergarten consists of 24 members, and we request for activating the council.

No	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites.					area of sites.
	lssues	11. New KG in Sumber Soum of Govisumber	12. KG #88 in Ulaanbaatar Bayangol, 18 th khoroo	13. KG # 104 in UB Songinokhairkhan 12 <i>khoroo</i>	14. KG# 176 in Ulaanbaatar city	15. KG# 68 in Ulaanbaatar
		11	12	13	14	15
13	Any other critical environment related issue and concern by the residents for the during construction and operation stage?	Clean and waste water pipes should be installed according to the standards and the ventilation system of the bathroom should be considered.	Do not destroy the playground and the young trees planted a few years ago. If the trees are removed, there should be planning and implementation for landscaping and greening the area.	There is big need and demand for not destroying the soil, bushes and planted trees.	No problems will occur in terms of environment.	Proposing to construct playground and make improvement work within the environment after completion of extension.
14	If you have any problem caused by this school / kindergarten construction, whom would you like to contact? (Construction company, school, urban department etc.	Contact to the client organization of construction is preferred.	To inform the construction company and kindergarten management.	Construction company, kindergarten and <i>Khoroo</i> Governor.	Will apply to the construction company, district administration, educational department, and other applicable organizations.	Will apply to kindergarten and Educational Department of Ulaanbaatar.
15	What would you expect to improve at current school building (such as changing coal heating to electric heating etc.)	Wastewater from the kindergarten should be well thought out and the heating should be considered. Cold classrooms are the main cause of children catching cold and flu during winter.	Expecting that the kindergarten rooms will be full of lights (windows), enough space. The construction company will ensure good quality material according to hygienic and sanitation standard.	Improve the heating and insulation and reduce loss of heat.	There are 2 Ger groups. It's appropriate and more convenient to provide the ones who have steam boiler for heating with electric heating.	Nothing to say.
16	Any shops/commercial establishments and industrial activity disturbed by this construction?	Due to construction work in progress, there will not be much of that issue.	There will be no interruption due to this activity.	There is no shop or commerical organisation in the area.	There aren't any stores or other organizations that cancelled their operation due to construction work as of now.	Nothing to say.
17	What other organizations of environment & nature conservation (NGOs/CBOs/ Civil Society) active in the area? Name of these organizations	An agency in charge of environmental issues is doing a lot of work. Teachers, students, parents and the other employees work to establish green area outside schools and kindergartens.	No	No	N/A	Nothing to say.

No	Partic	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites.					
	Issues	11. New KG in Sumber	12. KG #88 in	13. KG # 104 in UB	14. KG# 176 in	15. KG# 68 in Ulaanbaatar	
		Soum of Govisumber	Ulaanbaatar Bayangol,	Songinokhairkhan 12	Ulaanbaatar city		
			18 th khoroo	khoroo			
		11	12	13	14	15	
	Other issues	The building in which the	Expressed thanks for	No			
		5 th school is operating is	kindergarten expansion				
		for 640 students and the	project.				
		enrolment is increasing					
		every year. Therefore, the					
		building should be					
		extended. Currently 910					
		students are attending in					
		the school from 2016-					
		2017. Due to lack of					
		classrooms, students					
		cannot have practice time					
		or optional classes that					
		are designated to					
		contribute to the					
		development of students.					
		And it is inevitable that					
		there will be new classes					
		due to population					
		increase.					

4. Details of Public Consultation (Environment) (16-20)

No	Partic	cipants' opinion, comments	s, and suggestions from co	onsultation meetings with	residents of surrounding a	area of sites
	Issues	16. KG #160 in	17. KG #72 Ulaanbaatar	18. Erdmiin Orgil"	19.School # 51 in	20. Branch of KG# 168 in
		Ulaanbaatar city		Complex UB Naiakh	Ulaanbaatar city	Ulaanbaatar
				District		
		16	17	18	19	20
1	Do you support for the	Since children cannot be	Although there are so	All participants	Participants showed	All the participants showed
	construction at school.	provided with pre-school	many pre-school children	supported the	100% support. "We are all	100% support. Currently
		education overall, we fully	in our <i>khoroo</i> , they cannot	construction.	delighted to hear that	children are enrolled in
		support construction of	acquire pre-school		construction issues of our	Mongolian yurt kindergarten,
		new building for	education. For this		school extension are	but it can't provide enough
		kindergarten. It would be	reason, the right of child		finally being resolved. It	space for more children, and
		appreciated if extension	to study is seriously		was discussed last year	since there are many rainy
		building is constructed. In	violated. From this		but never heard from it	days during the summer, all
		our opinion, it is so	perspective, we support		ever since. We are happy	the roof sheadings can get bit
		important to have	this extension of building		to hear that our children	smelly in the autumn
		bedrooms in classes with	for kindergarten.		will be studying in a	resulting bad uncomfortable
		high number of children. If			comfortable and healthy	environment for our children.
		there are bedrooms,			environment".	Mongolian Gers /yurts/

No	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites					
	Issues	16. KG #160 in Ulaanbaatar city	17. KG #72 Ulaanbaatar	18. Erdmiin Orgil" Complex UB Naiakh District	19.School # 51 in Ulaanbaatar city	20. Branch of KG# 168 in Ulaanbaatar
		16	17	18	19	20
		children can develop within comfortable and free environment.				always needs extra care in order sustain its sanitation, so it's not a healthy option for our children.
2	What is educational status of your community?	Higher educated.	Since there are so many young families and new apartment buildings out there, it can consider that educational attainment is generally good. Educational background and knowledge of parents to children who attend in the kindergarten are good.	This area is newly established and constructed area that is why 80% of all residents are young families and they have mostly high education.	"We think that we are in a good position regarding our education level. This extension work is what we all here have been waiting for such a long time".	There is currently no kindergarten in 24 th micro district, so a lot of children currently don't have a kindergarten to go to.
3	Will this construction at Schools / Kindergarten give any negative impact to your apartment complex?	No negative impact. Since there are so many buildings over the place we are living in, we have no right to interrupt children's development, considering that the building for kindergarten would affect our living.	No negative impact since the ongoing building is not tall enough to shade sun and relatively far from homes.	Ready to cooperate with construction company and school management because of it will help in improving children's education condition. 44 out 50 participants expressed concern about garbage/waste issue.	If all the proper safety guidelines are met, we see no problem there. There should be always a fencing around the construction site and we prefer less heavy machinery driving around during the daytime. Obviously there will be some negative impacts such as noise and dust caused by construction site and lesser space for our children to play on. The construction company that will be working at this site need to concentrate heavily on these types of problems such as building a temporary pedestrian bridge on dug out holes.	We don't think there will be any serious problems or negative impacts.
4	What benefits do you perceive from this construction?	Children will be enabled to attend kindergarten. Upon reducing number of	Will provide all children who are within must- attend area with	The children's learning condition will be improved through school	"It will affect our children's grades, and it will benefit both parents and their	There will be a 100% kindergarten enrolment rate in our micro district. Our

No	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites					
	lssues	16. KG #160 in Ulaanbaatar city	17. KG #72 Ulaanbaatar	18. Erdmiin Orgil" Complex UB Naiakh District	19.School # 51 in Ulaanbaatar city	20. Branch of KG# 168 in Ulaanbaatar
		16	17	18	19	20
		children in class and group, teachers will be enabled to work with every single child. Children will develop within much comfortable environment.	kindergarten. Providing children with pre-school education and ensuring their rights to study and develop.	that is closer and thereby enhancing safety concerns of the children	children. Our children will be able study in a comfortable environment, and it will be convenient for our children".	children will be able to grow up in a comfortable environment, and kindergarten availability will increase.
5	Would you have any problem with school if construction company makes access road in your parking area, dig any pipeline etc. for repair for diversion?	No conflict out there. We fully support construction since this activity contributes to the development and prosperity of our city. It is advisable that the construction company needs to complete work within scheduled time.	No hindrance since the main way to kindergarten is available. It won't seem tiresome for residents if construction work is performed fast.	48 particpants agreed to participate the parking area with Construction Company as they have many parking areas available.	Pedestrian bridges need to be placed after digging a hole for installing some plumbing pipes. All the safety procedures and protective measures need to be taken during the construction work.	47 people answered that there will be no violations, "We can park our cars in a different place".
6	Would you be having any construction causes some dust during digging and storing in the school premises?	Won't interrupt since they are working for well-being and future of our children.	No hindrance since the building of kindergarten is short and construction area is large. It won't seem tiresome for residents if construction work is performed fast.	48 participants replied that during construction, there will be increase in noise, but the construction is only for building school, so they will support it.	Noise caused by construction work will be a problem but even though there will be a lots noise and dust caused by this construction work, we understand that it's for our children and improvement of their study environment. Also, construction works nowadays can be completed in short amount time.	44 people answered that there will be no difficulties, because kindergarten extension will not be a big building.
7	Will you have a problem if the construction company required to work during the night to bringing construction material?	Having probability to influence to some extent. However, it is not that serious, according to our consideration.	No hindrance since the main way to kindergarten and special fencing are available. We consider construction work will be completed within the time specified.	47 participants answered that they will be patient for construction work during night since it is a school.	There will be a disturbance if there is a lot of noise coming from the construction site during our sleeping times. Take this in the consideration and other than some rare instances, all the transportation of heavy machinery or	49 people voted that there will be no difficulties, because there is an enough entrances and crossings.
No	Partie	cipants' opinion, comments	s, and suggestions from co	onsultation meetings with	residents of surrounding a	area of sites
----	---	---	---	---	--	---
	Issues	16. KG #160 in Ulaanbaatar city	17. KG #72 Ulaanbaatar	18. Erdmiin Orgil" Complex UB Naiakh District	19.School # 51 in Ulaanbaatar city	20. Branch Ulaanbaata
		16	17	18	19	
					vehicle need to be done during the day time.	
8	Will you have a problem if the construction company required to work during the night to carry construction requiring extreme vibration and noise such as concreting, cutting, digging etc.?	Not happening. It has to be gift behind hindrance.	No hindrance since the building of kindergarten is short and construction area is large.	47 participants answered that they will be patient for construction work during night since it is a school.	Working hours should be short and need to finish before the night. Most of the residents reside at their summer camp house during that time, so there should be no problem there.	47 people sa be no proble the residents the city at the houses, and our children for our comm respect that. that he/she us situation. 1 p that proper p to be taken.
9	How would you react to construction company transporting waste and	If anyone throws rubbish, we will require that person remove it from time to time. It contaminates our	No negative image since the kindergarten has concentrated dumpsite and it won't seem	46 replied that there will not be any difficulty if the Construction Company have good organisation	Heavy and large vehicle could cause some traffic issues, but since it's for our own good we can	There will be comments, t transportatio to be used.

8 Will you have a problem if the construction company required to work during the night to construction company required to work during the night to carry construction requiring extreme vibration and noise such as concreting, cutting, digging etc.? No happening. It has to be gift behind hindrance. No hindrance since the draw well divergaten is answered that they divergaten for construction area is large. Working hours should be draw there will be out of the city at their summer camp house such as concreting, cutting, digging etc.? No negative image since to be gift behind hindrance. No hopen the summer camp house there will here will be a problem is not an and construction work during that time, so the should be no problem is not all need to be taken. 9 How would you react construction material through your aparting area? If anyone throws rubbish, we will require that person to construction work will require that person to construction material through your aparting area? No negative image since to construction work will approxe it from time to mervior ment. No negative image since to construction work is construction work is parking area? Af replied that there will be any addition there will be no problem is should be used. Not eagline the summer camp house to be taken. 10 Are you concerned construction in the our mervior ment. This worries us. So many allowed to construction work is construction work is construction work wit we have one problem is not all acquire prescioned the construction work is not heavy whices the construction work is construction company allowed to construction company allowed to construction work is neavy whice to construction wereavy whice to construction work is not heray whice th						during the day time.	
9 How would you react to construction company transporting waste and construction material through your apartment area or parking area? If anyone throws rubbish, we will require that person construction material through your apartment area or parking area? No negative image such to construction material through your apartment area or parking area? If anyone throws rubbish, we will require that person concentrated dumpsite and it won't see performed fast. Are you concerned about Health & Safety of residents and children during the construction This worries us. So many buildings are construct on the eye of the public. If the construction work is performed fast, there will acquire pre- school education. For this construction 48 participants felt that there will no negative impact We are worried that there will no negative construction work. There will be no problems since our children will be in the eye of the public. 10 Are you concerned about Health & Safety of residents and children during the construction? This worries us. So many building for kindergarten will ensure occupational safety like them. If the construction work, onstruction company allowed to construct building for kindergarten will ensure occupational safety like them. If the collaborate 41 participants We are worried that three, and there should be fewer heavy vehicles in our roads during the day time. All the drivers of these heavy vehicles There will be no their sommer vacations. 11 Would you like to Not Not Not Not Would like to collaborate 41 participants	8	Will you have a problem if the construction company required to work during the night to carry construction requiring extreme vibration and noise such as concreting, cutting, digging etc.?	Not happening. It has to be gift behind hindrance.	No hindrance since the building of kindergarten is short and construction area is large.	47 participants answered that they will be patient for construction work during night since it is a school.	Working hours should be short and need to finish before the night. Most of the residents reside at their summer camp house during that time, so there should be no problem there.	47 people said that there will be no problems, majority of the residents will be out of the city at their summer camp houses, and kindergarten for our children is in vital need for our community, so we respect that. 1 person agreed that he/she understands the situation. 1 person agreed that proper procedures need to be taken.
10 Are you concerned about Health & Safety of residents and children during the construction? This worries us. So many buildings are constructed fast, our children will acquire pre-school education. For this construction? 48 participants felt that there will no negative impact if the construction Company allowed to construction company allowed to construct building for kindergarten will ensure occupational safety like them. We are worried that people could fall into these holes cause by a construction work is reason, we have no their own. Hopefully the construction company allowed to construct building for kindergarten will ensure occupational safety like them. We are worried that there will be no problems people could fall into these holes cause by a construction work. 11 Would you like to Not interested in Would like to collaborate 41 participants felt that they will be	9	How would you react to construction company transporting waste and construction material through your apartment area or parking area?	If anyone throws rubbish, we will require that person remove it from time to time. It contaminates our environment.	No negative image since the kindergarten has concentrated dumpsite and it won't seem tiresome for residents if construction work is performed fast.	46 replied that there will not be any difficulty if the Construction Company have good organisation of waste management and disposal.	Heavy and large vehicle could cause some traffic issues, but since it's for our own good we can tolerate that.	There will be no negative comments, but proper transportation vehicles need to be used.
11 Would you like to Not interested in Would like to collaborate 41 participants Since I go to this school 12 said that they will be	10	Are you concerned about Health & Safety of residents and children during the construction?	This worries us. So many buildings are constructed in the eye of the public. They ensure safety on their own. Hopefully the construction company allowed to construct building for kindergarten will ensure occupational safety like them.	If the construction work is performed fast, our children will acquire pre- school education. For this reason, we have no worry.	48 participants felt that there will no negative impact if the Construction Company follows safety guideline correctly.	We are worried that people could fall into these holes cause by a construction work. Following all the safety guidelines is a must. Fencing should be around the construction site of all times, and there should be fewer heavy vehicles in our roads during the day time. All the drivers of these heavy vehicles transporting a building material must work cautiously with in the safety procedures, since it's close to the children.	There will be no problems since our children will be in their summer vacations.
	11	Would you like to	Not interested in	Would like to collaborate	41 participants	Since I go to this school	12 said that they will be

20. Branch of KG# 168 in

20

Ulaanbaatar

No	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites						
	Issues	16. KG #160 in Ulaanbaatar city	17. KG #72 Ulaanbaatar	18. Erdmiin Orgil" Complex UB Naiakh District	19.School # 51 in Ulaanbaatar city	20. Branch of KG# 168 in Ulaanbaatar	
		16	17	18	19	20	
	participate in safety monitoring and controlling activities?	engaging.	to defend children's rights and secure them against any danger or accident.	answered that they are willingness to participate.	and I live close by, I can do the monitoring every now and then. This includes me and all the children who live in this area, so placing warning signs is a must.	involved, 2 said they are busy, 5 said they will be involved if they are available during that time, 31 said they will not be involved.	
12	Would you be willing to form a committee to help to school during the construction period?	Since kindergarten manages activities on its own, it is not required to establish committee or board for assisting the kindergarten.	Would like to collaborate to defend children's rights and secure them against any danger or accident.	47 participants answered that they are not sure to form a committee, but they need some clarification regarding a council formation.	There is a Parent- Teacher Association already in the school, they should be involved on this matter.	29 people said that they want this to happen, 3 answered don't know, 19 said no.	
13	Any other critical environment related issue and concern by the residents for the during construction and operation stage?	There are so many trees outside our kindergarten. How to deal with these trees? If trees are required to be carried or transplanted, only specialized people must do it.	It is advisable to commence construction work when spring comes, and climate becomes warm. Since August is heavily rainy, it may affect construction work. Therefore, we would like you to perform construction work fast, overcoming any difficulty.	100 % all participants replied that since the school building is constructed, so the road, landscaping and improving pathways must be the first concern.	We need to prevent our children from going into this construction sites during the summer time, safety procedures and preventions must be always followed. They should not cut down trees around the area, if necessary, trees must be transplanted.	Waste disposal service needs to be carried out after the construction work; damaging children playground must be prevented. The green area needs to be restored after the construction work.	
14	If you have any problem caused by this school / kindergarten construction, whom would you like to contact? (Construction company, school, urban department etc.	Will apply to the construction company and kindergarten administration if there is any problem arising from. In case of failure to solve problem to some extent, will request for further organizations/competent authorities.	Will apply to the construction company, municipal and district administrations, management of kindergarten and governor of the district, respectively.	All participants answered that they were prepared to cooperate wth Construction Company, school management and district government.	Contractor company, Client organization, School, Micro district, or the district administration	43 said Construction company, 8 said Kindergarten, 2 said District governor, 8 said District administration, 2 said City administration	
15	What would you expect to improve at current school building (such as changing coal heating to electric heating etc.)	Nothing to say.	Requesting for arranging façade of kindergarten and extending building of kindergarten.	Improve the electricity supply system.	Hot water pipelines must be renewed and reinstalled, and sewage pipelines must be replaced. I think outside facade of the current	Improvement of the surrounding areas, adding more playground for children	

No	Partic	cipants' opinion, comments	s, and suggestions from co	onsultation meetings with	residents of surrounding a	area of sites
	Issues	16. KG #160 in Ulaanbaatar city	17. KG #72 Ulaanbaatar	18. Erdmiin Orgil" Complex UB Naiakh District	19.School # 51 in Ulaanbaatar city	20. Branch of KG# 168 in Ulaanbaatar
		16	17	18	19	20
					building needs renovation.	
16	Any shops/commercial establishments and industrial activity disturbed by this construction?	Not happening. Service centers like store is located far from the construction site.	Kindergarten No. 72 in our <i>khoroo</i> has large and spacious outside area and fencing around kindergarten; hasn't store and service organization around fencing.	There is no shop or commerical organisation in the area.	There are only few industrial and shopping areas, so there should be no problem.	There will be no problems unless parking heavy machinery and other vehicles in front of the store.
17	What other organizations of environment & nature conservation (NGOs/CBOs/ Civil Society) active in the area? Name of these organizations	Unlikely to exist.	Nothing to say.	Eco-club of the school children	N/A	51 said there is none.
	Other issues	School building to be satisfied in terms of appearance, chairs and desks, doors and entrances, and environmental improvement. Building to be used for only purpose of school activities. After completion of construction work, rubbish and debris must be removed from site.	Total number of children who must attend in our kindergarten within the must-attend area is 734. Only 320 among them acquire pre-school education in our kindergarten. Upon extending building of kindergarten, all children within the must- attend can attend kindergarten.	It is important for the community if the school is supported.	Since there are lots of apartments around parking heavy vehicles and especially blocking roads and entrances are not tolerable. Pedestrian bridge must be built over any dug-out holes. There must be some spotlights at night times.	Kindergarten playgrounds must be built with quality materials. There is not much space in the outer area, so the playground that can provide enough game or equipment in a small space is needed. There should be a playground for our children to play in the summertime, and there should be enough of it.

5. Details of Public Consultation (Environment) (21-25)

No	Participants	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites						
	Issues	21. Ireedui Primary	22. KG # 17 in	23. KG # 164 in	24.School # 110 in	25. KG # 6 in Khuvsgul,		
		school in	Ulaanbaatar	Ulaanbaatar city	Ulaanbaatar city	wurun soum /29		
		Ulaanbaatar				Aug,2023/		
		21	22	23	24	25		
1	Do you support for	21 Those who voted fully	22 We support this	23 Since there is a poor	24 The participants in the	25 The consultation meeting		
1	Do you support for the construction at	21 Those who voted fully supported.	22 We support this activity since it is	23 Since there is a poor availability of	24 The participants in the meeting showed	25 The consultation meeting was conducted in the		

No	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites					
	Issues	21. Ireedui Primary	22. KG # 17 in	23. KG # 164 in	24.School # 110 in	25. KG # 6 in Khuvsgul,
		school in	Ulaanbaatar	Ulaanbaatar city	Ulaanbaatar city	Murun <i>soum</i> /29
		Ulaanbaatar				Aug,2023/
		21	22	23	24	25
			pre-school children in kindergarten. Many children cannot attend kindergarten due to outdated technology and exceeded capacity. For this reason, we, the parents and custodians, are in favour of building extension for the kindergarten.	micro district, majority of participants 100% agreed upon supporting the kindergarten building extension work more preferably new building constructed near the kindergarten.	building kindergarten extension, and any work being done for their future generations. The participants also agreed that by building extension for the kindergarten, there will be a healthy and safe environment for children to grow up. It was also discussed that teachers and employees getting heavy workloads affecting negatively for their well-beings resulting with diseases such as neurosis, so building extension is vital for solving these	Governor's Office of Murun Sum by covering a total of 79 people from the local citizens of the 3rd and 8th <i>khoroo</i> and parents (guardians) on the extension of kindergarten#6 with 150 beds. The participants (a total of 79) in the consultation meeting showed 100% support for building kindergarten expansion.
2	What is educational status of your community?	While 84% considered educational attainment is good, 16% said it is fair.	Those who are around kindergarten have various educational backgrounds. People who run private business constitute majority of the residents; people from target groups who are often poor and uneducated live there, too.	The government is very keen on its citizen's and children's education. Children's education is much dependent on how they enrolled in kindergarten, so it's necessary for us to socialize our children and enrol them in kindergarten. Children who did not enrolled in kindergarten, has more hard time to get	The majority of residence here living in our micro district are middle class residents with educational level varying between mid to high. Representatives of residents participated in this survey unanimously supported the kindergarten extension proposal and have expressed	The 51 or 64.5% were with bachelor and above, 28 or 35.5% were secondary education. The participants of the meeting are teachers, musicians, engineers, accountants, pharmacists, hairstylists, tailors, drivers, servants, herders, self-employed, pensioners, etc.

No	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites						
	Issues	21. Ireedui Primary school in	22. KG # 17 in Ulaanbaatar	23. KG # 164 in Ulaanbaatar city	24.School # 110 in Ulaanbaatar city	25. KG # 6 in Khuvsgul, Murun soum /29	
		21	22	23	24	25	
				further education and schooling.	their desire to work together.		
3	Will this construction at Schools / Kindergarten give any negative impact to your apartment complex?	While 119 citizens said it has no influence, 1 person considered it may influence.	Construction work for kindergarten building won't affect residents. Since it is quite far from the apartments, construction work won't impact us.	48 people answered that there will be no serious negative impacts or difficulties. "There will be some temporary negative impacts. Ulaanbaatar city already has its own problems with air pollution, so I don't think adding dust caused by constructing a kindergarten will give us any more difficulties. Although, before starting the construction work plan all the heating and sewage pipelines going in and out from my house needs to be taken into to the consideration.	Couple of respondents participated in this survey stated that construction companies should use the modern methods of dust control on the construction site, but noise caused by construction process and other negative effects can be allowed at that time.	The project implementation unit and contractor shall take mitigation measures by reducing minor impact of noise and dust control. The expansion will be much closer to 2 apartments (Apartment No.05 and 47). The construction working hours should be adjusted to the area. The temporary access road and location of construction entrance and exit to be discussed with the residents of area.	
4	What benefits do you perceive from this construction?	Environment for children's academic learning to be improved. Educational attainment and accessibility to be enhanced. Teacher to be enabled to work with every single child, thanks to reduction in number of pupils in a class. This will exert	With giving their children to new and advanced kindergarten, employment circumstances will be enhanced. Residents will be satisfied with improvement in the environment of kindergarten and pre- school children will be	41 people agreed that our children will enrol in kindergarten, 2 agreed that we are in dire need, 2 agreed that its beneficial for us to enrol our children in the kindergarten, 1 person agreed that there will be more study environment for our children 1	There will be favourable learning environment for young children. Positive changes will develop for educating young children. Healthy, comfortable, and safe learning environment for children will be provided. Teachers will develop their creativity and they	The capacity of kindergartens to be increased by 150 beds and safety environment created for preschool education. More employment in the local area increased.	

No	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites						
	Issues	21. Ireedui Primary	22. KG # 17 in	23. KG # 164 in	24.School # 110 in	25. KG # 6 in Khuvsgul,	
		school in	Ulaanbaatar	Ulaanbaatar city	Ulaanbaatar city	Murun <i>soum</i> /29	
		Ulaanbaatar	00	00	04	Aug,2023/	
		21	22	23	24	25	
		influence in academic quality of children.	opportunity to learn.	agreed that we need it because will benefit our future work force, 1 agreed that children will have much more free classroom space, 1 agreed that there will be more jobs, 1 agreed that our children will grow up in a comfortable environment, 1 agreed that there will be more kindergarten availability for our children	can work on young children individually.		
5	Would you have any problem with school if construction company makes access road in your parking area, dig any pipeline etc. for repair for diversion?	While 97 citizens answered there is no conflict, 23 considered conflict is mild. 5 people expressed they are patient with any issue.	Since it is a building for kindergarten, nothing will stop this. We, the residents, will support for releasing areas, and installing and repairing pipelines. Parking lot to be emptied for free arrival and departure of construction machinery and equipment for construction work.	47 people agreed that there will be no violations, "We can park our cars in different area".	Participants stated that there should be a preliminary guideline on working area of the construction site and it should be provided for the residents so that it can prevent negative effects on parking cars around the construction site. There is so little space around this area so if larger machines parked on the construction site itself or the working area, there should be no problem for the residents around the area.	The residents of apartment no.47 state that car parking area of kindergarten and apartment no.07 is fully equipped in working hours. Contractor should seek other temporary entrance and exit to the site. The heavy-duty machines drive through two-lane road near apartment, it causes damages to the road. So, the contractor shall have a duty to restore to normal condition of road. If construction mixers, pumps, and other heavy duty machines park on the first lane of road. it	

No	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites						
	Issues	21. Ireedui Primary	22. KG # 17 in	23. KG # 164 in	24.School # 110 in	25. KG # 6 in Khuvsgul,	
		school in	Ulaanbaatar	Ulaanbaatar city	Ulaanbaatar city	Murun soum /29	
		Olaanbaatar	22	23	24	Aug,2023/	
		21	22	23	24		
						will block whole street and entrance of the car parking of apartment no.47. Construction company should inform residents that any scheduled works which may block car parking area and road and take actions prevent any	
6	Would you be having any construction causes some dust during digging and storing in the school premises?	While 74 citizens told there is no barrier, 12 considered there causes a problem. Others said they are prepared for the problems.	Since it is extension of kindergarten building, it will be appropriate for completing it within summertime. Temporary noise and dust won't affect us, and thereby construction of kindergarten is the most important issue among others.	44 agreed that there will be no difficulties, because new building will be small.	They also stated that construction noise and dust pollutions are the problems we cannot avoid so we have to allow it because it is all for our micro district development and creating comfortable environment for our children. Residents also agreed upon handling this type of issues with tolerance and will be taken in their part to reduce the negative impact of that time.	accidents could occur. The citizens commented that excavation and removing dirt from construction site should be completed in June and July during summer holiday of students. The contractor shall irrigate construction road and site on daily basis preventing any dust.	
7	Will you have a problem if the construction company required to work during the night to bringing construction material?	While 99 citizens said there is no occurrence of problem, 12 said there is occurrence.	Night-time operation will be allowed. This is not building for a mall. This is the building for kindergarten. For this reason, nothing can stop it. Any problem arising from construction work won't be problem indeed.	49 agreed that there are no difficulties, because there are lot of entrances and crossings. 1 person agreed to respect any proposals.	Offices and service establishment around the area works during the day time, so there should be no problem there, but there might be a slight problem for residents living near the area. Although, residents agreed upon working together for	The participants replied that contractor shall inform that transportation and works are planned in nighttime with an accurate schedule. It prevents any problems may occur.	

No	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites						
	Issues	21. Ireedui Primary	22. KG # 17 in	23. KG # 164 in	24.School # 110 in	25. KG # 6 in Khuvsgul,	
		school in	Ulaanbaatar	Ulaanbaatar city	Ulaanbaatar city	Murun <i>soum</i> /29	
		Ulaanbaatar				Aug,2023/	
		21	22	23	24	25	
8	Will you have a problem if the construction company required to work during the night to carry construction requiring extreme vibration and noise such as concreting, cutting, digging etc.?	21 While 97 citizens answered no problem occurs, 23 stated they will be tolerant since it is temporary, underlining that the most important of all is to construct school building in a qualified manner within the time specified.	22 Since it is extension of kindergarten building, we will support even when it is noisy. We need to construct kindergarten by working even at nights. Everyone will support building of kindergarten at the present time where Mongolia is in lack of kindergarten and number of pre-school children is growing rapidly. There must not be any hindrance to construction work.	47 agreed to there will be no difficulties, majority of the residents will be at their summer camp house, so we understand that there is a vital need of a kindergarten, so we respect that. 1 says that we understand the current situation. Also 1 person agreed that choosing proper procedures where it's possible.	24 resolving problems if there are less night time transportation to the construction site. Residents also stated that if the construction company carry out their work with proper working schedules there should be no problem. Residents also stated there will be no difficulties for residents if the proper transportion procedures are followed during this time, and all types of accidents caused by transporting building equipments and materials must be avoided such as things falling off or dragged on the road during transportion. Transportation of each hazardous materials to human health must be carried out carefully with caution. If all above requirements are met during the	25 The residents answered that any construction work during the night may cause extreme noise and vibration, it should be planned in June to August.	
					construction work residents stated that they will be happy to cooperate		
Q	How would you	120 citizens answered	Debris to be	48 agreed that there	The narticinante in the	58 people apswered that	
3	react to	they have no negative	transported during	will be no negative	poll were expressing	there are no impressions	

No	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites						
	Issues	21. Ireedui Primary	22. KG # 17 in	23. KG # 164 in	24.School # 110 in	25. KG # 6 in Khuvsgul,	
		SChool In Illaanbaatar	Ulaanbaatar	Ulaanbaatar city	Ulaanbaatar city	Murun <i>soum</i> /29 Aug 2023/	
		21	22	23	24	25	
	construction company transporting waste and construction material through your apartment area or parking area?	image/impression.	construction work. No negative influence to be exerted during the transportation of debris. Areas must be freed, and debris must be carried.	comments, but proper trucks must be used for the transportation.	their concerns about the child's health and safety. Therefore, residents suggested that there should be fencing and security around the construction site at all times, also neighbourhood safety patrols including residents around the area and kindergarten teachers must be organized. Residents also stated that the safety of children going for kindergarten in the morning and the coming back time should be the focus.	and comments, but trucks with cover with other safety requirements shall be used for the transportation.	
10	Are you concerned about Health & Safety of residents and children during the construction?	All the participants expressed their worry, warning the construction company to ensure safety to its fullest extent since the place is crowded.	No harm to be caused to safety and health of residents and children during construction. Safety harness, support and protection are required to be excellent and reliable during construction.	We have worries because our children will be on their summer vacation.	The public representatives participated in the poll had expressed their desire to work together for monitoring the construction work. And have expressed their readiness to cooperate in the safety of this construction work and its surrounding areas.	The safety of construction work should be number 1 thing for civil works and residents of area. The construction company shall follow any regulations, guidelines and norms during the night and daytime. The warning board with pictures which could draw attention of children and increase harness should be placed near construction site.	
11	Would you like to participate in safety monitoring and controlling activities?	While 8 people answered they are to engage, 89 said "no". 23 citizens have no idea.	It is a duty of professionals. The company, which is in charge of construction work, not the	12 agreed to be involved, 2 said they are busy, 5 said they will be involved if they available during	The majority of the citizens participated in the poll had expressed their support for running a	23 of participants would like to participate in monitoring and controlling activities.	

No	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites							
	Issues	21. Ireedui Primary	22. KG # 17 in	23. KG # 164 in	24.School # 110 in	25. KG # 6 in Khuvsgul,		
		SChool in Illaanbaatar	Ulaanbaatar	Ulaanbaatar city	Ulaanbaatar city	Murun soum /29 Aug 2023/		
		21	22	23	24	25		
			residents, will be responsible for securing safety and health of children.	that time, 31 said they will be not involved	committee board to help in protecting the rights of residents and child safety. They also suggested that they can provide outside monitoring during the construction work.			
12	Would you be willing to form a committee to help to school during the construction period?	While 69 citizens answered, "they won't engage", 35 supported it is right choice, and 16 people answered the decision is up to school administration.	No committee or board to assist construction will be required. Professionals will be responsible for the construction work.	29 said they want it, 3 said don't know, 19 said no.	Residents stated there could be several issues during the building extension work including prevention of damaging green area and roads inside the kindergarten and its surrounding area, closing possible roads and crossings during the construction work, renovations of the surrounding area after the construction work, construction materials such as sand and gravel must be brought from the proper supplier, children playground area must not be degraded.	No need for establishing committee or board to assist construction. Since Project implementation unit, employer supervision, design supervision firm and other government organization are responsible for civil work.		
13	Any other critical environment related issue and concern by the residents for the during construction and operation stage?	While 109 citizens are aware, but the remaining people have no idea.	Since building of kindergarten is the most significant activity, no negative impact relating to environment will be found.	Waste disposal service needs to be carried out after the construction work, damaging children playground must be prevented, and green area needs to be restored after the	Management of the current construction company. Kindergarten administration, General Agency for Specialized Investigation, Monitoring group	Since expansion of kindergarten is the most significant investment, no critical environment related issue and concern by residents except for dust and noise.		

No	Participants	s' opinion, comments, a	nd suggestions from co	nsultation meetings wi	th residents of surround	ding area of sites
	Issues	21. Ireedui Primary	22. KG # 17 in	23. KG # 164 in	24.School # 110 in	25. KG # 6 in Khuvsgul,
		school in	Ulaanbaatar	Ulaanbaatar city	Ulaanbaatar city	Murun <i>soum</i> /29
		Ulaanbaatar	00	00	04	Aug,2023/
		21	22	23	24	25
				construction work.	consisting of representatives of residents	
14	If you have any problem caused by this school / kindergarten construction, whom would you like to contact? (Construction company, school, urban department etc.	77 citizens answered they would apply to construction company, 9 to specialized inspection agency, 16 to the Ministry of Education, 1 to the Office of District and 17 to school administration, respectively.	No problems will be arising from since it is construction work of kindergarten building. We hope that the responsible company will be reliable and qualified. If problem arises, the company will be held responsible.	43 said Construction company, 8 said Kindergarten, 2 said District governor, 8 said District administration, 2 said City administration	Improvement of kindergarten's plumbing pipes and electrical wirings must be made.	The participants expressed that they would directly conduct to Construction company when problems caused by civil work.
15	What would you expect to improve at current school building (such as changing coal heating to electric heating etc.)	Add more green facilities and build sport courts, gyms, and laboratories. Electric heating has to be installed.	Current construction must be connected to central heating line. If it is connected to central heating line, comfort and learning environment will be excellent.	Improvement of the surrounding areas, adding more playground for children	There are no public service establishments near the area, so there should be no problems.	Establish more playground in the kindergarten and improve the existing heating, water supply, sewage, and electrical lines.
16	Any shops/commercial establishments and industrial activity disturbed by this construction?	Majority of the participants answered they won't face difficulties.	A hotel named Khaan is located at north of kindergarten. This hotel needs to be warned and informed with written statement. We hope it would understand which is more important: kindergarten or hotel.	There will be no problems unless parking heavy machinery and other vehicles in front of the store.	There are no public service establishments near the area, so there should be no problems.	There is no shops/commercial establishments and industrial activity near the kindergarten No.06.
17	What other organizations of environment & nature conservation (NGOs/CBOs/ Civil Society) active in the area? Name of	120 citizens responded, "not available".	No organization to protect environment found. Teachers and employees from kindergarten make efforts on furnishing green environment.	51 said there is none.	There are no non- profit organizations and civil society organizations for protecting environment active near the kindergarten area or in the micro	79 participants responded that no environment & nature conservation (NGOs/CBOs/ Civil Society) active in the area.

No	Participants	s' opinion, comments, a	nd suggestions from co	from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites				
	Issues	21. Ireedui Primary	22. KG # 17 in	23. KG # 164 in	24.School # 110 in	25. KG # 6 in Khuvsgul,		
		school in	Ulaanbaatar	Ulaanbaatar city	Ulaanbaatar city	Murun <i>soum</i> /29		
		Ulaanbaatar				Aug,2023/		
		21	22	23	24	25		
	these organizations				district territory. However, there are district and city environmental inspectors, and environmental inspectors of "General Agency for Specialized Investigation" active in this territory.			
	Other issues	No prohibition over any activity for children, school, and kindergarten. Supporting extension for school building. Paying attention on building-up academic environment for our children – the light future of Mongolia is the foremost duties of government and parents. Since children are likely to get in traffic accident over parking lots near the school, this issue should be paid higher attention. Please secure path where children go to school or home against any possible danger as soon as construction work starts.	10 th micro district of Sukhbaatar district has the highest number of apartment buildings among others. Along with it, there are thousands of pre-school children who have to be attended in kindergarten. Since number of groups at kindergarten No. 17 is insufficient, all children cannot be attended. Therefore, we are confident that a new kindergarten with 4-6 groups would be constructed, and our children would be provided with pre- school education.	If warm, comfortable, and hygienic kindergarten built for us, our children will grow up in a healthy environment. If there is less workload for teachers, our children will learn much more. Kindergarten playgrounds must be built with quality materials. There are lot of children that needs to be enrolled in this September, so building a kindergarten is a must.	Considering views of the residents and user organization during the building extension work Restoration work of the surrounding areas of kindergarten and its green areas after the building extension work Keeping the safety of the residents and construction company staffs, following the labour protection guidelines during the construction work. Completing the construction work in the given timeline with quality materials.	The participants informed that the current condition of existing kindergarten may endanger children. There are many problems including leakage from the roof, broken wastewater lines cause odors, molds growing from foundation to floor. The civil work of expansion should be completed in a short time. The residents worried about façade of expansion building, any state budgeted kindergartens are designed with EPS insulation and plastering, painting which needs to be renovated in 3 or 4 years after completion. The participants expressed their gratitude for organizing the consultation meeting for kindergarten expansion and receiving feedback		

No	Participants	Participants' opinion, comments, and suggestions from consultation meetings with residents of surrounding area of sites									
	Issues	21. Ireedui Primary school in Ulaanbaatar	22. KG # 17 in Ulaanbaatar	23. KG # 164 in Ulaanbaatar city	24.School # 110 in Ulaanbaatar city	25. KG # 6 in Khuvsgul, Murun <i>soum</i> /29 Aug,2023/					
		21	22	23	24	25					
						from citizens.					

List of People Met on Sites

No.	Name of the Participant	Occupation	
	• •	Ministries and Departments	
1	Ms. Uranchimeg	Director, Department of Clean Technology, MNET	
2	Ms. Bunchinjav	Director of Division of EIA, MNET	
3	Mr. Tumurbaatar	Officer, Department of Clean Technology, MNET	
4	Mr. Batmagnai	Director of Department of Finance and Economy, MES.	
5	Mr. Ganbaatar	Senior officer, Department of Finance and Economy, MES	
6	Mr. Amartuvshin	Officer, Division of Investment, MES	
7	Mr. Enkhtur	Director of Finance and Investment Division of UBMED	
8	Mr. Bayrmagnai	Officer of Finance and Investment Division of UBMED	
9	Mr. Irmuun	Officer of Finance and Investment Division of UBMED	
10	Mr. Jargalsaikhan	Officer, Department of Nature, and Environment of UB.	
11	Ms. Zolzaya	Project officer, Department of Nature, and Environment of UB.	
12	Mr. O.Batkhishig	Researcher, Institute of Geography	
	1	Aimag or Provincial Governments	
13	Mr. Batzaya	Officer of Nalaikh District Education Department	
14	Mr. Batjargal	Director of Darkhan Uul Aimag, Department of EC.	
15	Mr. Buyanbat	Officer of Darkhan Uul Aimag, Department of EC.	
16	Mr. Batmunkh	Director of Department of Education & Culture of Govi-Altai Aimag.	
17	Mr. Ankhbaatar	Officer of Department of Education & Culture of Govi-Altai Aimag.	
27	Mr. Bileggumberel	Vice Governor of Govisumber Aimag	
28	Mr. Munkhzul	Director of Department of Education & Culture of Govisumber Aimag.	
29	Ms. Battsetseg	Officer, of Department of Education & Culture of Govisumber Aimag	
30	Mr. Tamir	Officer of Land Management Agency of Govisumber Aimag.	
31	Mr. M.	Deputy governor of Khuvsgul aimag	
	Khuyagbaatar		
32	Ms. B.Oyuntuya	Head of Investment, Development Policy department of Khuvsgul aimag	
33	Mr. Galsandorj	Senior specialist of Social Policy department of Khuvsgul aimag	
34	Mr. Ts. Idermunkh	Governor of Murun <i>soum</i> , Khuvsgul <i>aimag</i>	
35	Mr. P. Munkhjargal	Head of Environment and Tourism department of Khuvsgul aimag	
36	Mr. N. Dalaijargal	Budget specialist of Education, Science department of Khuvsgul aimag	
37	Mr. Ts. Batkhuu	Specialist of Education, Science department of Khuvsgul aimag	
38	Mr. U.	Specialist in charge of development for the children, youth and elders in	
	Bayarsaikhan	Murun soum	
39	Ms. L.Azzaya	Specialist of Land management, urban planning department of Khuvsgul	
40		aimag	
40	Mr. D.Sukhee	Chief engineer of Us suvag and utility company	
44	Ma Dalaamaaa	Schools and Kindergartens	
41	Ms. Deigermaa	Kindergarten No.82	
42	Ms. I sevmaa	Kindergarten No.22	
43	Mr. Casarbargai	Kindergarten No.17, UB, Suknbaatar District, 10 th knoroo.	
44	Mr. Sosorbaram	Kindergarten No.82	
45	Ms. Tsetsegsuren	School No. 122 UB, Songinokhairkhan District, 22 nd	
40	Ms. Tsermaa	Director of School # 51, UB	
47	Ms. Odgerei	Director of KG # 160, UB	
48		Director of School # 6, UB	
49	IVIS. Otgonsuren	INIETNOADIOGIST OT KG # 68, UB	
51	ivis. Sarantuya		
52	Ms. Bayrmaa	Director of KG # 65, UB	
53	MS. Erdeneundrakh	Director of KG # 72, UB	
51		Director of KG # 100 LIB	
55	Me Nerqui	Director of KG # 164 LIB	
55	MS. Nergui		

No.	Name of the	Occupation	
	Participant		
56	Ms. Namjilmaa	Organizer of KG # 164, UB	
57	Ms. Burenjargal	Director of KG # 88, UB	
58	Ms. Odgerel	Director of KG # 66, UB	
59	Ms. Tsagaantsooj	General Director of School Complex Ireedui, UB	
60	Ms. Norjmaa	Director of School Complex Ireedui, UB	
61	Ms. Tumur	Director of School # 2 of Complex Ireedui, UB	
62	Ms. Saranchimeg	Director of School #1 of Complex Ireedui, UB	
63	Ms. Dolgor	Director of High School #1 of Complex Ireedui, UB	
64	Ms. Munkhbayar	Director of Primary School #3 of Complex Ireedui, UB	
65	Mr. Batsukh	Director of Primary School # 2 of Complex Ireedui, UB	
66	Ms. Baigal	Director of KG # 104, UB	
67	Ms. Gankhuyag	Director of KG # 107, UB	
68	Ms. Enkh-Ariun	Director of KG # 110, UB	
69	Ms. Sarantuya	Director of KG # 156, UB	
70	Ms. Oyuntulkhuur	Organizer of KG # 158, UB	
71	Ms. Adyasuren	Director of KG # 158, UB	
72	Ms. Oyuntuya	Director of School "Erdmiin Orgil", UB, Nalaikh	
73	Mr. Batzaya	Director of KG # 66, UB	
74	Ms. Marta	Director of Primary School in Terelj, UB	
75	Ms.Tserendolgor	Director of School # 109, UB, Nalaikh	
76	Ms. Khulan	Organizer of KG # 176, UB	
77	Mr. Sevjid	Director of Khantaishir school of Govi-Altai	
78	Ms. Khishigjargal	Manager of Khantaishir school of Govi-Altai	
79	Ms. Oyunbileg	Director of KG #6, Murun <i>soum</i> , Khuvsgul	

PHOTOGRAPHS OF CONSULTATIONS



Consultation meeting in Ulaanbaatar's school



Consultation meeting in Murun soum, Khuvsgul aimag (Aug 29, 2023)



Consultation meeting in Murun soum, Khuvsgul aimag (Aug 29, 2023)

PHOTOGRAPHS OF INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

American advant Magner service Tarcer gaperion transmission integr

When your Egrade queene are terrar for the self-queened are more taxon or taxon o

Security servands design to express the feature point and the press server press server and the press of the

Cyclashia Mapler spear 2 grasp bindle sprig spaceful spanger, sprige small per table.

Education and the second congression of the second state of the se





Advertisement for Public consultation (Expansion of 6th kindergarten in Murun *soum*, Khuvsgul in Aug 2023)

SIGNED ATTENDANCE SHEETS OF PARTICIPANTS

Paux 3.

Openant interpole signals surgare

Сночной полого полого СС Андарана Судина хотостирах на НЕГУЗОИС Аргирскоерского често напан на стала 2419 С. Ус

Yaroarr source Galegories, server annual uns 7 Shiringar

101	Оротарланын нар	Kylt:	(pan/a even	Aurthon Basson years	Family your
1	Officience	1976	Landred	apoT Ayda	Carto
1	Baure -	-	Sylvense	Wed yt dy	Not 1
×	Danstanny	sp.	Berg	993-118-18	A.C.
4	CAREN	ker	dias	9991144.92	Degener.
3	Infimming	-444	2.0.90	83548458	por
	lingament	4.45	Sugarents	TT6-19980	645
	Mamenal	- 94	Roytophi.	21912092	1. THE OWNER
۰.	Codoquer	de	Red	\$418 16#5	anne
140	Addrewson	40	Hausto	900-a-5400	the
11	Engrand	dat	Selenge	361608 B	darmer.
ч	diama	34	2 shall	114/ Skir	here
13	1. Presiding	dur	Hodasite	perdents	Stank -
14	Hansonw	3.0	Bigmaner4	44176465	10000
12	Barmante	947	fininesso	HEREALSH.	Desirie of
19	dillegan .	64	LALATTAL-	410052.02	Florence
17	Accorden	4.10	Company	THRAM	Aprelo
18	Simmy.	-50	Manager	9455 819	Range
18	TALLARED NA.	58-	Restau	BEDRECH	Same
30	GATLERA ATE O	-08.	Takast	5+010921	Norther
21	Mongrey	24	Coper-	#100 54 mt	4-00
12	Ash my opers	2.1	Bernson	911124 94	A - 540
23	DALEMAN	die	Richard	99 25054	brand
24	Constant and	1.41	100 mars	19770 42 34	Jun

have "by

Оропцсон хумуусийн харсийн жагсаалт

Сургууль Цацарлагийн төрөл бо дугаар: 1644 у уучуссэг

Холбоо барих утас: \$\$45,609

Уулзалт хийсэн он,сер, ядер, шл: LD19 - 8-2 - 16

Ууловля вохион байгуулсан, хотолсон хүний нэр: *Н. Бань бай б*

NR	Оропцогдчым нар	Xyiic	Эрхэндэг ажил	Холбор барих утас	Герьн усаг
1	T. Merupapone	34	HEVE MOLENNES	- 4426 Jac	Alex
2	14-63837×38	-ap	KIRHARAA	45 14/14	ent
3	I Tangaparts	n	my with	12117214	Tanjohn
4	5. Tymentownx	n	JA-A supulation	\$124 3368	8.8. 0
5	A. Siyaca	de	BERTH DE USVK	11030609	1. Service
6	N. Vapary pary	\$1492	Tomastar	19212914	al llounon
8	J. Mysellyund	n	Anuscan	92944667	1. Supla
8	A. Auniver	32	House sym	19110132	B. Amarsure
10	V. Sanjuan	Ju	of nonverse	15141864	LANS MAN
11	19+0000	olaa	sylungian	51 944424	G. DA
12	H. Anyzeno	7994	getwin Later	1551460	HALLAN
13	5. majur	de	Amungi	19013866	EDANG?
14	F. Monkanapres	7	ayburgen	99897418	S. Marsh
10	8. Dyensemper	ph-	American	41672582	Syman .
10	1. Thompson	gu.	JULDS XXXX	11696988	MAPA ZA
10	H. Laconana	m	aybugen	16662598	Namet
10	Dabaseypon	get .	appropria	88010519	a resta
20	B. upmbergan	ge	Hyjeen wat	= 440 9 3987	Long Ba.
21	9. Mountyld	Sec	Kthuc agaya	# 20202006	Mungell
22	V. 9 suga	m	Tereer "	1970 4260	Manum
22	a. mymminy	m.	Y'YAC-1999a	19689769	population
24	1 Spefaguar	1244	Barri caine	18122040	Huffe
-7	V May Crey	n	Mark month	89696404	-100
25.	struce	Tray	adens	89111357	Requirer







ASLAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

L35н-мон. здийн засгийн хтэцрэлийн тед боловсролын чанар, хтртээмжийг сайхруулах төсөл

Таналас міненін Мария аумын І.дулац цалартагийн Тароттын артагіні Барна мүрдланд мыг.ж., Басы кар, тутарлін процействай раболе реконстро уулантыр артантыр артантыр артантыр артан

10	Datahaongkan sape	Roles	Hec	Bi, mater	Loneacpert	Specificat works	7780	Fagnus year
1	Farmer	her	39	June	Services	diactor	AL44.523.3	Encourse prov
2	Agertan	per.	39	10.00	Berg.	CP7 Symme	NUMBER OF	N. Agose 1
1	THIS COTTON OF	100	127	Artic	Shig	# Stament	157.00	Marija
8	JUNE COURSE	10.	10	Redre	40-5	aylanpar	Relator	lager
8	Burgarman	3u	39.	systems	Sog	Annys	dinino	6195-
8	a Jamester	34	11.	de	17	Spinne many	242505	a
1	H. Stranfaure	444	14	ALLE.	112	Auface parts	19942-526	e Secontina
8	St. manery ryn	24	40	20.49	ging	Mydai ELC	17877983	17 201-
	TI SERVER ANTAR	.29	H.S.	30ML	54979	THENNE	19 19 THS	四分市之
16.	A. Piboos	8p	21	X#15	541 m	TATOL	12383734	Jackson .
1	T. Colorae	DE.	18	Max X	744	CHT- appoint The	Bel 2000	-the

-	Operatively const	3que	He	Yogac prose	Rentford	Spearger seems	YTHE.	Гарьан үклиг
4	d. Annapayou	44	39	styres	9175	84 astron	9572mvj-	Aship
ti.	E. Bernar	2.1.1	22	Dyang	any	Alapon The Stars	1096-5911	1 the
14	Thepustyee	Sei	30	AGAR 0	919	Tornhanghar	36599969	5.848
18	Stelmanagene	die.	16	den .	114	Michigan Sugar	14111 1803	Mahungen
1	C. Hannympar	Sec.	35	Hickory	19444	splanger	\$3850494	America
	H. Papar - Sygna	dise	34	derivery	9. 9779	ACTIOT T	#PANAS	al the
18	P. Hannenpart	25.41	69	JARR	ging	anné cafép	99284418	HA PO
11	S. Flercipton	ZEL	70	2044	9.905	monulap	45384080	gauss -
28	A. For surge	94	48	53/E	Navig	farming.	95.75.946	A. Gortong
31	C Strongwood	See	20	1564 m.	poop	Store	9900000	C Townsh
22	I popular	der	27	Lagar	9009	proprierez.	B6184230	Mooner 1
23	Abn expanse	211	43	dead	6 Kng	Degentria	18505199	2 deprespect
24	Delasypor	dist.	45.	- Joseph -	901	gains.		Jelion
н	R. Degetures	44	88	10.00	prog	mannet	94020102	1011-
18	A. timesar	Rec.	58	yourd.	1199	These L-	1593700	Lincour
27	J. Inapor	φ _A	58	3942	5 long	- ONCOMPTY	gangana.	ste.

	Opumairtaluis expe	2 year	Har	Toger pross	Startigate	Openador anes	Frei	Zapuel year
24	Thoswager	Ser.	30	Lais	inry	Sylvennua	9-10-P.	the state
28	A. Margogene	30	30	Tarr	709-	Farmy	9-15-5	ditte
-	& Jon Only	of	15	Acres	407	Sybugar	16.3.14	Del.
ы	5. Marcar	30	75	Kard.	117	baching	1-7-12	Ling
31	O Garnedon	40	70	Huck	1799-9-	Robinson	8-7-83	C4-f-
11	- Handadanana	-944	12	Doping	Ravin	Lehungan	2-4-15-int	2.92
34	1 Santrayom	the	15	Juni	107	Report Systeman	SPANW.	and the second second
"	10 Prairy open	100	2.6	Knik	12074	Loburgian	A - Albint	111
24	1 march	Sec.	14	timely	4117	unerez-	991884.23	Americante
н	y speargue	**	17	die	202	Jane and the	charte	y
28	O. Ownyn jage	94	\$0.	New X	gay	and wanted	Necoli	Com-
24	9 Domoyour	Sec.	10	Rock	717	Heren berry	11114019	20per
40	Vi Sarah Magree	.4e	4	Tau	Roma	Thursday	90 B 22 M	day_





Silo



ASIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

L3514-МОН: ЭДИЙН ЭАСГИЙН ХҮНДРЭЛИЙН ҮЕД БОЛОӨСРОЛЫН ЧАНАР. ХҮРТЭЭМЖИЙГ САЙЖРУУЛАХ ТӨСӨЛ

Reastan atorian Bayon synon Egyrap anappoints Raport or aprevat figure myspipage pair in fact any apression tempeterial college descentions syntatizes apartmentics of press

-	Djooringertyje en rogen	Trim.	Far	No. proper	Retempt	Sportage anal	Past	Ceptule pror
١.	6 Jans 200-	81	12	New.	11/14	A Royant	NOTING	Jung
3	2 Drawnacymina	ĝin .	97	School .	Arra	Anew	35745635	& longh-
1	J. Bergues	stat.	55	dice	distant.	Low sycas	19 19 900	A Splane
4	Matanigesa	$\mathcal{P}[\mathcal{A}]$	\$3.	See.	Elen .	Alter and the second of the	6 Maga	ACONTON A
6	Separation	Acres	13	15005	FIGTA	1324gra	\$7200117	Topogional
٩.	Tenum-	4.0	47	662.5	ing	/Salat	4109-01-19	Math
1	5 Henchman	32.41	15	Xeri	4.92	50/11	4405784	"Hilling
8	1 persegues	she	34	didajo.	deep	8043	9950 EV2	the gran
*	only agene	12.00	- 90	Adventory	dag	dis june	91512395	bene
η.	The maker	JUL	32	and a	ghy	interara	3+3750++	But
11	S Pargest	20	1.1	-comoly	349	51 5505	1811.5515	J. Sampester

	General solar	Aple	Het	Traine press	Ginton	Sporgar anné	YYes .	Contract And
10	Farmer	14	17	Rick	Signag.	That my results	1 841159	13 80,700
12	I dugo maple	44	100	That.	Styng	Lunchener Vacan	19.111	12.5700
14	Farmyurn	7	12	Next	5/974-5	-1400.491	10+99014	Dogura.
18	Marian Drup	26	34	XIAN.	407	The American	, 99000	to the
18	Al falle	A.M	35	tick.	419-	Raten	den117]	F .
11	fran a	11	55	1 cm	5/2745	The contract	89.65.84n.5	. Butte
18	Stor mighter	4	19	date .	+17-	Jun tot	10075300	2
11	Martin paper	let.	+5	dialer.	perp	Wacatte	ALTOWER	aust
28	Guenness The	35	55	XAAN	70%	ST#33X-T	Kojar month	8 140
27	9. Br Jame	ne.	st	311059	975-	SHIT-A DHE	153899922	Blocking
19	1. April maring the	pi.	24	JULAN -	993-	familiante inte	6889-0944	grugerigge
74	H. Brogans	87-	35	Karrant	447	Olgany 2009	97782221	yes_
29	0. tum-tom	Re	41	S.ener	202-	Maponi USA	19903/00	Real
1	4. Georgeran	Set.	32	Rel-off-	8 mg	hybrigan	18:12:2693	The mapor
28	1. Sugar Augus	dur	45	KAR.	Inert	Riburgan	99354648	Marcherry
Ξ.	D. Blanr gift	21.1	0.0	Last	Agreen .	there have got a	99.61.9147	Mingal

	Орольргадын ондо	Tyle	19400	Toppet press	factor.11	Spannager ownert	Free	Capace your
28	4 Replace anges	- 104-	15	18 ALC	9.45	No.	1121204	+5 .
78	1. The marca	-10.00	59	diant	9003-	Augusta Daves	1050HA	302
36	1. Amigryon	ŵy.	30	Josenig	amy	supress Jusy	1049 1914	Sugaran
11	9 Cannage at	dar	94	1690	791	Systemier Frend	11111702	150000
-	8 Begens 244	24	51	Kisak	Sygne	migenese Ennes	17550304	BAR
31	1. Downer and	£1L	12	dist.	-Bry	Appropriate.	59315943	Dawar-
H.	R.MM-Drop	26	5.2	Anna.	Ant	xx Apop an.	\$1046064	Hacena
	P Disconignoses	24	19	Low	ner	Tubunna	13040175	bourge .
26	disubrigan	04	10	date	answer (To Hang	1471,995	Staffer
11	Hoydow	.,ites	34	daily.	Ragery	greation	842800	alu
14	Jaipyny	3-10	00	Serer.	81149	Same	3 05 9/19	1.100 200
10	1. Maleyrer	jų.	14	JALX.	ang	Su gynt	MIS 22.15	6 and ff-

Annexure 7: Due diligence status of existing and associated facilities for the project proposed (additional financing) kindergarten and school buildings

"Ireedui" Secondary school. SHD, UB.

Communication/Information & Communication National Network: Permission No. THB665/2020



4. Тахнананіе секугой накедалі Харегцая Колборны Зохицуртах хорорносс штогалон ундезе солика байуулах бурне тринйного дагуу колборнуулах тахникайн некцлийг заанан МХС ХХХ літох бөгөөд тахникайн некцентуйгаар колборны бух тарлийн үйлчөлтээний хорнулалттайгаар набаль татах болон шилжуулсан таниалдогд уг барилта объектыг тахникайн богон улсын кависсоор тулаж аважгүй болно.

5. Texnessis yearon seman

- XU 6834-web 7-p system 4-p aparter spoo dialinas opean-mail donos services selectes systeminaneap ranaw diapetring opyymic terchemials raseopeaneag solidovic.
- 5.2 Yr texisolodiu wexuenta appuyrtix to 6.6 in 34,35,95 p easar several earlieren weeunen
- 5.3 Харитцая Холбозны Зовицуутах Хорооноо олгосон холбозны кабыть шутавын упралт хийх тустая завшаералтай ак акуйн напозар куйцэтгүүлэх шаердлагагая.

8. Зурат тесяет зайлыгүй тусгах шаардлагатай технологийн оныгой нехытууш

- 6.1. Шинээр хийгдэх хабель, шугамын утсраттын ажлын зураг төсанөг зохиохдоо Монгол улсын гтөндарт MNS 5276.2003, MVG 6279.2003, MVG 5380.3003, MNB 5377.2003 тост еренина шеярдлегууд болон ДБЛ-ийн цайдын 1935 оны 127-р тушаагаар батлагдсан заверыг Бариятгаан гуйцэгтээ.
- 6.1 Хараттатнийн шугаамын угоралтын аяни барилтын зураг төсөөт байхгүй болон хийгдэагүй болон хийгдээгүй болон хийгдээгүй болон хийгдээгүй
- 8.3. Кабелийн хуваарилах хайрцагны байрлалыг харахтолчийн шулавын хөгтралын цэгт болон техник ациглалтын шаардлага хангахуйц байдлаар сонтон суурнгуулахаар технистопийн норм хэмжээг заан оруулах.

7. Уторалтын ажлын үнд тавитдах нехцел:

- 7.1. Угоралтын ажил энлэгэээ өөнө хураг төсөө технинийн нөгцлийн дөгүү хөйгдсэн эсэнийг Мэдээлэн холбооны сулжээ 109 ны 36 Хотын сулжээний газрын Буртгэл төлөөлөгтийн төхгөөр (Утыс 70112095) хөнүүлөн Багалгааг авсан байн.
- 7.2. Газар шорооны аннит туйцаттэндээ харылагагдах тухайн тактийн аклах инженер богон инженерээр шагтуулан далд анлын агт үйгдэж хулээн зөвх анлын агтанд навсаргах.
- 7.3. Кабаль шутамын ултралт болон газар шорооны анлыг эклэкдээ ИБ Хотын сулжааний паарын арениай инженераза албан боны индагдлийг авч тухайн зарьжалагдах гасгийн аклая инженераза касгая инжелтан дэр гуйцигэнэ.
- 7.4. Шанозр тетсан кабегь болон кробканд тамдаттагааг буран хийсан байх.
- Этераттын анлын явцад захналагч ашеглалтын байгууллагагай кантарч көнагт тавыя. утераттын технологийн шаардтагыг бурэн кантуулсан байк.

"Ireedui" 1st Secondary school. SHD, UB. Communication/ Information & Communication National Network: Permission No. THB665/2020



EATRAS. RENTFOLMHOUSENCE (CONCERNENCE) XXX HARH CHPLOTTOK SAXYPAD SPECIAL HOOTGARP 89

ТЕОНИОМИН НАХЦАЛ

Dynap TH-8666/3820

2025/05/09 Secondary. MOHFOR YIRCHH BOROBOPOR, LIVINIKROX YXAAHW RAM Geéryynnate: Xapperpartments rap: KOHR-AMTADAH Xapsenas year: 282227 1. BRADERY: СХД-н 15-р хорооны нутаг довогорт. 2. Jopsynam: Pipotayi uphuondop 1-p axnax cyprystwie epietrenwie bapwire 3. Колбооны хэрэгцэх: (урьдчилсан теоцовгоор/ Tenedon too (uvgivereep) 10.....

4. Техневейн онцтой нахцагс Харигцан Холбооны Золецуулах хорооноос олгоздоон ундсан галжан байгуулах бүрэн эрхийнхээ дагуу холбозиуулах техникийн ненцийг энжиж МХС ХХХ литик бегенд техникиен некцептуйтаар колбооны бух пертийн үйлчилтааный аарнулалтайгаар saflarts names donthe useranyympie toostorypieng yr flapentra ofisiamtur newsawale fipitole ympue комиссовр хутази везагуй болис.

5. Тахникаенн унцасан нехкцел

- 5.1 XU 6524-will 7-p system 4-p apartur ogon dakraal syker-man donter samoop militore суванитально татан барялтад орууля тегстельны технореаннид колбона.
- Уг техникой некцепт зориуля 10 6/8 + 34.95.95-р хосыг зоний заскинд некцен. 5.2
- 5.3. Харатцая Колбосны Эскнадутах Хоросноос элгосок колбосны набеть шутанын угоралт. кийх түстий эвешиерелтэй аж акуйн натихээ түйцэтгүүлэх шаардлагатад.

Зурат теснет зайлыгүй тусгах шаардлагатай технологийн ондгой навдлууд:

- 6.1. Läwisse sellinger vallens, upramer yrigantuer annue sopar recasilir assessage. Morrori present CTIR-UDART MINE \$278-2903, MINE \$279-2903, MINE \$280-2083, MINE \$2277-2003 TOOT ROM-WAR анардлятууд болон ДБХ-ийн сайдын 1985 оны 127-р тушаалаар беттасусан зеаерыг Sapuarthan ryikustrax
- В.2. Харэктопчейн шутаямын утсраттын анхит барыктын аураг техевт байхгүй болон хийгдээгүй был захналагчид жодзгдэн төсөө зурагт оруулах.
- 6.3. Katlenulei syksepunas salipuarna tielpnenur sopartonuele upraeae ierrpanae upr boron техник ашиллалтын шаардлага кантакуйц байрлаар сонтон суурилуулахаар технологийн HODM KIMIKON SBEN DOVY/188

7. Утсралтын ажлын үнд тави/дах неходегс

- 7.1. Утсраттын анып эктоказс өөнө зураг техая технецен ненднейн дагуу хейгдсэн эсэхийг Мадзентал холбооны суляса ТВК-ны УБ Котын сулясаний газрын Бурттал телевлелтийн tacraap (Vrac: T0112389) xeeyynax danarmaar aacax baks.
- 7.2. Газар шорооны ажил гуйцэттэхдээ харьяалагдан тухайн талгийн аалаа инжанар болон өнкенертор шаптуулан далд ажлын экт үйлдэж күтээн эках ажлын актанд хэвсарган
- 7.3. Кабель шугамын улоралт болон газар шорооны аклыг эхлэхдээ. ҮБ Холын сулжээний rappan apensai sessesepsisi andan bosu siggirginair any tyxaile sapasanangas tactais аклах инженерийн хөналтан дор гүйцэтсэнэ.
- 7.4. Шинаар таткан кабель болон кробканд тэмдэгтэгээг бурэн хийсэн байх
- 7.5. Угораттын англын явцад захиалагч ашигталгын байтууллагалай хантарч ончалт тааши утораттын технологийн шаардлагыг баран хангуулсан байх.

"Ireedui" 1st Secondary school. SHD, UB. Electricity supply/UB Electricity Distribution Network: Permission No. 15/03715/20

		илалнбаатар ц винит хувыцаа захирал техникийн нөг	БАТЛАВ инипсана Тусзах сулькая терия т компанията гулцалтах дваярсайха кцел
A.	. A	Agraup 192	20/40
Har D	es an capavan app		Улавновитар к
1.1	Хусалтнін дугааз	20-52-001-002	
1.2	Хэрэттэгчийн нээ. рөгнстр:	SO/IOBCPO/LUX delinymmara - P/	NHOROTON YXXAAHISI IKAM Tegenile 2 9116521,
1.3	Харогланныйн байршилт	Кланбавтар Со	иленохайрхан 75-р хород -
1.4	Ажал уйлчилгээний зорнуувагт:	Cyprysmi	
1.5	Техновскім нахідня алтов ундаслан:	 Голар завищи гарчилтра. БоловсРод. ВоловсРод. Ариктеклур № Ариктеклур № МЗХ2019/08-06/ зони зураг 	к архийн 2009-07-14 ны 0177751 тоог цааном,Лэх үхлллны Алаг 2020 оны ы M2/297 тоог албан нусалт гавалагтийн 2019-оны Гдугаартай даалганар, баглагдсон
1,6	Техникийн нахцалийн ангилал	Harese anar	
1.7	Тооцооны буран чадал:	(Toorsas)	/ттаг ауун арван гураво? (устар)
Yolio.)	lasformer um		
8.1	110/10/6 x8-six Yikhgsop XTIT-693 pag epiteeweit D.	дад станцаес 10 4 кВ талева: сдло л	я8-ын X5-50 аас 1xTП-12 А федерейн олбогдсан халболтаор гажаах.
Nome.	Тодлуна, канжни какогсал.	2	
3.1	Варийн байрны 0.4 кВ-ы армгаалан таслах техан биталгаат, буран алантро	н цегтэнд өнаата комни, / УЗОС, Ог н 5 А тоолуур, гүй	лд тохирсон дифференциал автомат LMS протонолыг дэмждэг 3 фазыл длейн трансформалор суусилтуулаг.
Дирия.	Тустий заалтууд;		
4.1	Шатний гозардуулга бо дурмийн дагуу хийлган ю	илон шугани тонко олбогдок газраер	глолын хэмжилт, туршилтыт жорм шалтуулж протокол авсан байк.
42	ХПТ-693 дад ертенний 0. тоноглопуддар шенячи цененлалт хийж байгаат батпагдоон эрргийн дагуу	А хВ тальне тоног лиз солин, Хаал ай холбогдрулан I г хийх,	полуудыг сүүлийн үеийн овор багтай гттай дэд өртөөний 0.4 x8 тагьл 14 x8 тагуудад зожи өөрчлөгтгүүдий
43	Хаалттай дад өртөөг орг хуучан тоног танаарама	оттож байгаатай н кийг Монгол улс	олбогдуулан өргөттөл кийсэн, буусан ын застийн газрын 2020 оны 94-р

https://www.tog.mm/#radmin/request/20-52-001492

"Ireedui" 1st Secondary school. SHD, UB. Heating supply /UB Heating Network: Permission No.291/2020

15.0 10	20 ТООК-айн Терникайн нэж мусхин 2019 оны Бр терин Эл ни уурсын анбуртроор ораавтор		цэтгэх захирал Г Баярсайхан		
	TE	хникийн нөхцөл м 291/2020			
۹.	Хараглагчийн нэр:	Боловорол, шинжлэх ухааны яам /СХД-и цогцолбор 1-р ахлах сургуулийн ергеттө.	йн Ираздуй п/		
2,	Барилтын мадээлэл:	Хуучин барилга дээр 1 давхар нэнэх			
3.	Хараглагчийн байршил:	Сонтинокайрхан дуураг, 15-р хороо, 12-р байрны баруун тага.			
4.	Дупааны хэрэглээ:	Heiêt : 0.21	Examplear		
		А.Халаалт 0.17 Б.Харогцээний халуун ус 0.04 В.Салжилуулга 0.00	Fkanluar Feanluar Feanluar		
5.	Холбатын цэг:	8в магистраль, ОСНАЛУГ-ын харьяа надлыг тооцон 2-р халхажаас холбогдог Шугамын даралт, төмпературын утга	уддт-122 жүнөн		
	0	А. Холболтын цаг дээр байх туралт 6. Шутамын сталих даралт 8. Буцах шутамын даралт Г. Гадна агаарын тооцоот температур Д.Температурын график	5 w 38 wy6 50 are 39 * 0 9666 * 0		

6. Мердеж хэрэгжүүлэх хууль, дурэм журам

- 6.1. Эрчим хүчний тухай хууль
- 6.2 Застийн газрын 2020 оны 3-р сарын 18-ны өдрийн 97 тоот тогтоолоор батлагдсан "Дулааны эрчим хүч хэрэглэх дурэм"
- 6.3 Эрним Хүчний Зохицуулах Хорооны 2018 оны 10 дугаар сарын 11-ний едрийн 290 дугаар тогтоолоор бөллөгдсан Дулаан дамжуулах, тутээх сүлжээний "Холболтын журам"
- 8.4 Эрним күчний тухай хуулийн 14-р зүйлийн 14.4-т заасны дагуу Эрним хүч дамжуулах шугам, дэд станц нь төрийн өмчлөгүд байна.
- 8.5 "Эрчим хүчний тухай хууль"-нікн 30 дутаар зүйлийн 30.1.10, 29 дутаар зүйлийн 29.1.9 дэх заалтыг мерден өөрийн эзэмшлийн шугам, тоног техевремжөөс бусад хэрэглэгчийг холбуулах.

7. Зураг тесеп, тесев боловоруулахад тавигдах шаардлага :

7.1 Зураг төслийн ундсэн шаардлага

7.1.1 "Эрним хүчний тухай хууть"-ийн 33 дугаар зүйл, "Эрним хүчний шутам сүлжээг хамгаалах дүрэм"-ийн 1.3 дах заалтыг мөрдөж дугааны төв шутам, салаа болон салбар шугамаас хамгаалалтын зурвасын зайг хангаж бариллыг төлөөлөх. Шугамын хамгаалалтын зурваст токижилт, зам талбай, зогсоол, бусад бөйгууламж төлөөгөхнүй байх. "Ireedui" 1st Secondary school. SHD, UB. Water supply/water supply and wastewater service (USUG), Wastewater collection/ (USUG): Permission No. 729/20

		VCVT- we Deconcisio weregen territe tradectule 2020 cour Ofice capate Thread approve topicule 729 topic reportantial supports descention
	TENIS	AND AND AND AN ADDRESS AN ADDRESS AND ADDRESS
1	Бариотта байкуульнажён нэр, зорнулыгт, баёршил	БШУЯвак, ЗОХТБЧОСТесел, 320 хуходийн сургуулийн эргегтөл, одоо байган барилта длэр 1 давиар нэмж 3 давхад боетин өрлеттак, СХД 15-р хороо, 1-р хороолол. Ирхэдий цогцолбор-1° аклах сургуугь
	Нийт усны хараттаа:	Listop yoku - 14,72 arftxos Fartus yoku - 5,5 mit Sceep yoku - 14,72 aditxos
3	Цэнэр усны холболт хийх цэгийн байрцаал, хутанын хаантто	ОСНИКУТ-ын 55/2000 горт техникийн тедруултын дагуу Баруун түгээн төв, ХҮТ-15-ын УДДТ-122-ын дараань ФКО эн ойн цуулаанаас арлба, болыг хүрэйн төгээ эн цуглан
4	Вохир ускы колболт хийх цэтийн байршин, шутамын акаметр	ОСНАКЛУ чин бО2020 товт техникани тодруултын дагуу Баруун тугаах төв, ХҮТ-15-чин б200 менийн бохор шутамын хүдэгт аллбох, авгант уургайн явцал зөвцэгтцэх
5	Housen weaten	 Ут контаких, преуттах татууртых састный уталта, инжилт, турьанте тохоруултые ажение зардлыг зураг тасног тустах. Бариттын гадна цакар, бохир убны шутан суспехоний колбок цахий каритак тринспарта, кислт такых хикуутак, кактат байсуултанын кекшерлеер гойциттеге Холбогдох Хууль, БНБД, стандартыг мердек. Холбогдох Хууль, БНБД, стандартыг мердек. Гарка куулькана актык зургейт ХБИ гой зевшаллар.
6	Такинтдах конердумате	 Барзеттые Тлот срурнены ус занатомся, архентая тапууртые ванитартные тухай" куулевін дапуу цанаде усны жукамым технялалог 8 меняр, болкар роны жукамым технялалог 8 меняр зайд барата. Хот, сурнены ускантартые, аркуульте талуалтальне тухай" куулевін 15.1.10 - ын дапуу канталтые кароттальней кууленалас. Дамануулан цанкор короттал нь хароттальней инутанных дамануулан цанкор короттал и колотольней инутанных дамануулан цанкор короттал и колотольней инутанных дамануулан цанкор короттал и колотольней инутан кенцен селосон тохискород, батлагдсан англин хурат, технийн далуу дараатийн хэроттальней хообуртан. Боросны усы болор усны датанана туракт, колболгын даятар узна дарааталгын байтуулганы холболгын даятар талаат туракти холболгын дарагалгында адараталгын байтуулганы ханаттын неканарайг байгцуула нг, далд актин туракти хаталын. Төвийн болов арратталгын дараар, бохор усны худаг, чулам сулактан дара болон каматалгалгын басар дара талбай, автоо холооз, бараттын докжос, куударан талбай, автоо холооз, бараттын докосо, куударан дараала некан сарталтанын докос от сурануудак дараала некан сарталтанын болыг барауулак хараары дараала некан сарталтанын болыг барауулак хараарын дараала некан сарталтанын доктыг барауунан хараарын дараалан калан сарталтанын доктыг барауунан хараарын дараалан калан сарталтанын барагтын доканоон таланарын дараалан каланан сарталанган бараунунан таланарын дараарын арагын таланарын сарталан бараунунан таланарын сарталтан бараунунан таланарын сарталанан бараунунан таланарын сарталан бараунунан таланары сарталан бараунунан таланар бараунын таланар бараунан таланарын сарталан баранарын баранарын сарталанарын баранарын сарталанарын баранарын баранарын сарталан бараунан таланарын сарталан баранарын баранарын сарталан баранарын баранарын баранарын сарталан баранарын баранарын баранарын баранарын сарталанарын баранарын б
7	Объект барих дяад	 Газар экзация архийн 0577751 дутаартай гарчилтээ
	тазрын книдеэр:	 МЗЗС2019/06-067 тоот архитектур төп тийн даалтиаар

"Ireedui" 3rd Primary school. SHD, UB.

Communication/ Information & Communication National Network: Permission No. THB664/2020



4. Тахнавание онартой наявдает Харитцая Халбооны Зохидуутах торноносо затогдовн эндом оутказ байгуулах буран архийнско датуу колбоонуутах техникийн некцинйг зөвсөн МИС XXX алтох Белевд техникийн некцелтүйгээр холбооны бух төртөйн үйгнөгтээний зориулагттайгаар набогь татах болон цилтехулсан токнолдогд уг барилга обцектыг техникийн болон улсын какиссоор нутаан аваагий болно.

8. Texpension page or recouper

- 5.1. ХШ 6826-ний 2-р зрутыч 8-р арактыг одоо байхаа суванитал болон шенээр аяйсэн суванилалаар татан барилтад оруулж тегсталийн техевренжид холбоно.
- 5.2. W Teconomie reacycly approve to 905-e 16.17,18-p social annexi antening resurres.
- 5.3. Харилцая Холбооны Зояндуулах Корооноос олтосон холбооны кабель шугамын угсралт жийх тусгай завшеерептой аж акуйн ногисээр гүйцэтгүүлэн шаердлагагай.

Зураг тесевт зайлыгуй тустах шаардлагатай технологейн оныгой нехылууд:

- Шензар хийгдэх хабель, аугажын утралтын аклын зураг төсөийг хэхисхэдэс Монтол утсын стандарт МНS 5276:3903, МНS 5279:3903, МНS 5280:2903, МНS 5277:2003 тоот еренхий захеддлагууд, болон (257-ийн хайдын 1995 оны 127-р. тушеалеер, бөтлөгдсан ажерыг баринттан туйцэтгэх.
- 8.2. Хараптанчийн цугамын утэралтын ажил барилтын зураг төсөөт байнгүй болон жийдээгүй бол захийлагчид мэдйгдэж төснө эрээтт оруулах.
- 8.3. Кабелийн хуваарылах хайрцагчы байрлалыг хараллагчийн шугамын нягтралын шэт болон техник ашиглалтын шаврдлага кангахуйц байдлаар сонгон суурилуулахаар технологийн норм хэмжайг зааж оруулах.

7. Frepartium annue you tasergue wanger:

- 7.1. Упрактык ажил эктонов; акина сураг техничан техничан некульте датуу киладон ассинат Мадаалап калбооны сулжаз ТӨН-ны УБ Холын сулжазний тазрые Бурттал телевлеттийн тествар (Утас: 70112300) кинуулан баталгааг авсан байх.
- 7.3. Газар шерооны экип түйцэгтэхдээ хэрьлалагдах тухайн тасгийн эхтэх инжөнөр болон инжөнөрээр шалтуулан далд аклын экт үйлдэх хүтээн өвэх эхтэн эктэнд хэвсэртэх.
- 7.3. Кабаль шулаяын угоралт болон газар шорооны ажлыг эхлэхдээ Уб Хотын сулжээний газрын еренхний иниетиериэс албан болы мэдэгдлийг авч тухайн харьяалагдах тасгийн ахлах иниетиерийн ажаалтан дор туйцэтгэнэ.
- 7.4. Шекзар таткан кабель болон кробнанд тэмдэглэгээг бурэн нийсэн байх.
- Упрактын ажнын яжад, захиаган ашилалтын байтуулгагатай хавтарч энчэлт тэвци упрактын технологийн шавддлагыг бурэн хантуулсан байн.

"Ireedui" 1st Primary school. SHD, UB. Electricity supply/UB Electricity Distribution Network: Permission No. 15/03714/20

6ATTIAB YTAAHEAATAP LIAXWITAAH TYCBB CYTTKBB TBPMRH EMHAT XYELLAAT KOMTAHARA FYELETERK **Д.БАЯРСАЙКАН** TARMAR TEXHAK/6/H HeXL(H) Дугеар We and Beauer Wear Yras-deated sor Наг, Еренший мадаолага 20-52-001492 1.1 Хусантийн дугаар: 1.2 Хараглагчейн нэр. BO/708CPO/L GIRHW/15X FXAAH5/ RAM Tepelei dairygnara- All 9116521, periactic 1.1 Хараглагчийн байранл Итаанбаатар Сонгинохайрхан 17-р хороо, -Ажил уйлчалгээний 1.4 Cyprogram sopelynam: 1.5 Техникийн невцая олгох 1/7ахир хоомцах эрхийн 2009-07-14-ны 0177745 тоот ундислал: 130446738 2) БОЛОВСРОЛ, ШИНЖЛЭК УХААНЫ ЯАМ 2020 оны DB-p capuse 13 Hu NP2/297 root andoe sycant 30 Appartectyp reneasementalise 2019-ones MSR2018/08-068 дугаарлый даалганар, Беллегдсан SCOOL INCOM 1.6 Тепнонийн нахдалийн Hantor anne awrietawr. 1.7 Тооцооны будан чадал: 113 kfl4 /Маг зуун арван /урав/ (nooroopi) (vorwas) Хойр. Холболтын цэг: 21 110/10/5 кВ-ын Үйлдсэр дэд станцаас 10 кВ-ын XE-50 аас 1x17-5 А, 5 фидерийн ХТТІ-738 дад ертенней 0.4 к8 талаас одоо холбогдсон колболгоор тажаза. Гурав. Тоолуур, кзнажиз хэдэгсэл: 11 Окрийн байрны 0.4 х8-ын шитэнд анаалалд тохирсон дифференциал автомат, камгаалын таслах техенремж, / УЗО/, DEMS протоколыг джиждаг 3 фазын баталгааг, буран электрон 5 А тоолуур, гүйдлийн трансформатор суурилуулах. Перев. Тустай заалтууд: 4.1 Щитний газардуулга богон шугам тоноглолын хаминит, туршилтыг норм, дурнанін дагуу хийлгэн холбогдох газраар шалгуулж протокол авсан байх. ХЛП-738 дэд өртөөний 0.4 кВ талын тоноглолуудыг сүүлийн умийн сөор багтай 4.2 тоноглопуудаар цанинальнэ согин, Хаалттай дад ергенный 0.4 кВ талыг шинанталт кийж байгаатай колбогдуулан 0,4 кВ талуудад эсних өөрчлөлтүүдийг баллагдсан зүргийн дагуу хийх. 4.3 Хаалттай дэд өртөөг өргөттөж байгаатай холбогдуулан өргөттөл хийсэн, буусан хуучин токог теланоремжийг Монгол улсын засгийн газрын 2020 оны 97-р тогтоолын 2.7.2-т заасны дагуу УБЦГС ТӨКК-нін үндсэн хөрөнтөнд шилжуулан

https://rew.log.ine/#/admin/equest/22-52-001-492

1/3

"Ireedui" 3rd Primary school. SHD, UB.

н.

Heating supply /UB Heating Network: Permission No.291/2020

10,20 ТОКК-еён Тахнанийн нэто хомисани 2020 оны 9-р зарын 3-н цахна хүрхын силцахрхор мөнхөөрө		HOEMPCARA
TE	хникийн нөхцөл w 328/2021	Party and a second
 Хараглагчийн нэр: Бараглагчийн нэрээлэлэг 	болтаксроп, шеннитах ухааны ні цогцолбор 3-р бага сургуутийн Хуучен барилга дээр 1 давкар	ам./СХД-нійн Ираздуй аргагтал/ намах
3. Хараглагчийн байршил:	Сонтинскайркан дуураг, 17-р м талд	ороо, 34-р байрны зүүн
4. Дупавны хэрэглээ:	Heir :	0.21 Fkan/uar
	А Халаагт Б.Хэрэгцхэний залуун ус В.Сагохитуулта	0.17 Feamuar 0.04 Feamuar 0.00 Feamuar
5. Хонболтын цэг	тты магистраль. ДіїТ-124-ийн шутам, хогигч насосны узеїний Шутамын даралт, тенператур	2-р капкаанд өөрийн сала гөргөттөж колбогдон. рын утта:
	А. Холболтын цаг дээр байх тү Б. Шугамын статих даралт В. Буцая шугамын даралт Г. Гадна агаарын тооцоот темп Д.Температурын трафик	ралт 6 н 17 мул 2.5 ата кратур -30 ° С 95/65 ° С
6. Мердек зараснуулак хур	ль, дуром журам	
 В.1. Эрним кунний тухай ку 	OTh	
6.2 Застнін газрын 2021 беглагдсан "Дупаан	0. оны 3-р сарын 18-ны едр ы эрчим күч кэрэгтэх дурэм"	ийн 97 тоот тогтралаар

- в.з. Эрним Хунней Зохицуулах Хорооны 2018 оны 10 дугаар сарын 11-ней едрийн 290 дугаар тогтоогоор батлагдсан Дулаан даворулах, тутээх сулжээний "Холболтын хурам"
- 6.4. Эрнем хүнний тукай хуулийн 14-р зүйтийн 14-т заасны дагуу Эрнем хүч давхоуутах шутам, дэд станц нь төрийн өөнгөсүд байна.
- 6.5 "Эрчим күчний тухай кууль" ийн 30 дугаар зүйгийн 30 1 10: 29 дугаар зүйлийн 29.1.9 дэх заалтыг хөрдөж өөрийн зээмшлийн шугав, тоног төхөөрөмжөөс бусад хэрэглэгчийг холбуулах.

7. Зураг тесел, тесев боловсруутахад танигдая шаардлага :

7.1 Зураг теслийн үндсэн шаардлага

7.1.1 "Эрчем хүчний тукай куугь"-ийн 33 дугаар зүйл, "Эрчем хүчний шутам сүлжээг хамгаагах дурэм"-ийн 1.3 дах заялтыг мөрдөх дугааны төв шутам, салаа болон салбар шутамаас хамгаагалтын зурвасын зайг хангаж барилтыг төтөөлөх. Шутамын хамгаагалтын зурваст тохножлт, зан талбай, зогсоол, бусад байгууламж төгөөлөхгүй байх. "Ireedui" 3rd Primary school. SHD, UB.

Water supply/water supply and wastewater service (USUG), Wastewater collection/ (USUG): Permission No. 728/20

		ВАТЛАВ УС СУВГИНИ УДИРВАХ ГАЗРын ЕРӨНХИ ИНЖЕНЕР БОГРОД ДАРГЫН ҮҮРГИЙГ ХАВСРАН ГУЛЬТТЭГЧ И ГОЛЬТЭГЧ УСИТ-ын Техники мерен женоми 2020 эны 80-о орын Тё-ней марийн удоан Тэй гээг протоком ундасан закымеран.		
	TEAM	BUDYRess, 33XY84RCTecen, 320 syngemic syprysmeter		
*	Берелта байгурламжийн нэр, хөрөуталт, байршил	аргеттек, одоо байкая барилта дзор 1 даяхар наник 3 даяхар болгон ергеттек, СХД 17-р хороо, 1-р хороолог, Ирходий цотцолбор-3' суртууть		
2	Нийт усны харалтах	Цавар усны – 14,72 м ² тосн Галин усны – 6,0 л/с Босар усны – 14,72 м2/кон		
a-	Цэвэр усны холболт хийх цэгийн байрсил, шутамын днаметр	ОСНИАЗТ-ын 48/2020 тоот технековін тодруултын дегуу Баруун путаш тек, КҮТ-15-ын УДДТ-124-ейн дарахо, Ф190 же нійк цартаннаяс холбок, житын эдогнік неца, першальда ОСНААЗТ-ын 48/2020 тоот технековін тодруутнік дегуу Баруун путан тек, ХҮТ-15-ын Ф200 меннік болар шуганын пудат алабох, актык тербийн нецай менилікатын		
4	Бохно усен хонбалт жийх цэгийн байршиг, шутамын деаметр			
	Hawarr eessen	 Ус хонстики, армуттая татуургын системийн угаалта, цорхаат, тураантт тахируулгын ажлын зардулиг зураг төсмөт түсгэх. Бариттын тарна цэвэр, бохир рони шутан сулжээний холбон цатийг авгээт байгуулажын зөцхөөрлөөр гүйцэтэгээ. Холбондов Хуугь, Б.Н.В.Д, стандартыг мөрдөх. Гадна шутамын ажлын зургийг ХБХГ-гай рөлшиглээт. 		
8	Тавинтрах шивродляти	 Барнитыг Хой бууранны ус хэнглэхэ, армуттах татуургын алысталтын түхээ ууутайн дагуу цэнээр усныг хүүлэлжин тээнхлэээээс 8 мөнтөр зайд барая Хот. суурены ус зангтаж, армутах татуургын алыгталтын тээнхлэээээс 8 мөнтөр зайд барая Хот. суурены ус зангтаж, армутах татуургын алыгталтын тээнхлэээээс 8 мөнтөр зайд барая Хот. суурены ус зангтаж, армутах татуургын алыгталтын тээнхлэээээс 8 мөнтөр зайд барая Хот. суурены ус зангтаж, армутах татуургын алыгталтын туухай хүүхэлэг дэлжуулан шанхээр хэрэгтэгч золбох техникайн нөнцөг олгосон тохиогдоод, батуагдээн анстий эррэг жээлийн дагуу дараагийн хэрэглэгчийг холбуулах. Боросон ут зайгуулаг артам артажанд нөйгүүлэлтуй байх. Цахор, бохор усны царталанд өнйгүүлэхгүй байх. Цахор, бохор усны царталанд өнйгүүлэхгүй байх. Төөнйн босон хэрэгтэгчийн цэхэр, бохор усны артагчан ал холбогтын анхамарталтын дахор, бохор усны хүрэг холбуулагын халаагын анхамартагалтын байгууллагын ал халааны боросон хэрэгтэгтэгчийн цэхэр, бохор усны хүрэг хэлбогтын аларагтаганын цэхэр, бохор усны хүрэг халаан талбай, авто аларагтагынын дахор, бохор усны хүрэр талсалан тагбай зэргэй төлөхгөн бурдуулах, энэхөлөн зарталы, нахован сэрэгэлтийн дахор бурдуулах, энэхөлөг зарталы үрэхэлтийн дэхэл бүрдуулах, энэхөлөг зарталы нахован сэрэгэлтийн дахог өөрүдөн хартарын зарталасан тарбай зэргэй төйх болоогон бурдуулах, энэхөлөргэн зарталы нахован сэрэгэлтийн дахог өөрүдөн хартаруулаг, энэхөлөг зарталан нэхээл сэрэгэлтийн дахог бөлүндүгэх, энэхөлөгдсэг холбуулаг хартараган бураган ар		
		of a discovery page of the state of the second		
1	Объект барих джид	Floodp community operative 0177745 gyraaphait represences		

School No. 6. SBD, UB.

Communication/ Information & Communication National Network: Permission No. THB666/2020

NETCO	IVI	БАЛТАВ МОДООПОЛ ХОЛООНЫ СУЛЖЭЭ ХХЕЧЭН, ГУЙСЭХ ЗАКИРАЛ	
entities surphism internation	el entecné	Soft Che Co Laguer 19	
	техникийн нөхора	n	
Apranp: TH-8666/2020		2020/09/06	
Jaxosanare Gaikryymara:	MOHFOR VIICUH BORDBOPOR,	шиноклах ухааны яам	
Хараллагчеен нар:	H. SHOK-AMEADAH		
Харжецах утас:	262227		
1. Gaépaser:	СБД-н 5-р хорохны нутаг дзясларт.		
2. 3opeynam:	6 дутавр сургуулийн өргөлтөлийн	Gaperna	
1. Холбооны хэрэгцээ:	Aphahemicae toolgooroog/ Tenet@ee too (aepicaraop)	18 m	
4. Телинийн аньгой н	нали Хариндар Халбооны Захи	saystax xopeexec envergen yagen	

 наявивает силон систем находат: хорынцам Хатбооны Зохидуутах хороонос олгогдовн ундовн сулясо байтуутах бурэн прейного датуу колбоокуутах техникай накцинаг заекиен МХС ХХС олгох белевд техникийн находигуйтээр колбооны бух терлийн үйлчигтээний ээрнулалтайгаар кабаль татах болон закигнүүтээн токкогдогд уг барилгэ обыклыг техниканы болон улсын комиссоор хүлээн авактүй болно.

5. Техуниканан ундерет неяздат

- 6.1. XLD 3220-кий 7-р зуутын 8-р аравтыг одоо байная, суванчлал болон шинхор жийсэн туванчлалаар талан баралгад орууск теготехнийн төхөөрөмжид холбоно.
- 6.2. Уг техникайн нехцегд эсриулж гр 4/1+н 93,94-р косыг элний залианд некцива.
- 6.1. Херитцав Холбооны Зокадуулах Хоровного олгосон холбооны кабель шугалын утгралт хийн тустай завшаериттэй аж акуйн нэгжээр туйцэтгүүтэх шавропытатай.

Зураг төсөөт зайлыгүй тусгах жаярдэагагай технологийн сөздтой неэздтууд.

- 8.1. Шиновар койудох кабель, шуламын угораттын ажлын зураг төсөнйг зохасадох Монгол улсын станцарт МNS 5270-2003, MNS 5279-2003, MNS 5280-2003, MNS 5277-2003 тоот еренкей шавралагууд болон (ДБХ-еён сайдын 1995 эны 127-р тушаалаар баттасдоон ааверыг баримттан гүйцэттэн.
- 8.2. Хэрэгтэлчийн шугамын угоралтын эхилт барилтын зураг төсөөт байхгүй болон зийгдээгүй бол эвиналагчид мэдэгдэн төсөө зурагт оруулах.
- 8.3. Кабегинін хуваарилах хайрцалны байрлалыг хэрэглэгчийн шутанын няттралын цэтт болон төхник ациглалтын цахардлага хэнгэхүйц байдлаар сонгон суурилуулахаар технологийн норм хэмжсэг зааж оруулах.

7. Угералтын жалын үнд таниддэх нөндөгт

- 7.1. Уторалтын ажил эклохээс өмнө зураг төсөв техненийн өөхүрчийн дагуу хийгдсэн эсэхийг Мадэолог холбосны сулжээ ТОК-ны УБ Хотын сулжээний газрын Буртог талжалалтийн тасгаар (Угас: 70112399) олчуулан баталгааг авсан байн.
- 7.2. Газар шорооны аяки түйцэтгээдээ харьаагагдаг тухайн тастийн аялах энжэнэр богон энэжэнэрээр цаалтууган далд ажлын акт үйгдэж хүхтэн авах аялын актын аясын актын, аасаргах.
- 7.3. Кабаль шутамын утдаатт болон тазар хоросны жилыг эктээдээ УБ. Хотын сүгжээний газрын ерений инженерээс албан ёсны мэдэгдлийг авч тухайн харъяалагдах тасгийн ахтая инженерэйн көналтан дор түйдэтгэнэ.
- 7.4. Шиногор тапсан кабель болон кробканд такдаллагааг буран кийсан байк.
- 7.5. Угоралтын ажлын нөцар, аяхиалагч жындаттык байуулгагаган кангарч хөнөлт тавык угоралтын технологийн шаардлагыг буран хангуулсан байх.
School No. 6. SBD, UB. Electricity supply/UB Electricity Distribution Network: Permission No. 15/03730/20

EAT/5AB YNAAHEAATAP LIAXM/YYAAH TYTSSK CV/0633 TOPWRH BAR-BIT XYBLLAAT KOMPAHARIN TYRLDTEX. TAXMPA/T **J.SARPCAROAH** техникийн нежцел Darsep . 1701210/30

Into one channel Cases

YnasHöaatap xot

Hor: Eperanii Magaona/c

1.1	Хусалтийн дугаар:	20-82-001491	and the second second second second
1.2	Хэрэглэгчийн хар, регистр:	BO/TOBCPO/T, & Sailtyyvitara - P	зинжлэх ухааны вам Тарийн Иг 9116521,
1.3	Хараглагчийн байрхият	Уларыбалтар С	yxfaanap S-p aopos, -
1.4	Ажал үйлчилгээний зорнулалт:	Сургууль	
1.5	Теозналён навцел олгох ундэслал:	 Газир зланы гарчистах. Архитектур т МЗК2019/08-01 вских зудаг. 	нк архийн 2008-08-27-ны 2177719 тоот өлөөлөлтийн 2019 оны 9 дугаартай даалгавар, батгагдсан
1.6	Технаволён невщаганён англизат.	Hereor asar	
1.7	Тооцооны буран чадал:	173 xBA (teorogal	/Har ayye apikaw (ypas)/ (vorade)

Хоёр. Холболтыя цат:

2.1 35/6 кВ-ын Дереен зам дад станц, ХБ-5-с 6 кВ-ын 5к-1 фидерийн ХТР-375 дад ергенний 0.4 кВ талын I бе 8 секцэнд шинсэр рубильник бухий групп тоноглож набель шугам талаж таксох.

Гурав, Тоопуур, хамяня хэрэгсэг:

3.1 Онрийн бөйрны 0.4 кВ-ын арттэнд ачаалылд тохироон дифференциал автомат, хамгаалан таслах тахевереник, / УЗО/, DLMS протоколыг дамждаг 3 фазых баталгаат, бурэн электрон 5.4 тоолуур, гуйдлийн трансформатор суурилуулах.

Дерев. Тустай заалтууд;

4.1 Шитний газардуугга болон шутам тоноглолын канжилт, турцияттыг норм, дурмийн дагуу кийлгэн холбогдох газраар шалгуулж прогокол авсан байх.

Тав. Дор дурдоан техникийн даалгавар, хууль дурмийг мөрдөх:

- 5.1 Шутамын "Ажлын зурат төсөл" ийт тухайн нутат дэвсгарийн ереконй төлөөлтөгө аариуцсан нэгж болон бусад цавадлогатай бейгуулгагуудтай энваактцен, мэдхэллийн санд оруулсан бейх, схем холбогт, күнөн чадлыг тус компаниар авнуулах.
- 5.2 Энэхүү техникийн нахцалийн дагуу тависдах шугаж, тоноглолууд нь Улаанбаатар цанилгаан түгээх сүхжээ төрийн өмгөгт хувьцаат хомпанийн багалсан "Техниковён шаардлагын тодорхойлолт" ыг хөнгасан байх шаардлагатай. Техникийн шаардлагын тодорхойлолтыг иничлэдлог яаягаар

https://www.itog.inn/Wadmin/request/20-52-001481

School No. 6. SBD, UB.

Heating supply /UB Heating Network: Permission No.285/2020

			The second se	1.1	10	
	100	3C 1866 adai Tamanadai masu militan 2020 may 9-p sepam 3-m mi ngihan sankaripong temamajor	EATTINE YEAR YEAR	irva Le	E XÉTTEN TEAN	ажинад Сайхан
		TE	хникийн нөхцол нь зөз/зозо		£	
	۹.	Хараттагчийн нар:	Баловорал, шенжлак ухааны яви К ергеттеги	15,D-14	ile: 6-p-cyp	ryyniske
9	2.	Берилгын мэдээлэлх	Хуучан баригча дээр 1 давхар нэм:	14		
	3.	Хэрэтлэгчийн байршил:	Сүхбөатар дүүрэг. 5-р хороо, 68-р у	auppi	татийн урд	5
14	4.	Дупаяны хэрэглээ:	Heiler:	0.21	Frankar	
			A.Xanaant 6.Xaparusaweb xanyyei yo 8.Cansonyymia	0.17 0.04 0.00	Feanluer Feanluer Feanluer	
	6.	Халболтын цэг:	Зе магистрать. ОСНАЛУГ-ын карыл тооцон 2-р хэлхээнээс золбогдох Шугамын даралт, төмпөратурын	н УД) yma:	1Т-63 хүн	н чадтыг
			А. Холболтын цэг дээр байк турэгт Б. Шутаяын статик даралт В. Буцак шутамын даралт Г. Гадна алаарын тооцоот температ Д.Температурын графек	ŋıp	6 20 5.2 -39 95/05	My B ans - C

6. Мердек хэрэгжүүлэх хууль, дүрэм журом

- Эрчани кучний тухай хууль.
- 6.2. Застийн гаорын 2020 оны 3-р сарын 18-ны ядрийн 97 тоот тогтоолоор бөтгөгдсэн "Дугааны арчим хүч хараглах дуром"
- 6.3 Эрнен Хүний Зохицуутах Хоросны 2018 оны 10 дугаар сарын 11-ний едрийн 290 дугаэр тогтоолоор багласдсан Дулаан дамжуулах, тугээх сүлэсэний "Холболтын журам"
- 6.4 Эрчані кучний тукай куутийн 14-р зуйлыйн 14.4-т заасны дагуу Эрчані куч данонуутах шугам, дід станц нь тернійн өмчлелд байна.
- В.5 "Эрчим хүчний түхий хууль" нён 30 дугаар түйлийн 30.1.10, 29 дугээр зүйлийн 20.1.9 дэх заалтыг мөрдөж өөрийн зэзишлийн шутам, тоног техеөрөмхөөөс бусад хэрэглэгчийг холбуулав.
- 7. Зурёг төсөл, төсөн боловсруулахад танагдах шаардлага :

7.1 Зураг теспийн үндсэн шаардлага

- 7.1.1 "Эрчим хүчний тухай хууль"-ийн 33 дугаар зүйл, "Эрчим хүчний шуган оүлжээг хамгаагах дүрэм"-ийн 1.3 дах заалтыг нөрдөж дулааны төв шуган, саглаа болон салбар шуганаас хамгаалалтын зурвасын зайг хангаж барилыг төлөвлөх. Шугамын камгаалалтын зурваст токинилт, зам талбай, зогсоол, бусад байгууламж төлөөгөхгүй байв.
- 7.1.2 Шутамын трасс сонтопт, колболтыг хийхдээ салаа шутам азамшигч, шутамын трасс дагуух газар эзэмшигчтэй урьдчилан эзэшинерепцех, бусдын эзэмшил газар шутамын трассыг сонгохгүй байх.
- 7.1.3 Монгол улсын барилтын норм ба дурмийн /6/40Д 41-02-05/ 10 7-д зааснаар Дулаан хантамжийн хаалттай системийн үед халуун ус ба халаастын хамгийн их дугааны анаагстын харьцаанаас хамааруулчин ус халаагтын холболтын сөвмийг сонгох.

School No. 6. SBD, UB.

Water supply/water supply and wastewater service (USUG), Wastewater collection/ (USUG): Permission No. 587/20



Kindergarten No.82. BZD, UB.

Communication/ Information & Communication National Network: Permission No. THB614/2020



4. Техничнева онцитей навидалі Харилцан Холболны Зохицуулан хорооноос олгогдоон учдонн суляка байгуулак бірлін архийнска далуу холбоскуулан технанійн навидней авшені МОС ХОК олгон Батенд технанийн навидалтуйтар колбооны бух терпейн уйликлазаний зариулалттайгаар кабагь татах болон цилтикуулон токногдолу уг барилга объектыг такинкейн болон улсын конассоор куленн авахгүй болны.

Таховажён учарсон неккиет

- XUI 4609-e syptomet S-D 09-1-1 Syyraac departs syptan 118 eeu-s Z segantañ syeer-sean setis da uaestop seits cyast-maner 1.0-1.2 eetpeñe tynt, tystentyttea.
- 6.2. Суватчлал кооронд худат сууринуулах ана хамжан 130 четракс хотрактуй байхава толцок ба эргэлт болон бархлын аролтонд зайлылүй стандартын худат суурилуулча.
- 8.3. XIII 4509-е 1-р зуутын 9-р араатыг одоо байтав тумагчлат болох цанхар хайсэн сумагчлатаар тагаж барьттад орууна телселийн техенфекенид холбоно.
- 5.4. Уу техникийн нежцигд хориулж гр 414-и 2,3,4-р хосыг эхний загионд никцин.
- 6.6. Харилицая Холбооны Захицуулах Хорооноос оптосон колбоены кабель кутамын уторалт кийи тусгай жециерраттай аж алуйн натизер тубцаттуулан шкеролагалай.

Зурыг төсөөт зайлалүй тусгах шаардлагэтэй технологийн сөөрчй нөндүүүд.

13

- 8.1. Шинопр экийндэх кабель, шүгэжэн угралтын ажлын зураг төсөнүг эсэнсэдээ Монгот улсын (гандарт MMS 5078.0003, MMS 5279.2000, MMS 5260.2003, MMS 5077.2003 тоот еренней цаардагагууд болон ДБХ-еён сөйдөн 1995 ены 127-р тушаалаар баттагдсэн экиерыг барингтин гүйцэтгэх.
- 6.2. Хэрэглэгчийн шугэмын утэралтын дихи барилтын дураг төсөөт байкгүй болон хийгдээгэй бол захиалыгчид нэдэгдэж төсөө хурагт өрүүлээ.
- 6.3. Кабенийн нуваерилэх хайрдагны байрлалыг хэрэглэгчийн шутавын нятралын цэтт болиг техник ашиллагтын шаардугага хангахуйд байдлаар сонгон нурмиуулахаар тахнологийн норм хэмжээг зааж оруутах.

7. Уусралтын ажлын унд таянгдах нөлшөл:

- 7.1. Угоралтын жилл эхлээээс өмнө зураг төсөө технинийн нөнцгийн дагуу зийсдсэн эсэнийг Мадзалап холбооны сүлжээ ТӨК нь УБ Хотын сүлжээний таарын Бурггал төлөөгөлтөйн таагаад (Учан 70112399) хөнуулан баталтааг ансан байх.
- 7.2. Газар актронны ажил түйцэттэндээ харьяалагдах түхийн төхгнөн актан актенар болок аккенерээр цалтуулан дагш өнгөн акт үйлцээ холон аках актин актенд хаятартах.
- 7.3. Кабель заугамын учэралт болон газар шорооны ажлыг эхлэхдээ 75 Хотын зулжээний газрын өрөнхэй анжанарээс албан боны эндэгдлийг авч тухайн харъмалагдах тасгийн

Kindergarten No.82. BZD, UB. Electricity supply/UB Electricity Distribution Network: Permission No. 15/05066/20

> БАТЛАВ ИЛАНБААТАР ЦАХИПТАНІ ТИТЗОХ СОДАТЬ ТОРИЙН ВИГНГ КУБЬДАЛ КОМПАНИИ ГУНЕВТКО ДАХИРГЬН УЧИТИИГ ТУР ОРЛОН ГУНЕВТСЯ У РЕДАЛАН

TEXHNOLINH HINKLINT

Array 15/05066 /20 .

And and 19 april 1 april

Yree-dairtep ktr

Hbr. 6	рекана мадзалат:		
1.1	Хусатныйн дугаар	20-99-001141	
12	Rapprospination stop, pervector	50/080P0/L Ш4 1/31/3P/03/7 3ea	нчжлэх эхллны ялл. /82-P wiki байууллага - РД: 9116821,
13	Харатлычнён боёрынл	Ynaavtoarop lier Eanvryte gyster	наура 16-р хороо, Илимебаатар аст.,
14	Ажал үйлчөлгэдний зорчулалт:	Цацарлаг	
15	Технирайн нагцал лигтээ ундэслэл	 Ганар золиция гарчиктах. Арлитиктур нь Аугінартей Даллт Зі Нийслалийг ер байгуулаго, көги тигеаллягия 4) Боловсролі ци Дугияртай илбан 	к ортанін 2004-07-02-ны 0043871 гост паваластивін 2019 сины МОКОО18/08-01 ввад, баттасдан асная хураг ранький архетиктор беговд ист генін газрын батапсан ереккөл натак указны Амены 2020 сины 2/300 бегов
1,6	Техноловін захуальни антигал	litikees xoottony	
1.7	Тооцоны бүрэн хадал:	130 xBA (hoorsiop)	/Hor agen (244/ (Virtep)
Xolip.	Колболтын цат:		
2.1	110/35/10 x8-sm 7yyr # XTT-289 #sg eptemoril de	ад стана, X5-16-га рилта балон буса	еіні 10 кВ зан 171-518 А. Б. фидерейн д бух тоноглопыг буулгаж, 2*800 кВ/

	Клитори дод времении одрани осной сулад бут почитили суучтак, 2 вое кон- чадиттей 2 траноформатортай, 2 сакцтай дад ергее болгон шиничения, одоо всегладуек байтая оруутта кабель аргандурыг тус дод ергеений 10 кВ талын.1 бе в секцинд колбон такаан.
2.7	Цацарлативні артаттальні: 110/25/10 x8-ын Туул дад станц, X8-16-н 10 x8-ын TII-518 А, X8-47-лиін 28-р автобава фидерахіс такавіддаг XTII-286 дад нетенний 0.4 к8 талья і ба і секцевс кабель шугам тотаж 2 тусдва секцтвії салган заятаги публицьких браня пров пурцин байрана 0.4 к9-ых цатайт такава

Гурая. Тоолуур, хэмжин карантан:

3.1	IDAE 001000689 0.4	e8 tarbai	eperoxii a	(CONTRACT)	UL DLMS	протоколыт,	gawagar 3
	фазын баталгаат	, 6yp=	979973204	roonyyp,	0485701	ид токирсон	njiktriniki
	траноферматерыг	typrisit xa	ybriau, cilà	brokhum.			

8.2 Цэцэрлэгийн 0.4 кВ-ын цитхий времый оруултуудад 0LMS протонолыг дэмждаг 3 фазык баталгаат, бурэн электрон тоолуур, акаалагц тохирсон дифференциял актомат, хамгаалан тастах технерэкок / УЗС/, очаалалд тохирсон гуйдлийн.

https://www.log.ren/16.admin/wguwat/20-49-001147

6 N 1 1

Heating supply /UB Heating Network: Permission No.402/2020

УБДС ТОНКнийн Тахнинийн нөхн, хожиссан 2020 оны 10-р охран 20-н цанжи турсан цайдаараар хашооорин	BATINAS YEAD TEMOURS	HTHELISTICSK SAXHPAN
TE	XHARARH HOXLOJI Ne 402/2020	
1. Хараглагчийн нэр:	Болоесроп, шенжлах ухааны кам // цацарлагийн ергөттөг/	ызд-еен» 62-р
2. Bapannun waturman	rfartifactor and conference	
3. Хэрэглэгчийн байршилт	Баянаурх дуураг, 16-р хороо, 53-р о	Эргуутыны зүүн талд
4. Дулавны хэрэглээ:	Heikt :	0.22 Exampler
	А.Халаалт Б.Харагцээний халуун ус В.Саликлуулга	0.11 Fearluar 0.11 Fearluar 0.00 Fearluar
5. Халболтын цэг:	12в магистраль, ОСНААУТазраас хүчин чадлыг тооцон 2-р хэлхээнээ Шугаанын даралт, төмпөрөтурын	. тодруулга авч, УДДТ- кс колбогдох к утга:
	А. Холболтын цаг дээр байх туралт Б. Шугамын статик даралт В. Буцах шугамын даралт Г. Гадна агаарын тооцоот темпера Д.Температурын график	т 8 м 30 м.у.б 3.1 ала лур
 Мердик харагжуулах хуу 6.1 Эрник куний тухий ху 	пь, дүрэм журам уль	

- 8.2. Застийн парын 2020 оны 3-р сарын 18-ны ядрийн 97 тост тогтоолоор батлагдсан "Дупааны эрчин лүч хэрэглэх дурэн"
- 6.3 Эрнин Хүний Зохицуулах Хоросны 2018 оны 10 дугаар сарын 11-ний едрийн 290 дугээр толтоолоор бөллөгдсан Дулаан дамжуулах, түтээх сулжээний "Холболтын журам"
- 6.4 Эрники хүчний тухай хуутайн 14-р зүйлийн 14.4-т заасны дагуу Эрник хүч дамжуулах шугам, дэд станц нь төрийн өмчлөгд байна.
- 6.5 "Эрчеми хүчөөй тухай хууль"-өйн 30 дугаар зүйлийн 30.1.10; 29 дүгээр зүйлөйн 29.1.9 дэх заалтыг мердеж өөрийн озэмшлийн шугам, тоног төхөөрөшөөөс бусад, хэрэглэгчөйг холбуулав.

7. Зураг төсөп, төсөв боловсруулахад тавигдах шаардлага :

7.1 Зураг төслийн үндсэн шаардлага

- 7.1.1 "Эрчим хүчөөй тухай хууль"-ийн 33 дугаар зүйл, "Эрчим хүчний шугам сүлжээг хамгаагах дурэн"-ийн 1.3 дахь захалтыг мөрдөх дулааны төв шугам, салаа болон салбар шугамаас хөвгаалагтын зурвасын зайг хэнтик берилтыг тегизетех. Шугамын хангаалагтын зурваст токижилт, зам төлбөй, зогооол, бусад байгууламж төлөвлөхгүй байх.
- 7.1.2 Шутамын трасс сонголт, холболтыг жийэдээ салаа шутам зээншигч, шугамын трасс дагуух газар ахмишигчтэй урьдчилан зөвшөөрөлцөх, бусдын азямцил газар шугамын трассыг сонголгуй байх.
- 7.1.3 Монгол унсын барилгын нэрм ба дурмийн /БНбД 41-02-05/ 10.7-д зааснаар Дулаан хангамжийн хаагттай системийн үед халуун үс ба халааттын хамгайн их рутааны анаалгын харьцаанаас хамвасуутан үс халаагнийн холбогтын схемийг оснгох.

Water supply/water supply and wastewater service (USUG), Wastewater collection/ (USUG): Permission No. 859/20

		DAPTA JUTEPXYY
		(And a state of the state of th
		PC9T- and TextBooth Interpret overal toppediant 2020 peak 10- p textual 25-au expendit supman
		858 теот протоналыг ундостан завшанерин.
	TEXH	VRONVER HERRELERIT No 859 1 20
1	Бариалта байгууламжийн жар, зорнулалт, байранл	БШУЯвы, 82-р цэцэрлэг, 150 хүрэдийн цэцэрлэгийн 2 давхар барилта, БЭД 16-р хороо, одоо байтаа 62-р
2	Нийт усны хараглаа:	Цакар усны – 15,75 м'юсн Галык усны – 2,5 м/с Бохий усны – 18,78 м2ски
8	Цэвэр усны холболт зийх цэгийн байршин, шутамын диаметр	ОСНИИИ чет 720020 тоот техникийн тодруултын дагуу Зеун түтээх төвийн харгына УДДТ-өвс ДХ-1 нэртээх хүйтэх улны Ф125 минийн харганыг өртөгчөн, санаа ырган татан холбох, төгэээ сулгайн ан төвөөн ан
•	боскр усны конболг жейк цэгийн байржил, кутамын дааметр	ОСНИАЛ/Г-шет 72/2020 торт: понимини тадруултын дагуу Эллт тускак төв, ХҮТ-1-ийн харыла 82-р цадарлатийн бохир усны Ф150 именийн шугамын тудагт холбох, аялын кургийн өнцөд
		Бусад жаардлага:
5	Нанситт инклани	 Ус хангами, архустая тапууртых системнён угавття, цахалт, турциетт технруултых системнён мардлыг аухаг технат турстая. Баралтын гадна цэвар, бохор усны шутён суликтенні колбох цалийг мерчики тохнолдогд хусятт тавых кенуулан, хангатч байтуулгатын зевцевутер гуйцяттена. Халбосурох Хууль, Бибід, кхендартыт нердакх Галара цалійных валісных заралайт ХБОС-тай заведонгалах.
		 Спандартын дагуу тос барагч суурнлуулаа
		 Боржитыг "Хот суурены ус кантааж, арауттаа татуургын ациглааттын тухай" хуулийн дагуу дэвэр усны аунажыл етэнхлэээс 8 мееда, болодо усны хууламыл етэнхлэээс 6 мееда зайд бария Хат, суррены ус англаас, араутта татуургын ациглааттын тухай" хуулийн 15.1.53 нан дагуу захийг нь паритлатын цугаангаас дажнууган ангсар хуратгаг нь паритлатын нахара соттохов тожнологор хуратгаг нь таритлатын тахара соттохов тожнологор батгагусан актын хурас, таслийн дагуу дараатыны характагчийг хотбуулав.
8	Такигдах шаордлага	борооны усы бохур усы кутанан нейгүүтакүй байх. 4.Цавор, бохор усы кутанан итрант какилт туркиет.
		хоналтын ажлын нөгдөд жынтиктын байнуулганын хоналтын жаканарийт байлдуули нэ, дагд актын ант хаталты
		5. Тевнейн Болон хэрэгтэгчийн цэвэр, бозир услы хүцэг, заутам сүлжиээ дээр болсон хажгаагаагаагаан бусад зам үштбэй, авто алгсахол, баралгын довжсо, хуусдийн талсахар үйнүүлтээ ээйх болсожил бурдуулах, засаарын дарааль, нэхээ хэйх болсожил бурдуулах, засаарын дарааль, нэхээ саргээлтийн ахиыг өөрсдөө хариуудан 8. Технинийн гэрэлтийн гуусантай газар 2007.
*	Объект барнх дазд	 Газар захмынх архийн 500012839 дугаартай гэрчилгээ.
-	газрыя шайдазр;	 M33CD1W06-01 1001 appartectyp terms-twiki gastrassp DUVDay, Virge 90161846, 00101846, 302127
	wahren an and a she have	BARA FRAME, FIGH, WHITE SPAN, WHITE SPAN, EVELALI

YC CTR

AK CADPLER

254

Kindergarten No.88. BGD, UB.

Communication/Information & Communication National Network: Permission No. THB613/2020



3. Ханбооны карананы /урызнатан токцовтоор/

4. Такжениевая онартов находится Характудая Холбостна Занакурутая породновое отготорозе учарсяе, сустакая байтуутах буран эранійнага датуу халбоснауутая такженікі некурнік зеячно МЗСГ ХХК актов баленд технововіч находитуйтар халбосны бух тарлайн убликитальной хорнуталитайтаяр заболь, такжа болого цинтінорліке поницургур уг баракта общахтых таконовів балон рібант канексора пулька важнуй болно.

10.00

8. Taxoniality yaggins semiger

- КД 610-и хурожний 5-0 10-1 куштай; баритта хуртал 116 мини 2 индектей кунатчики ний ба цаноор жийх сукатчлагыг 1,5-1,2 кетрийн гүнд хууритуулча.
- 8.2. Cyser-men ecoperag sygar ryppenyster self-selector 120 werpain serplectyli fastatap todate Se aprant Sonov Septemie obstroved self-serve traveaterium syster systemysterie.
- 8.3. 201 610-и 0-р зуутын то-р архатыт адао байтаа суванчлал болон шенжар кийсэн. хураагчлагаар татан Барихгад оруулж тептетикин технореанинд колбоно.
- 5.4. If texessable sexulary applyine to 1/8-и 6.7.8-р косыг этолё зателець неециев.

24

Тилефон тос (циркогжо)

5.5. Харияцая Холбонна Зояндугах Харооноос опгосон котболы кабель шутакын утрат знак тусгай авшиндектий ан акріні коткор гріцатуулак шандагалагай.

Зураг төсөөт зайлыгүй тустак шаздарга/атай такнологийн оныртй накырууд:

- Шансоор инйгдэх хабиль, шутанын угорштын долын эррэг тэсэний тохисцос Монгог ултан этэниарт Миб холезоос, МАК БЭТБ-2003, МНВ 5080-2003, МНБ 5277-2003 тохг эренхий шандрагарууд болон 2027-ийн хайдант 1955 оны 127-о тухиалгаар балгагдаан экандаг баринггаан ундагтан.
- 8.2. Хараталчийн шүгэжнэг үхэрэгтээн анил барилтын хураг төсөөт байхгүй болон инйгдээгүй бол хамалагчид эндэгдээс төсөв хүрөгт оруулав.
- 8.3. Кабазнайн кумааралах хайрдагны байрлагыг хороглагнийн цугажын нөгтралын дэт болон төмнөн анануналтын цаардагага хантакуйц байдлаар сонтон суурилуулахаар төөнслогийн норы хамжог заёх проулал.

7. Угоралтын ангын унд тавасдан нөндөгс

- 7.1. Угералтын анып экспектес өкөнө зураг төсөө төзнөнийн некцинийн дагуу хийгдлан эсэнийг Мадаагон холбооны сүлжээ Тёйнны Үй Хотын сулжээний газран Буртгэл талавлалтийн төзгөэр (Утес: 70112200) хөнүүлөн багангааг ансан байх.
- 7.1. Газар шорооны акки куйцэттэндээ наръжилагдээ, тухайн тактийн актаа анхавтер болоо нонинерозр шахтуулан дала, аксым акт үйлдээ колзан акох аксын актанд хаксарган.
- 1.5. Кабель органных украит болон незар шоровны авсных эконодах УБ Хотын органдаем тарын арановій незанаров: албан йоны надидуній авч тухайн зарчивнікация таклиби

Kindergarten No.88. BGD, UB. Electricity supply/UB Electricity Distribution Network: Permission No. 15/04331/20

		TABLEATAR I	GATRUS
	6	MANUT XYOSLUA MANUT XYOSLUA	ат компание туяцяю эк
		техникалін не	INCLUSION
-	1922 - OST	Дугаар	5/0+131/20
4242	14 Deepen Lagar		Учны-баатар н
Hor. E	ренный мадаолал:		
1.3	Хусалтыйн дугаар:	25-99-001140	
1.2	Xaparvarvailai nap, periotra:	EGROBOPOR & ACCESS TO AN ECONOMIC DIF - PG 9116621	BROKATOR FIXAAHIG RAM / SUSTAINING R GUMLITY OF EDUCATION DURING RICULTIES PROJECT/ Tepselv Gaileyyntwra
1.3	Хараглагчийн байраант:	Улан-беатар Б Бакнгол дүүрж	аянисыя 18-р хорох, Клаанбаятар ког, ; 18-р хоросі
1,4	Ажил үйлчилгээний эориулилт:	Unplaner.	
1.5	Техникайн өкхэрэл олгох үндэслэл:	 Палар зазница гарчаства. Аркинтектур т дуговртвій дават 	на архийн 2005-05-24-ны 052270 гоот живьльчтийн МОК 2017/07-27 гавар, баттасдсан эсниз эрзэг
1.6	Техникайн жихцолойн ангниаг:	Allowed actedition?	
1,7	Таваровно буран чадалт	773 x84 (1001000)	./Ног зуун араан гураа/ (устээр)
XNO.	Konformer upr	-	
2.1	110/10/6 кВ-ын Умарда ХТП-592 дэд өргөөний халболтоор	ng craws, X5-13 0.4 eB rang	-с 10 кВ-ын 4 кор 111-8 А фидерний 86-р цэцэрлжгийн одоо колбогдоон
Cyclem.	Тоолуур, комяно корогсал:		
2.1	берийн байрны 0.4 кВ-ы хамгаалан таслах төнө багалгааг, буран алектро	н цитэнд энээг арвиж, / э'30/, 1 н 5 А тоолуур, гү	алд тохироон дифференциал автомат 2LMS протоколыг данждог 3 фазыя Адлийн трансформотор суурнгуулах.
3.2	Дад өртөөний 0.4 хВ тал факин баталтаат, буро трансформаторыг тусгай	ын ерөнхий ору н электрон то хайрцегт суурм	итуудад 05.М5 протоколыг дэнждэг 3 опуур, ачаалалд тохерсон гуйдлээ уулах
	CONTRACTOR AND A DESCRIPTION OF A DESCRI		
(Jepes	Тустай завлтууд;		
Дерея 4.1	. Тустай завяттууд; Шатний газаддуулга бо дурмайн дагуу хийлгэн хо	иоры цауятані тон онбогдуся геареля	юплолын канжилт, туршекттыг нарм) шалгуулж протокол анхан байк.
Дерея 4.1 4.2	. Тустай заалтууд; Шэтний газардуулта бо дурмийн дагуу хийлтэн ж ХТП-592-н 0,4 яй тагд о болон кабиль шугамыг ан	лон цууган тон онбогдох ганаан доо колбогдоон аалылд тохирууг	юглогын хэмжилт, туршилтыг норм э малгуулж протокол анхан байх. • байгаа 88-р цэцэрлэгийн рубильниг хан цанхэчтэн солжх

٩.

Kindergarten No.88. BGD, UB. Heating supply /UB Heating Network: Permission No.003/2021

	A COMPANY OF A DESCRIPTION OF A DESCRIPT
	БАТЛАВ УБДС ТНОК ИРН ТУЛЦЭТТ ВХ ЗАХИРАЛ
ктанеские 2021 они 3-р сарин 9-е цение хурлын шейдеороор зевшеере	all agouite
TE	ХНИКИЙН НӨХЦӨЛ № 003/2021
1. Хэрэглэгчийн нэр:	МУ-ын БШУЯам /68-р цэцэртэг/
2. Бариллык мадзолал:	цацарлатийн өргөттөлийн барилта
3. Хэрэтэгчийн байршил:	Баянгол дуурог, 18-р хороо, 96 дулаар суртуулийн хойно
4. Дупавны хэрэглээ:	Heitr: 0.20 Examinar
	A.Xanaant 0.07 Fisanlijar 5.Xaparupawwiii xanyyw yo 0.13 Fisanlijar B.Cantxenyymra 0.00 Fisanlijar
5. Холболтын цэг:	7д магистраль, ОСНААУГ-ыя тодруулсыя дагу УДДТ-102-ын салаа шутам ба кучик чадлыг тооцон. дугаар халхээнд холбох Шугамын даралт, төмпөратурын утга:
	А. Холболтын цэг дээр байх түрэлтг 8 м Б. Шуламын стятих даралт 42 м.у.б В. Буцах шугамын даралт 5.0 ага Г. Гадна агаарын тооцоот температур -39 ° С Д.Температурын график 95/65 ° С
6. Мердеж хэрэгжүүлэх хуул	ть, дурзы журам
6.1 Эрчим хүчний тухай ху	yrm.
6.2 Застийн газрын 2020 бөлтөгдсөн "Шилөөн	гоны 3-р сарын 18-ны ядрийн 97 тоот топоолоор арчим хүч хэрэглэх дүрэм"
6.3 Эрчим Хучкий Зохицуу 290 дугаар топоог	тах Хорооны 2018 оны 10 дулаар сарын 11-ний өдрийн юор батлагдсан Дулаан дамжуулах, түгээх сутоконий

- "Холболтын журам" 8.4. Эрчим хүчний тухай хуутийн 14-р зүйгийн 14.4-т заасны дагуу Эрчим хүч
- донжуулах шугам, дад станц нь терийн өмчлөгд байна. 6.5 "Эрчин хүчний тухай хууль"-ийн 30 дугаар зүйлийн 30.1.10, 29 дугээр зүйлийн 29.1.9 дэх завглъг нөрдөж өөрийн зэзишлийн шугам, тоног төхөөрөмжөөс бусад
- 7. Зураг төсөл, төсөв боловоруулахад талигдах шаардтага :

7.1 Зураг төслийн үндсэн шаардлага

характогчийт холбуулах.

7.1.1 "Эрчем хүчний тухай хуугы"-ийн 33 дугаар зүйл, "Эрчим хүчний шугам сулжээг хамгаалах дурэм"-ийн 1.3 дах заалтыг мөрдөж дугааны төв шутам, салаа богон салбар шугамаас хамгаалалтын зурвасын зайг хангаж барилтыг төлөвгөх. Шугамын хамгаалалтын зурваст тохижилт, зам талбай, зогооол, бусад байгуулажж талеалахгүй байх. Kindergarten No.88. BGD, UB. Water supply/water supply and wastewater service (USUG), Wastewater collection/ (USUG): Permission No. 842/20

		VC CYDTWERTY PROAX FASPLAN DAPTA PPOLAX FASPLAN LLTOPXTY VC/F- we Television Process Assessment 2020 own 11-p capier Stress Assessment RC hair recruiter yngelerin asgerin agerin
	TEXH	MR367H HIBROLDERT THE 842 1 20
ŧ	Барклга байгуулакжийн хэр, зореулалт, байршил	Бідлу Яам, 88-р цэцэрлэг, 150 кууцойн цэцэрлэгийн 2 дэвхэр барилга, 6/Д 18-р хорох, одоо байгаа цэцэрлэгийн зүүн талд
ż	Найт услы харантаа:	Liseop yonu – 15,7 w ³ /son Fahan yonu – 2,5 Ale Fahan yonu – 15,7 w ³ /son
9	Цзеар услы холболт хийх цэтийн байршил, шугамын дихилтр	ОСНАЛОТ ная 342000 чися техникийе тадрустья детур Баруун туток тей, XYT-12-ная харьна дутажнаяс колбонттой ФС-р цацарлахийе цёвор улон цутами акке цилакуулан, уг цутажная холбок, аккан з слийн якцар закцага их
4	Бохир усны холболт зайк цагийн байрвэн, хулжмын даймтр	ОСНАКИТ-как 34/2020 тост техникийн тедруултын дагуу Бируун тугаан туж, ХУТ-12-кин хархиж 85-р цакраланын бозир усны Ф150 жылийн хүтэмжин худагт холбох, ажгыж хуртийн теадар
5	Намалт незцел	 Бусад виводлята: Ус зантани, приутах татуургын систимийн утвалта, закаалт, туршинт тохоруутын аялын авдлыг сурвг тосовет тусгах. Барнтын гарна цевэр, бонр усык аутах сулвооний колбол цатийг өөрнгөэ токостдогд зусыгт тавые кенурлан, зантагч байтурлгөнж закаертеер туйцеттан. Холбосдох Хуунь, БНБД, стандартыг мердев У Гадая слугаянын аялын туртийг ХБАГ-кай зекшаяльра. Стандартын дагуу тос барнгч суурвлуутах.
0	Төзнтадах шөөдарлага	 Беректыт "Кот суурены ус жантавак, вреутах татуургын выянтактык тукай" куулейн датуу кон ар утак куулаакын такжазаказас 8 метер зайд барка. Хот, туурены ус нантарк, оркутах татуургын выяттактын тухай" хуулайн 15.1.10 нын датуу жангат нь караттатчын тухай" хуулайн хуулаг артуу жангат нь караттатчын өкцөр сатурсон токислурга баттагдсан актын хураг; технийн датуу дараанийн хартагарчайн хотбортав. Борооны ус мантуулан заулан элтаког тухаа нь токислуй байх. Борооны усыг бооор усны шутананд нийгнустахнуй байх. Давар, бохор роны шутананд нийглэгтэн байлдуула нат элтаболгын автын өшдөд выясталтын байлуустагын жиллэгий. Төвийн боосон хоролтагчийн цавар, бохор усны нудаг, аутам сортосон хоролтагчийн цавар, бохор усны нудаг, аутам сортосон доор болон каналалтын бүсэд заан талбай, аято хотосог, барнулыг такавское тухаа, акаларын дараар үйгчөлтээ хийг болонын такавстак, борону такаларын дараар үйгчөлтээ хэлж болонына буруулах, карларын дараар нөхөн сортостийн ажлаг буруулах, карларын дараар нөхөн сортостийн ажлаг бороуунах, карларын дараалы нөхөн сортостийн ажлаг бороуунах, карларын
,	Объект барах дээд	 Похоловити непідники куниктрії кутоцих 2 конт. Гахор зознаших кримін 00001/2607 дугартий пернилітих.
	газрыя шяйдаэр: Хэрэгтогчийн нэр, утас:	> FEM3X2020/26-013 toot apparentyp ten twie generating EUV/Res. Ytsc: 90101848, 00101848, 382227

258

Communication/ Information & Communication National Network: Permission No. THB502/2020

NETCO	IVP	алтав маррыяр конорны ритизо конорнатрацитсях захония
and an and an an an an	- cao	The Man and All
	TEXHIBIDARH HEX	000
Aprese Tri-Brindraman		202400712
Scenerary tisiryyrears	MOHITOR VICUH SOROBORO RAM	л. совл. шинжлах узлан, спорты
Representation app:	14.0HOK-AMPADAH	
Харнгцах утас:	262227	
1. Enépanet	C3(2)-s 12-p зорооны vp1a/ дзя	orage.
I. Jupeynami	104.p couprisonile opromisionil	+ Oxpenta
3. Колбонны карупция	Гурьдчяловн тахиралоодг Телефен тох (ширкагазе)	1-
 Terrementative yreggi per set bywar-what setter bywar-what setter 8.2. Costernwark setter 58.3. Xial 587377 Sonool 6 8.3. Xial 587377 Sonool 6 8.4. 21 Teconolidi retur 18.4. 21 Teconolidi retur 6.5. Xegurengez Xondoo setter rychal setur. 	каже ний тус царарточин консотоо а алектар ник суматералы 1.5 а коло суректуска зайталуй слу- арактык арактон 1.2.3 с арактыг консоналаар татан баристар ору алд хорирок р 64к+3,4.3 с но нь 36хидуунах Хорооносс от марагтой ак акуйн ногосоо оты	с барылта хартал 118 мм и 2 виданта 1.2 метрийн түнд сурритуулча, и 139 метриок хатронгуй баймаар тохар годартин хүдэг бүүрөнүүнө алмантан сүдэг баймаг суванчлал боло улж тагцэлсэйн төхөөрөнхөөд колбоно гүх тагцэлсэйн төхөөрөнхөөд колбоно гүх тагцэлсэйн төхөөрөнхөөд колбоно гүх тагцэлсэйн хөлөөрөнхөөд колбоно гүх тагцэлсэйн хөбөлс аутавын улсаал Игуулта аавадулагтай.
6. Syper recent selfuery	й тустах шавдаличтай такжи	COMIN COLUMN RECOVER
 E. Eleverop relitigation crangager Minib k2 investigeren ryikger Bopierrense ryikger Bopierrense ryikger Bobierrense ryikger Bobierre	ебель, шуганын родалтын дель 76.2003, лиха холо эрох, ынэл он 355X-ини сайдын 1985 оны так жилт утралтын жилт барултык гадагдан төсөв хулат оруунах, гаа кайрыртын байргалыг хэрт и цавролтык жилтахуйц байдл и оруулах.	и здал тесянік знакодов Монтон дляж 1080-2003. МРК 5277-2003 полт ерений • 127-р туклактикр беттагдове захери • зурат тесянт байктуй болон зайгдзогу поточік дутаные натратых дат боло вер сонтон сууралуутакар технологий
7. Yreparran anna is we	TRANSPORT INSTRUME	
7.1. Эторалтын ажил т Мадеелен колбоо	паталоко ванне ворат также техн на сулякая 785-на 36 Хотан-з	молін накциніх датур мітарах зозній утоконні газрык Бургал телеклагний

- тактаяр (Утак: 70112299); элчууган батактааг ансан байн. 7.2. Генак энфоктик аният туйцэттэрдээ эарьнасандах тухайн тактийн актак өнжөнөр Болон эннэнчөрээр шалтуутан далд ангын агт рёгдэн хүсхэн авах актын актан, нэлээрээ. 7.3. Кабигь шутанан угорагт болыг танар элрооны актыг эштэхдээ УБ Актын сулжээний талдын өрөнхий новредоос албан ёсны асдогдлойг ажн тухайн зарьнагасуун тактын

÷

Electricity supply/UB Electricity Distribution Network: Permission No. 15/04462/20

			8.4773.8R	
		VIAAHBAATAP LIA	SHUTZAH THATTHE	K CYLINGO TO
	0	INTERIOR THPMS	KOBATIAN BANK	маташак
	1	MASKPA.6	10	ДБАНРСИ
			10	
		TEXHARMAN HOX	40/1	
		1	1	
Al.		Ayreep (1/272	19/2 e	
jilde o	ni tircepin di neng	10		Thindaan
Har. D	ранный мадлалал:			
1.1	Хусолтнін дугалу:	39-99-001248		
1.2	Харэглэгчийн нэр, рөгнстр:	BOROBCPOT UN Sielkyponera - P/1	RIGTER PERMIT	GAM Tepesky
1.3	Харагтагчийн байршил:	Клавнбаттар Сок Сонтинскайраан дугіле цэцарлан	гичелафскан 12-р дүүргийн 12-дугаа ийн өргөгсөл	каро́ц р.хадооны 104
1.4	Ажил үйл-налгизней аорнулагт	ilauapoor-		
1.8	Texasonia waxaan orego	т) Лазар-зазменно	openity 2020-09-0	B visi 0066202 H
	AvtTackou	22 Aparietes typ Har	авлатийн 2020 г	war (6 cepsiv 16
		FEM/SK2929/27-0	26 дугжартай даал	ганар, батлагдо
1.6	Teoreszeke resspanseles	Шана колботт		
	BRADAT			
1.2	JOOPDONEY GADON - ATTEN:	(resireal)	(yorkig)	er tobeel.
Kolip.	Rondovmuse upr:			
2.1	110/10 кВ-ын Баруун дар ертеннөй 0.4 еВ талын 1 набель шуган татаж тан	а станцаас 10 к0-ы ба 5 секцянд шинт ни.	н: 1х717-1 А.Б.Фи гар рубильник бу	адынін XIII-666 мні групп тоног
	Такалууд, каманна карагсан:			
lypes.	the second se	the second s	and the second se	and the second s
lypian. 2.1	Owperity Colleges 2.4 eB-to	H LAPTONS PREATON	и тохносон дифо	иринанал авто
lypian. 3.1	берейн байрны 2.4 аВ-ы хемгаалын таслая такаа багылтаат, бурон хоектро	н цатэнд анаалаг режж, / УЗО/, . DL н.S.A.тоолуур, гүйд	и такирсан дифі Ибі протрясичыг Лийн трансформі	арныций авто Камждаг 3 фа
Гуріан. 3.1 Дерев	берийн байрнаг 3.4 иВ-ы хемтаалан таслаг төхөө багштэаг, бүрэн электро Тусгай заалтууд;	н цитэнд инаалы ревяк, / УЗО/, . DL н 5 А торлуур, гүйд	и такирсан дифо Иб. протряслыг лийн трансформо	эрэнций авто дамждэг 3 фа пор суурилуула
Гурал 2.1 Дарав 4.1	Ферийн байрнаг О.4 иВ-ы хомгаалан таслах төхөө багштэаг, бүрэн электро Тургай заалтууд; Цэлтэйг гозардууги'л бо дурлайн дагуу хөйлгэн хо	н цатанд анавлаг режек, / УЗО/, DL « 5-А тоолуур, гүйр тон цаугам тоног ибогдон гахраар о	а тахирсан дифо ИS протоколыг лийн траноформо логын хремент, автуулы протоко	аренцийл хөто дэмждэг 3 фа пар суурнлуута туражитыг н л авсан байх.
Гуріан. 2.1 Дарын 4.1	Ферийн байрнаг О.4 иВ-ы хомпантант таслах төхөө багшттөаг, бүрэн электро Тусгай заалтгууд; Црлтний газардуулга бо дуржийн дагуу хөйлгэн хо ХТГ-656 оло элтгээээ О.	н цатона аналла режек, / УЗО/, DL « 5 А тоолуур, гуйр тон цаутам тоног итбегдон такраар о 4 иФ такаче тоног	а тахнроон дифо ИS протоко/кыг лийн траноформа голын хожжилт, актуулж протоко	аранциол хато доходог 3 фа тор сурентула турожитыг н п авсан байх.
2.1 2.1 4.1 4.2	очрийн байрнаг 2.4 нВ-ы хомгаалан таслах төхөө багалтааг, буран хонстро Тусгай хааттууд; Цантин тохардуугча бо дүрэнийн дагуу нийлгэн хо ХТГТ-656 дад яртөөний 0. тоноглопуудаар цанони ханонлогт хийж байгаат баттагдсан зурхнён дагуу	н цаточа, ичантач режек, / УЗО/, DL «5.А токлуур, гуйр тон цауган тоног ибегдон газраар и 4 кВ тальн тоног нь солик, Хаал ай холбогдрупан 0, зайх,	а тахнроон дифо ИS протонолыг лийн траноформа полын хаважилт, актуулы протоко олуудыг сүүльйн тай дад өргөн 4 ий галуудар хо	аранций аято доходог 3 фа тор сурноула турвилтыг на павсан байх. улийн сөср ба кай 6.4 к8 та как өөрчлөлтүүр
7)gjan 3,1 4,2 4,2 4,3	ферийн байрнаг О.4 иВ-ы хомтаалан таслах төхөө багалтааг, бүрэн электро Тусгай заалтууд; Цртний тохардуулга бо дүрэлийн дагуу нейлгэн хо ХТГЭ-656 дад яртөөнөй О. тоноглогуудар анжина цананалт хийж байгаагт батгагдсан зургыйн дагуу Хаалттай дад өртөөг арги хуулаа тоног тахаөрөмө	H Lightong invantor peaks, / V307, DL e.S.A toongyp, rykg rose Lighton toeor reforquor telepato 4 kB tatwer toeor refor coreek, Xaam ek konforquynee 0, welk, milek Gelinaateil so silr Mowton yroe	д тахнросн дифо ИS протоколыг лийн траноформа голын хомжилт, алтуулж протоко олуудыг сүүлийн тай дад өргөн 4 ий талуудад но илбогдуулан өргө н засгийн газрь	аранций авто доходог 3 фа тор сурнитута турожетии н павсан байх. урийн сеор ба кай 0.4 кВ та как өөрчлөлтүүр ттеп кийсан, буу ж 2020 оны 9

Heating supply /UB Heating Network: Permission No.356/2020

V632C 1900Calle Texanilis read entercore 2020 onu 10-p capes 1-e	EATRAB VEGC TOOLS	изн гүмцэтгэх захирал
TE	хникийн нөхцөл ме ээсэээ	Access of the second se
1. Хараглагчийн нэрс	Боловорол шенжлах ухавны на	м КСХД-ийн 104-р цацарлагг
2. Барилпын мадахлал:	Цацарлагийн өргөттөл	
3. Хэрэглэгчийн байршил:	Сонгинокайркан дүүрэг, 12-р хо	роо, 1-р байрны урд
4. Дупааны хэрэглээ:	Havir :	0.19 Examinar
	А.Халаалт Б.Харагцаяний халуун ус В.Салонлуулга	0.11 Fearluar 0.08 Fearluar 0.00 Fearluar
5. Холболтын цэг:	65 магистраль, ДХ-824 дута ДДТ-119-міе 2-р хоткосні екри хотбогрох. Шугамын даралт, температур	артай худлаас холболттой йн салаа шутанын өргөттөж жин утга:
	А. Хонболтын цаг дээр байх түр Б. Шутамын статих даралт В. Буцах цутамын даралт Г. Гадна агаарын тооцоот теант Д.Теангературын графия	ант 6 м 35 мул 3.5 ане саятур -30 ° С 05/65 ° С
6. Меддеж хэрэгжуулах хуул	пь, дуром журам	

- Эрчени пучний тухай кууть.
- 6.2. Заслийн газрын 2020 оны 3-р сарын 18-ны өдрийн 97 тоот тогтоолоор батлагдсан "Дулааны эрним хүч хэрэглэх дурэм"
- 6.3 Эрним Хүний Зохицуулах Хорооны 2018 оны 10 дутаар сарын 11-ний адреён 290 дүтээр тогтоолоор батлагдоан Дулаан дамжуулах, тугээх сүлжээний "Холболтын журам"
- 6.4 Эрним хүний тухай хуугийн 14-р зуйгийн 14.4-т заасны дагуу Эрним хүн дамжуулах шугам, дэд станц нь төрийн өнчлөлд байна.
- 6.5 "Эрчим хүчий түхий хууль" ийн 30 дугаар зүйгийн 30.1.10.29 дугаар зүйгийн 29.1.9 дах заалтыг мердаж өөрийн эхэмшгийн шугам, таног төхөөрөмжөөс бусад хэрэгтэгчийг холбуулаг.
- 7. Зураг төсөп, төсөв боловсруулахад такиндах шаардлага :

7.1 Зураг теслийн үндсэн амардлага

7.1.1 "Эрчим хүчэнй тухай хууль" ийн 33 дугаар зүйл, "Эрчим хүчний шугам сүлжээг хомгаалах дурэм"-ийн 1.3 дах заалтыг мөрдөх дулааны төв шугам, салаа болон салбар шугамвас хамгаалалтын зурвасын зайг хэнгэж барилтыг төлөөлөх. Шугамын хамгаалалтын зурваст тохимилт, зам талбай, зогсоол, бусад байгуулаан төлөвлөхгүй байх.

Water supply/water supply and wastewater service (USUG), Wastewater collection/ (USUG): Permission No. 605/20

		УС СУНЕМИН У ДУРДАХ ГАЗРЫН ЕРЕНХИЙ ИНЖЕНСР БОСОВОД ДАРТЫН ҮҮРҮЛИЙГ ХАВСРАН ГУНЦЭТГЭГЧ Мага салассарт. ук Дагдасүрэн 1007-ын Техненийн нөхцөг согох конессан 2020 оны 07-р сарын 17-ны адайн хэрлын 855 ног протисти ундогис аныландан.
1	Baparre Bainyynameder	БШУЯви, 104-р царроля, 150 хүүцийн цэцэрхэлийн Нароллилт 2 давхар берилга, СКД 12-р хороо, 1-р
2	нийт усны хэрэгтээ:	хорослох, одоо байная цацартолейн зүүн тала Цавор усни — 5,1 м ³ /вон Галын усны — 2,5 м/с Бохор усны — 5,5 м2/вон
3	Цэнэр усны холбогт нийн шэгэдэг бабраал, хууганын дэлмэгр	ОСНАКИТ ная 2020-08-25-ны вдровён 42/2020 тоот техничийн тооруултын дагуу Баруун тугала тав, XYT-15-ны УДДГ-118-ийн дарааны, одоо байтаа цэхдругтийн шутаннаат дулаанын
4	Боховр усны холбогт вийх цэтийн байршинт, шугланын диаматр	ОСНИАЯТ на 42/2020 гост техники подруктых датур Барун- туток тек, XVT-15-ни хасник бокер усны Ф150 жинийн цутанын нудэг нолбох десних эрргийн ньдаг авьлитург
ð.	Mawaer weather	 Бусад амардлага: Ус кандана, арартак татуургын окстанейн ртакло, илжалт, уршинт тонеруулын аксын зардлыг зуриг төөөн түйгөэ. Баратын гарна цалр, боонр усны арган сулжээний конбох цэлийг өөрчхэх тохоогдолд хусалт тавын лекурлан, хангол байгуулгагын акциярлөөр гүйдэгтэнэ. Колбохрах Хуунь, БНСД, стандаргыг нөрдөв. Гарна ауунанын актын зургийг ХЕХГ-тай заявлятаан Сгараадагын актин зургийг хардгага заявлятаан с Гарна ауунанын актин зургийг харстаа заявлятаан Сларта арунан актин зургийг хангаарагаа.
	Тавенудах ыкаардукага	 Баректыл "Хот суураемы ут дэнтама, аренттах татуургын нажитиетиетие тухай" хуупение датуу алкалу ртны аренталы изэкспадаас 8 экенер, болар усны заубаемые полесоваласт в екеер зайд берек. Хот. Суурены ус доотаках, аренттак татуургын выялалатык тухай" куупейн 15.1.10 -еен датуу заяватач нь харастатчийн артанчалаг давжуунан алкабар арратити колбох токичнийн нендагі потосон токичарда беттагдов экспертогизми тухай" артур дарамения адагетатар артуртать выялан зараг. Тастан датуу дарамения адагетатар да такан зараг. Тастан дарамения нарабалана колбох токичнийн нендагі потосон токичарда беттагдов экспертогизми. Засарона ус зайклуунан цартак рукакана нейхуулогор байх. Дарар бонар усная цартакана дарактатын байгаруулагын засталын. Такачін араратична карастактын байгаруулагын засталы. Такачін болар усна цартакана захобууластан такталы. Такачін болар усна цартакана дарактальна байгуулаганы засталы. Такачін болар усная артантаран байгаруулагын засталы. Такачін болар харастактын байгаруулагын тактай аррентын акарартакандарарын арушанан дарактальна тарбай, аррента такананананаларын даракан такталаран байгар унгантар аррентан араратан дараканан арушанан байгаруулаганы тактай аррентан акаратан дараканан арушанан арранан тактай аррентан акаратан аррентан даракан нахон сарталаганды. Такачын бараруулаган даракан нахон сарталагандын аррентан акаратан аррентан даракан нахон сарталаганды аррентан тактай аруунан тактай аулараны заракан сарталагандын аррентан акаратан аррентан аррентан арранан акаратанан байгар аррентан акаратан аррентан аррентан арранан арранан нахон сарталаган андар аррентан акаратан аррентан аррентан акаратан акаратан аракан акаратан акаратан аррентан акаратан акаратан акаратан акаратан аррентан акаратан акаратан акаратанан аррентан акаратан акаратан
7.	Объект барек дозд георын шийдеор: Хараллагчейн нэр, утес:	 Fissep tooseuser aposile 0088202 gytteaprail rap-existen FEMIIK202007-006 room spaaneryp mm-malle geannaesp ELIV/Res. rine: 262227, 99655896

Communication/ Information & Communication National Network: Permission No. THB508/2020

NETCO	NP	BATTAN BATTAN LEHOCERCH THETRECECOM THETRECECOM CONTRACT
water stratest million	et únslanten	and on these
	техникийн нохцал	Y
Jaraan 19-8888/2029		2020/07/21
Saxwanary Baleyyonana	MONTON WICH HOTOROPOST, C	оёл, даннялох яхлан, опортын
Rapportorvalie wag	N-SHX-AMPA/IAH	
Xaparagan year:	362227	
1. Earparer	СБД++3-р хоросны нутаг дакотарт	
2. 2opepnanti	160-p usus notative appartentiates Six	givon a
1. Хонбооны хэрэгцээ:	Чанднилан тооцооловр' Телефентто (ширкигар)	1
4. Tempentès cenyos ve	many Asperuas Kerfloom Term	WITHE EDGOROGY SETURATION WARDEN

6. Текливалата оквуски чижарски харотция Хотболны Технолутиях портокосо соглодски очастия суписах байтурлая будие архиенная далу калболенувая техниции некономом МВС XXX илизя белева, техничение неконолугителя толости бух тергиен источной зорадиалттайсаар кабите татах балон институрская тохистарски рг. Барието объетые техничене болон утели конессор путоки анактуй балие.

6. Textometer pepcan resume

- N.3. 3220-я курскией тро цацарсколейн хонтилоос барилла хортал 110 ижин 2 жиджитай сулалчатах хийх ба силчор хоёк сравниталыг 1,0-1,2 метройн гунд судигуулча.
- 5.3. Сувальная консонд худая кукрыпуулая зай канексог 120 жетрок сотроккуй былаар тохцок ба закит болок барактын хроптонд хайлыгүй стандарлык кудая кукрептуулика.
- 8.3. XIJ 3220-к 5-р куутык 8-р враетыг одор байтах сувалчаат болок шенхар знасан сувалчаа/заар татан барылгар оруули тептильне тахаваремыну колбоно.
- 8.4. Харимцая Хлябонна Эликцуулах Хоросноос штосон налбооны кабель шугавын утсратт зийн тустай заяшинирептой аж акуйн нагахар туйцэтгүүлэг шааруулагахав.

Зурыт теспет зайлыгүй тустах маардуштатай толологийн оныгий нөндтүүд:

411

- 8.1. Live-cap staticgas safetra, container yrighattain dashan sypat teodedi soneologoo Montori yrisain mengept MHS 5078 2003, MHS 5279-2903, MHS 5286 2003, MHS 5277 2003 nozr epiecowi ustabygranyyg bistor (JSX elle catgare 1988 one 127-p typestrag bittatgare seegar bapenttain-rykyttta.
- #.3. Хэрэттагчийн цутажын ртэржитын ажил баржтын дэриг төсөөт байхгүй болон хийгдээгүй бол авлиялагчий ихдэгдэж төсөв арзигт оруутаа.
- 8.1. Кабалийн хувааригих хайрцагны байргалыг хэрэгтэгчийн зуузацан нигтээлын цэгт бохон төхнөн эшиглэлтын цааруулага хэнгэхүйц байргаар сонтон хуурнгуульнаар төннөгөгийн ходэн хэмжээг заан зоругах.

7. Тутралтын аконын үнд тавитдак экскдөүт.

- 7.1. Управлина анып эксплизов вние зурат тесяв техненики ненаралы датуу индерсин эсохойт Мадралая колбооны сулисо ТОН-ны УБ Хотын суликаний газрын Буртал телевлектийн наклавр (учас: 70112393) оннуулаг батагитеаг авсан байх.
- 7.1. Газар чарооны акал туйцаттакдах аврыкаландах тухайн тасгийн аклая жижинэр болон инэлнөрлөр чактуулан далд актон атт уйлдэх хутажн авах эксны актанд хавсаргах.
- 7.3. Кабель зауталься упрали болог тазар соролно жилог западах ИВ. Клоск суляваний газрон ерінней живнерері албан Конс Мадиалей авч тухайн харснагагдах тастийн актах кноенерейн хеналаган дор туйсалгана.

Electricity supply/UB Electricity Distribution Network: Permission No. 15/03207/20

egjep t Mpt op,	Дугир //	79209/20 79209/20 Vnee-burrep.ko
egep t Mpt op,	Bring (3	7994a%da Vinae-baarap ko
RERE L MEX HOD, LARDERNEY	35-99-03/99/2	Уляанбаатар кот
с мр: юр,	20.00.000000	
ық: юр, Ілёсанат	20.00/339997	
kap, laiteens	en resound	lege meneranser mener hered
all and a second	БОЛОВСРОЛ (Терийн байгуу	:ОЕЛ ШИНЖЛЗК УХААН СПОРТЫН ВАМ ллжга - Руд 9116627,
	Hramedisanap (160-P (J3(J3P)	унбаатар 3-р короц. НБ. СБД, 3-Р ХОРОО. 1917
are sold	(Delagator	
upo ozrax	 Галар эзэмших эрхийн 2017 оны 000439171 тоот гэрмнтээ. Аргитестур талаалалтийн 2019 оны МЭК2019/DB-18. тоот даалгааа, басилганих талбайн сани эсэн. 	
(Armin)	illens sondorr	
н чарат	367 xBA (roorbop)	///)ракин ауун жаран долоо/ (усгээр)
Date: State J. D.4. xB. Tak No. Layraw T	ад стана, XI-5-с пын 1 ба 1 се епан тонски.	: 6 кВ-ын SzTD-3 А,Б фадурайн XTD-355 харна, шөхоэр дубегьнэх бүхий групп
VARIANTER		
а 0.4 хВ-ы архныныл мждэг 3 фо орудилуул	н цэтэнд сэлт автонот, хамгэ аанж баталгаал ах.	эн заптагч бухий рубильник, аналлалд алан таслах техевремик,/ V30/, DLMS , бурон алектрон 5 А тоолуур, гүйдлийн
Щетний тазардуулга болон шугам тонотлопын хэмэжилт, туршилтыг норм, дурмийн дагуу вайлган холбогдох газраар шалтуула гропокол авган бойу.		
naile nater	Interna and in the local	Mair Mahaan
не дуралын теленинан даат энер, курт дурмаат мардек. Шутакын "Ажгын аурат тесял" нёг түхэйн нутаг дэвсгэрийн ерөнхий телевлегөө хөрөрцсан нэгж болон бусар шеврдгагатай бейгуулгагуудтай аншилцен, марлогияйн санд оруулсан байх, схем холболт, хүчөн чартыг тус контанаар хөөнхгээ		
Энокуу техничийн нахцагийн дагуу тахисдах шуган, токоглолууд нь Улах-баатар цахилгаан тугхэх сулжээ төрнйн өмлөг хувьцаат компанийн багалсан. Техникийн хахердлагын тодорхойлолтг ыг хангасан байх		
	ж болон над аруулс алайн наво ахонглан ангайн ханат, 20-49-6	ж болон бусад шавддг од оруулсан байх, схам с аяви нахцагийн дагуу доовтсан туглох сулжоо анжийн шаврдгагын

Heating supply /UB Heating Network: Permission No.219/2020

15	(2) ТООО или Техникийн нэж иссын 2020 син 6-р сарын 5-н ни хургын цийдаарсар хилсандаа		H100	UJITISK S F.EASP	захирај РСАЙХАЈ
	TE	хникийн нөхцөл м 219/2020		-	
1.	Хэрэглэгчийн нэр: Бөрнлгын мэдээлэлт	Eonosopon coltri uskostras ykalek o upusproneški eprementi 34.0x33.0x specielaroši usupproneši	нортья	1 NAM /160	p.
ī.	Хэрэглэгчийн байрамт	Сухбавтар дуура: 3-р хороо, 160-р	-	promiter yo	00
4	Дулавны хэрэглээ:	Heir :	0.24	Faanhaar	
		А.Халаалт Б.Хэрэгцээний халуун ус В.Салонлуулга	0.16	Frankuar Frankuar Frankuar	
6.	Холболтын цэг:	За магистраль, ОСНААУТазраво т ДИЗЭБ-16А20 кудтаво колболттой тосцон 2-р хатеханхас колбогдов. Шутамын даралт, температурын	нахнана МЦП н утта:	ийн тадру Т-64 хүни	утга же н чадлы
		А. Холболтын шаг дээр байх турал 6. Шугамын статик даралт 8. Буцах шугамын даралт Г. Гарна атаарын тооцоог төмлөрө Л. Такия алаарын тооцоог төмлөрө	т тур	8 20 4.0 -39	M Myd Ma F C F C

- 6.1 Эрчим хүчний тухай хууль
- 6.2 Заспейн таарын 2020 оны 3-р сарын 18-ны өдрийн 97 тоот тогтоолоор баглагдсан "Дулааны эрчим хүч хэрэглэх дурий"
- 8.3 Эрчим Хүнний Зохицуулах Хорооны 2018 оны 10 дулаар сарын 11-ний едрийн 290 дугээр тогтоолоор батлагдсан Дулаан давохуулах, түгээх сүлжээний "Холболтын журам"
- 6.4 Эрчим хүчний тухай хуулийн 14-р сүйтийн 14.4-т заасны дагуу Эрчим хүч дажжуутах шуган, дэд станц нь төрийн өмчлөлд байна.
- 6.5 "Эрчим хүчний тухай хууль"-ийн 30 дугаар зүйлийн 30.1.10; 29 дугаар зүйлийн 29.1.9 дэх заалтыг мердаж өөрийн зээжилтийн шугам, тоног техеврамхөвөс бусад хэрэглэгчийг холбуулах.
- 7. Зураг төсөл, төсөв боловсруулахад тависдах шаардлага :

7.1 Зураг төслийн үндсэн шаардлага

7.1.1 "Эрчин хүчний тухий хууль"-ийн 33 дугаар зүйт, "Эрчин хүчний шуган сүлтжааг хамгаалах дүрэм"-ийн 1.3 дах зашттыг мердеж дулааны төө шуган, салаа болон салбар шуганаас хамгаалалтын зурвесн зайг ханган берилтыг телевлен. Шуганын хамгаалалтын зурвест тохнонилт, зам талбай, зотсооп, бусад байгууламж телевленгүй бейк.

Water supply/water supply and wastewater service (USUG), Wastewater collection/ (USUG): Permission No. 608/20

4		БАТЛАВ УС СУВ ИЙН УДИРДАХ ГАЗРЫН ЕРӨНХИЙ
		ИНОКЕНЕР БОГООД ДАРТЫН УҮРГИЙГ ХАВСРАН ГУЛЦЭТТЭРУ ИСЛТ-ын Тихинийг ихимот олсон комиссын 2020 оны 17-р оррин 17-ны өдрийн хүргийн 608 ноот протоклыг ундэслэн завшанран.
1	Барилго байгууламнийн	БШУЯве, 160-р цадаргаг, 240 хоукдейн цэцэрлэгийн гергеттел/ 2 девяар барнула, СБД 3-р хороо, одоо байтав
2	нар, зорнуналт, сахрынл Нийт усны хэрэгтсээ:	160-р цэцэрлэгэнйн ууд талд Цэвээр усны — 7,8 м ³ Унэн Галын усны — 2,8 м/с
3	Цавар усны холботт кийа цотлік байрана, шутамьн дианетр	Болер урны — 7,8 м3/кон ОСНААУТ-ын 2020-08-03-ны адрейк 4500000 тост техникейн тодруутын дёгуу Тее тугээх тех, ХҮТ-8-ни херьке ДК-1-ово одоо бейгае цецерлаг хертагы шутаныг яргаттек, шеноор ДХ
4	Бокер усны колболт кейх цотей» байранет, шутанын диаметр	ОСНАКУТ-ын 4603320 поог техникиет тидруултын дагуу Тек түүзэн тек, ХҮТ-б-ын харыжа бохир усны Ф150 иннийн цатамын худагт холбох, аклын хурийн якцад эксцагцах
5	Намант нездел	Вусад шаардалага: > Ус цанталах, армуттая татуургын сыстанийн утаагта, ыллагт туршилт товеруутгын ажлын зөрдгөн кураг төсөөт түрган > Барилтын тарха цаеор, бозор усны ыутал сулжээний эслбон цолейг өөрчлөх тожолдогц, хусалт тавых жнеууган, хангагч байгуулгагын эвециергөөр гүйцэтгэнэ. > Холбогдох Хууты, 8:46Д стандаргыг нөрдөж > Гарха клутанын ажгына зуртайг ХБХТ гай зооханагтаан Соласаанын ажгуу чо барагт суурагтагтаан > Соласаанын ажгуу чо барагт суурагтагтаан
6	Тавигдах шаардлага	 Барактыл "Хот сууренны ус кантаная, арнуттак татуургын жантлалтык тукай" хуулейн датуу аркурта татуургын тоноховоос 5 меляр, бонар усны хуулаанын жынхованын 6 меляр зайд барна. Хот, суурены ус хөнтөнск, арнуттак татуургын жынталтын тукай" хуутейн 15.1.10 чик датуу критат- э. хоротчегийн алтананын дамкуулан ханзбар харабточ колбок такчикийн өкхарат алтосон тахистарога баттагрозн өклык эройг, теслийн дактуу даржангийн хэрэтгэгчий холбок такчикийн өххарат алтосон тахистарога баттагрозн өклык эройг, теслийн дактуу даржангийн хэрэтгэгчий холбок такчикийн өххарат алтосон тахистарога баттагрозн өклык эройг, теслийн дактуу даржангийн хэрэтгэгчийг холбох такчанан бархоны уса боснор розна аутаманд нэйлэүхэхгүй байх. Сараар, бонар роны хүрэлтагчин байгаултагчин өхнөлттын нөхжөнөрийг байгауулта нэ, дагад авгант ант хотолон. Төвийн болон харэтгэгчийн цавэр, бохор усны хүрэг, хартам сүтэхээ балсн харэтгэгчийн цавэр, бохор усны хүрэг, хартам сүтэхэн доо богсон хавитаргтагчий бусар эне талбай, өлгө хоссоон, бариттын довжоо, хүүхдийн тотохонын талбай артийг төхнэлэлэгтэг тохоогдогд засаар уйлчилтээ хөйх балсынын Турдуулах, эксэрэн дараван нөөн сарталтийн хотолоны тахилэгтээ хологуулаг арталтийн хоссоон, бариттын довжоо, хүүхдийн тотохонын талбай артийг төхнэллээсэгтэгтэлэгтэгтэгтэлэг артагтийн хоссоон, бариттын довжоо, хүүхдийн тотохонын талбай артийг төхнэлэлэгтэгтэгтэгтэлэгтэгтэр артагтийн хоссоон доор соссоон хангаасталтын басаар уйлчилтээ хөйх балсынын Турдуулах засаарган арталагтийн холог автосоон хартагтагтэгтэгтэгтэгтэгтэгтэгтэгтэгтэгтэгтэгтэг
7	Объект Барих дээд	 Техновиби неждляйи кучантой хутаций 2 какт. Газар зазмание зрхоби 000435171 дугаартой гарикатах МУХ2013/06.013 току архиенто полос, обе держитах
	Хэрэглэгчийн нэр, утвс	ELD/Fina, Vrac 262227, 99655866

A new kindergarten. BZD, UB.

Communication/ Information & Communication National Network: Permission No. THB726/2020

NETCO	N	БАТГИВ Мадаллан ховьосны счажая хжилён субцагах акайенал
and the standard and provide	er trebelaa	m of the and the
	TRANSPORTER HERALISH	The second second
Дутмар Тін-Вігаваразі		2021/16/20
Зекиналагч байгууллагы: Хароглагчыйн нэдэ	адийн засгийн хүндрэгийн хө хүнтээмнийг саймруулах төс г өгэхйсалг	a Konoeceonium 44444, on
Xapurbass years	77660868	
1. Baigman	БЗД-к 34-р королны нутаг данагарт.	
2. Sopaynant:	thit p coupranais operanais: tops	
1. Хонбооны хэрэгцээ.	Лернителен хакцоогоорг Тегефон тоо (дирхаганд)	
4. Техникийи ридгой на	Kamer Kapwruge Kordonius Joseppine	* REPORTOC OFFICIALON INVICTOR ENVIRON

 Товітуутах будан арынінска дануу халбесенуутах такованік керенскі отгодось рудан сулала бактуутах будан арынінска дануу халбесенуутах такованік нешциніг зевлан МЛС XXX котус бегену техничнік непцілтургітар золбосны бух терілік рілимітаний горпуталттайтар забаль татах болон шилакулсан товнікціцта у баринга объести тахованікі болон угські вомносоції култах вавогуй болиції.

В. Техникийн үндсэн невцил

- ХЕ14501-н куртоник 3-01 битаназе бармтта куртот атакракр татча.
- 8.2. Багана суурилуунах вай павесат 60 матраос сатрахууй байкаар токцох ба аргалт болок Варетные эролтонд зайлыгууй багана суурагуулка.
- 5.3. КШ 4501 ні 1-рі луутын 6 ариятын 7,8,6-р хосыг 3-21 баганы кукаарытах кийрцагнаас сапанлан анч сарю быйтае багана болон анінсан баганаар чаган бариктад трурти теограман технорямница колбоно.
- 5.4. Харатьда Холбооны Зохидуулах Коргонско клюбооны лабель шутанын угаралт, кийи түйгий хөвшөөрөлтэй иж жүүйн нэгжээр туйцитгуулах шаардлагагаа.

8. Зураг төсөөт зайгшгүй тусгих шаардалагатай төхөөлөгийн өнцгөй налагууд:

- 8.1. Elevisity solicitis rations, supramaw yropartiaw axchair tepper receder solectico Moeron yrobw creauger MME 50762062, MNS 50792003, MNE 50802003, MNE 50772003 toor epenanit untepatieryya formi (207-elevic cellgare 1005 one 127-p tryustategi Germaryses assesse Depenymenrybuprtys.
- 9.2. Хэрэглэгчийн шүгэвшин угоралтын анин барилтын зүрэг төсөөт бөлөгүй болон хийдээгүй бол захиалагчид индэгдээ төгөө хурэгт груулан.
- 8.1. Кабезийи кулаяритех хайрдатна бабрлалыг хэрэглэгийн шугаявын хөгтдагын цэт беунэ. төлхөн жанглалтын шаардгага кэнгэхүйц байдгаар контон суурилуулахаар төнсэлэгийн хора хэмжээг зааж оруулах.

7. Weiphertum merson yan tametant consider:

- 7.1. Утрактын анат зилахозо өнин курат төтөв технолово энскулийн дагуу көйгдсан асахойг Мадаалан холбооны сотере ТОК-ны УБ Хатын сүлэсэний барын Бүртгэл төлөөгөстөйн төлгөөр (Улас 70112306) хөнуулан багаагааг анан байх.
- 7.2. Газар шоросны аналі түйцэттіндігі карлалітагдах тухайн тахлійн актан эннанөр болон инженерар шалууулан дага анлын акт үйлдэх хулорн авах ангын актанд кансартах.
- 7.3. Кабель заутавые утсраят болон тазар сарроона аксват актякдая УБ Хотын суляковай такрые времскій инванеродс, албан йоны жадледней авч тухайн харьяалагдах тастийн актах жиженерийн ханайтак дор туйдэттэкэ.
- 7.4. Elevente rarroan aufferts-Borton spotheaug tasgatitarian Bypon varioue Bails.
- 7.8. Угораттын анхлыг авшад, авшиндагы жынтынтын байкууспататын кактарч анхайт тааыж угораттын текенологиян анардиагыт бурон хөнүүртөж байх.
- 7.8. Харахтати колбол накцинёт буддуулахыйн тулд барилтын дотор жантажыны утаралтыг Монгол

A new kindergarten. BZD, UB.

Electricity supply/UB Electricity Distribution Network: Permission No. 15/05361/21

		YTAAHBAATA TOPISH OVA FYRQITTIK 3	р цолонтална эксэх сулж ил хульциол консонталуу ихончал
		техникийн нө дугаар 117	Instally.
dog .	mill came for ano	and the	Your Distance
Har. 8	Description internation		10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-1
.1.1	Хусалтийн дэгаах	21-51-001921	
1.2	Каратлагыны кар, регистр:	Bortoeceort La Ballyyonara - Pj	ансколах ухланы влагларын 2 913621,
1.3	Хараглагчийн байраант	VitamoSearap Ex	ιθιογρε 24φ χέρος, 268φ ερωρετοί
1,4	Aasan yikrivamraawaa sopeynam:	fishious.	
1.5	Тепликийн эккадол олтох үндэслэг:	 Галар разнил теат гэрчиягээ. Архилектүр н МЭК2027/76-00 вона хураг 	не архимін 2023 04-01-ны 000010829 венеллегізмін 2021 сны 1 дугавртай даалгажар, беспагдсан
1.6	Техноналійн нөрхіцальнік антилалі	illees sortforr	
1.7	Тооцооны бурхи надал:	290 ABA (TOOPDEE)	/Прожен ауун тавы/ бустахо)
Noës.	Kanforma upr		
2.7	110/10 кВ-ын Уланнуура №105-д хуурай салуур, цанкхор баритдах длд ерт	ен дад станцанс ОЛН фурмации не такала.	10 кВ-ын Монеть федералія тултуу на бурхостай агаздын шутам тапа
	Тоолуур, камана карагсал:		
Гуран.	Для нртонной 0,4 x8 талы орозн. CLMS reportsionar	н арөнхий аруул дэнэндэг 3 фазь	тнер ССРТ-айн загварын туршилттан ні баталгаат, буран алектрон тоотуу
<u>Fypan</u> 3.1	инания токносон гуйдля	and transferred	officers of the second of the second second
<u>Гуран.</u> 3.1 Дерев	ачанның тонрож түйді. Тургай алаптууд:	in partiture	diese (16) as emission (office floors)
<u>Пуран.</u> 3.1 Дорен 4.1	аналлагд токерсон түйдээ Туклай авалтууд: Олон улсын (тандортын чөдөлтөй, 10/0.4 кВ-о траноформитор бухий х эзэмэдлийн газарт цанаар	і клардтата ка н хучдахнён, ойбелейн оруул з барно.	нгашан, алдагдан багатай 400 «В/ хүчдэл товкруулган 3 ааллалта гатай дэд өргөөг/ КПТН/ өврый
<u>Пурая.</u> 3.1 <u>Дерен</u> 4.1 4.2	анавлалд токирсон түйдээ Түктай авантууд: Олонг улсынг гландэртын чөдөлтөй, 10/0.4 кВ о траноформитор бухий х эзэмжилийн газарт цансар богинсо жилгааны газа тидороойлолтыг Техниний	 конфудлета на ні хучдолебні, озбелейні оруулі з барясь. тал заатч да ні барлого дохеці. 	нгалан, алдагдан багатай 400 «В/ хүчдэл товоруулган 3 аатлалта гатай дэд өргөөг/ КПТН/ өөдөй дгаяхийг суурилуулах, Техалоай уулалтын хэлтсээс авах.
19238 3.1 <u>Annow</u> 4.1 4.2 4.3	аналлагд токерсон түйдээ Түртэй зайлтууд: Олон улсын гландэртын чөдөлтөй, 10/0.4 кВ о траноформатор бухий х эзэмжлийн газарт заноэр богинс жилтэаны гам тэдорсойлалтыг Тахыянай УбЦЛС 1800- айн эзэнгээ занолгалийн жилтары	 конфрантата на ні хучдальфія, озбелифія оруулі збаряся. заатч да ін бодлого зохиці тейні дод станці не тугіон технорі. 	нгалан, алдагдал багатай 400 «В/ хүчдэл товоруулган 3 ааллалта гатай дэд өрлөөг/ КПТН/ өөрмө улалтын холтсоос аван. адгам тонслоод хайсдах өргөтгөл гуйцэтгүүлээ.

A new kindergarten. BZD, UB.

Heating supply /UB Heating Network: Advised other source due to remote location



УЛААНБААТАР ДУЛААНЫ СҮЛЖЭЭ төрийн өмчиг хувьцаат компани

18332 Visual-Garrop xor, Semerch 29909. © Shranacellei nytawa, Vrac/Daec: (910-11) 34 23.97, M-wolu: drazz@stds.energy.mn

LOH. 10. L6 No (0) 106 Tanati AD.H. 10, 19-100 No 120

ЭДИЙН ЗАСГИЙН ХҮНДРЭЛИЙН ҮЕД БОЛОВСРОЛЫН ЧАНАР, ХҮРТЭЭМЖИЙГ САЙЖРУУЛАХ ТӨСӨЛД

Нийслэлийн Баянзурх дүүргийн 24 дүгээр хороонд, байрлах 168 дугаар цэцэрлэгийн 100 ортой ергетгелийн барилгыг төвлөрсөн дулаан хангамжид холбох хүсэлтийг судалж, тодруулаад дараах хариуг хүргүүлж байна.

Тус сургуулийн барилгын байршил нь "УБДС" ТӨХК-ийн эзэмшлийн дулавны шутамаас хэт алслагдсан, төвлөрсөн дулаан хангамжийн системд холбох техникийн боломжгүй тул дулааны хэрэглээг өөр эх үүсвэрээр хөнгахыг эввлеж байна.



3160603476

A new kindergarten. BZD, UB.

Water supply/water supply and wastewater service (USUG), Wastewater collection/ (USUG):

Advised autonomous source of water supply or delivery of water due to remote location



Баянаурх дүүргийн 24 дүгээр хороо, гэр хороолол дунд одоо байгаа 108 дугаар гэр цэцэргэгийн зуун талд Нийслолийн боловоролын газрын захиалглаар, барисдах 100 хүүхдийн цэцэрлэгийн 2 давхар барилгэд төхнөнийн нөхцөл хүссэн танай хүсэглтийг 2021 оны 10 дугаар сарын 27-ны өдрийн Технияийн нөхцөл олгох хомиссын хургаар хоголлцлээ.

Тухайн байршилэд ойр төвийн цавор, бохир усны шутам сутиоо байхгүй тул техникийн нахцал олгож боломжгүй байна.

Иймээс цэвэр усыг өөрийн эх үүсвэрсор, эсвэл зөөврөөр шийдэх, нөн бохир усны бага оврын цэвэргэх байгууламжийг холбогдох хууль, норм дурмийн дагуу галавьтехийг хэдэгдэө.

6549-015	Ус Сужийн Танраян Гахар
-15407.38	Measurements Soldhorse Xarry
104. 54	Dapra
100 000	Hauar Caxey
Sector Contractor	2021.10.29.08.46

Kindergarten No. 6. Murun, Khuvsgul Province

Communication/ Information & Communication National Network: Permission No. 2022/08/15 by Khuvsgul Branch of CICNN



Kindergarten No. 6. Murun, Khuvsgul Province

Electricity supply/UB Electricity Distribution Network: Permission No. 215/2022 by Khuvsgul Erchim khuch LLC

ġ Lat Epocard manufacture Пахиличные эрчина хучээр хангих. техникийн мөнцөөд Дутаар № 215/2022 2022 Ional OR-p-rapies 19 and occup Distance of the 1. Texnichila sexuan system soperariestin org/Xenerar alterada Texpue Xaponas, Saponas, Saponas respite aspea & Conceptor, Xoneron aliane, Mapon epo, 7-p Sar, Fran 70382929 2. X sprenovelle failpance X second alway, Meyor 194, 8-p far, (Janasefanguas ryanes, 403 corr, 6-p ascrace 3. Анни уйлчалгоний хорерлалт: 150 круплийа контроломие бирнога шинтер барон. 4. Texaneuka menana eseres parterer Naterec ultaralla Parpasa Xapanyas, Esparra ver fadiryyrarnan raydos supra 8-Parsopar-at 2022-08-15-me expanse 4/535 autors restrant party 5. Cyypeostacasi vazan: 110 siltr 6. Хлайогом изг: баВлая XXII-аас тэкчгээж буй Гандан-2 гаргалтаны 32-33-р тунгуурын ауна тахорбетовая тултуур бостов, хуудай калтуур сууралуудан эрчөн хүчний хэнжэлттэй, 5 шитэлетий 169x8в тучко чадалтий траноформатор бумей КТШИ уговру азрокатог токтог. 1. Teoryop: / DT2V-88 / supraw 3 damas prasar moreop. 8. Tylicestic spacebopearop - Salaryk Туттий закотууа: Хридол увасан технолдога каткаткан эрчан хруптр хангах болочжері. 10. Tennocolis souznails systemed synamic (201) Шат теклология болов сахарауратыт нерж ауром стандарных датуу хайы, / Тайонгуй соордуулга болог asers salayyours salls seerers follyyoutrue up: fyoal assurmant scoreyyou are repryyou asso ADDRESS OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR Пор дурьдкая технонобе дакл'янар, хууль, дүрнөйг нөрдөх: Zing erenjami accelore undis antin accelorare appin tasagun aanyi saytas taras any, romer resconteaulier газардуулгыг өөрө стандартын дагуу хайн эрь бүхий байгууллагаар хионуулон аят гаргуулан авах Кабаль дугляния трясс, хантадалтын зурвагт Варюта барях, зан талбай зисах, бетокдохыг хоряглено. Цамогаан угоралын анхал тустай энцинороггай коргандыйн байгууллагаар цахалгаан элиннийн fails you would again a second association again, three association appendix any other system. Xysgynalis synanacular ± 1% oilta xysformag sourcess teenrison cyypargysias. Jacrosia corpus 2001 cass appairs 263 mer terretetep fattargen "Iposenas spans ups superes apparts dis MARTENT INOPAMER SCATTER. Хорогазга нь воройн этонально цахнатана тоног технорочской налесталт уличнаточной зааг дохорон началтан текст технорочнойы аконтных, месттуй кванлагааг харяундан аконтныг технолох богонд. дустан сударський замичальнитых хурых дотор гор , прои туру, Паралга байтууляное бареа, аухам туржо очечляга, тельшигчийн хөвдөөрсөнөс бусад үйх жинстиги мууслалаг херислонт. (Хлийн бус уйа анаслагаатай үед supergular supporting tacaap pitrautric sadorin) Densyy reconsolie accassile anyy conformar I accade symptots tobe ryleptrm factors set symptotic цальнатам сулжанд хозбогдоогуй толисцогд линетор техликийн имтаот авна. Цахалгаан эрчин хучний госалог сар бурнёк 28-ны дотор хийх.Хэрэгдэгч нь Эрчин хучний гухай хуулийн 30.1.11-д завсям датуу хучин чадные хуртина тур конялануйн наконаранир жанстар кориссти алыги бал невынерна авч холбуулых уурогтой. tale consystem LL Occordance Sopryptartue execute actes . 1404 N. Aspinibush TX seconds many Londerty 4 Endiators

Kindergarten No. 6. Murun, Khuvsgul Province

Heating supply /UB Heating Network: Permission No. 2022/11 by "Khuvsgul Heating Station" Shareholding



NYAR I-EJ

Kindergarten No. 6. Murun, Khuvsgul Provinc

Water supply/water supply and wastewater service (USUG), Wastewater collection/ (USUG): Permission No. 11 by "Khuvsgul water service" company

IL TIXAFBAWAB BATRAB: XAHFAF4 BARFYYRRA/SHI DAPEA. un

Тахнанийн натаан алтох комессин 2022 оны О9 сарын 02-ний адрийн хурлын 11 тоот Туротокогий индэслэн зөвшөөрөв

TEXHMININH HOXLOCT IN 11

1	Варилга байгууламжийн нэр, ээрихлагт, байршил	Марен сумын 8 дутаар багт беритдах 150 хүүхдийн цэхэртэгийн барилга
2	Нийт усны хэрэглээ:	Цивор ус. ж3лан Бежер ус. ж3лан
3	Цэвэр усны холбогт хийх цэгийн байршил, шуганын Энэнигт, дэхилт	Допазн ТОХОК-ніж егозні техниний кекцепийн далуу цэвэр усны салбар шуган сулжэний ф100 цэвэр усны шугам сулжээнная колбокоор техникийн кекцеп оптов.
	Вожер усны валболт хийх цагийн байрама, шутанын диаметр:	Бохар усны цептуучая цегаа сулковний БУХ-80 шанаар баригдах хүүндийн цэцэртэлийн бариглын бохир усны цүгэм сулжээг холбож нийлүүтэхээр төхөөхэйн нөхцөл олуул, бохир усны долан сулжээний худгийн H=2,8 Ф150
	Hawarty resigner:	Барилга байгуунжинийн зураг төсөл боловсруулах, зөвцэлцэн дурмийн 5.2 дугаар заалтын дагуу барилтын хүүгэх сульсоний ажлын зургыг ациялагч байгуултагатай энцэхгүцэг.
		 Бараллыг Хот, суурины үс ханганж, армуттах татуургын вымуналчын тукай хуулийн дагуу цэхэр усны арганын танхлагаас 5и, бохир усны аугамын танхлогээс би зайд барих. Хот, суурины ус конганж, армуттах татуургын важглагтын тукай хуулийн 15.1.10 дагуу хангагч нь хараглагчийн
	Тармдак мааролига	цатамаас дамкуулан шиноэр хэрэгтэгч холбог төхнөнийн нехцөл олгон, бөтлөгдсан анлын зураг төслийн дэгуу дараагийн хэрэглэгчийг холбуулах. 3 Цэвэр, бохир усны шутамын утарагт, шахалт туршилтын унд ашиглагтын байгуулгагын хөөдөтсөн өнөөнөрийг байлуулж ил, дагд амлын энт үйгэдэгэ.
		4. Тахникийн нахцанийн хүчинтэй хутацаа 2 жил.
7	Харанулагчения нар, утак	99020813
8	Техничейн нахорлтой холбогдсон саям	Cassa ayprovêr xascapras.

Комиссын нарийн бичэг

Konnoun neuron and 1 4 1 40

Д Сухаз (Еренхий инненер)

Д Сарангэрэл (УХАТ ациглалтын инженер)